
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 13, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on January 13, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

Revised AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 13, 2020 - Page 1 of 7 

 Item Purpose / Support 

 Agenda (Estimated Time)  

   

1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m.  

1.1. Roll Call  

1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 

If you have a comment regarding an item on the 
agenda prior to closed session, please submit your 
comment via email to boardclerk@sccs.net. 

   

2. Closed Session Items  

2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 

5:35 p.m. Information for possible action 

2.2. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957)  

5:40 p.m. Information for possible action 

2.3. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6) 

5:45 p.m. SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update 
to and receive direction from Trustees regarding 
negotiations with the GSCFT. 

2.4. Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 

5:55 p.m. Title: Superintendent Subject: 2020-21 Goals 

   

3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 

3.1. Welcome  

3.2. Agenda Changes, Additions or Deletions & 

Announcements 

 

1/425



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 13, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on January 13, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

Revised AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 13, 2020 - Page 2 of 7 

 Item Purpose / Support 

4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 

Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City 
School Board Members appreciate your presence 
and your comments regarding items not on the 
agenda are valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board Bylaw protocols, Trustees will not comment on 
Public Comments during this time. 

   

5. Superintendent's Report 6:40 p.m. 

5.1. Superintendent’s Reports  
 

5.2. Students’ Reports 
 

   

6. Board Members' Reports  
6:50 p.m. 

6.1. Board Members' Reports  
 

6.2. Board President's Report  
 

   

7. Approval of Minutes  7:00 p.m. 

7.1. Meeting December 2, 2020  

7.2. Meeting December 15, 2020  

8. General Public Business   

8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items and 
Items to be Received: These matters may 
be passed by one roll call motion.  

7:05 p.m. 

8.1.1. Educational Services  

8.1.1.1. Second Quarter Williams Report  

2/425



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 13, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on January 13, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

Revised AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 13, 2020 - Page 3 of 7 

 Item Purpose / Support 

8.1.1.2. School Accountability Report Cards  

8.1.2. Business Services  

8.1.2.1. Purchase Orders, Bids, & Quotes  

8.1.2.2. Warrant Register  

8.1.2.3. Budget Transfers  

8.1.3. Human Resources None. 

8.1.3.1. Personnel Actions -- Certificated  

8.1.3.2. Personnel Actions -- Classified  

8.1.3.3. Job Description: Assistant Director of 
Maintenance & Operations 

 

8.1.3.4. Job Description: Lead Custodian  

8.1.3.5. Updated Stipend Schedule  

8.1.4. Governance/Superintendent None. 

   

8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 

 

8.2.1. Educational Services  

8.2.1.1. Nonpublic School: Chartwell School  

8.2.1.2. Agreement for Professional Services: Private 
School Placements  

 

8.2.2. Business Services  

8.2.2.1. Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Modification: 
Branciforte Middle School 

 

3/425



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 13, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on January 13, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

Revised AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 13, 2020 - Page 4 of 7 

 Item Purpose / Support 

8.2.2.2. Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Modification: Bay 
View Elementary School 

 

8.2.2.3. Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Modification: 
Soquel High School 

 

8.2.2.4. Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Modification: Santa 
Cruz High School 

 

8.2.2.5. Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Modification: 
Harbor High School 

 

8.2.2.6. Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Balancing: Soquel 
High School 

 

8.2.2.7. Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Balancing: Harbor 
High School 

 

8.2.2.8. Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Balancing: 
Branciforte Middle School 

 

8.2.2.9. Climatec Memorandum of Understanding  

8.2.3. Human Resources  

8.2.3.1. Consultant Services Agreement: Leadership 
Coaching 

 

8.2.4. Governance/Superintendent  

   
8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects 

Contracts, Agreements, Proposals, Bids & 
Change Orders 

 

8.3.1 Geo H Wilson: Change Order 1: Westlake 
Elementary School Sewer Repairs 

 

8.3.2. Locatelli Moving & Storage Inc.: Change 
Order 1: Bay View Elementary School 
Moves 

 

4/425



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 13, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on January 13, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

Revised AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 13, 2020 - Page 5 of 7 

 Item Purpose / Support 

8.3.3.  PPD Multimedia Inc.: Quote: Harbor High 
School Logo 

 

8.3.4. PSR Electric: Change Order 1: Santa Cruz 
High School Site Lighting 

 

   

8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  7:10 p.m. 

8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  

   

8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  

   
8.5.1. Governance/Superintendent  

8.5.1.1. Staff Report: Update on Expanding In-
Person Services & Academic Interventions 
and Support 

7:15 p.m. Staff will provide an update on the expansion 
of in-person services.  

8.5.2. Educational Services None. 

8.5.3. Business Services  

8.5.3.1. Staff Report: Bond Budget Update 7:30 p.m. Mark Bartos will provide the Bond Budget 
Update. 

8.5.3.2. Staff Report: Bond Project Update 7:50 p.m. MADI Architecture will present an update on 
Bond Projects. 

8.5.3.3. New Business: Bond Set Aside Projects 8:10 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the projects to 
funded by Bond Set Aside funds, as recommended by 
staff. 

   

8.5.4. Human Resources None. 

5/425



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 13, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on January 13, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

Revised AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 13, 2020 - Page 6 of 7 

 Item Purpose / Support 

8.5.5. Governance/Superintendent   

8.5.5.1. Board Policies: First and/or Final Reading for 
CSBA Revisions & Updates and Revision of 
Board Bylaw 9220 

8:30 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the revised policies 
for first and/or final reading. 

8.5.5.2. Discussion: Possible Items for Future 
Meeting Agendas 

8:45 p.m. 

   

9. Adjournment 
 

   

10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  

   

11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 

 

   

12. Adjournment  
 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education or may be viewed at the District Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 
95060.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Alyssa 
Martinez by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Alyssa Martinez por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 
Board Meeting Information 

6/425



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 

REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  

AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 13, 2020    

OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 

ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 

 

COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   

Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 

 

If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 

item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 

by 12:00 p.m. on January 13, 2020.  

POSTED 

DATE: 

TIME: 

LOCATION: 

EMPLOYEE: 

 

Revised AGENDA 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting January 13, 2020 - Page 7 of 7 

1. The Regular Meeting on January 13, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

2. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 27, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

3. The Regular Meeting on February 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

4. The Regular Meeting on February 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

5. The Regular Meeting on March 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

6. The Regular Meeting on March 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

7. The Regular Meeting on April 14, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

8. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on April 28, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

9. The Regular Meeting on May 5, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

10. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on May 19, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

11. The Regular Meeting on June 2, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

12. The Regular Meeting on June 16, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

7/425



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
DECEMBER 2, 2020 

 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Ranii called this Special Meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty  John Owen  Cindy Ranii   Deb Tracy-Proulx  
Jeremy Shonick   Patricia Threet  Claudia Vestal  
 
Student Board Representative Sophie Nigh 
 
Absent:  Student Board Representative Xhu Lopez Guzman 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Ranii welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Special Meeting 
of the Board of Education. 
 

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro’s report focused on academic, social-emotional, and attendance interventions and 
support for students. Her report specifically addressed interventions during distance learning. In October sites 
began implementing small cohorts and will continue to add more cohorts after winter break. Students 
participating in small cohorts are high needs students identified through the MTSS screening process. 
Superintendent Munro also shared the District’s plans to begin credit recovery in the second semester. The 
District is also looking into ways to add a credit recovery teacher at each high schools’ and to increase 
participation in the virtual tutoring opportunities. Trustees asked questions and had discussion.  
 
Student’s Report 
Student Board Representative Sophie Nigh reported that student Leadership at Soquel High School are 
continuing their work on safety videos to share with peers around returning to in-person instruction. Soquel 
High School is also hosting a drive-in movie night at the Santa Cruz Boardwalk. 
 
 
 

8/425



BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
 

Board Members’ Reports 
Trustee Owen did not have a report to share. 
 
Trustee Vestal shared that she is reading grant proposals for the Schools Plus Grant, and the decision for the 
grant will be made tomorrow. She also reported that she is reading emails from community members and will 
respond as soon as possible. 
 
Vice President Coonerty shared that she may leave the meeting periodically due to medical reasons. She also 
reported that she is reading emails from community members and will respond as soon as possible.  
 
Trustee Tracy-Proulx reported attending the CSBA delegate assembly and will share highlights from legislative 
action with the governance team. She will also be attending the CSBA Annual Education Conference Thursday 
and Friday. This year the conference is virtual.  
 
Trustee Threet did not have a report to share. 
 
Trustee Shonick shared concern regarding the lack of participation from students during distance learning 
classes. 
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Ranii did not have a report to share.  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
1. MSP (Vestal/Owen) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of October 21, 2020 meeting, with a 
correction to a Trustee’s board report. 
2. MSP (Coonerty/Vestal) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of October 28, 2020 meeting. 
3. MSP (Owen/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of November 4, 2020 meeting, 
with a corrected typo. 
4. MSP (Vestal/Owen) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of November 9, 2020 meeting. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None. 
 

GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
Consent Agenda 
8.1.1. North Bay Ford Purchase, 8.1.2. Amayas Locating Services, LLC Proposal, 8.1.3. Annual Renewal of 
Services Agreement: Super Co-Op, 8.1.4 Geo H. Wilson: Mission Hill Middle School Ventilation Repair, 8.1.5. 
Geo H Wilson: Santa Cruz High School Ventilation Repair, 8.1.6. Geo H. Wilson: Gault Elementary School 
Ventilation Repair, 8.1.7. Geo H. Wilson: Westlake Elementary School Ventilation Repair, 8.2.1. Development 
Group Inc: Change Order 3: Branciforte Middle School Network Cabling, 8.2.2. Development Group Inc: 
Change Order 3: Gault Elementary School Data Installation, 8.2.3. Development Group Inc: Proposal: Westlake 
Elementary School Network Cabling, 8.2.4. Kleinfelder: Proposal: Geotechnical Services Branciforte Small 

9/425



Schools Alternative Family Education, 8.2.5. Moore Twining: Proposal: Santa Cruz High School Geotechnical 
Engineering for New Switchgear, 8.2.6. Moore Twining: Change Order 1: Santa Cruz High School Underground 
Utility Replacement Special Inspection and Materials Testing, 8.2.7. Netxperts Inc.: Proposal: Districtwide 
Router Installation Cover, 8.2.8. Nor Cal Catering Truck Repair: Quote: Food Truck Fabrication, 8.2.9. Palace 
Business Solutions: Proposal: Soquel High School Science Tables, 8.2.10. PSR Electric: Proposal: Branciforte 
Small Schools Alternative Family Education Electrical Safe Off, 8.2.11. PSR Electric: Proposal: Mission Hill 
Middle School Switchgear Electrical Work, 8.2.12. PSR Electric: Proposal: Santa Cruz High School Switchgear 
Electrical Work, 8.2.13. Santa Cruz Signs: Quote: Westlake Elementary School Lift Signage, 8.2.14. Sierra School 
Equipment: Change Order 1: Soquel High School Classroom Furniture Installation, 8.2.15. Waterproofing 
Associates: Contract: Harbor High School PA Building Roof 
 
Vice President Coonerty motioned to approve the consent agenda. Trustee Vestal seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was passed by the following roll call vote: 
Roll Call Vote:  
Coonerty – Yes Owen – Yes  Ranii – Yes 
Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
 
 

ITEMS TO BE TRANSACTED AND/OR DISCUSSED 
 
8.4.1.1. New Business: Hybrid Instructional Timeline 

On Monday, November 16, Santa Cruz County was moved to the “Widespread” Purple Tier on 
the State Blueprint for Economic Recovery.  When a County is placed in the Purple Tier schools 
cannot expand in-person instruction to a Hybrid Model.   
 
Over the last several months, staff have worked with community stakeholders to make plans 
for the potential expansion of in-person instruction in January following Winter Break.   The 
Superintendent’s Reopening Advisory Committee originally recommended that there be two 
weeks of distance learning following the holiday break to ensure that any potential virus 
exposures during the holiday period were detected.  The committee also recommended that 
there be a gradual, staggered implementation of Hybrid Instruction to allow for a safe, effective 
transition with the youngest students beginning first.  This will allow students to learn new 
safety protocols and have a school orientation with fewer students on campus. Given the 
County’s current Purple Tier Placement, staff cannot outline a specific date and timeline for 
Hybrid Implementation.  However, staff does recommend a plan for a staggered 
implementation when it is safe to do so.  Trustees asked questions and had discussion. 

 
Public Comment: GSCFT President Casey Carlson shared that the union supports the District’s 
plan to not set a firm date for return and to have a staggered implementation of Hybrid 
Instruction, stating that teachers will need transition time between distance learning and 
Hybrid Instruction. President Carlson shared her appreciation for the ventilation assessments 
and asked the reports to be made available to parents and teachers are soon as they are ready. 
She also asked for support and partnership to advocate for schools to receive the vaccine as 
soon as possible.  

 

10/425



Public Comment: District teachers and staff shared concerns about transitioning from distance 
learning to Hybrid Instruction. Some of these concerns included having enough time to prepare 
before moving back onto campus, adequate facilities, and offering in person services before the 
vaccine in available.  
 
Public Comment: District parents and community members advocated for schools to move to 
Hybrid Instruction as soon as possible. Serval also expressed concerns about the social 
emotional needs of students, as well as the increase in failing grades.  
 
Trustee Tracy-Proulx motioned to authorize the superintendent to continue expanding small 
cohorts on school campuses to the maximum extent possible of students, consistent with the 
Board adopted reopening plan. Vice President Coonerty seconded the motion. 
 
MSP(Tracy-Proulx/Coonerty) 7-0, the motion was approved. 
 
Trustee Owen motion to approve an eventual staggered implementation for Hybrid Instruction, 
as recommended by the Superintendent. Trustee Vestal seconded the motion. 
 
MSP(Owen/Vestal) 7-0, the motion was approved. 
 
Trustee Vestal motioned for the District to move to Hybrid Instruction when the County is 
officially designated in the Red Tier and have met state safety regulations. Trustee Owen 
seconded the motion. 
 
MSP(Vestal/Owen) 7-0, the motion was approved. 
 
Vice President Coonerty left the meeting at 9:05 p.m. 

 
 
8.4.2.1. New Business: District and Bond Communications 

At the Board Study Session on October 28th, the Board discussed the importance of increasing 
and improving communication on the Bond.  There was also a discussion about the need for 
communications support districtwide.  Staff looked at different job descriptions for Public 
Information Officers within school districts and contacted different communications firms to 
determine their ability to support the district.  Staff also assessed the costs of hiring an 
employee vs. contracting services..  
 
Staff recommend a full-time Public Information Officer for several reasons.  The demand for 
communication is high in all areas of the district, especially given the pandemic; the ability to 
recruit and train a high-quality candidate increases with a full-time employment opportunity; 
the volume of information that needs to be communicated across the organization is 
significant; and continuity of communication is invaluable for all stakeholders. Trustees asked 
questions and had discussion. 
 
Public Comment: Community Member Rocco Cappalla encouraged the District to ensure all 
were understanding the big picture needs. 
 
Trustee Tracy-Proulx motioned to approve the job description and allow trustees to give input 
on advertisement for the position. Trustee Vestal seconded the motion. 

11/425



 
MSP(Tracy-Proulx/Vestal) 5-1, the motion was approved. 

 
8.4.3.1. Staff Report: Bond Project & Maintenance, Operations and Transportation Reorganization 

In November 2016, Measures A & B were passed by voters raising $208 million to support 
facilities repairs and modernization in both the elementary and secondary districts. The Board 
requested staff work to increase and refine communication about Bond projects. 
 
Staff proposed a restructuring of the facilities team to allow for more dedicated support to the 
Bond program.  Staff proposed eliminating the Supervisor Custodial - Grounds - Maintenance 
and fill the existing vacant job classification of Assistant Director of Facilities, Maintenance and 
Operations.  The position of Assistant Director of Facility Services will support bond projects, 
oversee day to day maintenance projects, and oversee custodial and grounds maintenance. As 
proposed, .4 FTE of the Assistant Director will be dedicated to bond projects. In addition, staff 
propose creating a Lead Custodial position, one to support training, supply ordering, and 
equipment needs. To ensure sites’ needs are met, staff also propose adding an additional .5 FTE 
custodian. The position is essential to meeting the expectations, deadlines, and fiscal 
component of all the projects.  Trustees asked questions and had discussion. This report was 
informational in nature and no action was taken by the Board at this time. 
 
Public Comment: Community Member Rocco Cappalla shared he would like to see a true 
program management of the Bond Program. 

 
8.4.4.  Discussion: Potential Items for Futures Agenda 

Trustee Shonick requested the District research attendance policies during distance learning, 
specifically about active engagement in virtual classes. He requested a draft policy be added to 
a future agenda as soon as possible. 

 
9. Adjournment of Meeting 
As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President Ranii adjourned this 
Special Meeting at 10:02 p.m. 
 
Board Meeting Schedule Information  
1. The Special Meeting on December 2, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
2. The Regular Meeting on December 15, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
3. The Regular Meeting on January 13, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
4. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 27, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
5. The Regular Meeting on February 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
6. The Regular Meeting on February 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
7. The Regular Meeting on March 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
8. The Regular Meeting on March 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
9. The Regular Meeting on April 14, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
10. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on April 28, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
11. The Regular Meeting on May 5, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
12. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on May 19, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
13. The Regular Meeting on June 2, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
14. The Regular Meeting on June 16, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

12/425



 
*For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting recording: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Cynthia Ranii, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 
 

13/425



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
DECEMBER 15, 2020 

 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Ranii called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Ranii called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:34 p.m. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty  John Owen  Cindy Ranii   Deb Tracy-Proulx  
Jeremy Shonick   Patricia Threet  Claudia Vestal  
 
Absent:  Student Board Representative Sophie Nigh 
Student Board Representative Xhu Lopez Guzman 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Ranii welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Education.   
 
Oath of Office 
County Superintendent of School Faris Sabbah provided the Oath of Office for Santa Cruz City School Trustees 
appointed in lieu of election. Trustees Coonerty, Owen, Threet, and Vestal took the formal Oath of Office 
provided by Superintendent Sabbah.  
 
3.2. Agenda Changes, Additions, or Deletions & Announcements 
Superintendent Munro recommended moving items 8.5.3.1. New Business: First Interim Report and 8.5.3.2. 
New Business: Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Budget Overview for Parents to the beginning of the 
agenda, due to intermittent power outages across the county. Superintendent Munro also clarified that no 
action on a Fund 17 will occur at the meeting. The idea of a reserve fund has been brought to the Budget 
Oversight Committee, but there is no action planned. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 

14/425



ITEMS TO BE TRANSACTED AND/OR DISCUSSED 
 
8.5.3.1. New Business: First Interim Report 

Assistant Superintendent Monreal presented the District’s First Interim Report. Mr. Monreal 
reported that the District requires positive certification to certify that the District will meet its 
financial obligations for the current year, and two subsequent fiscal years. Mr. Monreal 
presented the adjustments in both revenues and expenditures made to the budget since 
adoption in June 2020. The Governor’s 2021-22 Budget Proposal will be available in January 
2021, and the Second Interim Report will be due in March 2021. Assistant Superintendent 
Monreal recommended approval of the 2020-21 First Interim Report with a Positive 
Certification.  
 
Public Comment: GSCFT Union President Casey Carlson shared comments regarding the 0% 
COLA and concerns about a proposed reserve fund. 
 
Public Comment: Community member Rocco Cappalla expressed concerns that site PTAs have 
been asked to  supply personal protective equipment for teachers. 

 
MSP(Tracy-Proulx/Owen), 7-0 the First Interim Report was approved with positive certification. 
 

8.5.3.2. New Business: Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Budget Overview for Parents 
Assistant Superintendents Coito and Monreal presented the Budget Overview for Parents. 
Senate Bill 98, approved by Governor Newsom on June 29, 2020, made several key changes to 
accountability requirements for 2020-21. These include the establishment of a new 
requirement,The Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan, which was adopted by the Board of 
Trustees on September 23, 2020. This plan includes planned and past expenditures using 
Learning Loss Mitigation, CARES Act and COVID Funds. Like the Local Control Accountability 
Plan, this plan also includes a Budget Overview for Parents. The Budget Overview for Parents 
delineates total funding for the school year including funding for high needs students. Trustees 
asked questions and had discussion. 
 
Public Comment: Community Member Rocco Cappalla requested that another means of 
communicating the budget be made available to families, in addition to the State required 
template. 
 
MSP(Vestal/Coonerty), 7-0 the Board approved the Budget Overview for Parents. 

 
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 

 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro’s report focused on  academic, social-emotional, and attendance interventions and 
support for students. She reported  on interventions during distance learning. In October, sites began 
implementing small cohorts and will continue to add more cohorts after winter break. Students participating 
in small cohorts are high needs students identified through the MTSS screening process. Superintendent 
Munro also shared the District’s plans to begin credit recovery in the second semester. The District is also 

15/425



looking into ways to add a credit recovery teacher at each high schools’ and to increase participation in the 
virtual tutoring opportunities. Trustees asked questions and had discussion.  
 
Student’s Report 
None 
 

BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
 

Board Members’ Reports 
Trustee Tracy-Proulx did not have a report to share. 
 
Trustee Vestal congratulated teachers at Westlake, DeLaveaga, Gault, and Branciforte Middle School, who 
were each awarded a School Plus Grant this year. 
 
Trustee Threet congratulated Yvette Brooks, the new mayor of Capitola, and acknowledged her contributions 
to the community. Trustee Threet also thanked Supervisor Leopold for his service to the community, and 
Trustee Threet expressed her gratitude to the constituents for their continued confidence.  
 
Vice President Coonerty shared that she is honored to continue serving as a school board representative, and 
thanked staff and community members. 
 
Trustee Owen shared his gratitude to serve as a school board representative.  
 
Trustee Shonick did not have a report to share. 
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Ranii congratulated the newly sworn in trustees and expressed gratitude for their service and 
work. President Ranii visited virtual classrooms in the past week and thanked the teachers and principals for 
welcoming her into their class. President Ranii also shared work done by the Ad Hoc Committee for 
interventions.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

1. MSP (Vestal/Owen) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of November 16, 2020 meeting. 
2. MSP (Vestal/Owen) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of November 18, 2020 meeting. 
 
 

GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
Consent Agenda 
8.1.2.1. Purchase Orders, Bids, & Quotes, 8.1.2.2. Warrant Register, 8.1.2.3. Budget Transfers, 8.1.2.4. Annual 
Developer Fee Report, 8.1.2.5. Five Year Developer Fee Report, 8.1.2.6. Bond Project Notice of Completion, 
8.1.2.7. Governmental Accounting Standards Board 75: Actuarial Variation & Supplemental Schedules, 8.1.3.1. 
Personnel Actions – Certificated, 8.1.3.2. Personnel Actions – Classified, 8.1.3.3. Job Description Revision: 
Director of Finance, 8.1.4.1. Gifts, 8.2.1.1. Out of State Residential Treatment Center Revision: New Focus 
Academy, 8.2.1.2. Out of State Nonpublic School: Diamond Ranch Academy, 8.2.2.1. Dale Scott & Company 

16/425



Contract Renewal, 8.2.2.2. All Bay Mechanical Inc. Proposal: District Office Air Ventilation Repairs, 8.2.4.1. 
School Resource Office Memorandum of Understanding and Contract Santa Cruz County Sherriff, 8.3.1. 
Ausonio: Change Order 2: DeLaveaga Elementary School Modernization, 8.3.2. CRW Industries Inc.: Contract: 
Mission Hill Middle School Multi-Purpose Room Ceiling, 8.3.3.  Development Group Inc.: Proposal: Bay View 
Elementary School Network Cabling, 8.3.4. Development Group Inc.: Proposal: DeLaveaga Elementary School 
Network Cabling, 8.3.5. Development Group Inc.: Proposal: District-wide Network Coordination Consulting, 
8.3.6. Palace Business Solutions: Proposal: DeLaveaga Elementary School Work Room Storage, 8.3.7. PSR 
Electric: Proposal: DeLaveaga Elementary School Temporary Generator, 8.3.8. PSR Electric: Proposal: Mission 
Hill Middle School Motorized Gate Electrical 
 
Public Comment: Community Member Rocco Cappalla requested community input on future School Resource 
Officer Contracts. 
 
Vice President Coonerty motioned to approve the consent agenda. Trustee Tracy-Proulx seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was passed by the following roll call vote: 
Roll Call Vote:  
Coonerty – Yes Owen – Yes  Ranii – Yes 
Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Closed Session Items 
Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session 
Board Vice President Coonerty reported the following actions during closed session: 
1. Ms. Parks shared information with the Board on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, Retirements, 

Resignations & Appointments. 
2. Ms. Parks did not have any information to share with Trustees regarding Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaints. 
3. Ms. Parks shared information and received direction regarding negotiations with the GSCFT. 
 
Acknowledgement of Gifts 
1. The Board acknowledged and thanked the Santa Cruz Warriors for donating 210 fleece blankets to support 

small cohorts on campus. 
2. The Board acknowledged and thanked Mr. Ben G. Affleck for donating funds for 80 iPads to support and 

8th grade class at Branciforte Middle School. 
 
 

ITEMS TO BE TRANSACTED AND/OR DISCUSSED 
 
8.5.1.1. Staff Report: Update on Expanding In-Person Services & Academic Interventions and Support 

Superintendent Munro shared an update on the District’s efforts to expand in-person services 
and provide academic intervention and support. Staff continue to support a robust distance 
learning program as well as in-person and virtual supports, while planning for expansion of in-
person instructional services.  Staff continue to prepare facilities to address health and safety 
protocols outlined by the California Department of Public Health. Further, staff are working 
with an outside vendor to conduct a ventilation assessment and upgrade site HVAC systems to 
maximize ventilation in all spaces. Staff continue to expand small in-person cohorts on campus.  
In addition, Human Resources is recruiting for credit recovery teachers for the comprehensive 

17/425



high schools.  Outreach is being done to connect students with virtual tutoring, plans are being 
developed for summer programs, and staff are planning for ongoing academic interventions at 
all grade spans. Trustees asked questions and had discussion. This report was informational in 
nature and no action was taken by the board. 

 
Public Comment: GSCFT President Casey Carlson member shared insights and concerns about 
the small cohorts at both element and secondary sites. She also stated that a 7-period day at 
Harbor and Soquel High School would need to be negotiated with the Union. 

 
8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Technology Plan Review 

Assistant Superintendent Coito and Directors Hodges and Calden presented a review of the 
District’s five-year Technology Plan. The 5-Year Technology Plan, first approved on March 6, 
2019, is intended to serve as a guide for technology-related decision making, as well as an 
instrument to monitor and evaluate progress toward identified goals and objectives including 
the technology integration standards outlined in the Common Core State Standards. With the 
swift transition to distance learning in March, there was an immediate need for new technology 
tools to support teaching and learning. This year, the District hired a Technology Teacher on 
Special Assignment through the Computer Science for All Grant. By supporting the 
implementation of the grant and its outcomes, the Teacher on Special Assignment has 
developed a robust professional development program for our teachers to aid in the use of 
digital tools, platforms and online resources. Trustees asked questions and had discussion. This 
report was informational in nature and no action was taken by the board. 
 
Public Comment: Community member Rocco Cappalla requested additional information on how 
the technology tools in use work together. He also shared community initiatives whose goal is 
to support technology in the classroom.  

 
8.5.4.1. Staff Report: Certificated Evaluation Process 

Assistant Superintendent Parks presented a report on the Certificated Employee Evaluation 
process. There are three methods for certificated employee evaluations: Method 1 – 
Administrative Evaluation; Method 2 – Project-Based Evaluation; and Method 3 – Peer Based 
Evaluation.   Each method uses self- assessment and reflection and is linked to the California 
Standards for the Teaching Profession.  An employee who completes two consecutive years of 
service, with a valid California credential for his/her assignment, will become permanent at the 
commencement of the third year (Ed Code 44929.21). Most teachers have a minimum of two 
years in which to demonstrate their ability to be a highly effective professional. Trustees asked 
questions and had discussion. This report was informational in nature and no action was taken 
by the board. 
 

8.5.5.1. New Business: Annual Board Reorganization 
Superintendent Munro thanked Vice President Coonerty for her service during the past year as 
Vice President to the Board of Education and presented Board President Ranii with a plaque to 
thank and recognize her service as Board President from December 2019 to December 2020. 
Superintendent Munro reported that each year in December, the Board of Education elects a 
Board President, Vice President and Clerk of the Board in accordance with Board Bylaw 9100. 
Superintendent Munro discussed the roles and duties of the President and Vice President, and 
shared past practice has been to appoint the Superintendent as Secretary/Clerk of the Board of 
Education. 

18/425



 
Trustee Threet nominated Trustee Vestal to serve as Board President for the December 2020 to 
December 2021 term. 
 
MSP(Threet/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education appointed Trustee Vestal as the Board 
President for the December 2020 to December 2021 term of service. 

 
Trustee Coonerty nominated Trustee Tracy-Proulx to serve as Vice President for the December 
2020 to December 2021 term. 

 
MSP(Coonerty/Owen) 7-0, the Board of Education appointed Trustee Tracy-Proulx as the Board 
Vice President for the December 2020 to December 2021 term of service. 
 
Trustee Tracy-Proulx nominated the Superintendent to serve as Secretary/Clerk of the Board 
for the December 2020 to December 2021 term. 
 
MSP(Tracy-Proulx/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education appointed the Superintendent to 
serve as Secretary/Clerk of the Board for the December 2020 to December 2021 term of 
service. 

 
8.4.4.  Discussion: Potential Items for Futures Agenda 

Trustee Shonick requested teachers be invited to show how video samples of exemplarily 
lessons can be used to support professional development and evaluation. 

 
9. Adjournment of Meeting 
As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President Vestal adjourned 
this Regular Meeting at 9:28 p.m. 
 
Board Meeting Schedule Information  
1. The Regular Meeting on December 15, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
2. The Regular Meeting on January 13, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
3. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 27, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
4. The Regular Meeting on February 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
5. The Regular Meeting on February 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
6. The Regular Meeting on March 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
7. The Regular Meeting on March 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
8. The Regular Meeting on April 14, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
9. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on April 28, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
10. The Regular Meeting on May 5, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
11. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on May 19, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
12. The Regular Meeting on June 2, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
13. The Regular Meeting on June 16, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
 
*For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting recording: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education 

19/425



 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Cynthia Ranii, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 
 

20/425



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
DECEMBER 15, 2020 

 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Vestal called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 9:28 p.m.  
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty  John Owen  Cindy Ranii   Deb Tracy-Proulx  
Jeremy Shonick   Patricia Threet  Claudia Vestal  
 
Absent:  Student Board Representative Sophie Nigh 
Student Board Representative Xhu Lopez Guzman 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Agenda Changes, Additions, or Deletions & Announcements 
None 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 

ITEMS TO BE TRANSACTED AND/OR DISCUSSED 
 
3.1.1.  Designation and Appointment of Officers of Authority 

Superintendent Munro shared that past practice has been for the Board to nominate the newly 
elected Board President to serve as the Chair of the Finance Authority and the newly elected 
Vice President to serve as the Vice Chair of the Authority; however, Trustees may choose a 
different option. 
 
MSP(Ranii/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education elected Board President Vestal to serve as the 
SCCS Finance Authority Chair and Board Vice President Tracy-Proulx to serve as the SCCS 
Finance Authority Vice Chair.  
 

4. Adjournment of Meeting 
As there was no further business to come before the Finance Authority, Chair Vestal adjourned this Finance 
Authority Meeting at 9:30 p.m. 
 
Board Meeting Schedule Information  
1. The Regular Meeting on December 15, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 

21/425



2. The Regular Meeting on January 13, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
3. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 27, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
4. The Regular Meeting on February 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
5. The Regular Meeting on February 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
6. The Regular Meeting on March 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
7. The Regular Meeting on March 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
8. The Regular Meeting on April 14, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
9. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on April 28, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
10. The Regular Meeting on May 5, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
11. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on May 19, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
12. The Regular Meeting on June 2, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
13. The Regular Meeting on June 16, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
 
*For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting recording: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Claudia Vestal, Chair 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Santa Cruz City Schools Finance Authority 
 

22/425



 

 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.1 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  
   

AGENDA ITEM:  Williams Uniform Complaint 2nd Quarterly Report 
  
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
  
FROM:                      Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
  
THROUGH:               Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Williams Uniform Complaint 2nd Quarterly Report for 2020-21. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
According to Education Code and the District’s Administrative Regulation on the Williams 
Uniform Complaint Policy, school districts must submit quarterly reports to the County Office of 
Education of all complaints filed in the areas of insufficient instructional materials, teacher 
vacancy or misassignment, and inadequate facilities. 
  
Upon contacting each school site, it has been verified that there have been no complaints for 
the first quarter of the school year, which ended December 31, 2020. The accompanying report 
has been created to show that the district did not receive any complaints this quarter. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
  
This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 

23/425



QUARTERLY DISTRICT STATUS REPORT OF UNIFORM COMPLAINTS 

TO THE COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

QUARTER END DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 
 

DISTRICT:  Santa Cruz City Schools Date Reported to District Governing Board: January 13, 2021 

 
I. INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 

A) Insufficient text books or instructional materials in classroom: 
 

# of Complaints 

0 

# of Complaints Resolved 

0 

# of Complaints Unresolved* 

0 

*Explanation:   

 
B)  Insufficient textbooks or instructional materials to take home: 

 

# of Complaints 

0 

# of Complaints Resolved 

0 

# of Complaints Unresolved* 

0 

*Explanation:   

 
C) Textbooks or instructional materials in poor or unusable condition: 

 

# of Complaints 

0 

# of Complaints Resolved 

0 

# of Complaints Unresolved* 

0 

*Explanation:   

 

II. TEACHER VACANCY OR MISASSIGNMENT 
A) No assigned certified teacher at beginning of semester: 

 

# of Complaints 

0 

# of Complaints Resolved 

0 

# of Complaints Unresolved* 

0 

*Explanation:   

 
B)  Teacher lacking credentials or training to teach English Language Learners (ELL) with  

      More than 20% ELL in class: 
 

# of Complaints 

0 

# of Complaints Resolved 

0 

# of Complaints Unresolved* 

0 

*Explanation:   

 

C)  Teacher instructing class lacking subject matter competency: 
 

# of Complaints 

0 

# of Complaints Resolved 

0 

# of Complaints Unresolved* 

0 

*Explanation:   

 

III. FACILITIES 

A) Conditions posing an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students/staff: 
 

# of Complaints 

0 

# of Complaints Resolved 

0 

# of Complaints Unresolved* 

0 

*Explanation:     

   

24/425



  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.2 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  School Accountability Report Cards 2019-2020 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the School Accountability Report Cards for 2019-20.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Since November 1988, state law has required all public schools receiving state funding to prepare and 
distribute a School Accountability Report Card.  The district produces these compliance materials 
annually.  A similar requirement is also contained in the federal Elementary and Secondary Education 
Act. The purpose of the report card is to provide parents and the community with important 
information about each public school, and to show that each school is in compliance with state 
standards. A School Accountability Report Card can be an effective way for a school to report on its 
progress in achieving goals. The public may also use a School Accountability Report Card to evaluate 
and compare schools on a variety of indicators.  It is important to remember that the School 
Accountability Report Card reflects information from last school year, not our current school year.  

School Accountability Report Cards begin with a profile that provides background information about 
the school and its students. The profile summarizes the school's mission, goals, and accomplishments. 
State law requires that the School Accountability Report Card contain all of the following: 

○ Demographic data 
○ School safety and climate for learning information  
○ Academic data  
○ School completion rates  
○ Class sizes  
○ Teacher and staff information  
○ Curriculum and instruction descriptions  
○ Postsecondary preparation information  
○ Fiscal and expenditure data 

 

SARC Data 

The California Department of Education has not yet published state suspension and expulsion rates or 
average teacher salary. These data points will be added when they are available.  

Teacher Credentials 

25/425



  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.2 
 

There are currently three teachers in the District who hold valid credentials but are teaching outside 
of their credential areas. Two of these teachers hold Career Technical Education (CTE) credentials and 
were teaching Yearbook and one teacher has a multiple subject credential and was teaching math.  

Teachers without full credentials are teaching have yet to complete their credential program 
requirements for a full teaching permit.  

School report cards must be updated annually and published by February 1.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 
$5,000 Document Tracking Systems Fee LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 

This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 

26/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 1 of 13

Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small 
Schools Campus 

840 North Branciforte Ave. • Santa Cruz, CA 95062 • (831) 429-3898 • Grades K-12 
Michelle McKinney, Principal 
michellemckinney@sccs.net 

 
 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 

----

---- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission St. Suite 100 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

27/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 2 of 13

School Description 
Alternative Family Education (AFE) is 
a homeschool for 250+ students in 
kindergarten through twelfth grade. 
This school is for families who prefer 
an individualized, home, and 
community based approach to their 
children’s education combined with 
the support of school district 
resources. AFE students meet 
regularly with consultant teachers, 
who help outline educational goals 
and objectives. In 20-21, all nine of 
the AFE consultant teachers are 
offering weekly enrichment 
academic classes in Distance 
Learning formats, per student 
interest and credit earning needs 
(high school). In non-pandemic 
years, students can also participate 
in middle and high school sports 
(volleyball, basketball, and softball), 
theater productions, and field trips, 
including an annual trip to the 
Shakespeare Festival in Oregon. 
With the onset of the pandemic and 
Distance Learning in the District, our 
homeschooling program grew by 
150% in 20-21. Many District 
families plan to return to the 
comprehensive schools once the 
pandemic is controlled (possibly in 
2021-22 or 2022-23) and many are 
finding home-based instruction to 
be more advantageous for their 
students. This year, AFE added 
seven new staff members to serve 
the large increase in students 
enrolled. 

 
AFE is located on the vibrant Branciforte Small Schools Campus (BSSC). Other schools sharing the 
campus are Ark Independent Studies High School, Costanoa High School, and Monarch Community 
Elementary School. The school district is in phase two of a Bond project, and AFE's facilities are 
slated for demolition and reconstruction to meet building codes. This process has been delayed 
due to several factors including the pandemic. Therefore, AFE staff are mostly working from home 
or temporary spaces in the main campus site. We look forward to being able to provide safe 
learning spaces for our students upon our return to in-person instruction. 
 
Alternative Family Education’s Vision and Mission Statements: 
Inspired Purpose: 
AFE supports, nurtures and inspires families and students to discover and develop their potential 
through engaged learning, problem solving, and community involvement. 
Vision: 
AFE cultivates... 
the ability to use our minds well. 
the tools to choose our paths. 
the ability to act upon our passions. 
the desire to contribute to the local community and the world. 
the vision and heart to see and feel things from other perspectives. the ability to express our own 
voices. 
the habit of self-reflection. a sense of well-being. 
 
Leadership 
Michelle McKinney is the principal of the school. She has been a parent at AFE in the past. 
 
Our Parent Club and Community Council continue to play key roles in shaping our students’ 
educational experience. 
 
 

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Kindergarten 2        

Grade 1 5        

Grade 2 3        

Grade 3 7        

Grade 4 3        

Grade 5 10        

Grade 6 7        

Grade 7 14        

Grade 8 14        

Grade 9 17        

Grade 10 8        

Grade 11 9        

Grade 12 13        

Total Enrollment 112        
 

28/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 3 of 13

2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Black or African American 2.7        

American Indian or Alaska Native 0.9        

Asian 5.4        

Filipino 0.9        

Hispanic or Latino 14.3        

White 69.6        

Two or More Races 6.3        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 17        

English Learners 2.7        

Students with Disabilities 19.6        
 

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for Alternative Family 
Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus 

18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 6 5 9 

Without Full Credential 0 0 0 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 0 0 0 
 
Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at Alternative 
Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 0 0 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 0 0 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

29/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 4 of 13

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
In all subject areas, our textbooks are the most recently approved by the State Board of Education and our Local Governing Agency. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Literature & Language Arts - Holt 

Adopted 2002 
 
Practicing the Writing Process - Education Design 
Adopted 2001 
 
Reading & Language Arts - McDougal Littell 
Adopted 2001 
 
Reading: A Legacy of Literacy - Houghton Mifflin 
Adopted 2001 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics Algebra 1 & 2, Geometry, Algebra Readiness - Houghton Mifflin 
Adopted 2008 
 
Mathematics 1 & 2, Algebra Readiness - Holt 
Adopted 2008 
 
Mathematics - Haircourt 
Adopted 2001 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science Biology: An Everyday Experience - Glencoe McGraw Hill 
Adopted 2007 
 
Focus On Earth/Life/Physical Science - Glencoe McGraw Hill 
Adopted 2007 
 
California Science - Macmillan McGraw Hill 
Adopted 2007 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

History-Social Science History Alive! series - TCI 
Adopted 2006 
 
History & Social Science - Pearson Scott Foresman 
Adopted 2006 
 
Government in America - Longman 
Adopted 2004 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Foreign Language Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0        

Health Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0        

Visual and Performing Arts Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0        

Science Laboratory Equipment Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

30/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 5 of 13

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
The school district is in phase two of a Bond project, and AFE's facilities are slated for demolition and reconstruction to meet building codes. This process 
has been delayed due to several factors including the pandemic. Therefore, AFE staff are mostly working from home or temporary spaces in the main 
campus site. We look forward to being able to provide safe learning spaces for our students upon our return to in-person instruction. Two of the four 
refurbished portable buildings have been demolished; the other two remain unoccupied on the site. 
 
School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 11/05/2020 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood        MPR: THE HEAT IS NOT WORKING 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood         

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XGood         

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood        2NF FLOOR RESTROOM:SINK IS LEAKING 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood        MAIN OFFICE: ALARM PANEL IS HAVING 
SOME ONGOING ISSUES 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood         

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood        RM 15: DOOR HANDLE IS LOOSE 

Overall Rating 
---------- 

XGood         

 

31/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 6 of 13

B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

32/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 7 of 13

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 100 N/A 64 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 89 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

33/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 8 of 13

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science -- N/A 37 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

34/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 9 of 13

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

35/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 10 of 13

 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
The two parent groups are the AFE Community Council and the Parent Club. In non-pandemic years, many parents participate in field trips and share 
their academic expertise through enrichment classes, tutorial groups, and playgroups for the younger children. The Parent Club participates in fundraising 
to support the enrichment classes and field trips. AFE parents and students serve on the BSSC Site Council and the Site Bond Committee. 
 
To become more involved, please call or visit the school office - (831) 429-3898. 
 
 
State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
The School Site Council that represents our four schools at the Branciforte Small Schools Campus (BSSC) reviews the previous year's Safe School Plan and 
collaborates to write a new plan each year. Our current goal is to continue to implement trauma-informed care strategies in the classroom, with a focus 
on implementation of neuro-sequential model tenets into lessons, 1:1 meetings, and school structure. We will also continue to learn about  restorative 
justice practices around students in marginalized groups and who have/are experiencing trauma. We will continue to explicitly teach and practice self-
regulation techniques, provide training for implementation of restorative justice practices, and focus on the neuro-sequential model in lesson design in 
various professional development sessions. 
 
The second goal in our current plan is to develop a comprehensive plan to deal with issues of mental health impacting our school site. We will undertake 
a number of actions to meet this goal. We will provide an information night about recognizing mental health issues in youth. 
 
 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 0.0 0.0 3.2 4.1 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 0.0 1.8 N/A 

Expulsions 0.0 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 
 
D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 560 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 

36/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 11 of 13

Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 0.2 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 0.2 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist  

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other------- 0.3 
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) 

Grade 
Level 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

   K    
 

10 3   12 2       

   5    
 

    2 1   1 1   

  Other** 
 

        9 4   
*Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). 
** “Other” category is for multi-grade level classes. 
 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) 

Subject 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

English         1 2   

Mathematics             

Science         1 1   

Social Science         2 1   

*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is 
reported by subject area rather than grade level. 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 22 28 30 

 
The majority of Professional Development in the early part of 2020-21 was to provide training for the seven new staff members who joined the two staff 
members with the more than 150% growth in enrollment this year. Existing staff and consultation with retired veteran teachers served to teach new 
teachers the processes and legal requirements of Independent Studies education codes, as they all were transferred from traditional public schools. In 
addition, new teachers learned about alternative assessment, record keeping processes, and working with K-12 grade students, learning the standards 
and expectations of the range beyond the grade level that has been their expertise. 
 
Professional development in 2020-21 focuses on the following three goals, in alignment with District MTSS Strategic Foci: 
 
1. Academic Literacy: All students will make academic literacy growth. A Tier 1 Academic Literacy school wide focus for the 2020-21 school year is on 
writing in all content areas. We will do this by focusing our year long site PD on scaffolding and supporting students with different types of academic 
writing by standardizing evaluation practices on writing rubrics in each writing type, and sharing ways to use anchor papers with students and families 
for setting both short and long term academic goals. 
 

37/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 12 of 13

2. Mathematics and Science: All students who are taking math will make mathematics growth. In support of our school wide focus on Mathematics for 
the 2020-21 school year, we will use the services of a consultant to co-lead with teachers the remaining two Parent Education sessions on NGSS including 
DCIs and CCCs; FOSS; science and math practices; etc. for K-12 students. In coordination with site admin and SCIL, the provider will work with AFE teachers 
to develop, plan and deliver professional development to family educators in grade span specific groups, K-12 groups, and other configurations. 
 
3. School Connectedness: All students will feel connected to their school. AFE will improve students' feelings of well-being, safety, and community through 
implementation of Restorative Justice principles and practices, and tenets and practices of Trauma-informed schools. In 2020-21, all Branciforte Small 
Schools staff (certificated and classified) will continue learning Restorative Justice principles and practices. This is a three-year commitment that aligns 
with the deep work and resources devoted to training and supporting adults and children in the practices and principles of Positive Discipline and Trauma 
Informed School Services. We will develop student, parent and staff surveys on this topic, as well as use surveys provided by the consultant company. 
 
Professional development happens primarily at weekly staff meetings August to June. 
 
 
 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

10,213 1,411 $8,802 $99,722 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750 N/A 
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District 16.9 16.5 

School Site/ State 12.7 -9.1 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

Types of Services Funded 
In 2019-20, LCFF funds were used to purchase materials and supplies related to Site Plan goals, mostly in service of expanding and updating materials in 
the Resource Center. In support of the Academic Literacy goal LCFF funds were used to bring eight Family Science Nights (due to school closure we were 
only able to offer six of the eight community gatherings). Our generous community supports a parcel tax that partially funds our drama staff, resource 
center staff person, and pays for Alternative Sports League Fees. We also received one time sports equipment funds through the parcel tax in 16-17. 
 
 
 
State Priority: Pupil Engagement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Pupil Engagement (Priority 5): 
 

• High school dropout rates; and 
• High school graduation rates. 

 
Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate) 

Rate for Alternative Family 
Education/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 9.5 23.5 13.3 

Graduation Rate 85.7 76.5 80 
 
Rate for Santa Cruz City Schools 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 5.9 10 8.1 

Graduation Rate 89.1 89 89.4 
 

Rate for California 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 9.1 9.6 9 

Graduation Rate 82.7 83 84.5 
 

Career Technical Education Participation 

Measure CTE Program 
Participation 

Number of pupils participating in CTE  

% of pupils completing a CTE program and earning 
a high school diploma  

% of CTE courses sequenced or articulated between 
the school and institutions of postsecondary 
education 

 

 

38/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 13 of 13

Courses for University of California (UC) and/or California State 
University (CSU) Admission 

UC/CSU Course Measure Percent 
2018-19 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for 
UC/CSU Admission 8.51 

2017-18 Graduates Who Completed All Courses 
Required for UC/CSU Admission 0 

 

2019-20 Advanced Placement Courses 

Subject 
Number of  
AP Courses  

Offered* 

Percent of  
Students In  
AP Courses 

Computer Science  N/A 

English-------  N/A 

Fine and Performing Arts  N/A 

Foreign Language   N/A 

Mathematics  N/A 

Science-------  N/A 

Social Science  N/A 

All courses   
*Where there are student course enrollments of at least one student. 
 

Career Technical Education Programs 
These courses are not offered through AFE but are available through our district to all High School students. These are CTE courses intended to help 
students prepare for the world of work. These career technical education courses (CTE, formerly known as vocational education) are open to all students 
in our district. 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

39/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 1 of 13

Ark Independent Studies 
840 North Branciforte Ave. • Santa Cruz, CA 95062 • (831) 429-3898 x229 • Grades 6-12 

Michelle McKinney, Principal 
michellemckinney@sccs.net 

 
 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 

----

---- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission St., Suite 100 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

40/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 2 of 13

School Description 
Ark Independent Studies is an 
accredited high school in the Santa 
Cruz City Schools. In non-pandemic 
years, our students may choose to 
meet with their instructor at the 
Branciforte Small Schools Campus, 
Santa Cruz High School, Harbor High 
School, or Soquel High School. 
Students meet weekly for one hour 
with an instructor on a one-to-one 
basis to review a minimum of 20 
hours of work completed during the 
week. During this meeting, students 
are given specific assignments, and 
coursework is corrected and 
evaluated. Students complete their 
coursework during the week at 
home. Assignments are tailored to 
fit the individual student’s interests, 
needs, and learning style. Students 
have access to educational support 
by certificated staff and college 
tutors at least three days per week 
at each of the four sites. Several 
enrichment offerings (guest 
speakers, field trips, "mini-classes") 
are made available to all Ark 
students through the course of the 
year. All Ark teachers are fully 
credentialed, with a broad range of 
teaching experience and expertise. 
In addition, Ark offers a Math Lab 
with a credentialed teacher of 
mathematics who meets with 
students both individually and in 
small groups.  

 
In 2020-21, in response to the pandemic and the onset of Distance Learning, the Ark changed its 
CDE school code to encompass grades 6-12 (from 9-12). With the aim of offering A-G and CTE 
coursework in addition to district adopted coursework, the District purchased an online curriculum 
and added an Online Only pathway and provided professional development for staff in facilitating 
the online format, dedicated part-time FTE to working exclusively with students choosing the 
Online Only pathway. As of the end of the first quarter, the student population has grown by more 
than 40%, and we expect it to grow even further as first semester grades are released at the 
comprehensive schools. To this end, the District is adding new staff to the traditional IS staff as well 
as Credit Recovery staff to support students who have become credit deficient as a result of the 
pandemic and the District's need to move to a Distance Learning model. The Math Lab teacher 
meets with students by appointment over Zoom during school closure.  
 
The Ark's schoolwide learning outcomes are as follows: 
 
I. Every student will demonstrate personal responsibility 
 
II. Every student will be an effective communicator, and  
 
III. Every student will be able to demonstrate and apply higher order thinking skills 
 
Mission 
 
At the Ark Independent Studies we: 

• Connect with students as individuals 
• Inspire students to find meaning 
• Motivate students to take responsibility 
• Support students to discover and pursue their interests 

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Grade 9 4        

Grade 10 7        

Grade 11 13        

Grade 12 25        

Total Enrollment 49        
 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
American Indian or Alaska Native 2        

Hispanic or Latino 46.9        

White 51        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 34.7        

English Learners 10.2        

Students with Disabilities 6.1        
 

41/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 3 of 13

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for Ark Independent 
Studies 

18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 4 5 5 

Without Full Credential 0 0 0 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 0 0 0 
 
Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at Ark 
Independent Studies 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 0 0 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 0 0 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

42/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 4 of 13

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
In all subject areas, our textbooks are the most recently approved by the State Board of Education and our Local Governing Agency. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Literature & Language Arts - Holt 

Adopted 2002 
 
Practicing the Writing Process - Educational Design 
Adopted 2001 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics Integrated Math 1 & 2, Pearson 
Adopted 2019 
 
Algebra 1 & 2, Geometry, Algebra Readiness - Houghton Mifflin 
Adopted 2008 
 
Mathematics 1 & 2, Algebra Readiness - Holt 
Adopted 2008 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science Biology: An Everyday Experience - Glencoe McGraw Hill 
Adopted 2007 
 
Focus On Earth/Life/Physical Science - Glencoe McGraw Hill 
Adopted 2007 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

History-Social Science History Alive! series - TCI 
Adopted 2006 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Health Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0        

Visual and Performing Arts Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0        

Science Laboratory Equipment Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
The Ark is located in a historic, 105-year-old building on the Branciforte Small Schools Campus. The Ark has one instructional classroom in the building 
with six Internet-connected computers and an LCD projector. The Math Lab meets in a different classroom twice a week, and once a week at a 
comprehensive school site. Ark provides many options for textbooks, which are stored in various locations at Branciforte Small Schools and at the Soquel 
High School satellite location. 
 

43/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 5 of 13

School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 11/05/2020 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood        MPR: THE HEAT IS NOT WORKING 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood         

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XGood         

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood        2NF FLOOR RESTROOM: SINK IS LEAKING 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood        MAIN OFFICE: ALARM PANEL IS HAVING 
SOME ONGOING ISSUES 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood         

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood        RM 15: DOOR HANDLE IS LOOSE 

Overall Rating 
---------- 

XGood         

 

44/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 6 of 13

B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

45/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 7 of 13

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 50 N/A 64 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 50 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

46/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 8 of 13

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science -- N/A 37 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

47/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 9 of 13

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

48/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 10 of 13

 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
The Ark requires parents to attend a beginning-of-the-year orientation and the student's weekly meeting with their teacher three times during the school 
year. This ensures that parents understand the program and are aware of their student's progress. The other primary avenue for parental involvement 
at the Ark is the School Site Council, which meets five times a year. The contact person for parent involvement is Assistant Principal Naima Leal. To 
become more involved, please call (831) 429-3898, ext. 229 or visit the school office. 
 
State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
The School Site Council that represents our four schools at the Branciforte Small Schools Campus (BSSC) reviews the previous year's Safe School Plan and 
collaborates to write a new plan each year. Our goal in 2020-21 is to continue to implement trauma-informed care strategies in the classroom, with a 
focus on implementation of neuro-sequential model tenets into lessons, 1:1 meetings, and school structure. We will also continue to learn about  
restorative justice practices around students in marginalized groups and who have/are experiencing trauma. We will continue to explicitly teach and 
practice self-regulation techniques, provide training for implementation of restorative justice practices, and focus on the neuro-sequential model in 
lesson design in various professional development sessions. 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 0.0 0.0 3.2 4.1 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 0.0 1.8 N/A 

Expulsions 0.0 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 
 
D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 245 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 

49/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 11 of 13

Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 0.2 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 0.2 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist  

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other-------  
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) 

Subject 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

Mathematics             

Social Science             

*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is 
reported by subject area rather than grade level. 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 17 17 15 

 
In 2020-21 in response to the pandemic and the onset of Distance Learning, the District purchased an online curriculum, added an Online Only pathway 
and provided professional development for staff in facilitating the online format. As the school population changes due to as of the end of the first 
quarter, the student population has grown by more than 40%, and we expect it to grow even further as first semester grades are released at the 
comprehensive schools. To this end, the District is adding new staff to the traditional IS staff as well as Credit Recovery staff to support students who 
have become credit deficient as a result of the pandemic and the District's need to move to a Distance Learning model. Existing staff and consultation 
with retired veteran teachers will serve to teach new teachers the processes and legal requirements of Independent Studies education codes, as they all 
were transferred from traditional public schools. In addition, new teachers will learn about alternative assessment, record keeping processes, and learn 
the standards and expectations of the range beyond the grade level that has been their expertise. 
 
The Ark's 2018-19 and 2019-20 professional development (PD) plan has three threads, each aligned to a schoolwide action plan goal. The 2018-19 PD 
focus areas were determined after an analysis of 2017-18 data related to writing assessments, Measure of Academic Progress (MAP)-Reading scores, 
math credit earning, and the annual academic barriers survey. The first PD focus area relates to furthering staff understanding of the underlying principles 
of trauma informed care and exploration of restorative justice practices. Our second PD thread focuses on augmenting math instruction through our 
three times a week math lab. Our final PD thread centers on literacy instruction focused on argumentative writing. Teachers will target English instruction 
based on Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) assessment data and norm student essays, analyze results, and adapt instruction related to 
argumentative writing. 
 
For each of the past three years, the co-principal and one Ark teacher have attended the California Consortium on Independent Studies annual compliance 
conference. Staff reflection and review in weekly PD sessions supported teachers to implement this new instructional method. Since 2016-17, the Ark's 
professional development has focused on recommendations that were made after our WASC midterm review and the implementation of the Common 
Core Standards in math and language arts. 
 
Over the past three years, our staff has met for 90 minutes three times per month to review student achievement data, revise curriculum, and set goals 
for improving student achievement. For the 2020-21 school year, teachers will be supported by regular teacher-principal meetings and the WASC self-
study coordinator, if WASC re-opens post-pandemic. 
 

50/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 12 of 13

 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

13,410 1,011 $12,398 $108,113 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750  
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District 50.1 24.5 

School Site/ State 46.1 15.6 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

Types of Services Funded 
We update our Single Plan for Student Achievement each year to ensure that our instruction is focused on student needs as shown by achievement data. 
For the 2019-20 fiscal year, we worked closely with our School Site Council and staff to allocate our LCFF supplemental funds to provide tutoring for 
identified students, to purchase supplementary instructional materials, to offer several field trips and real-world learning experiences, and to provide 
ongoing staff training. 
 
State Priority: Pupil Engagement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Pupil Engagement (Priority 5): 
 

• High school dropout rates; and 
• High school graduation rates. 

 
Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate) 

Rate for Ark Independent Studies 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 23.7 18.9 26.2 

Graduation Rate 60.5 81.1 71.4 
 
Rate for Santa Cruz City Schools 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 5.9 10 8.1 

Graduation Rate 89.1 89 89.4 
 
Rate for California 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 9.1 9.6 9 

Graduation Rate 82.7 83 84.5 
 

Career Technical Education Participation 

Measure CTE Program 
Participation 

Number of pupils participating in CTE  

% of pupils completing a CTE program and earning 
a high school diploma 100 

% of CTE courses sequenced or articulated between 
the school and institutions of postsecondary 
education 

 

 

Courses for University of California (UC) and/or California State 
University (CSU) Admission 

UC/CSU Course Measure Percent 
2018-19 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for 
UC/CSU Admission 0 

2017-18 Graduates Who Completed All Courses 
Required for UC/CSU Admission 0 

 
2019-20 Advanced Placement Courses 

Subject 
Number of  
AP Courses  

Offered* 

Percent of  
Students In  
AP Courses 

Computer Science  N/A 

English-------  N/A 

Fine and Performing Arts  N/A 

Foreign Language   N/A 

Mathematics  N/A 

Science-------  N/A 

Social Science  N/A 

All courses   
*Where there are student course enrollments of at least one student. 
 

51/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Ark Independent Studies   Page 13 of 13

Career Technical Education Programs 
All Ark students have access to Career Technical Education (CTE) classes at high schools throughout the county. During the 2018-19 school year, four Ark 
students participated in countywide CTE classes. Currently, seven students are enrolled in CTE classes. 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

52/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 1 of 13

Bay View Elementary School 
1231 Bay St. • Santa Cruz, CA 95060-4708 • (831) 429-3991 • Grades K-5 

Yvette Garcia, Principal 
ygarcia@sccs.net 

https://bayview.sccs.net/ 
 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 

----

---- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Ste. 100 

Santa Cruz 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

53/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 2 of 13

School Description 
Mission Statement:  Bay View 
School is a safe and welcoming 
community where everyone is 
respected, and learning is valued. 
Our school is a dynamic learning 
environment where everyone is 
engaged and inspired to do their 
personal best. Diversity is 
embraced; it enriches our learning 
community. Students, families, and 
staff work together as a team to 
ensure academic success and social 
responsibility for everyone. 
At Bay View School, Everybody is 
Somebody. 
 
A Message from the Principal 
 
At Bay View Elementary School, we 
provide a safe and nurturing 
environment that fosters life-long 
learning. Bay View is dedicated to 
academic excellence. We value 
parents and community members as 
partners in education. 
By continually supporting social-
emotional learning, through Second 
Step Curriculum and explicitly 
teaching Bay View Life Skills, we 
prepare students to become 
responsible citizens in our diverse 
society. 
 

The heart of the school’s mission centers on rigorous curriculum, high expectations, skillful staff 
members, social-emotional development, establishing good study habits, and family/community 
partnerships. Pride in our school evolves from Bay View's outstanding traditions, TK-5 
achievements, and accomplishments. We continue to offer an excellent early exit bilingual 
Spanish/English program, called Puentes, for students in kindergarten through third grade. A rich 
mixture of languages and backgrounds among our community allows us to build on our diversity. 
 
Significant Achievements 
Bay View staff is committed to monitoring student progress by analyzing and responding to reading 
and math scores on assessments, such as, Fountas and Pinnell Reading Inventory, NWEA district 
math and literacy benchmark assessments, and teacher developed formative assessments.  In 
2019-2020 we were in our ninth year of implementation of a school-wide Walk to Read program, 
in which students were grouped with peers for reading instruction four times a week. We offered 
high-quality researched-based small group reading intervention instruction to support students 
who were below grade level and high-quality enrichment and extension activities for those who 
were at or above. Our literacy intervention program includes explicit phonics instruction using 
Systematic Instruction in Phonological Awareness, Phonics, and Sight Words (SIPPS) and Reading 
Intervention for Students to Excel (RISE) based on Jan Richardson's guided reading framework. 
 
 
Focus on Improvements 
Improvement goals based on staff input and data analysis. The 2020-21 goals include the following: 
1.  Improve reading comprehension for all kindergarten through fifth-grade students. Reading 
comprehension is being measured by NWEA district benchmark assessments (K-5) and Fountas and 
Pinnell Reading Inventory.  During Distance Learning, teachers will temporally use Pioneer Reading 
assessments and District created Eureka math online assessments. 
2.  Have 80 percent of all kindergarten through fifth graders score at grade-level in reading, as 
measured by the district’s reading assessment. 
3.  Have 80 percent of all kindergarten through fifth grade score at grade-level in math, as measured 
by the district's math assessment. 
4.  Focus staff development on teacher collaboration and data analysis to improve achievement in 
English Language Arts and English Language Development. Teachers continue to collaborate in their 
Professional Learning Communities. 
5. Continue to implement Second Step, a universal social skills curriculum, to be taught in the 
classroom and supported by our elementary counselor and staff. 
6.  Improve School Climate and Student engagement with the implementation of Playworks, a 
recess coaching, and student leadership program. 
7. Continue implementation of PBIS (Positive Behavior Intervention Support), our school-wide 
positive behavior system. 
 

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Kindergarten 66        

Grade 1 54        

Grade 2 64        

Grade 3 70        

Grade 4 72        

Grade 5 102        

Total Enrollment 428        
 

54/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 3 of 13

2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Black or African American 1.6        

Asian 2.1        

Filipino 0.7        

Hispanic or Latino 42.1        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.7        

White 46.5        

Two or More Races 6.3        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 49.3        

English Learners 22.9        

Students with Disabilities 15.2        

Foster Youth 0.5        

Homeless 1.6        
 

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for Bay View Elementary 
School 

18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 21 21 18 

Without Full Credential 1 0 1 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 0 0 0 
 
Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at Bay View 
Elementary School 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 0 0 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 0 0 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

55/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 4 of 13

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
In all subject areas, our textbooks are the most recently approved by the State Board of Education and our Local Governing Agency. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Benchmark Workshop - Benchmark Education Company 

Adopted 2019 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics Eureka Math - Great Minds 
Adopted 2016 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science FOSS - Delta Education 
Adopted 2017 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

History-Social Science History & Social Science - Pearson 
Adopted 2006 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
Bay View Elementary campus sits on a 5 acre lot and is located at the intersection of Bay Street and Mission Street (HWY 1). The school was built in the 
1940s and expanded until present. All classrooms are spacious and well lit. In addition to 27 classrooms, we have an art room, a music room, a life lab, 
and a large library media center. The play structure was resurfaced with new soft padding using funds provided by money from bond money. Additional 
improvements that are expected to be completed using bond money include replacing portable classrooms with permanant buildings, upgrading 
technological infrastructure, improving the play area, modernizing classrooms, and constructing a new multi-purpose building. 
 
School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 11/09/2020 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood        KINDER 2: HEAT NOT WORKING 
RM 14: HEAT NOT WORKING 
RM 15: HEAT NOT WORKING 
RM 16: HEAT NOT WORKING 
RM 17: HEAT NOT WORKING 
RM 18: HEAT NOT WORKING 
 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood         

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XGood        MAIN OFFICE: LIGHT BULB IS OUT 

56/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 5 of 13

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood        BOYS RESTROOM: LEAKING FAUCET 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood         

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood         

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood         

Overall Rating 
---------- 

XGood         

 

57/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 6 of 13

B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

58/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 7 of 13

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 42 N/A 53 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 35 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

59/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 8 of 13

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science 42 N/A 44 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

60/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 9 of 13

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

61/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 10 of 13

 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
Our parents and community members are active in the classroom on a daily basis and accompany students on field trips. Our School Site Council (SSC)  
helps make decisions related to our school expenditures and approves the school’s annual plan and budget. Parents also have the opportunity to 
participate in the English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC) which provides feedback to the school administration in relation to the support of our 
English Language Learners. Our  Parent Teacher Organization (PTO) helps promote community events, plan fundraising activities, and provides funding 
for different enrichment opportunities for our students. SSC, ELAC and PTO.  The principal meets with all three leadership groups to develop agendas 
and plan for potential guest speakers.  Our school also offers monthly school assemblies to promote positive behavior goals and deepen our sense of 
school community. 
 
 
Parents in our community faithfully attend school activities and events (including Family Art Night, Fiesta del Artes, talent show, school-wide carnival, 
pancake breakfast).   All these events are posted on our school website and sent home on fliers. All school communication is sent in both English and 
Spanish. 
 
To become more involved, please call or visit the school office - (831) 429-3991. 
 
 
State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
Our School Safety Plan is updated annually. Our school and grounds are very safe.  We have lockable fencing in all four entrances, and those gates are 
locked during school hours. School Site Council (SSC) and staff update and approve our plan annually. Parents are informed about emergency procedures, 
and a list of procedures is visible in every classroom. Emergency procedures provide detailed directions and maps for fire, earthquake, and evacuation 
drills, and stranger-on-campus lockdown procedures.  This year the staff received a Code Red training from the Santa Cruz Police Department. 
The staff receives monthly five-minute safety meetings. The staff also received in-depth training in emergency response procedures, mandate reporting, 
harassment and discrimination, and FERPA (Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act). The school safety team meets regularly to review and update the 
site safety plan. 
 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 1.4 1.7 0.8 1.2 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 1.1 1.8 N/A 

Expulsions 0.0 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 
 

62/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 11 of 13

D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 428 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 1 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian) 1 

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 0.3 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 2.5 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other------- 0.3 
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) 

Grade 
Level 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

   K    
 

23  4  23  3 3 22 1 2  

   1    
 

23  2  21 1 1  24  2  

   2    
 

23  3  22  4  16 2  1 

   3    
 

19 1 5  22  3  31  2 1 

   4    
 

29  2  22 1 3  29  2  

   5    
 

24 1 3  23 1 3  27  3  

  Other** 
 

        15 2 2  
*Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). 
** “Other” category is for multi-grade level classes. 
 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 4-6 4-6 4-6 

 
At Bay View Elementary School, we believe that Professional Learning opportunities are essential to ensure that every student has teachers who are 
prepared to teach to the rigor and depth required by the CA Common Core Standards.  This year, our school will focus on Blended Learning models 
(intentional asynchronous and synchronous lesson design) and Culturally Responsive Teaching.   We are working with a literacy constant to further our 
pedagogical skills and develop new ways to leverage technology to increase student engagement and develop academic skills.  In addition, the entire 
school staff is studying Zaretta Hammond's Culturally Responsive Teaching and the Brain to reflect on new ways to teach and serve students.  Our school 
is committed to closing the opportunity gap.  By reflecting on what brain research tells us about how to provide optimal learning and service conditions 
for students and considering the cultural implications for our BIPOC (Black Indigenous People of Color) students, we will improve outcomes for all 
students.  Research shows a strong correlation between Collective Teacher Efficacy and Student Success.  As such, our teachers continue to work in SCIL 
led Professional Learning Communities to plan lessons, design assessments, 
 
At Bay View Elementary, we see a pattern of stagnant academic achievement when looking at overall school achievement in ELA.  In 2018-2019, only 
43% of Bay View students in Grades 3-5 tested in the met or exceeded grade level proficiency range on the CAASPP ELA exam.  As such, more than half 

63/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 12 of 13

of our students are not reading at grade level.  When analyzing student cohort groups over time we see significant decline in student achievement in 
ELA.   We also see a huge disparities between our English Language Learner (ELL) students and English proficient students with almost no ELLs achieving 
grade level proficiency on our state academic achievement tests. 
 
This year’s PD Plan will meet this need by focusing on being more intentional with our lesson design process.  We will determine which standards are 
essential for optimizing long-term success and provide opportunities to target small group instruction during synchronous instruction to meet the specific 
needs of our students.  We will pay particular attention to the achievement of our ELL students and develop action research plans to address their unique 
learning needs.  Our RTI team will work closely with grade level teams to ensure that our intervention instruction aligns with core instruction. 
 
Our 2020-2021 PD plan builds upon prior year’s work by expanding our existing district-wide Professional Learning Communities (PLC) model and fine 
tuning our site Response to Intervention (RTI) system. 
 
Our meeting structures are as follows: We will use the monthly district-wide PD (early release days) to inform our site work by working with a literacy 
consultant to build our understanding of blending learning lesson design.  We will meet three times a year in Student Learning Teams (SLT) meetings to 
identify priority ELA and ELD standards and develop student goals. 
 
We will refine our progress monitoring system by determining which common summative and formative assessments will be used to evaluate student 
progress. 
 
We will analyze our most current ELA/ELD student achievement data and create a comprehensive action plan to address the needs of students at each 
proficiency band. We will meet bi-monthly in grade level PLCs to analyze student work collected using common formative assessments to determine 
which instructional practices are yielding the best results. 
 
We meet once a month for staff meetings which include teachers and all certificated support staff.  Here we engage in school-wide data analysis and 
engage in cross-grade level collaboration around grade level action plans.  We are striving to build more vertical alignment. We augmented our 
professional learning capacity by providing additional training to teacher leaders at our school.   In addition, we will build our shared understanding of 
Culturally Relevant Teaching and the Brain by engaging in a book study and reflecting on our services to students to identify places for improvement that 
help us close the opportunity gap for our BIPOC students. 
 
Staff and staff teams will be encouraged to participate in additional professional development over breaks and after work hours that support our shared 
site and district vision for superior service for students. 
 
 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

10,950 3,554 $7,396 $83,174 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750 N/A 
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District -0.5 -1.6 

School Site/ State -4.7 2.1 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

Types of Services Funded 
Our population qualifies Bay View for both federal and state funds for underperforming students.  Bay View funded a Response to Intervention (RTI) 
teacher, three learning assistants in our Walk-to-Read program, classroom learning assistants in kinder and first grades, and parent education.  We also 
used site funds to support professional development, including funding costs to attend training.  All teachers and literacy-focused support staff meet 
three times a year to analyze literacy and English Learner progress, set learning goals, and develop differentiated instructional action plans. 
 
We also used state funds to purchase software, upgrade hardware, and obtain supplies and instructional materials. 
 
 
 

64/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Bay View Elementary School   Page 13 of 13

DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

65/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 1 of 13

Branciforte Middle School 
315 Poplar St. • Santa Cruz, CA 95062-1131 • (831) 429-3883 • Grades 6-8 

Casey O'Brien, Principal 
cobrien@sccs.net 

https://b40.sccs.net/ 
 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 

----

---- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Ste. 100 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

66/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 2 of 13

School Description 
Vision Statement: Opening Minds - 
Opening Hearts - Opening Doors 
 
Mission Statement: Branciforte is a 
creative and stimulating learning 
community built on a foundation of 
respect and integrity, where 
individuals are safe, known well, and 
cared for, where everyone 
contributes and values the 
contributions of others, where 
everyone learns every day, and 
where scholarship leads to 
academic excellence. 
 
Branciforte Middle School serves a 
diverse student population primarily 
from the east side of Santa Cruz. Our 
academic program is designed to 
meet individual students’ needs. 
Our base program includes an 
English/Social Studies Core, math, 
science, P.E., and an elective.  Our 
math classes use the College Prep 
Math curriculum with a focus on 
problem solving, explaining your 
reasoning, collaboration, and 
perseverance.  The program 
includes both a standard middle 
school track and an opportunity for 
acceleration.  For a school of our 
size, we have an outstanding 
exploratory program.  At sixth 
grade, this includes options for 
band, wood shop, computer coding, 
and visual art.  In the seventh and 
eighth grade, exploratories include: 
music,  Advancement Via Individual 
Determination (AVID), (a college-
preparatory program), computer 
coding, and culinary arts.   Students 
from our district’s dual-immersion 
program continue their studies in 
Spanish language on our site. 
 

Branciforte is proud of the many programs and services we offer.  We have greatly expanded our 
access to technology, including: our state-of-the-art library computer lab staffed by our librarian; 
our "Bee Inn", (an innovation center designed to support use of technology in research, 
collaboration, and presentation, and a dedicated writing space); We are lucky to be part of a 
Computer Science grant which is providing CS professional development to our staff and new 
opportunities for our students to develop critical skills for the 21st century.   Our Wednesday 
afternoon Arts Academy provides the opportunity for our students to participate in a variety of 
enrichment activities.  Past and current offerings include, but are not limited to: Baile Folklorico, 
coding, ROV under water robotics, rock band, bike club, Parkour, visual art & gardening, sewing, 
culinary arts, and ukulele.  Bilingualism is supported in our Two Way Immersion program and ELD.  
In the fall of 2016 we started the Academic Achievement Academy, an after-school program, on 
Monday through Thursday for two hours after school.  This program includes an hour of academic 
support and an hour of enrichment activity including music, cooking, and physical activity 
 
Major Achievements 
In addition to the increase in access to technology, we have been concentrating on improving 
academic support for our English learners and under-performing students.    Students struggling 
with math skills may use iReady or get additional support from a math teacher during our zero 
period math support class. There is a strong focus on Trauma Informed Schools training for teachers 
and on the implementation of Social Emotional Learning strategies and curriculum.  Many teachers 
practice mindfulness with their students on a regular basis.  In the 2017-18 school year the school 
implemented a Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS) program that emphasizes 
doing the right thing and rewards students for contributing positively to the school climate.  This 
includes various lessons in the classroom, special events such as assemblies and random drawings 
for students who are making good decisions. This year, we have every department in every grade 
level providing structured SEL lessons throughout the year. 
 
At Branciforte, we strive to involve families in the school community. Our Home and School Club, 
English Language Advisory Committee (ELAC), and School Site Council offer formal ways for parents 
to participate. We also host workshops on parenting and planning for college, a math and science 
night, and a Social Emotional Learning night for families. Our Home and School Club and ELAC 
parents partner to celebrate our community cultures.  In the fall, we host an annual Tamalada that 
includes wonderful food, music and Baile Folklorico.  In the spring, we host a Family Math Night in 
Spanish and our Spring Festival, which highlights student performances and fabulous food. The 
Tamalada and Spring Festival events bring thousands of dollars into Branciforte classrooms. 
 
Branciforte also involves families through celebrations of student learning. We host activities 
throughout the school year that celebrate student success, including music concerts, a Tamalada, 
featuring performances from our Arts Academy classes, walking field trips for all grade levels 
throughout the year, a Turkey Trot (a Thanksgiving fun run), the Egyptian Museum for sixth graders, 
the Knights vs. Samurai debates for seventh grade students, and an Invention Convention for eighth 
grade students.  Our eighth graders also produce a Voices of Change night.  This includes an evening 
of student produced videos, theatrical vignettes, and musical interludes. During distance learning, 
our teachers have continued provided opportunities for students to experience engaging lessons 
and activities based in grade level standards. 
 
Focus for Improvement 
We continue to work towards our goal that all students will be proficient or advanced in English 
Language Arts and math. Our professional development time focuses on building our repertoire of 
teaching strategies to engage students in the content, improving content literacy, increasing 
academic talk in the classroom, and developing priority learning goals and success criteria in each 
department. We use the universal MAP test to evaluate student progress in math and reading and 
to assign students to intervention. To support distance learning in 2020-2021, we have provided 
on-going professional learning around digital platforms. 
 

67/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 3 of 13

Our school community coordinator 
provides support to our students 
and their families. This work has 
increased the connection between 
home and school. We work to 
promote a college-going culture at 
our school.  Our AVID students visit 
universities and partner with UCSC 
tutors to develop college level study 
skills.   All seventh graders visit 
either the University of California or 
the California State Monterey Bay 
campus.  Students in our dual 
immersion program are working 
towards the Seal of Biliteracy, which 
represents master attainment of 
two or more languages.  In addition, 
our school community coordinator 
is the driving force for the Latino 
Role Model conference that is held 

annually and provides students with the opportunity to hear Latino professionals talk about their 
preparation and experience in a wide range of careers.  Our student support team including our 
counselors, school social worker, community coordinator, RtI coordinator and administration meet 
weekly to discuss and act up student concerns. 
 
Leadership 
Casey O'Brien is enjoying his 18th year as a principal and is in his second year at Branciforte.  He 
brings experience leading at both the high school and middle school level, experience in Special 
Education and Student Services at the district level, has served as an adjunct professor in the 
Masters of Educational Leadership program at San Jose State University, and was awarded the 
Association of California School Administrators (ACSA) Region 10 Secondary Principal of the Year in 
2014. 
 
Teachers, classified staff, students, parents, and administrators take part in decision making at this 
school. Teachers determine instructional methods as a team; the leadership team, along with the 
administration, plans staff development. Our School Site Council plays a key role in shaping our 
students’ educational experience. The Student Council advises the school administration and helps 
guide our activities and enrichment. 
 
 

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Grade 6 152        

Grade 7 155        

Grade 8 153        

Total Enrollment 460        
 

2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Black or African American 2.2        

American Indian or Alaska Native 0.2        

Asian 2.6        

Filipino 0.4        

Hispanic or Latino 47.4        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.2        

White 42.8        

Two or More Races 4.1        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 47.4        

English Learners 18.3        

Students with Disabilities 18        

Foster Youth 0.2        

Homeless 1.5        
 

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for Branciforte Middle 
School 

18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 25 27 24 

Without Full Credential 3 1 0 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 0 0 0 
 

68/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 4 of 13

Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at Branciforte 
Middle School 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 1 0 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 1 0 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

69/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 5 of 13

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
Our English Language Arts classes rely on novels to provide instruction on the Common Core Standards.  We have three different sets of instructional 
materials for our ELD students depending on their level of English proficiency.   Science textbooks are still based on the CST.  We supplement our science 
with current informational text to align with NGSS standards.  Our math books meet integrated CCSS adoptions. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Literature  and Language Arts - Holt, Rinehart & Winston 

Adopted 2008 
 
Shining Star - Pearson Longman 
Adopted 2007 
 
Access English: Great Source: Houghton Mifflin Harcourt - Adopted 2016 
Inside Language: National Geographic Learning -  Adopted 2016 
Inside Writing: National Geographic Learning - Adopted 2016 
 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics Core Connections (Middle School) Integrated Courses 1, 2, 3, and (High School) Integrated 1 - College 
Preparatory Mathematics 
Adopted 2013 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science Science Education for Public Understanding Program (SEPUP), Lab-Aids 
SEPUP Science Grades 6, 7, & 8 
Adopted 2019 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

History-Social Science History Alive!: The Ancient World - TCI 
Adopted 2006 
 
History Alive!: The Medieval World & Beyond - TCI 
Adopted 2006 
 
History Alive!: The U.S. Through Industrialism - TCI 
Adopted 2006 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Foreign Language Expresate - Spanish 1: Holt 
Adopted 2014 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Health N/A        

Visual and Performing Arts N/A        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
Work has been done on our campus in several areas in the last few years. We have recently painted, added student murals, renovated electrical wiring, 
purchased furniture for our computer lab, updated a sewage line, and added a bus loading and unloading zone.  Our field project was completed in the 
spring of 2012 - resulting in an all-weather track and soccer field - expanded life lab and picnic and eating areas.  The passage of Measure A will enable 
us to update and renovate all of our buildings in the coming years. 
 

70/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 6 of 13

School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 11/02/2020 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood        MAIN OFFICE: THERMOSTAT NOT 
WORKING 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood         

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XGood         

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood         

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood        RM 21: BOOKCASE AND METAL CABINET 
NEEDS TO BE ANCHORED DOWN 
RM 16: TWO BOOKCASES NEEDS TO BE 
ANCHORED DOWN 
 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood         

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood         

Overall Rating 
---------- 

XGood         

 

71/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 7 of 13

B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

72/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 8 of 13

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 59 N/A 64 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 41 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

73/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 9 of 13

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science 46 N/A 37 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

74/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 10 of 13

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

75/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 11 of 13

 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
We have many ways for parents to participate in the life of our school, and we depend on parents to keep our programs running smoothly. Parents join 
our School Site Council, which works with administration, staff, and students to make financial decisions. Parents of English Learners are vital to our 
English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC) and to our efforts to reach out to our Spanish speaking families. An ELAC representative also acts as a liaison 
to the School Site Council so that ELAC parents have a strong voice in the development of the School Plan. Historically, our Home and School Club provides 
support for our students in a variety of ways including co-hosting, with ELAC, the annual Tamalada and Spring Festival, organizing several fundraisers and 
supporting our school financially with teacher grants, support of student field trips, support of the Arts Academy, and support of our technology 
equipment and lab.  We have an additional fundraising arm of the Home and School Club call the B40 Boosters - they focus on fundraising and spirit 
events for sports and music programs primarily.  Additionally, our parents assist with a variety of school activities, including Open House, Back-to-School 
Night, The Turkey Trot, fundraising, and important feedback and communication about our programs.  Parents also volunteer to provide adult supervision 
at lunch and at school activities, teach Wednesday Arts Academy classes, coach teams, chaperone school dances, and much more.  During distance 
learning, we have have hosted parent meetings such as coffees, to share updates and to solicit input to help guide our decision making process. 
 
To become more involved, please call or visit the school office - (831) 429-3883. 
 
 
State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
We revise our safety plan yearly, and it is reviewed by the staff and Site Council. The plan includes goals for creating a safe environment through Positive 
Behavior and Intervention Systems and Trauma Informed Services.  Our first goal is to define and use Tier 1 and Tier 2 strategies for social emotional 
issues and that 70% of students receiving Tier 2 services will indicate improvement in the area of need.  We now have School wide behavior expectations 
posted in all areas of the campus and we have added and adapted expectations to address distance learning.  We have identified our three campus 
culture expectations as being honorable, sensible, and safe.  We have identified expectations for each of these for the various areas of the campus, 
including distance learning, and teach these expectations to students through video and classroom activities. 
 
We continue a commitment to our students' social-emotional safety and have a Student Support Team that meets weekly to discuss supports and 
outreach to our students and family.  We use a Social Emotional Health Survey to inform our planning in relation to students' school social experiences.  
Additionally, this survey helps identify students in need of additional social-emotional support.  Additionally, we provide opportunities for staff to share 
their input on student concerns and outreach. We also to continue to have a robust Gay-Straight Alliance club that meets to support and address needs 
around gender identity, and have added representation on the Superintendent's Advisory Committee on Race and Equity. This year we began a 
Mentorship Program that pairs staff members with students identified as needing connection that involves regular outreach and that we look forward 
to growing as we are able to come back to in-person learning. 
 
 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 5.0 3.3 3.2 4.1 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 2.3 1.8 N/A 

Expulsions 0 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 

76/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 12 of 13

 
D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 353.8 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 1.3 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 0.8 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 0.3 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other-------  
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) 

Subject 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

English 7 11   7 8   11 6 1  

Mathematics 21 7 8 1 19 6 10  19 10 5 2 

Science 26 2 9  3 2   27 2 8 1 

Social Science     3 1   16 1 1  

*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is 
reported by subject area rather than grade level. 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 2 2 1 

 
The primary focus of professional development is around tools needed to maximize Distance Learning due to the COVID pandemic and around Integrated 
ELD in support of our English Learners in general education classes.  Additionally, over the past few years significant focus has been on supporting 
productive academic student talk, teacher clarity, (including the use of learning goals, success criteria, and formative assessments), using an evidence, 
analysis, action protocol to analyze student work and inform instruction.  Additionally, we are working on integrating brain-based self-regulation 
strategies and Social Emotional Learning instruction to support students self management, relationship skills, and decision making. These priorities were 
made based on several factors including our student achievement data, research into what improves student achievement, district goals and metrics, 
and staff leadership discussions.  Teachers have the opportunity to collaborate every week during the afternoon of a Wednesday shortened day.  This 
collaboration takes on several forms including school wide professional development and department and/or grade level professional learning teams.  
The professional development has a lens on supporting Distance Learning tools, Integrated ELD, academic talk strategies, teacher clarity, and Trauma 
Informed services.  These include strategies to engage students in the content through reading, writing, speaking, and listening, strategies to check for 
understanding, content literacy strategies, and paired, group, and whole class discussion strategies.  Department collaboration, and grade alike 
collaboration is focused on student engagement through curriculum development, sharing best practices, aligning with the Common Core State 
Standards, developing common assessments, and using the results of these assessments to drive instruction.  Grade level teams meet to choose and 
review accountable student talk strategies, trauma-informed strategies, review at-risk students, and share good news with parents regarding a range of 
student successes.  Teams of teachers participate in series of workshops offered through various agencies.  In recent years these have included:  
Integrated & Designated ELD with West Ed, Teacher Clarity led by Paul Bloomberg and SCCS staff; College Preparatory Math curriculum training and 
collaboration; ELA collaboration focused on the Common Core State Standards,  Next Generation Science Standards, and AVID training. In addition, each 

77/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Branciforte Middle School   Page 13 of 13

teacher is expected to participate in at least two peer classroom observations each year.  During these observations, pairs of teachers visit multiple 
classrooms collecting data on equitable student participation and the use of talk moves.  School wide data from these observations is presented during 
staff meetings.  Finally, new teachers and administrators are assigned teacher/administrator coaches who provide regular observations and dialogues, 
giving staff the opportunity to reflect on practice with veterans in the field.  Time is built into the professional development for teachers to share the 
strategies they have tried and to get feedback regarding any questions.  In addition, staff and district administration make regular visits into the classroom 
and share observed best practices through e-mails, newsletters, and personal interactions, and follow-up with concerns individually. 
 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

10,342 2,468 $7,874 $76,062 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750  
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District 5.7 -10.6 

School Site/ State 1.6 -8.9 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

Types of Services Funded 
Branciforte uses specialized funding to provide extra help to students who need it. We update our school plan each year to ensure that our instruction 
is focused on student needs. For example, a significant portion of our federal and LCFF supplemental funds are used to support our Multi-tiered Systems 
of Support.  This includes an RtI coordinator, 75 minutes of weekly math intervention using small group instruction or the iReady curriculum, two math 
intervention classes that students may take in place of their elective for a portion of the year, an additional class so that English Learners can take zero 
period PE allowing them to take an elective during the regular school schedule, and after school homework hours four days a week, serving approximately 
40 students daily.  Additionally, we use these funds to provide an ELA Common Core coach to support the implementation of Common Core State 
Standards and to significantly increase our ELD services in order to provide small, leveled ELD classes, including a class for our newcomer students that 
provides language acquisition and SEL support.  Additional funds are used to purchase materials, translation services, professional development, and 
release time for teachers to participate in planning.  The effectiveness of these additional resources is measured through our quarterly and annual 
assessments. 
 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

78/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 1 of 13

Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte 
Small Schools Campus 

840 North Branciforte Ave. • Santa Cruz, CA 95062 • (831) 429-3898 • Grades 9-12 
Michelle McKinney, Principal 
michellemckinney@sccs.net 

https://bssc.sccs.net/ 
 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 

----

---- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission St., Suite 100 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

79/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 2 of 13

School Description 
Costanoa High School is located on 
the vibrant Branciforte Small 
Schools Campus (BSSC). Ark 
Independent Study High School, 
Monarch Community School, and 
Alternative Family Education all 
share our campus. Costanoa 
students benefit from small class 
sizes and strong relationships with 
staff members. We focus on student 
growth over time by developing the 
following habits: Use your mind 
well. Do the right thing. Work hard. 
Costanoa has a diverse population 
that includes 100 students in grades 
nine through twelve. Costanoa is 
fully accredited by the Western 
Association of Schools and Colleges. 
 

Our schoolwide action plan focuses on developing literacy and math skills to prepare students for 
the rigors of community college.  All students complete a senior project as a graduation 
requirement. The staff has a strong culture of collegiality focused on instructional improvement 
and the promotion of student success. Our staff works together to improve and and adjust 
instruction in response to student assessment. Students work to master standards in all subjects 
and to complete required credits for graduation, the English Language Arts Portfolio, and the senior 
project. Our faculty Leadership Team and School Site Council (SSC) guide the focus and direction of 
the school. Our student leadership group also has an active voice in school activities, such as Spirit 
Week, and the development of school policies. 
 
Costanoa entered Comprehensive Support and Improvement status based on data from 2018-19. 
In response to CSI and school closure from the pandemic, Costanoa is implementing multiple 
intervention strategies including transitioning to models of co-teaching in Project-Based Learning 
classrooms with coaching; adding Instructional, Restorative Justice and Math coaches; adding hours 
for a Mental Health counselor; providing professional development in PBL and Restorative Justice; 
extending enrichment opportunities for students; additional time for teacher collaboration; 
additional staffing for supporting students during Distance Learning at in-person cohorts; to name 
a few. 
 
INSPIRED PURPOSE-We personalize education for every student. 
MISSION-We are a small and diverse community that supports students’ academic and personal 
growth. Students learn through integrated thematic instruction, participate in experiential learning, 
develop a foundation in positive socioemotional practices, and build connections to Cabrillo 
College. 
 

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Grade 10 2        

Grade 11 34        

Grade 12 51        

Total Enrollment 87        
 

2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Black or African American 2.3        

American Indian or Alaska Native 2.3        

Hispanic or Latino 59.8        

White 32.2        

Two or More Races 3.4        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 64.4        

English Learners 18.4        

Students with Disabilities 31        

Foster Youth 3.4        

Homeless 3.4        
 

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for Costanoa Continuation 
High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus 

18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 6 6 5 

Without Full Credential 0 0 0 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 0 0 0 
 

80/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 3 of 13

Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at Costanoa 
Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 0 0 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 0 0 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

81/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 4 of 13

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
In all subject areas, our textbooks are the most recently approved by the State Board of Education and our Local Governing Agency. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Literature & Language Arts - Holt 

Adopted 2002 
 
Inside Writing: Grade 9 - Great Source 
Adopted 2006 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics Integrated 1, 2, & 3 - CPM 
Adopted 2016 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science Biology: An Everyday Experience - Glencoe McGraw Hill 
Adopted 2007 
 
Biology - Houghton Mifflin 
Adopted 2007 
 
Chemistry - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2007 
 
Physics (Cutnell & Johnson - 7th Ed.) - Wiley & Sons / People's Publishing 
Adopted 2007 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

History-Social Science Economics: Principles in Action - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2006 
 
Magruder's American Government - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2006 
 
The Americans: Reconstruction to the 21st C. - Houghton Mifflin 
Adopted 2006 
 
World History: The Modern World - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2006 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Foreign Language Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Health Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Visual and Performing Arts Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science Laboratory Equipment Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
Costanoa is located in a beautiful and historic building on the Branciforte Small Schools Campus. 
 

82/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 5 of 13

School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 11/05/2020 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood        MPR: THE HEAT IS NOT WORKING 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood         

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XGood         

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood        2NF FLOOR RESTROOM: SINK IS LEAKING 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood        MAIN OFFICE: ALARM PANEL IS HAVING 
SOME ONGOING ISSUES 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood         

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood        RM 15: DOOR HANDLE IS LOOSE 

Overall Rating 
---------- 

XGood         

 

83/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 6 of 13

B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

84/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 7 of 13

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 6 N/A 64 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 0 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

85/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 8 of 13

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science 0 N/A 37 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

86/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 9 of 13

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

87/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 10 of 13

 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
Costanoa parents are involved in school governance through the School Site Council and English Learner Advisory Committee. Each group holds meetings 
five times per year. The School Site Council also serves as our site's bond oversight committee. Members are able to give input into school bond projects 
planned for our site. 
Parents are expected to be actively involved in their child's education by attending three mandatory parent-teacher-student conferences each year. 
Student advisors' share academic and graduation progress. To become more involved, parents may call (831) 429-3898. 
 
 
State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
The School Site Council that represents our four schools at the Branciforte Small Schools Campus (BSSC) reviews the previous year's Safe School Plan and 
collaborates to write a new plan each year. Our goal in 2020-21 is to continue to implement trauma-informed care strategies in the classroom, with a 
focus on implementation of neuro-sequential model tenets into lessons, 1:1 meetings, and school structure. We will also continue to learn about  
restorative justice practices around students in marginalized groups and who have/are experiencing trauma. We will continue to explicitly teach and 
practice self-regulation techniques, provide training for implementation of restorative justice practices, and focus on the neuro-sequential model in 
lesson design in various professional development sessions. 
 
 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 5.8 13.0 3.2 4.1 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.7 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 10.4 1.8% N/A 

Expulsions 0.8 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 
 
D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 72.5 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 

88/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 11 of 13

Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 1.2 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 0.2 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist  

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other-------  
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) 

Subject 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

Mathematics             

Science 1 1           

Social Science             

*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is 
reported by subject area rather than grade level. 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 16 16 22 

 
Costanoa staff meet twice a month for three hours to focus on continuous professional growth related to socioemotional learning, instruction, and 
assessment. During the past three years, professional development has centered on two key threads of literacy and school connectedness. Many students 
come to Costanoa deficient in reading and writing skills as evidenced by Measure of Academic Progress (MAP) and CAASPP scores. Many students also 
come to Costanoa in need of strengthening socioemotional development and learning. 
 
In 2020-21, teachers have multiple opportunities for professional development. 1. Teachers participated in District and County PD opportunities for 
effective distance learning tools and practices. 2. School staff participated in a three-day Project Based Learning 101 (Buck Institute) training that 
illuminated the structures and processes of planning project-based lessons and units. Continual support is available through PBL 101 staff coaching, and 
consultation with veteran teachers. 3. Through the Language Review Team process, teachers continue to expand their toolboxes of strategies to support 
English language learning students. 
 
School Connectedness - In efforts to reduce suspensions and expulsions, all staff are learning about Restorative Justice practices. Based on the increased 
need of students for social emotional support, staff continues to learn about Trauma informed schools philosophy and to implement it in the classroom 
and throughout the school. Self regulation for students and self care for staff have been the focus, with attention to the use of the Neuro-Sequential 
Model in lesson planning. 
 
For the 2018-19 and the 2019-20 school year, there are three key strands of professional development focused on developing and carrying out integrated 
thematic units, implementing restorative justice practices, and developing academic vocabulary tied to ELD standards. A facilitator from SEEDS 
Community Resolution Center is leading 18 hours of professional development around restorative justice. The restorative justice leadership team is also 
receiving 20 hours of coaching throughout the year. Teachers are also supported through teacher-principal meetings, group analysis of student writing 
assessments and data, and two rounds of peer observations. SCCS' English Learner Instructional Tech is leading 7.5 hours of integrated ELD professional 
development with a focus on developing students' academic vocabulary acquisition. 
 

89/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 12 of 13

 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

13,329 3,206 $10,123 $71,635 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750  
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District 30.6 -16.5 

School Site/ State 26.6 -14.8 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

Types of Services Funded 
We update our Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) each year to ensure that our instruction is focused on student needs as indicated by student 
academic achievement. We work closely with our School Site Council (SSC) and staff to give provide extra academic and socioemotional support to 
students. During the 2019-20 fiscal year, LCFF and federal funds were used to provide extra staffing that supported us in attempting to meet our SPSA 
goals and to carry out our schoolwide action plan. This included adding a bilingual paraprofessional to support students with low levels of English 
proficiency and adding .2 FTE to the CTE teacher's work load to maintain smaller class sizes. Additionally, these funds were used to purchase 
supplementary instructional materials. Funds were also spent to ensure student access to numerous educational field trips and enrichment opportunities. 
 
 
 
State Priority: Pupil Engagement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Pupil Engagement (Priority 5): 
 

• High school dropout rates; and 
• High school graduation rates. 

 
Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate) 

Rate for Costanoa Continuation High 
School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 21.6 41.9 46.9 

Graduation Rate 56.8 58.1 53.1 
 
Rate for Santa Cruz City Schools 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 5.9 10 8.1 

Graduation Rate 89.1 89 89.4 
 
Rate for California 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 9.1 9.6 9 

Graduation Rate 82.7 83 84.5 
 

Career Technical Education Participation 

Measure CTE Program 
Participation 

Number of pupils participating in CTE  

% of pupils completing a CTE program and earning 
a high school diploma  

% of CTE courses sequenced or articulated between 
the school and institutions of postsecondary 
education 

 

 
Courses for University of California (UC) and/or California State 
University (CSU) Admission 

UC/CSU Course Measure Percent 
2018-19 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for 
UC/CSU Admission 0 

2017-18 Graduates Who Completed All Courses 
Required for UC/CSU Admission 0 

 

90/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 13 of 13

2019-20 Advanced Placement Courses 

Subject 
Number of  
AP Courses  

Offered* 

Percent of  
Students In  
AP Courses 

Computer Science  N/A 

English-------  N/A 

Fine and Performing Arts  N/A 

Foreign Language   N/A 

Subject 
Number of  
AP Courses  

Offered* 

Percent of  
Students In  
AP Courses 

Mathematics  N/A 

Science-------  N/A 

Social Science  N/A 

All courses   
*Where there are student course enrollments of at least one student. 
 

Career Technical Education Programs 
All Santa Cruz City Schools' students have access to CTE/ROP classes at high schools throughout the county. These career technical education courses 
(CTE, formerly known as ROP) are open to all Costanoa students. Since the 2017-18 school year, Costanoa had offered two courses: Agriculture Production 
and Early Childhood Education. In addition, Costanoa students work with a part-time CTE counselor who administers surveys such as Naviance and other 
career-interest questionnaires. 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

91/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for DeLaveaga Elementary School   Page 1 of 12

DeLaveaga Elementary School 
1145 Morrissey Blvd. • Santa Cruz, CA 95065-1498 • (831) 429-3807 • Grades K-5 

Robert S. Greenlee, Principal 
rgreenlee@sccs.net 
delaveaga.sccs.net 

 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 

----

---- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Ste. 100 

Santa Cruz, CA 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

92/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for DeLaveaga Elementary School   Page 2 of 12

School Description 
DeLaveaga Elementary School is 
located on the east side of Santa 
Cruz near DeLaveaga City Park. The 
highly skilled teaching staff has 
many years of professional 
experience. We celebrate a diverse 
world in which children’s languages, 
cultures, talents and dreams, are 
fostered and valued. We support a 
strong, standards-based 
educational program supplemented 
by the arts and science, which 
enables all children to reach their 
potential. 
 
DeLaveaga hosts a K–5 Spanish Two 
Way Immersion program (Dos Alas). 
This academically rigorous program 
supports all students in achieving 
high levels of bilingual proficiency 
and literacy. Students in our 
program develop the language skills 
and cultural competence necessary 
to fully engage in the local 
community and in the greater 
multicultural world. 
 
DeLaveaga uses Eureka Math, a 
curriculum that is well aligned with 
the Common Core State Standards. 
In addition to our continued 
implementation of a school-wide 
research-based Positive Behavior 
Intervention and Supports (PBIS) 
program, we have introduced 
students to our new WITS program 
which assists students in solving 
both behavioral and academic 
issues. In addition to our Eureka 
math program, we use the 
Benchmark Workshop language arts 
program, along with FOSS science. 
Our Life Lab Science program is a 
garden-based science program that 
supplements the FOSS materials. 

 
Major Achievements 
DeLaveaga students consistently score well on state-level testing. Student scores in English 
Language Arts and Mathematics are at or above the state average. Our school has also received the 
Gold Ribbon Award from the State of California Department of Education for our Response to 
Intervention Program that supports students in both English and Spanish. 
 
DeLaveaga’s has an active Parent Teacher Club (PTC) that raises more than $90,000 annually to 
support classroom learning. The PTC provides additional music/dance instruction for kindergarten 
through third grade as well as stipends for our teachers to facilitate a student council. All students 
receive weekly art instruction funded by a district parcel tax. Students in third through fifth grade 
receive music instruction weekly through the District’s program. 
 
The Biliteracy Award, which recognizes language proficiency in both Spanish and English, is 
awarded to a number of our 5th graders each year. 
 
Focus for Improvement 
Classroom teachers evaluate students’ literacy and mathematics skills regularly. This information 
helps identify which students that require additional services during the school day or after school 
(Homework and Intervention Support). English Learners received extra support toward developing 
proficiency in reading, writing, listening and speaking (LISTOS program). 
 
Students in grades three through five also take the State SBAC test. This assessment provides a 
statewide measure of school progress. DeLaveaga students consistently perform well on state 
standardized tests and on local measures of student achievement. 
 
Our focus is on supporting students' proficiency in writing and math as we implement the Common 
Core State Standards. 
 
Leadership 
This is Robert Greenlee's 4th year as DeLaveaga's principal. Prior to coming to DeLaveaga, Mr. 
Greenlee was the Principal at Martin Luther King Jr. Elementary School for four years and has over 
19 yeas of administrative experience and 30 years as an educator. 
 
DeLaveaga's teacher leadership team meets monthly to plan professional development and 
support grade level team collaboration. Grade level teams meet regularly (up to once a week) to 
analyze student data  and make recommendations for best practices that are aligned with the 
district goals for student achievement. The School Site Council (SSC), Parent Teacher Club, and our 
English Language Advisory Committee (ELAC) play key roles in shaping our students’ educational 
experience. 
 

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

93/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for DeLaveaga Elementary School   Page 3 of 12

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Kindergarten 114        

Grade 1 89        

Grade 2 81        

Grade 3 74        

Grade 4 75        

Grade 5 97        

Total Enrollment 530        
 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Black or African American 2.3        

American Indian or Alaska Native 0.6        

Asian 3.4        

Filipino 0.4        

Hispanic or Latino 37.4        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.4        

White 53.4        

Two or More Races 2.3        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 32.6        

English Learners 20.9        

Students with Disabilities 12.3        

Homeless 0.9        
 

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for DeLaveaga Elementary 
School 

18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 26 23 22 

Without Full Credential 0 0 0 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 0 0 0 
 
Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at DeLaveaga 
Elementary School 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 0 0 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 0 0 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 

*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

94/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for DeLaveaga Elementary School   Page 4 of 12

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
In all subject areas, our textbooks are the most recently approved by the State Board of Education and our Local Governing Agency. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Benchmark Workshop - Benchmark Education Company 

Adopted 2019 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics Eureka Math 
Adopted 2016 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science FOSS - Delta Education 
Adopted 2017 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

History-Social Science History & Social Science - Pearson 
Adopted 2006 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Visual and Performing Arts Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
De Laveaga Elementary School was originally built in 1969 and sits on nearly 10 acres. The campus expanded the parking lot using bond money. Upcoming 
projects for the campus using bond money include adding shade structures, replacing the HVAC system, improving the technological infrastructure, and 
removing portable classrooms. 
 
School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 11/12/2020 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood        RM 19: HEAT NOT WORKING 
RM 20: HEAT NOT WORKING 
RM 22: HEAT NOT WORKING 
RM: 34 THERMOSTAT NOT WORKING 
 
 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood        MPR: DOOR HINDGE IS LOOSE 
LIBARARY: LATCH IS BROKEN 
OFFICE: ONE OF THE BLINDS DOES NOT 
WORK 
RM 41: DOOR GETS STUCK 
 

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

95/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for DeLaveaga Elementary School   Page 5 of 12

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XGood         

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood         

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood         

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood         

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood         

Overall Rating 
---------- 

XGood         

 

96/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for DeLaveaga Elementary School   Page 6 of 12

B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

97/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for DeLaveaga Elementary School   Page 7 of 12

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 55 N/A 53 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 46 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

98/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for DeLaveaga Elementary School   Page 8 of 12

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science 47 N/A 44 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

99/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for DeLaveaga Elementary School   Page 9 of 12

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

100/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for DeLaveaga Elementary School   Page 10 of 12

 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
DeLaveaga parents are very involved as volunteers in classroom activities and field trips. Our School Site Council approves the school’s annual plan and 
budget. Parents also participate on the English Learner Advisory Committee, which supports our English Learners, and the Parent Teacher Club which 
helps plan for different enrichment and intervention opportunities for our students and provides funding for these purposes. We have recently revisited 
and updated our School Vision and Values, and are working on creating a school-wide focus that prepares students to become Global Ambassadors. 
 
To become more involved, please call or visit the school office at (831) 429-3807. 
 
 
State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
Accident rates on campus are very low. The staff works together to ensure that the site is safe, clean, and orderly. We hold monthly safety meetings, and 
provide safety information at our staff meetings. In addition, we work with our School Resource Officer to train staff on safety procedures, such as 
lockdown and evacuation drills. All gates are locked during the school day, and all visitors are expected to check in/sign-in with the office and wear a 
name tag while on campus. 
 
With the direction of our School Safety Committee and input from all parent groups, the Comprehensive Safe School Plan is revised annually. In February 
of 2020, the School Site Council approved our current Safe School Plan, which includes emergency procedures. In addition, key members of the Safety 
Committee, and Incident Command Team attend annual district-wide training in Emergency Response Guidelines and Disaster Procedures. 
 
Key elements of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan are: 
* Goals for creating a Creating a Caring and Connected Community, and a place where All Students and Staff Safe 
* DeLaveaga staff and students understand and consistently follow the school-wide behavioral expectations in the classroom as outlined in our PBIS - 
"The Dragon Way." 
* Implement and monitor the PBIS behavior expectations and consequences with staff, students, and parents to support more engagement and safe 
interactions on the playground at recess and lunch. 
* Disaster Procedures and Emergency Response Guidelines 
* Established Incident Command System 
 
The full Comprehensive School Safety Plan can be viewed on the school and SCCS District Websites. 
 
 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 0.7 0.6 0.8 1.2 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 0.4 1.8 N/A 

Expulsions 0.0 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 
 

101/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for DeLaveaga Elementary School   Page 11 of 12

D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 530 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 1 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian) 1 

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 0.5 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 0.9 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other------- 3.5 
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) 

Grade 
Level 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

   K    
 

22 1 4  23  5 5 23  5  

   1    
 

21 2 2  22 2 2  22 1 3  

   2    
 

21 2 2  22  3  22 3   

   3    
 

22  4  21 1 3  22 1 2  

   4    
 

21  1  31  1  32  1  

   5    
 

27  6  29  5  28  2  

  Other** 
 

        27  4  
*Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). 
** “Other” category is for multi-grade level classes. 
 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 5-6 5-6 9-10 

 
From 2017 to 2020, teachers have participated in monthly after school staff development activities in Integrated ELD, Science, and the use of technology 
and instructional applications (Lexia, iStation, Zearn, etc.) to improve instruction and student performance, both in person and during Distance Learning. 
Professional development activities are planned and implemented by the teacher leadership team (SCIL).  The focus for 2017-18 was math, in 2018-19 it 
was Integrated ELD and Content Area Conversations, and for the 2019-2020 school year, we focused on our newly adopted ELA program, along with 
science, and the implementation of Google and Seesaw Classrooms. In 2020-21 our focus has been on providing teachers extensive PD in technology 
related programs and applications to support Distance Learning. These are all site and district PD activities. 
 
In past years, teachers have attended full release day professional development days that were sponsored by our County Office of Education, as well as 
other professional organizations. All teachers participated in science (FOSS) PD in 2018-2019. In addition, grade level representatives attended a 4-day 
training on teaching Spanish Language Arts.  In 2018-19, a team of teachers attended the CABE Conference in Long Beach. In 2019-2020 all teachers 
participated in ELA implementation PD, and K-2 teachers were trained in F&P Assessment protocols. During monthly PD/PLC Days, as well as during parts 
of Staff Meetings, we have provided teachers and sometimes classified staff training in Google and Seesaw Classroom, Lexia, Zearn, iStation, RAZKids, 

102/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for DeLaveaga Elementary School   Page 12 of 12

and Heggerty to name a few. Finally, our Reading Intervention teacher provided targeted PD in the new Reading Assessment - Pioneer Valley that was 
needed for Distance Learning. 
 
We have provided SEH professional development to both classified and certificated staff. The various training sessions include, but are not limited to: 
Problem-solving Strategies (WITS), Calming Spaces, Zones of Regulation, Growth Mindset, Mindfulness, and a training in Handle with Care. We also 
updated our school-wide expectations (Dragon Way) to reflect the Distance Learning aspects of being Respectful, Responsible, Safe, and There and 
Ready! 
 
Teachers continue to conduct ongoing parent-teacher conferences 3 times per year, to communicate and collaborate with parents to better support 
their children at school and at home. 
 
 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

8,898 1,524 $7,373 $88,411 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750 N/A 
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District -0.8 4.5 

School Site/ State -5.0 -15.2 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

Types of Services Funded 
Our school uses specialized funding to provide extra instruction for students with specific needs. We use state and federal funds to provide additional 
reading support for students (SIPPS, Lexia, IStation, and RazKids). Revenue from the local parcel tax funds teachers for our art and music programs. Our 
generous parent community also provides funding for learning assistants, music and dance teachers, a Garden Coordinator, and after school enrichment 
classes. 
 
We fund 4 Learning Assistants that support our school-wide reading intervention program. In addition, we also provide after school support for reading, 
writing, English Language Development, and homework support. 
 
 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

103/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Gault Elementary School   Page 1 of 11

Gault Elementary School 
1320 Seabright Ave. • Santa Cruz, CA 95062-2525 • (831) 429-3856 • Grades K-5 

Amariah Hernandez, Principal 
amariahhernandez@sccs.net 

https://gault.sccs.net/ 
 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 

----

---- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

School Description 
Gault Elementary School is a caring community that fosters respect, values diverse cultures and 
languages, and promotes positive school climate through the use of PBIS. Through a meaningful 
and appropriate curriculum, we work to ensure that all students experience continuous growth in 
academic and social skills in order to become complex thinkers, collaborative learners, and clear 
communicators. We do this through excellence in teaching, parent and community partnership, 
and support from our school district. We are a diverse population: 65% Latino, 52% English Learner, 
and 69% Free and Reduced Lunch. We are a relatively small elementary school with approximately 
350 students, 23 certificated teachers, an RTI coordinator, 23 classified support staff, full time 
principal, bilingual school counselor, bilingual community coordinator and part time social worker. 
We have several programs at Gault that provide students with lifelong learning skills, however it 
has been our work around climate and culture that has made a noticeable impact on student 
learning in the classroom. 
 
 

104/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Gault Elementary School   Page 2 of 11

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Kindergarten 78        

Grade 1 38        

Grade 2 64        

Grade 3 40        

Grade 4 66        

Grade 5 50        

Total Enrollment 336        
 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Black or African American 0.6        

Hispanic or Latino 67.9        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.6        

White 28.3        

Two or More Races 2.7        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 66.7        

English Learners 46.4        

Students with Disabilities 18.8        

Foster Youth 0.6        

Homeless 0.9        
 

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for Gault Elementary 
School 

18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 19 18 16 

Without Full Credential 0 0 0 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 0 0 0 
 

Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at Gault 
Elementary School 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 0 0 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 0 0 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

105/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Gault Elementary School   Page 3 of 11

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
In all subject areas, our textbooks are the most recently approved by the State Board of Education and our Local Governing Agency. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Benchmark Workshop - Benchmark Education Company 

Adopted 2019 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics Eureka Math Common Core TK-5        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science FOSS Science Kits - Delta Education 
Adopted 2017 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

History-Social Science History & Social Studies (CA Edition) - Pearson Scott Foresman 
Adopted 2006 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
The main building was built in 1928 and went through extensive remodeling in 2005.  We have a courtyard, which we use for instruction and as a gathering 
place for students and parents. The Life Lab garden and science lab is a center in which many lessons and activities take place. We have a library, which 
is a gathering place for students at lunch and recess as well as a place where lessons are taught to every class on a weekly basis. Additionally, we have 
an art and separate music room that provide focused space for the arts weekly for our students. Gault School offers the charm of a historic building filled 
with eager students. We passed our 2020 Williams facility audit with a  98%  "good" on the fit report and passed our 2020 safety audit. 
 
School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 10/28/2020 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood        MAIN OFFICE: HEATER DOES NOT WORK 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood         

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XGood         

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood        RM 24: FAUCET IS LEAKING 
RM 11: FAUCET IS LEAKING 
 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood         

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood         

106/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Gault Elementary School   Page 4 of 11

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XFair        RM 22: MISSING A WINDOW SCREEN 
RM 18: SCREEN FOR THE WINDOW NEEDS 
TO BE SECURED 
RM 14: MISSING A WINDOW SCREEN 
RM 24: MISSING A WINDOW SCREEN 
 

Overall Rating 
---------- 

XGood         

 

107/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Gault Elementary School   Page 5 of 11

B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

108/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Gault Elementary School   Page 6 of 11

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 33 N/A 53 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 30 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

109/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Gault Elementary School   Page 7 of 11

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science 21 N/A 44 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

110/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Gault Elementary School   Page 8 of 11

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

111/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Gault Elementary School   Page 9 of 11

 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
Our School Site Council approves the school’s annual plan and budget. This group of parents, teachers, and administrators meets each trimester to 
monitor the Single Plan for Student Achievement and to discuss issues of concern to the school community. In addition, we have an active English Learner 
Advisory Committee (ELAC) that monitors the programs for English Learners and trains parents to assist students in school and provide leadership. Our 
GPTO is involved in many aspects of our school including fundraising, volunteering and enhancing  programs for all of our students. ELAC meets monthly 
and GPTO meets quarterly. Additionally, we have a site Bond committee that makes decisions and gives input regarding our facility bond projects. To 
become more involved, please call or visit the school office - (831) 427-4812. 
 
 
 
State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
Gault School is a very safe place for students to learn and play. All students know and understand our Gault "Good to Great" Agreements. We use the 
Gault Agreements to help students solve issues with each other and treat others with respect. We have implemented PBIS (Positive Behavior Intervention 
Support) framework for the past three years.  Our school climate is inclusive of all students and promotes self confidence, and problem solving. We revise 
our School Safety Plan yearly as we conduct our monthly drills. We have a comprehensive site safety plan posted to our website. All staff are updated on 
the safety plan and understand their role in a variety of emergencies. 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 1.2 2.8 0.8 1.2 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 0.6 1.8 N/A 

Expulsions 0.0 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 
 
D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 168 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 

112/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Gault Elementary School   Page 10 of 11

Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 2 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian) 1 

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 0.4 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 0.6 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other------- 1 
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) 

Grade 
Level 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

   K    
 

20 3 1  23  3 1 21 2 3  

   1    
 

20 2   23  2  22  1  

   2    
 

22  3  21 1 1  23 2   

   3    
 

22  3  20 3 1  23  1  

   4    
 

26  2  23  2  22  3  

   5    
 

24  3  32  2  25  2  

  Other** 
 

        29  2 1 
*Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). 
** “Other” category is for multi-grade level classes. 
 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 4-6 4-6 4-6 

 
For the 2020-21 school year Gault  staff is participating in the following professional developments: 
 
1.  Monthly professional development around ELA program & convergence 
2.  Collaboration time for mapping and planning scope & sequence for year long curriculum 
3.  Continue professional Learning Communities with data cycles 
4.  Guided reading coaching 
5.  Practice and feedback for stronger formative assessments during PLC 
6.  Release time for Peer Observations 
7.  Ongoing coaching with our CS teacher coach 
8. Participating in several PD around Peardeck, Seesaw, Google Classroom, Screen Castify and more online teaching tools 
 
 

113/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Gault Elementary School   Page 11 of 11

 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

10,588 2,103 $8,484 $75,530 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750 N/A 
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District 13.2 -11.3 

School Site/ State 9.0 -27.3 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

Types of Services Funded 
We use our state and federal dollars to offer additional classroom support during our ELA time, Tier 2 interventions in language arts and math, our PBIS 
program, a part time social worker, misc supplies, extra yard duties and professional development trainings for staff.  ASES funds support an after school 
coordinator for our program along with several learning assistants that have received specialized training. Last year the GPTO raised $25,000 through 
various fundraisers. These funds support classroom projects, community events and some facility and garden improvements. 
 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

114/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 1 of 15

Harbor High School 
300 La Fonda Ave. • Santa Cruz, CA 95062-1431 • (831) 429-3810 • Grades 9-12 

Tracey Runeare, Principal 
truneare@sccs.net 

https://hh.sccs.net/ 
 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 
---- -

--- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

115/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 2 of 15

School Description 
Harbor High is a comprehensive 
public High school that opened its 
doors in 1968 and celebrated its 
50th anniversary 2018. Harbor was 
recognized as an International 
Baccalaureate (IB) World School in 
May, 2020. The school has a student 
body numbering 1025 and is located 
in the City of Santa Cruz, which has 
an estimated population of 65,000 
residents. Harbor is one of three 
comprehensive high schools in the 
Santa Cruz City Schools district. 
 
Harbor High School’s mission is to 
educate all students to become 
critical thinkers and globally-minded 
community members and we are a 
school where adults and students 
are respectful and own their 
learning. Harbor High graduates are 
college and career ready and 
equipped with the skills needed to 
become the best version of 
themselves. Our school offers 
students a variety of learning and 
extracurricular opportunities to 
facilitate the growth and 
development of each student. 
Harbor provides a comprehensive 
education that includes a full 
athletic program, International 
Baccalaureate courses and Diploma 
Program, Advanced Placement 
courses, AVID program, Newcomer 
ELD program, SAIL special education 
program, and Career Technical 
Education (CTE) program on the 
campus. 
 

Harbor High is an inclusive, welcoming school with a diverse student population and numerous 
opportunities for students to learn and grow. Many of our students come from under-resourced 
families and that likely many more families qualify than have completed the application. Currently, 
35% of our families qualify for free of reduced lunch. 13% of our students are English Learners and 
4% are students who have reclassified as English speakers. In response to an increasing newcomer 
population (approximately 15 new-to-the-US students enrolling at Harbor annually), in 2012-2013 
Harbor developed a program for non-English-speaking students that serves all newcomers in the 
Santa Cruz City School district. Many of our students participate in pursuing proficiency in English 
and a second language and perform community service towards their Seal of Biliteracy. In 2019, 36 
Harbor High seniors earned the Seal of Biliteracy (SSB) on their diplomas. The SSB is recognition by 
the State Superintendent of Public Instruction for graduating high school students who have 
attained a high level of proficiency in speaking, reading, and writing in one or more languages in 
addition to English (per AB 815). 
 
Over the past few years, Harbor has engaged in professional development activities focused on 
collaboration and the consistency of instruction, school culture, and service. This includes weekly 
collaboration in departments and Professional Learning Communities (PLCs), Santa Cruz 
Instructional Leadership (SCIL) meetings, and monthly professional development staff meetings. As 
a way to  build "student-ness," we use the Organized Binder system for all students to build a 
structured  approach to organization.  In 2014-15 Harbor was selected as a Gold Ribbon School 
Award School and a Title 1 Academic Achievement Award School for our work increasing our 
academic culture and student ownership of learning through our adoption of the Organized Binder 
System and our AVID program. In 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019 Harbor High was chosen by 
Educational Results Partnership (ERP) and the Campaign for Business and Education Excellence 
(CBEE) as a California Honor Roll recipient for being a school that demonstrates high levels of 
student academic achievement, improvement in achievement over time, and reduction in 
achievement gaps. In 2019 Harbor was granted a six year accreditation by our visiting Western 
Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) team. 
 
Harbor's student activities program is thriving; it includes many athletic teams, our Escapades 
Dance Company, Mock Trial team, Interact Club, music, and theater program.  Harbor has a growing 
culture of school athletics. In 2015-2016, a parcel tax was approved, in part, to support the district's 
athletics programs. Harbor has a full time Athletic Director and we are able to devote time towards 
building teams, getting parents involved, and supporting students in athletics. Approximately 500 
students participate on over 40 different athletic teams. 
 
Harbor Staff Values: 
We believe in our school. 
We know all students can learn. 
We respect and believe in students. 
We use data and research to design and improve curriculum. 
We have clear and consistent student expectations. 
We are kind, caring, and accessible. 
We have high expectations and clearly-communicate success criteria. 
We collaborate for students. 
We are flexible and adaptable. 
We make student-centered decisions. 
We grow professionally to meet student needs. 
We listen and engage with each other professionally,  respectfully and openly. 
We are responsive and supportive. 
We value and communicate with our stakeholders. 
 
Student Learning Outcomes 
 
What students will be able to know, do, or demonstrate when they have completed Harbor High 
School. 
 
Communicate 
Collaborate in groups 
Use technology thoughtfully and effectively 

116/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 3 of 15

Express ideas and understanding 
through writing, speaking, 
presenting and listening 
 
Learn 
Set goals, plan and anticipate 
Access resources 
Persist through personal obstacles 
Embrace academic challenges 
 
Think 

Apply prior knowledge 
Solve complex problems 
Experiment and create 
Evaluate multiple perspectives and sources of information 
 
Contribute 
Actively engage in and add to the school and larger community 
Welcome and include everyone 
Respect self and others 
 

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Grade 9 285        

Grade 10 224        

Grade 11 236        

Grade 12 190        

Total Enrollment 935        
 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Black or African American 1        

American Indian or Alaska Native 0.2        

Asian 2.1        

Filipino 0.4        

Hispanic or Latino 54.3        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.1        

White 36.4        

Two or More Races 5.5        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 52.2        

English Learners 13.3        

Students with Disabilities 12.2        

Foster Youth 0.3        

Homeless 1.2        
 

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for Harbor High School 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 45 53 54 

Without Full Credential 2 1 1 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 3 1 0 
 
Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at Harbor High 
School 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 3 0 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 3 0 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

117/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 4 of 15

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
In all subject areas, our textbooks are the most recently approved by the State Board of Education and our Local Governing Agency. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Literature & Language Arts - Holt 

Adopted 2002 
 
Shining Star - Pearson 
Adopted 2007 
 
Keys to Learning - Pearson 
2009 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics Integrated 1 - CPM 
Adopted 2016 
 
Integrated 2 - CPM 
Adopted 2016 
 
Integrated 3 - CPM 
Adopted 2016 
 
PreCalculus - CPM 
Adopted 2016 
 
Pre-Calc with Limits - Houghton Mifflin 
Adopted 2009 
 
Calculus - CPM 
Adopted 2016 
 
Practice of Statistics - Freeman 
Adopted 2011 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

118/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 5 of 15

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Science Model Based Biology - EMBER Biology Team UC Davis 

Adopted 2019 
 
Biology - BSCS 
Adopted 2016 
 
Living by Chemistry - Bedford, Freeman, & Worth 
Adopted 2020 
 
Chemistry - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2007 
 
Active Physics - Activate Learning 
Adopted 2018 
 
Conceptual Physics - Prentice Hall Pearson 
Adopted 2009 
 
Physics, AP (Cutnell & Johnson - 7th Ed.) - Wiley & Sons / People's Publishing 
Adopted 2007 
 
Chemistry, AP - Cengage Learning 
Adopted 2014 
 
Life: Science of Biology, AP - MacMillan 
Adopted 2014 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

History-Social Science Magruder's American Government - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2006 
 
Economics: Principles in Action - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2006 
 
The Americans: Reconstruction to the 21st C. - Houghton Mifflin 
Adopted 2006 
 
World History: The Modern World - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2006 
 
American People, AP US History - Pearson Education 
Adopted 2009 
 
Challenge of Democracy, American Government Honors - McDougal Littel 
Adopted 2009 
 
World Civilizations, AP World History - Longman 
Adopted 2014 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

119/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 6 of 15

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Foreign Language Situaciones - D.C. Heath 

Adopted 2009 
 
Expresate 1 & 2 - Holt 
Adopted 2011 
 
Una Vez Mas,Spanish for Spanish Speakers - Pearson 
Adopted 2016 
 
Vista, AP Spanish - Higher Learning 
Adopted 2014 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Health Lifetime Health - Holt 
Adopted 2011 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Visual and Performing Arts Art History - Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2009 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science Laboratory Equipment Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
All areas of the school are cleaned regularly on a rotation schedule. Landscaping is centralized through the district facilities and maintenance department 
with Harbor having one day a week for upkeep on the grounds. The Gym, Multi-Purpose room (MPR) and Little Theater benefit the school and the 
community for events, larger meetings and performances. There are many student gathering areas, including a central quad with a spacious lawn. 
Overhangs, the library, and the MPR provide shelter in rainy or cold weather. Several colorful, large murals decorate the school. There are plans for 
additional murals to enhance the space and build the community. The Booster parents regularly organize campus beautification days to assist in 
landscaping and general campus clean-up. Harbor has an active Global Student Embassy (GSE) that planted a garden that includes edible and decorative 
plants. The campus building have been re-roofed over the summer of 2018 using bond money. Bond money has also financed the recently-completed 
track and field that now also has stadium lighting so the school can host evening games. Other upcoming improvements include technological 
infrastructure upgrades, a new performing space, and a new pool. 
 
School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 10/19/20 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood        RM FA5B: NO HEAT 
FA 7A: NO HEAT 
FA 6: NO HEAT 
FA 4: NO HEAT 
BIG GYM: CRACK IN VENTILATION 
MPR: HEAT IS TOO HOT 
 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood         

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

120/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 7 of 15

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XGood        P4: THE OUTLETS IN THE FRONT HALF OF 
THE PORTABLE DON'T WORK 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood        BOYS LOWER BLOCKHOUSE: SINK IS 
LEAKING 
P4: WATER HEATER UNDER SINK IS 
RUSTED 
 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood         
 
 
 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood         

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood        RM H11: DOOR HANDLE IS LOOSE 

Overall Rating 
---------- 

XGood         

 

121/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 8 of 15

B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

122/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 9 of 15

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 69 N/A 64 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 43 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

123/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 10 of 15

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science 32 N/A 37 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

124/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 11 of 15

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

125/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 12 of 15

 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
Harbor has active Booster Club, English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC), and Site Council parent groups that support the school and community.  
Parents contribute to our athletic, music, drama, scholarship, and art programs through their fundraising efforts, which include the annual May Golf 
Tournament, Pirate Festival, Parent Pledge Drive, Poker Tournament, and Drive for Schools. Boosters support academics, extracurricular programs, AVID, 
and our library. The Booster Club has created communications and hospitality subcommittees to support school-home communication and appreciate 
staff.  Boosters  and ELAC work together on projects and jointly sponsor events like the spring Academic Awards Night, staff-appreciation luncheon, and 
parent movie screening events.  ELAC supports parents of English language learners through meetings focused on the college application process, teenage 
issues, parenting and school connection. ELAC hosts the annual Pirate Festival in the spring as a fundraiser for the ELAC scholarship. In addition, many of 
our parents participate in the School Site Council, Scholarship Committee, WASC focus groups, and Grad Night Committee. The Principal holds monthly 
morning coffee conversations with a representative from the counseling office, the Athletic Director, and School Community Coordinator to discuss 
school events, answer questions, and collaborate on issues of concern with stakeholders. To get involved, please contact Principal Tracey Runeare at 
truneare@sccs.net,  or call or visit the school office - (831) 429-3810. 
 
State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
The School Safety Plan includes procedures for safety and for re-location of students in case of emergency and is available online and in the front office. 
The plan details drills, first aid, and evacuations, as well as mental-health guidelines and plans for coordination with the Santa Cruz Police Department. 
The School Safety Plan posted on the school's website in full and in a one-page summary form. The plan is reviewed by our School Site Council, the 
administrative team, and the SCCS School Board and it is revised each year. Staff participates in safety drills and online safety classes, where various 
modules for personal and site safety are tested. Staff receives training at monthly staff meetings regarding safety issues on issues ranging from reporting 
hazards to duck, cover, and evacuate procedures. School behavior and policies are well publicized and strictly enforced. Two campus supervisors and 
two assistant principals monitor the campus and a School Resource Officer (SRO) is also available by call and is on campus three or four days during the 
week at lunch. Administrators and campus supervisors are on campus at all breaks and lunch as well as before and after school. Visitors must check in at 
the main office for a parking permit and visitor badge prior to entering the campus. Visiting students from other schools and districts must have school 
and parent release forms signed prior to visiting Harbor. All teachers must be notified a minimum of three days prior to a visit by non-staff. 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 4.4 4.1 3.2 4.1 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.3 0.5 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 2.6 1.8 N/A 

Expulsions 0.0 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 
 

126/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 13 of 15

D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 246.1 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 3.8 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 1.1 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 0.4 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other------- 1 
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) 

Subject 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

English 23 15 23 5 22 18 21 3 24 12 26 4 

Mathematics 26 8 20 5 25 7 21 3 27 5 23 4 

Science 26 7 16 3 25 6 16 3 26 3 20 1 

Social Science 25 5 18 7 26 6 16 6 25 7 18 6 

*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is 
reported by subject area rather than grade level. 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 2 2 2 

 
While there are two full days dedicated in the certificated school year calendar, Harbor High School includes at least 30 minutes of professional 
development (PD) at each of its monthly staff meetings. The focus of the site’s PD are determined by our WASC recommendations, school goals, and 
indicators of student achievement. Finally, staff identified interest and need provide some of our direction for PD. Our Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership 
Team (SCIL) meets district-wide in August to prepare site PD plans that support the district LCAP goals. Harbor’s SCIL team meets monthly to plan and 
analyze the school’s progress towards our professional development goals, which are assessed at the end of the school year in June and developed again 
in August. The SCIL team works with administrators to determine the method of PD as well as how the PD will be led with the staff. Our District Office 
requests a site Professional Development plan from Principals most years. Those PD plans are submitted in August or September and they align with our 
SCIL focus and SPSA. 
 
Harbor’s Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is an annual plan of actions to raise the academic performance of all students with an emphasis on 
our areas of growth as indicated in our WASC recommendations and student performance data. During the 2019-2020 school year, our staff participated 
in a year long training on Restorative Practices. Since becoming an International Baccalaureate (IB) school in 2020, there has been I B training attended 
by every IB teacher and most teachers in core subjects like English, math, and science. 
 

127/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 14 of 15

 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

11,144 3,139 $8,006 $89,900 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750 N/A 
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District 7.4 6.2 

School Site/ State 3.2 -24.4 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

Types of Services Funded 
Harbor is a Title 1 Targeted  Assistance School and as such receives money from the federal government to support students who qualify for Title 1 
services. Harbor funds classes like English Language Development (ELD) and AVID, hires bilingual aides to support our newest English learners, learning 
tutors in math to support students taking online math courses and .2 for a bilingual counselor. Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) money is used to 
support programs and classes for English learners, including a school community coordinator position, our English Language Development classes and 
Newcomers program. LCFF funds our Response to Intervention (RTI) site coordinator and intervention courses in reading and math.  In addition, the 
district’s program director, who handles state and federal special-purpose funds, works closely with our school to secure additional funding to give extra 
help for students.  Our After School Learning Center (ASL) is open from 2:30 until 4:15 P.M. four days a week and teachers and other adult tutors support 
students in the ASL. The parent community has donated over $20,000 over the last two years to help purchase classroom supplies and materials. 
 
State Priority: Pupil Engagement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Pupil Engagement (Priority 5): 
 

• High school dropout rates; and 
• High school graduation rates. 

 
Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate) 

Rate for Harbor High School 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 7 11.7 6.1 

Graduation Rate 85.9 87.4 89.5 
 
Rate for Santa Cruz City Schools 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 5.9 10 8.1 

Graduation Rate 89.1 89 89.4 
 
Rate for California 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 9.1 9.6 9 

Graduation Rate 82.7 83 84.5 
 

Career Technical Education Participation 

Measure CTE Program 
Participation 

Number of pupils participating in CTE 393 

% of pupils completing a CTE program and earning 
a high school diploma 61.7 

% of CTE courses sequenced or articulated between 
the school and institutions of postsecondary 
education 

87 

 
Courses for University of California (UC) and/or California State 
University (CSU) Admission 

UC/CSU Course Measure Percent 
2018-19 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for 
UC/CSU Admission 99.15 

2017-18 Graduates Who Completed All Courses 
Required for UC/CSU Admission 55.97 

 

128/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Harbor High School   Page 15 of 15

2019-20 Advanced Placement Courses 

Subject 
Number of  
AP Courses  

Offered* 

Percent of  
Students In  
AP Courses 

Computer Science  N/A 

English------- 4 N/A 

Fine and Performing Arts  N/A 

Foreign Language  2 N/A 

Subject 
Number of  
AP Courses  

Offered* 

Percent of  
Students In  
AP Courses 

Mathematics 3 N/A 

Science------- 1 N/A 

Social Science 3 N/A 

All courses 13 22.3 
*Where there are student course enrollments of at least one student. 
 

Career Technical Education Programs 
Harbor offers a variety of career technical education courses (CTE, formerly known as vocational education or ROP) that are open to all students. Harbor 
High School has a vibrant CTE program with pathways in Medicine and Digital Media Arts. Students are able to earn a certificate of completion in both 
areas, and these courses have been articulated with the local community college.  In the medical pathway we offer Medical Technology, Health Careers, 
Biotechnology and Sports Medicine. In the Digital Media Arts pathway we offer Graphic Design 1 and 2, Video productions 1 and 2, and Digital 
Photography 1 and 2. We have the largest offerings in CTE in the north county, including Bike Repair, Administration of Justice, and Mill Cabinetry. 
Because most of our CTE courses are approved by the UC System, all students are encouraged to find an area of interest and enroll in one of these 
college-preparatory electives. 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

129/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Mission Hill Middle School   Page 1 of 12

Mission Hill Middle School 
425 King St. • Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3411 • (831) 429-3860 • Grades 6-8 

Kat McElwee, Principal 
katmcelwee@sccs.net 

http://missionhill.sccs.net/ 
 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 

----

---- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street Suite 100 

Santa Cruz CA 95060 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

130/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Mission Hill Middle School   Page 2 of 12

School Description 
A Message from the Principal:  
 
Mission Hill Middle School is located 
on the central coast of California in 
a residential community on the west 
side of Santa Cruz. We are situated 
between King Street and Mission 
Street, within walking distance of 
downtown, and in close proximity to 
the University of California. Mission 
Hill serves about 600 students in 
grades 6 through 8, and our student 
body reflects the wide range of 
socioeconomic and cultural diversity 
found in the neighborhoods of west 
side Santa Cruz.  
 

Through partnership and collaboration with its stakeholders, Mission Hill is able to provide a safe 
environment for students and a positive school climate that supports all learners. Mission Hill 
places great value on academic rigor while also being mindful of the unique, social-emotional needs 
of adolescents. This sentiment is apparent in our school mission: "Engaging students' hearts and 
minds; every student, every day." In addition to rigorous academic instruction, we also support 
students in the pursuit of the Maverick Essentials - Perseverance, Responsibility, Integrity, 
Innovation, Collaboration. The Essentials are referenced in our school vision: "All Mavericks are 
learners who persevere, collaborate, and innovate. We grow into our world with responsibility and 
integrity."  
 
Mission Hill Middle School believes: 

• all students should be known and valued. 
• all students can learn. 
• that rigorous academic instruction is essential to students' academic growth. 
• in providing a safe and caring environment in which students and staff respect one 

other. 
• in maintaining high expectations for all learners. 
• that music and the arts are important. 
• that educational equity is essential for all students to feel connected and be successful. 
• in doing whatever is necessary to close the achievement gap. 
• in challenging all learners. 
• that demographics should not determine outcomes. 

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Grade 6 182        

Grade 7 203        

Grade 8 240        

Total Enrollment 625        
 

2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Black or African American 2.1        

American Indian or Alaska Native 0.2        

Asian 3.4        

Filipino 0.3        

Hispanic or Latino 30.1        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.2        

White 56.3        

Two or More Races 7.5        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 34.1        

English Learners 6.7        

Students with Disabilities 12        

Homeless 0.3        
 

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for Mission Hill Middle 
School 

18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 27 26 26 

Without Full Credential 0 2 2 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 1 0 0 
 

131/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Mission Hill Middle School   Page 3 of 12

Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at Mission Hill 
Middle School 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 2 0 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 2 0 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

132/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Mission Hill Middle School   Page 4 of 12

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
In all subject areas, our textbooks are the most recently approved by the State Board of Education and our Local Governing Agency. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Literature  and Language Arts - Holt, Rinehart & Winston 

Adopted 2008 
 
Shining Star - Pearson Longman 
Adopted 2007 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics College Preparatory Mathematics (CPM) Core Connections (Middle School) Courses 1, 2, 3, & (High School) 
Integrated 1 
Adopted 2013 
 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science Science Education for Public Understanding Program (SEPUP), Lab-Aids 
SEPUP Science Grades 6, 7, & 8 
Adopted 2019 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

History-Social Science History Alive!: The Ancient World - TCI 
Adopted 2006 
 
History Alive!: The Medieval World & Beyond - TCI 
Adopted 2006 
 
History Alive!: The U.S. Through Industrialism - TCI 
Adopted 2006 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Foreign Language Expresate! Spanish 1 
Adopted 2014 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0        

Health N/A        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        

Visual and Performing Arts N/A        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
Mission Hill Middle School is a historic Santa Cruz building and its interior was remodeled a number of years ago. We have a big gym, small gym, and two 
PE locker rooms. Our PE classes and community athletes enjoy using our artificial turf, which is scheduled to be re-done this year. The classrooms have 
adequate furnishings. Our custodial staff maintains the main building, gyms, and outdoor areas daily. The Mission Hill auditorium has a stage and state-
of-the-art lighting for performing arts productions. The local video area network (VAN) allows us to broadcast our daily announcements live via MHTV.  
We also have lockers for each student in our main building in order to keep hallways safe and clean and to avoid tripping hazards for students and staff 
in the classrooms. Thanks to bond funds, the front yard of our school was recently renovated to include raised planter beds, an electronic marquee, a 
rain shelter, and several student-created mosaic benches. In addition, bond funds were used to update the roof of the main building in the mission style 
that blends perfectly with this historic building. 
 

133/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Mission Hill Middle School   Page 5 of 12

Planned Improvements:  Mission Hill's track and artificial turf athletic field will be re-done as it has exceeded its ten year life-span. There are plans this 
summer to update the windows in the main building, update the HVAC system, and to paint the building's exterior surfaces. Mission Hill is in the process 
of working with architects to draft plans for the building of a new structure to replace our current 30's wing.  This building would eventually house 
updated science classrooms along with an additional multi-purpose space. 
 
 
School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 10/22/2020 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood         

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood         

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XGood        OFFICE: ON/OFF AGAIN PHONE ISSUES 
COUNSELING OFFICE: ON/OFF AGAIN 
PHONE ISSUES 
RM 4: CLOCK NOT WORKING 
 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood        MEN'S RESTROOM: URINAL LEAKS 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood         

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood         

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood        RM 14: LOCK IS LOOSE 

Overall Rating 
---------- 

XGood         

 

134/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Mission Hill Middle School   Page 6 of 12

B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

135/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Mission Hill Middle School   Page 7 of 12

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 65 N/A 64 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 50 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

136/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Mission Hill Middle School   Page 8 of 12

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science 44 N/A 37 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

137/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Mission Hill Middle School   Page 9 of 12

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

138/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Mission Hill Middle School   Page 10 of 12

 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
Mission Hill Middle School offers numerous opportunities for parents to be involved in school activities and school leadership. Our Parent Teacher Student 
Association (PTSA) sponsors educational events for our parent community and provides a safe space for parents to connect and contribute their ideas to 
school administration. Our English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC) meets monthly and oversees the implementation of our English Language Learner 
program. Parents can choose to run for election to the Site Council which consists of teachers, students, classified staff, and administrators working 
together to create the Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) and to oversee the school budget. Parents can also volunteer to assist with many 
activities and events, including but not limited to: 

 lunch time supervision 
 ball shed monitoring 
 classroom volunteering 
 drivers/chaperones for field trips 
 chaperones for school dances 
 planning team for promotion events 

To become more involved, please call or visit the school office - (831) 429-3860 
 
 
State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
Mission Hill’s Safety Committee, the School Site Council (SSC), and English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC) update the School Safety Plan and give 
information about the plan to the staff and students. We hold fire, earthquake, and code red lockdown drills in accordance with California law. A campus 
supervisor monitors the school throughout the day, and parent volunteers, administrators and counselors participate in lunchtime supervision. We 
revised our School Safety Plan in 2020 which emphasizes prevention and early intervention for discipline issues and crisis management as well as focusing 
on positive school climate and student connectedness. 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 2.8 2.2 3.2 4.1 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.5 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 1.4 1.8 N/A 

Expulsions 0.2 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 
 

139/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Mission Hill Middle School   Page 11 of 12

D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 1250 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 1.5 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 0.6 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 1.1 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other------- 1.4 
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) 

Subject 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

English 23 7 11 2 22 8 11 3 26 6 3 10 

Mathematics 25 7 4 6 25 5 9 4 26 7 7 5 

Science 29  11 2     34  3 10 

Social Science 30  11 2 32  4 9 34  3 10 

*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is 
reported by subject area rather than grade level. 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 12 12 12 

 
Every Wednesday, students are released early and teachers have collaborative time from 1:30-3:00PM. This weekly schedule allows our staff to have the 
time to participate in collaborative meetings focused on supporting all students in meeting, or exceeding, mastery of academic content/skills. Mission 
Hill staff participate in two different types of collaborative meetings: 1) staff Professional Development (PD) meetings focused on learning and 
implementing integrated ELD strategies to support students' acquisition of academic language and as well as learning and implementing trauma-informed 
strategies to support all students 2) department Collaborative Team meetings focused on aligning essential learnings and formative assessments across 
similar courses and examining student work to monitor student progress toward these essential learnings. Additionally, these Collaborative Team 
meetings are a vehicle for teachers to design effective re-teaching experiences. Over one year ago, school administrators and several teachers attended 
Solution Tree training to increase our capacity at leading collaborative work. 
 
During our collaborative time, staff examine the following data sources: 

 common formative assessments 
 common summative assessments 
 district writing assessments 
 MAP scores 
 CAASPP scores 
 attendance data 
 behavior data 

140/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Mission Hill Middle School   Page 12 of 12

 grade data 
This data informs our decisions regarding instructional practices within individual courses, our decisions regarding the focus of professional development 
(Tier 1 strategies), and the development of our Tier 2 and 3 interventions. 
 
 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

7,921 1,398 $6,523 $75,910 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750 N/A 
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District -13.1 -10.8 

School Site/ State -17.2 -21.6 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

Types of Services Funded 
We use state and federal funds to improve English Learner performance and to support underachieving students. These funds are also used for 
professional development, curricular programs and materials, technology to support student achievement , and to fund some support positions. 
Specifically, we use many of these funds to support our embedded Tier 2 Intervention Course offerings (Math Plus, Read Plus, Academic Support Groups).  
For the past several years, Mission Hill was also able to offer an after school program which supported many EL students as well as many students coming 
from Low Income households. 
 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

141/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 1 of 10

Monarch Community Elementary 
School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus 

840 North Branciforte Ave. • Santa Cruz, CA 95062 • (831) 429-3898 • Grades K-6 
Michelle McKinney, Principal 
michellemckinney@sccs.net 

https://bssc.sccs.net/ 
 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 

----

---- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission St. Suite 100 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

142/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 2 of 10

School Description 
A Message from the Principal:  
Monarch, "a small school with a big 
heart", is an alternative school of 
choice. We provide a developmental 
approach, where each child is seen 
as an individual with various 
strengths and needs. Our curriculum 
uses science and social studies 
themes from the Common Core 
Standards to teach both basic skills 
and critical thinking to our students 
in mixed-age groups. At Monarch, 
students learn to use their hearts 
and minds well. 
 
The foundation of our program is a 
robust social-emotional curriculum, 
based on the Positive Discipline 
philosophy. Our goal is to create a 
healthy environment of mutual 
respect and dignity for both children 
and adults, as well as to foster good 
communication and problem-
solving skills. This foundation gives 
the academic curriculum a place to 
root and grow. 
 
Monarch is located on the 
Branciforte Small Schools Campus 
(BSSC) and has four multi-age 
classrooms. Children are grouped 
according to their academic and 
social needs, not according to their 
age alone. The school benefits from 
the support of the nonprofit 
Monarch Community Board, a group 
of parents that supports parent 
participation, parent education, and 
fund-raising within our school 
community. Parent participation is 
critical to the running of the school 
and the spirit of the community. 
 
Major Achievements 

Each year, students successfully “graduate” from Monarch to Branciforte and Mission Hill Middle 
Schools, Alternative Family Education (AFE) Home school, Georgiana Bruce Kirby Preparatory 
School and Pacific Collegiate Charter School. 
 
Graduating students demonstrate their mastery of our exit criteria to a panel of adults and peer 
students. Graduating students present evidence showing their academic growth in all subject areas 
including Math and English Language Arts, as well as leadership development, while at Monarch 
School. In 2010, the Monarch staff presented their work on the exit criteria program at the Fall 
Forum, the national conference for the Coalition of Essential Schools. During Distance Learning, 
Monarch is continuing the Exit Criteria project, where graduating students must demonstrate that 
they are ready to move on to middle school by presenting work from their portfolios to a panel of 
teachers, parents, visiting educators and administrators, and student peers. 
 
Inspired Purpose 
A community of creative problem-solvers learning to use their hearts and minds together. 
 
Vision 
Monarch students are expressive communicators and creative problem-solvers who are willing to 
take risks. They take on leadership roles and have a voice in the school. They are competent and 
confident learners, both individually and in groups. Monarch students use their minds well: they 
find evidence, see from multiple viewpoints, discover connections, make suppositions, and 
determine relevance (Habits of Mind). They display personal best effort and are kind and helpful. 
They demonstrate listening skills and the ability to follow directions. Students develop a strong 
social consciousness that manifests in real social action. Monarch parents are involved in shared 
governance through active membership in Site Council and the Monarch Community School Parent 
Board. They are fundraisers. They are actively involved in school wide jobs. They are committed to 
clear communication with each other, the staff, and the students. Monarch parents are partners in 
supporting the educational mission of the school. 
 
Mission 
Students learn a foundation of skills and knowledge and a curiosity for learning that will serve them 
well in life and in their academic careers. The Monarch "Bill of Rights" is the guide post for eliciting 
safe, pro-social behavior. All students are known well by many adults, including parents who 
volunteer in the classroom. The small size of the school, as well as parental and campus-wide 
involvement, help to create positive school climate and a sense of community. Students are usually 
grouped according to their learning needs, not their grade level or age. Students take responsibility 
for their learning and the learning of their fellow students by creating and evaluating learning goals, 
developing excellent Habits of Mind, creating culminating projects, exercising choices at multiple 
points in the curriculum, and initiating real-world actions, including community service. Curriculum 
and instructional strategies are planned collaboratively and adapted to the learning styles and 
developmental stages of the students. 
 
Leadership 
Michelle McKinney is the principal of  Branciforte Small Schools Campus including Monarch. She 
comes to the site with 11 years as a classroom teacher in both alternative and comprehensive 
education; seven of those years included serving as Lead Teacher for the school.  Michelle holds a 
Multi-Subject Teaching Credential and is clearing her credential in school administration. She is a 
former teacher at Monarch and is functionally bilingual. 
 
Parents, students, and all staff take part in decision making at Monarch Community School. The 
staff and the Monarch Parent Board work together to shape our students’ educational experience. 
 
 

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 

annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

143/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 3 of 10

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Kindergarten 23        

Grade 1 24        

Grade 2 23        

Grade 3 20        

Grade 4 24        

Grade 5 20        

Total Enrollment 134        
 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Black or African American 3        

Asian 3        

Hispanic or Latino 25.4        

White 64.2        

Two or More Races 4.5        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 29.1        

English Learners 16.4        

Students with Disabilities 13.4        
 

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for Monarch Community 
Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus 

18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 7 6 5 

Without Full Credential 0 0 0 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 0 0 0 
 
Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at Monarch 
Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 0 0 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 0 0 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 

*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

144/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 4 of 10

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
In all subject areas, our textbooks are the most recently approved by the State Board of Education and our Local Governing Agency. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Reading: A Legacy of Literacy - Houghton Mifflin 

Adopted 2001 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics Eureka Math/Great Minds 
Adopted 2016 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science FOSS: Full Option Science System - Delta Education 
Adopted 2007 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

History-Social Science History & Social Science (CA Edition) - Pearson Scott Foresman 
Adopted 2006 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Visual and Performing Arts The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
Monarch is located in a beautiful and historic building on the Branciforte Small Schools Campus. 
 
School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 11/05/2020 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood        MPR: THE HEAT IS NOT WORKING 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood         

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XGood         

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood        2NF FLOOR RESTROOM: SINK IS LEAKING 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood        MAIN OFFICE: ALARM PANEL IS HAVING 
SOME ONGOING ISSUES 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood         

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood        RM 15: DOOR HANDLE IS LOOSE 

145/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 5 of 10

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Overall Rating 
---------- 

XGood         

 
B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 64 N/A 53 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 18 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science -- N/A 44 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

146/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 6 of 10

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

147/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 7 of 10

 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
The parent-run Monarch Community Board is a nonprofit organization that oversees parent participation, parent education, fundraising, and community 
development.  Monarch is a family-participation school and has a family-participation agreement. Family participation is expected in the classrooms, and 
in school-wide jobs that help the school function. Family members are also expected to help with fundraising, read all school communications, and attend 
parent meetings. We depend on and highly value our families' support and involvement. 
 
In addition, parents can choose seats on standing school, site and district committees such as ELAC, LCAP oversight committee, and Santa Cruz Education 
Foundation. 
 
To become more involved, please call or visit the school office - (831) 429-3898. 
 
 

148/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 8 of 10

State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
The School Site Council that represents our four schools at the Branciforte Small Schools Campus (BSSC) reviews the previous year's Safe School Plan and 
collaborates to write a new plan each year. A goal in our 2020-21 plan is to continue to implement Restorative Justice practices in classrooms and among 
staff and parents. We continue to implement practices from our past years of intensive professional development in Positive Discipline in the Classroom 
and Trauma-Informed Schools. We undertake a number of actions to meet this goal: continue to hold positive discipline support group classes, explicitly 
teach and practice self-regulation techniques, provide training for implementation of restorative justice practices, and focus on the neurosequential 
model in lesson design in various professional development sessions. 
 
 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 0.7 0.0 0.8 1.2 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 0.0 1.8 N/A 

Expulsions 0.0 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 
 
D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 670 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 0.2 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian) 0.6 

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 0.2 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 0.6 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other-------  
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 

149/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 9 of 10

Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) 

Grade 
Level 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

   K    
 

23  2  23  2    2  

   3    
 

23  2  23  2      

   5    
 

27  2  25  2      

  Other** 
 

        22  6  
*Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). 
** “Other” category is for multi-grade level classes. 
 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 14 17 20 

 
Teachers devote two afternoons per month to improve their skills as a Professional Learning Community (PLC) and to study student data through the 
process of a cycle of inquiry. Teachers have a clear process in place for identifying areas for improvement and utilizing professional development 
resources to support their curriculum planning. Teachers participate in professional development offered by the district and county office of Education 
as it pertains to the school-wide goals for the year. 
 
20-21 professional development had two areas of focus: 
Academic Literacy/ELL - based on ELL data teachers focused on implementing strategies to improve writing and math instruction for ELL students. 1. 
Teachers participated in District and County PD opportunities for effective distance learning tools and practices. 2. School staff participated in a three-
day Project Based Learning 101 (Buck Institute) training that illuminated the structures and processes of planning project-based lessons and units. 
Continual support is available through PBL 101 staff coaching, and consultation with veteran teachers. 3. A veteran teacher provides systematic PD in 
Cognitively Guided Instruction for Math for the rest of the staff. 
School Connectedness - In efforts to maintain zero suspensions and expulsions, all staff are learning about Restorative Justice practices. Based on the 
increased need of students for social emotional support, staff continued to learn about Trauma informed schools philosophy and to implement it in the 
classroom and throughout the school. Self regulation for students and self care for staff have been the focus, with attention to the use of the Neuro-
Sequential Model in lesson planning. This is facilitated by an outside consultant, admin and the lead teacher. In monthly PLC meetings, staff is participating 
in a book study related to trauma-informed practices. 
 
19-20 professional development had two areas of focus: 
Academic Literacy/ELL - based on ELL data teachers focused on implementing strategies to improve writing and math instruction for ELL students. 1. An 
outside consultant/coach facilitated this part of the professional development. 2. A veteran teacher provides systematic PD in Cognitively Guided 
Instruction for Math for the rest of the staff.  3. A veteran teacher has analyzed writing samples with a lens for areas for improved support for students 
learning English as an additional language. 4. A representative from Behavioral Specialist firm performed two hours of PD regarding working with neuro-
diverse students. 
School Connectedness - In efforts to reduce suspensions and expulsions, all staff are learning about Restorative Justice practices. Based on the increased 
need of students for social emotional support, staff continued to learn about Trauma informed schools philosophy and to implement it in the classroom 
and throughout the school. Self regulation for students and self care for staff have been the focus, with attention to the use of the Neuro-Sequential 
Model in lesson planning. This was facilitated by an outside consultant, admin and the lead teacher. 
 
18-19 professional development had two areas of focus: 
Academic Literacy/ELL - based on ELL data teachers focused on implementing strategies to improve writing and math instruction for ELL students. An 
outside consultant/coach facilitated this part of the professional development. 
School Connectedness - In efforts to reduce suspensions and expulsions, all staff are learning about Restorative Justice practices. Based on the increased 
need of students for social emotional support, staff continued to learn about Trauma informed schools philosophy and to implement it in the classroom 
and throughout the school. Self regulation for students and self care for staff have been the focus, with attention to the use of the Neuro-Sequential 
Model in lesson planning. This was facilitated by an outside consultant, admin and the lead teacher. 
 

150/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus   Page 10 of 10

 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

10,091 2,300 $7,790 $72,695 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750 N/A 
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District 4.7 -15.1 

School Site/ State 0.5 -25.9 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

Types of Services Funded 
LCFF and Tile 1 funds supported two part-time Learning assistants, as well as an after-school enrichment program to support students who are learning 
English as an additional language. The majority of Title I was dedicated to Professional Development in conjunction with UC Santa Cruz staff on Integrated 
ELD in project-based, thematic learning units. These funds also helped support professional development targeted at the school's site plan goals with 
student outcomes as success indicators, and books and materials to support the school's ongoing anti-bias and Community of Belonging initiative. In 
efforts to offer students optimal learning environments these funds also partially funded adaptive, flexible classroom furnishings. 
 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

151/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Santa Cruz High School   Page 1 of 12

Santa Cruz High School 
415 Walnut Ave • Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3633 • (831) 429-3960 • Grades 9-12 

Michelle Poirier, Principal 
michellepoirier@sccs.net 
http://schs.sccs.net/ 

 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 

----

---- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

152/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Santa Cruz High School   Page 2 of 12

School Description 
Santa Cruz High School (SCHS), the 
oldest high school in Santa Cruz, is a 
comprehensive public school with a 
student population of 
approximately 1,100 in grades nine 
through twelve. It is noted for its 
very rich tradition of academic 
excellence and diverse student 
body. Students from various racial, 
cultural, and socioeconomic 
backgrounds and lifestyles join 
together to enrich their personal 
and academic experiences in an 
unusually compatible atmosphere. 
 

Members of our graduating class of 2020 were accepted at over 100 four-year colleges and 
universities across the United States including Arizona State University, Chapman University, 
Charleston College, College of Idaho, Columbia University, Culinary Institute of America, Loyola 
Marymount University, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Montana State University, North 
Carolina Central University, Oberlin College, The New School for Design, Reed College, Santa Clara 
University, Stanford University, University of Nevada at Reno, University of Oklahoma, University 
of Connecticut, University of Oregon, Portland University, University of San Francisco, University of 
Toronto, University of Utah, University of Waterloo, Utah State University, Wesleyan College, 
Wheaton College, Whittier College, Yale, and in-state universities including the University of 
California campuses of Berkeley, Davis, Irvine, San Diego, Santa Barbara, Santa Cruz and CSU-Cal 
Poly, Chico, Humboldt, Los Angeles, Monterey Bay, Sacramento, Pomona, San Jose, San Francisco 
and Sonoma. We proudly claim that seniors received scholarships and awards totaling close to 
$135,000 in 2020. We offer Advanced Placement (AP) and honors courses in the content areas 
including, science, math, English, world languages, social science and fine arts. We also offer a 
variety of elective courses, including ceramics, drawing, painting, photography, world languages, 
video production, wood shop, music, auto, and the Advancement Via Individual Determination 
(AVID) program, which supports students who aim to be first-generation college students. Student 
athletes compete in more than 10 sports. A variety of extracurricular clubs and programs enrich 
students’ lives. 
 
Santa Cruz HS, recognized as a California Distinguished School in 2011, has a proven record of 
improving student achievement and has a strong commitment to assisting students achieve their 
academic goals. By mapping a four-year academic plan at the beginning of their first year, students 
are encouraged to set high academic goals, and given the tool to adjust that plan to fit changing 
circumstances and goals.  
 
In the class of 2020, 72% of students were eligible for admittance into University of California (UC), 
California State University (CSU), and private colleges. Ultimately, 31% of our graduates attended 
a University of California, Cal State University or out of state public university, and an estimated 
50% (2019 data) attended community colleges.  
 
Our 2020 average SAT scores were: 604 for Evidence-based Reading and Writing and 626 for Math.  
 
Of the 494 AP exams taken in 2020, 72% scored above 3 (Qualifying), 49% scored 4 or 5, and 24% 
scored 5. 
 
In the graduating class of 2021, comprised of 243 students, 5 students earned recognition as 
“Commended Students” in the National Merit Scholarship Program, 5 students earned recognition 
as "Semi-Finalist."  
 
Focus for Improvement 
 
An overarching goal at Santa Cruz High School is closing the achievement gap for underrepresented 
students, specifically Hispanic/Latino students, in all school-wide academic measurements. 
Additionally, we strive to increase the number of special needs students who successfully prepare 
for college and career opportunities. In alignment with our district's goal that "All SCCS students 
will be college-ready and will successfully access post secondary educational and career 
opportunities," SCHS offers a wide variety of classes in our academic program. We continue to 
expand our Career Technical Education program with Santa Cruz County schools and Cabrillo 
College. 
 
Another objective is to increase the number of low-performing students who successfully meet 
state math standards and pass Integrated Math 1, especially English Learners and students in the 
Resource Specialist Program. 
 

153/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Santa Cruz High School   Page 3 of 12

During the 2018-2019 school year, 
SCHS participated in a successful 
mid-cycle WASC review. In 
preparation for this review the SCHS 
community (students, parents, 
teachers, staff) reviewed and 
collaboratively revised the school's 
mission, vision and School-wide 
learner outcomes. The revised 
mission statement--to ensure high 
levels of learning for all students and 
adults, supports the revised vision 
statement--The vision of Santa Cruz 
High School is to nurture lifelong 
learners who demonstrate critical 
thinking, creativity, integrity, and 
personal responsibility as members 
of our school and community. We 
collaborate to ensure equity to 
achieve college and career readiness 
for all students. The revised student 
learner outcomes include:  
 
Santa Cruz High School students will 
demonstrate: 
 
Thought  

• Posing questions to 
understand 

• Analyzing and reaching 
conclusions 

• Being actively engaged 
Knowledge  

 Making meaningful connections between their classes and the real world 
 Applying knowledge to help solve a problem 
 Connecting knowledge from a variety of content areas 

Action  
 Setting goals and developing plans to meet them 
 Showing appropriate reactions to set-backs 
 Taking responsibility for one’s own learning 
 Seeking help as needed 

Direction  
 Thinking critically about their futures 
 Developing goals for short and long term 
 Discovering interests and strengths 

Leadership 
 
In 2020, six-year Assistant Principal of Counseling Michelle Poirier succeeded Principal Brent Kline 
at SCHS. She has over 30 years of experience as an educator, starting her career at SCCS as a 
bilingual instructional technician at Delaveaga Elementary School, moving on to teach high school 
mathematics at both Harbor and Santa Cruz High Schools, and moving in to site administration in 
2014. 
 
Teachers and administrators take part in decision making at this school. The principal meets 
monthly with department chairs, who serve as the building leadership team. The department chairs 
facilitate the content-specific PLCs, which focus on identifying essential learning and using student 
data to identify specific learning outcomes.  
 
The School Site Council, which includes parents, students, faculty, classified staff and an 
administrator, makes decisions about school policies, curriculum, and budget. Other decision-
making organizations include sports and band boosters, English Learners Advisory Committee 
(ELAC), and the Associated Student Body (ASB). The Santa Cruz High School PTA has supported the 
school with fundraising efforts amounting to more than $100,000 in recent years. Through the 
generosity of the PTA, SCHS students and staff have benefitted from the installation of a new 
computer lab and other technology throughout the school. 
 

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Grade 9 255        

Grade 10 330        

Grade 11 253        

Grade 12 268        

Total Enrollment 1,106        
 

2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Black or African American 2.4        

American Indian or Alaska Native 0.3        

Asian 4.4        

Filipino 0.9        

Hispanic or Latino 29.6        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.4        

White 55.9        

Two or More Races 6.1        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 27.8        

English Learners 3.6        

Students with Disabilities 8.5        

Foster Youth 0.1        

Homeless 0.5        
 

154/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Santa Cruz High School   Page 4 of 12

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz High School 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 49 50 51 

Without Full Credential 0 0 0 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 0 0 0 
 
Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at Santa Cruz 
High School 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 0 0 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 0 0 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

155/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Santa Cruz High School   Page 5 of 12

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
In all subject areas, our textbooks are the most recently approved by the State Board of Education and our Local Governing Agency. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Literature & Language Arts - Holt 

Adopted 2002 
 
Shining Star - Pearson 
Adopted 2007 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics Core Connections - Integrated Math I, II, III - CPM 
Adopted 2016 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science Model Based Biology - MBER Biology Team UC Davis 
Adopted 2019 
 
Biology - Houghton Mifflin 
Adopted 2007 
 
Living by Chemistry - Bedford, Freeman, & Worth 
Adopted 2020 
 
Chemistry - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2007 
 
Active Physics - Activate Learning 
Adopted 2018 
 
Physics (Cutnell & Johnson - 7th Ed.) - Wiley & Sons / People's Publishing 
Adopted 2007 
 
AP Environmental Science  - Wiley & Sons / People's Publishing 
Adopted 2011 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

History-Social Science Magruder's American Government - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2006 
 
Economics: Principles in Action - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2006 
 
The Americans: Reconstruction to the 21st C. - Houghton Mifflin 
Adopted 2006 
 
World History: The Modern World - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2006 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

156/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Santa Cruz High School   Page 6 of 12

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Foreign Language Situaciones - D.C. Heath 

Adopted 2009 
 
Expresate 1 & 2 - Holt 
Adopted 2011 
 
Vista, AP Spanish - Higher Learning 
Adopted 2014 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Health The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Visual and Performing Arts The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science Laboratory Equipment The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
Santa Cruz High School is the oldest comprehensive high school in the district. The facade of the school’s main building reflects the era (1914) in which it 
was built. The campus incorporates various structures, including the gymnasium, pool, shops, music, science, home economics, and math buildings, and 
the cafeteria and library. The Trident Building, which holds the physics lab, and a ceramics studio, is our second-oldest structure. Students as far back as 
the Class of 1945 recall journalism classes in the Trident Building. Santa Cruz High's campus also includes multiple shop buildings, where auto, wood, 
bicycle technology, digital photography, and computer technology classes are held. SCHS continues to work with the District Facilities Department to 
identify needed maintenance and facility repairs. Plumbing in the main building has been replaced and the gym has been repainted, along with a variety 
of roofing projects. Upcoming improvements using bond money include renovation of science labs, window/door replacements, new stadium seating 
and lighting, along with modernizing the lighting and technological infrastructure campus-wide. 
 
School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 10/12/2020 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood         

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood        RM 45: CYLINDER IS LOOSE 

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XGood        RM 22: SOME OUTLETS DON'T WORK 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XFair        RESTROOM: ONE OF THE SINK LEAKS 
BOY'S LOCKER ROOM: LEAKING URINAL 
 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood         

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood         

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood        RM 67: DOOR IS HARD TO LOCK 
LIBRARY: LOCK NEEDS TO BE REPLACED 
 

Overall Rating  

157/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Santa Cruz High School   Page 7 of 12

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

---------- XGood        

 
B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 71 N/A 64 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 63 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science 39 N/A 37 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

158/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Santa Cruz High School   Page 8 of 12

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

159/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Santa Cruz High School   Page 9 of 12

 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
Santa Cruz High School parents can join our School Site Council (SSC), the Site Bond Committee, English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC), Parents of 
African American Heritage Students (PAAHS), Cardinal Club (Athletic Boosters), SCHS Band Boosters, and the SCHS Parent Teacher Association (PTA).  
Parent organizations participate in campus beautification days and various other events, including fundraising and volunteering at the site. As a result of  
PTA fundraising efforts, the staff and students have benefitted from the installation of a new computer lab in the Santa Cruz HS Library, a new sound 
system for the gym, classroom and instructional supplies for teachers, and other technology equipment and support for student organizations such as 
Mock Trial and Leadership. In the fall of each year, our Counseling Department sponsors Academic Planning Workshops for ninth grade students and 
their parents to map out the students' academic pathways. The pathways are then used for reference as students schedule their classes for upcoming 
years. Parents attend Back-to-School Night in the fall, where they follow shortened schedules of their student's classes and hear from teachers about 
curricula and expectations for their student's academic success classes. In the spring, eighth grade parents are invited to visit department presentations 
of our academic and elective programs, in a festive atmosphere. The Santa Cruz High School Safety Committee, convened in the fall of 2014, consists of 
faculty, staff, district administration, parents, trustees, and community members. The charge for the Safety Committee is to ensure that students and 
the entire SCHS community is safe, clean, and protected from outside threat. The committee meets quarterly, and has advised the district about critical 
needs around the campus. 
 
The contact person for parent involvement is Kathleen Pruett, the principal’s secretary, who can be reached at (831) 429-3960, extension 200. 
 
 

160/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Santa Cruz High School   Page 10 of 12

State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
There are two campus supervisors monitor school grounds before and after school and throughout the school day. A Santa Cruz Police Department 
School Resource Officer (SRO) visits the campus daily. Visitors to the campus must register in the main office. Santa Cruz High School is an open campus, 
and students are allowed to leave the site at lunch and at breaks. We hold regular fire drills and have earthquake, disaster and lock-down (Intruder on 
Site) drills at least twice a year. Our Safety Plan includes exit routes, evacuation sites, procedures for emergencies, and inventories of emergency supplies. 
The Santa Cruz High School Safety Committee, convened in the fall of 2014, consists of faculty, staff, district administration, parents, trustees, and 
community members. The charge for the Safety Committee is to ensure that students and the overall SCHS community is safe, clean, and protected from 
outside threat. The committee meets quarterly, and has advised the district about critical needs around the campus. The School Safety Plan is reviewed 
and revised annually. During School Year 2016-17, the School Safety Plan was reviewed by the district's Director of Student Services and updated and 
discussed with the faculty during May, 2017. It was approved by the School Site Council at its May meeting.  At the start of the 2017-2018 school year, 
the staff participated in a review of a new Emergency Planning and Procedures Handbook, including in-depth training on school evacuation procedures.  
This new document was developed in order to provide staff with a quick reference guide on the several areas of school safety and emergency response 
in a variety of situations.  The faculty also participates in monthly safety updates and a review of building safety procedures. 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 1.5 1.6 3.2 4.1 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.0 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 1.4 1.8 N/A 

Expulsions 0.2 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 
 
D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 335.2 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 3.3 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 2 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 0.8 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other------- 0.5 
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

161/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Santa Cruz High School   Page 11 of 12

 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) 

Subject 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

English 25 7 10 3 27 6 9 7 25 6 11 5 

Mathematics 25 9 15 3 27 4 19 6 26 6 20 5 

Science 28 1 13 1 27 3 12 2 27 1 17  

Social Science 33  5 8 27 4 6 6 30 1 9 6 

*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is 
reported by subject area rather than grade level. 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 2 2 2 

 
During the 2020-2021 school year, the SCHS focus on providing equitable learning opportunities for all students, as defined in our newly adopted vision 
statement, continues to be a focus of our work.  We continued to develop a measurement system for our revised Student Leaner Outcomes.  Additionally, 
we will continue our focus of identifying essential skills, common assessments and grading practices.  The work was facilitated during our site-based 
professional development, early-release days, which occur twice monthly.  The primary focus for our work is student achievement, with special emphasis 
on strategies to increase student engagement. Teachers meet in Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) with the expected outcomes of developing 
common assessments, reviewing and analyzing the results, and developing instructional strategies for improving student achievement. Teachers are 
expected to peer observe at least twice during the school year, and will be provided with time in faculty meetings to debrief their observations. 
 
Our AVID team including on of the Assistant Principals, attended the AVID Summer Institute, where they participated in the professional development, 
accessing information from the AVID program, including new strategies for delivery of AVID elements. 
 
Through attending job-alike professional development meetings twice a month, provided by the district Special Education Department, our Special 
Education teachers had the opportunity to share best practices and to participate in IEP Compliance Trainings. The trainings have been devised to train 
teachers how to align IEPs  with compliance requirements as well as to revise and fix errors found in a state compliance audit. 
 
District-led professional development opportunities have been offered and our teachers have participated in PD in the areas of Read 180, MTSS 
Implementation, New Generation Science Standards, Math Teacher Leaders, and for the Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership Leaders (SCIL). 
 
 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

8,025 1,163 $6,862 $94,206 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750 N/A 
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District -8.0 10.8 

School Site/ State -12.2 -16.2 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

162/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Santa Cruz High School   Page 12 of 12

Types of Services Funded 
The district’s Director of Academic Equity and Categorical Programs administers state and federal funding. The Santa Cruz High School Single Plan for 
Student Achievement is updated each year to ensure that instruction is focused on students' academic needs as shown by current local and state 
assessment results.  The Santa Cruz High School Site Council a) develops and approves the plan and related expenditures in accordance with all state and 
federal laws and regulations, b) recommends the plan and expenditures to the governing board for approval, and c) provides ongoing review of the 
implementation of the plan with the principal, teachers,other school staff members, parents and students. Our English Language Learners are supported 
through the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  This funding that provides a .20 FTE Counselor, Instructional Materials for English Language 
Development, a School Community Coordinator, staffing for after and before school Peer Tutoring and supports the academic needs of English Learners, 
foster children and homeless students. 
 
State Priority: Pupil Engagement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Pupil Engagement (Priority 5): 
 

• High school dropout rates; and 
• High school graduation rates. 

 
Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate) 

Rate for Santa Cruz High School 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 3.6 2.9 2.3 

Graduation Rate 94.6 95.4 94.7 
 
Rate for Santa Cruz City Schools 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 5.9 10 8.1 

Graduation Rate 89.1 89 89.4 
 
Rate for California 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 9.1 9.6 9 

Graduation Rate 82.7 83 84.5 
 

Career Technical Education Participation 

Measure CTE Program 
Participation 

Number of pupils participating in CTE 299 

% of pupils completing a CTE program and earning 
a high school diploma 35.1 

% of CTE courses sequenced or articulated between 
the school and institutions of postsecondary 
education 

85 

 

Courses for University of California (UC) and/or California State 
University (CSU) Admission 

UC/CSU Course Measure Percent 
2018-19 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for 
UC/CSU Admission 98.92 

2017-18 Graduates Who Completed All Courses 
Required for UC/CSU Admission 70.75 

 
2019-20 Advanced Placement Courses 

Subject 
Number of  
AP Courses  

Offered* 

Percent of  
Students In  
AP Courses 

Computer Science  N/A 

English------- 4 N/A 

Fine and Performing Arts  N/A 

Foreign Language   N/A 

Mathematics 5 N/A 

Science------- 3 N/A 

Social Science 3 N/A 

All courses 15 25.7 
*Where there are student course enrollments of at least one student. 
 

Career Technical Education Programs 
Some high schools offer courses intended to help students prepare for the world of work. These career technical education courses (CTE, fomerly known 
as ROP) are open to all students. Many SCHS students enroll in CTE classes that assist them in learning about a variety of subjects in the world of work. 
The classes offered at SCHS include, Computer Science, CTE Computer Graphics, CTE Auto Shop, CTE Video, CTE Bicycle Performance, CTE Desktop 
Publishing, CTE Web Design, CTE Photo, etc. Students are able to also enroll into many of the CTE classes offered throughout Santa Cruz County including 
Culinary Arts, Fire Technology, Medical Occupations and others. 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

163/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 1 of 14

Soquel High School 
401 Old San Jose Rd. • Soquel, CA 95073-2213 • (831) 429-3909 • Grades 9-12 

Greg O'Meara, Principal 
gomeara@sccs.net 

https://soquel.sccs.net/home 
 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 

----

---- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

164/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 2 of 14

School Description 
Soquel High School is a 
comprehensive public high school 
located in Soquel, California that 
educates 1,080 students in grades 9-
12. Opened in 1962, the 40 acre 
campus sits on a plateau that 
overlooks the Monterey Bay. Soquel 
High is committed  to supporting all 
students to achieve intellectual and 
personal excellence, and graduate 
prepared for college, career, and 
society. 
 
After a comprehensive self-study of 
curricular programs, Soquel 
received a maximum accreditation 
term of six (6) years by the Western 
Association of Schools and Colleges.  
Soquel will host a mid-term (3 year) 
Accreditation visit during the 2020-
2021 school year as pert of the six 
year accreditation. 
 
Soquel High School serves students 
throughout Santa Cruz County. 
Many students come from the 
county’s urban centers Soquel, 
Capitola, Live Oak, Aptos, and Santa 
Cruz, while others come from the 
agricultural community of 
Watsonville. 
 

Santa Cruz County’s population of 262,382 is 56.8% white, 34% Hispanic or Latino, 5.3% Asian, and 
1.5% Black. Located 30 miles south of Silicon Valley, many Santa Cruz residents work in technology. 
Other important economic sectors are health care, agriculture, and tourism. 86.3% of Santa Cruz 
County residents over the age of 25 have a high school diploma, and 38.2% of Santa Cruz County 
residents over the age of 25 have a Bachelor’s Degree or higher. 
 
Soquel High’s demographic data is similar to Santa Cruz County as a whole. In the 2018-2099 school 
year, 52.9% of students identified as white and 35.7% of students identified as Hispanic or Latino. 
4% of our students are English Language Learners (ELL) and 19.5% are Re-designated Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP). 33.9% of students are socioeconomically disadvantaged. 8.7% are part of our 
Special Education program. Last year, 98% of graduating seniors left Soquel High intending to 
attend either a four-year college or a community college. 
 
Soquel High School is one of three comprehensive high schools in the Santa Cruz City School District, 
which serves over 6,000 K-12 students. The Santa Cruz City School District includes six elementary 
schools, two middle schools, three comprehensive high schools, a continuation school, an 
independent studies program, and a homeschool program. While some Soquel High Students come 
from Santa Cruz City School District middle and elementary schools, the majority of our students 
come from schools in the Soquel Elementary School District and Live Oak School District. Students 
at Soquel High live within driving distance of several colleges and universities. Santa Cruz County is 
the home to UC Santa Cruz and Cabrillo College. CSU Monterey Bay and San Jose State University 
are also close by. 
 
Soquel High School Mission Statement: 
Educate - Engage - Empower 
 
Soquel High School Vision Statement: 
Soquel High is a diverse, creative, and professional learning community that encourages and 
supports all Knights to achieve intellectual and personal excellence, and to be prepared for college, 
career, and society. 
 
Soquel High School Values: 
Kindness, Collaboration, Equity, Diversity, Integrity, Responsibility, and Safety 
 
The Soquel Staff is committed to ongoing and intentional efforts to improve school climate and 
culture.  A large part of this effort is a commitment to strengthening relationships, and focusing on 
community.  Our comprehensive array of student support is conducted through the lens of 
Restorative Justice Practices and the continual strengthening of our community. 
 
 

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Grade 9 224        

Grade 10 322        

Grade 11 294        

Grade 12 238        

Total Enrollment 1,078        
 

165/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 3 of 14

2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Black or African American 0.3        

American Indian or Alaska Native 0.3        

Asian 1.3        

Filipino 1.3        

Hispanic or Latino 36.8        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.2        

White 53.5        

Two or More Races 6.3        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 28.9        

English Learners 3.7        

Students with Disabilities 9.7        

Foster Youth 0.3        

Homeless 0.4        
 

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for Soquel High School 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 48 46 45 

Without Full Credential 2 1 2 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 2 2 2 
 
Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at Soquel High 
School 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 2 2 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 2 2 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

166/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 4 of 14

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
In all subject areas, our textbooks are the most recently approved by the State Board of Education and our Local Governing Agency. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Literature & Langage Arts - Holt 

Adopted 2002 
 
Shining Star - Pearson 
Adopted 2007 
 
English Yes! - McGraw-Hill 
Adopted 2002 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics Core Connections - Integrated 1 
CPM Educational Program 
Adopted 2016 
 
Core Connections - Integrated 2 
CPM Educational Program 
Adopted 2016 
 
Core Connections - Integrated 3 
CPM Educational Program 
Adopted 2016 
 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science Model Based Biology - MBER Biology Team UC Davis 
Adopted 2019 
 
Biology - McDougall Littell 
Adopted 2007 
 
Living by Chemistry - Bedford, Freeman, & Worth 
Adopted 2020 
 
Chemistry - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2007 
 
Active Physics - Activate Learning 
Adopted 2018 
 
Physics (Cutnell & Johnson - 7th Ed.) - Wiley & Sons / People's Publishing 
Adopted 2007 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

167/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 5 of 14

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
History-Social Science Magruder's American Government - Pearson Prentice Hall 

Adopted 2006 
 
Economics: Principles in Action - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2006 
 
The Americans: Reconstruction to the 21st C. - Houghton Mifflin 
Adopted 2006 
 
World History: The Modern World - Pearson Prentice Hall 
Adopted 2006 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Foreign Language Situaciones - D.C. Heath 
Adopted 2009 
 
Expresate 1 & 2 - Holt 
Adopted 2011 
 
Vista, AP Spanish - Higher Learning 
Adopted 2014 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Health Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Visual and Performing Arts Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science Laboratory Equipment Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
Soquel High, constructed in 1962, sits on a 49 acre lot and has three main classroom buildings, each with a courtyard in the center. In addition to the 
three main classroom buildings, the site has a multipurpose room used as a cafeteria and performance space, several shop buildings for CTE pathway 
classes (wood, auto, metal), a sustainable agriculture demonstration farm with a variety of plants and animals, and an athletic gymnasium with practice 
space. A new pool was completed in 2018-2019 using bond revenue. Future projects using bond money include modernization of all classrooms, removing 
portable classrooms, expanding and renovating the library, and replacing doors/windows/plumbing, and major infrastructure. 
 
School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 10/07/2019 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood         

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood        RM 601: CLOCK NOT WORKING 
RM 308: LIGHT BULB IS OUT 
 

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

168/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 6 of 14

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XGood        503 WOOD SHOP: SOME OOTLETS DON'T 
HAVE POWER 
METAL SHOP: PHONES AND WIFI NOT 
WORKING 
 
 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood        GIRLS LOWER RESTROOM: SINK IS 
LEAKING 
BOYS RESTROOM: URINAL IS LEAKING 
 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood         

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood        RM 402: SMALL LEAK IN ROOF 

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood        RM 321: LOCK IS LOOSE 
RM 315: LOCK IS SAGGING 
 
 

Overall Rating 
---------- 

XGood         

 

169/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 7 of 14

B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

170/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 8 of 14

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 71 N/A 64 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 41 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

171/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 9 of 14

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science 37 N/A 37 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

172/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 10 of 14

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

173/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 11 of 14

 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
Family Involvement: 
 
Soquel High School is served by various parent and community organizations. The Soquel High Fund is a 501c3 foundation established to support our 
academic, arts, and athletic programs. In addition to fundraising, the Soquel High Fund supports our alumni network. Other parent forums for 
participation include the Soquel Music Foundation, The Soquel High School Bond Oversight Committee, The Soquel High School Performing Arts Building 
Oversight Committee, and The Soquel High School Site Council. Specifically, the School Site Council is responsible for annual input, adoption, and 
implementation of both the Single Plan for Student Achievement, as well as the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
Another important parent forum is the English Learners Advisory Committee (ELAC). These meetings are typically held monthly, and are attended by 
parents of students with Limited English Proficiency (LEP). Parent leaders are chosen in an annual officer election. ELAC officers plan meeting topics such 
as SHS course offerings, test preparation, college applications and financial aid, using Illuminate to monitor student progress, and more. Every year, AP 
Spanish 4 students present to the ELAC committee about the needs to Hispanic or Latino and LEP students at Soquel High. ELAC parents also serve the 
school by providing dinner at Back to School Night and hosting an annual holiday celebration and awards for students who reclassify from LEP to Fluent 
English Proficient. 
 
Parent leaders can also partner with school staff leaders and participate on the District Budget Advisory Committee, and a variety of other forums that 
arise to meet the needs of our students. Parents who are not involved in formal organizations have a variety of other opportunities to connect with 
Soquel High School. Families assist with sports, clubs, and extracurricular activities. Additionally, parents are apprised of school events on Soquel High 
School’s website, electronic roadside marquee, online calendar, and weekly parent newsletter entitled "Knight Notes". Families are encouraged to meet 
their student’s teachers, counselors, and administrators at the annual Back to School Night and our Counseling Program includes multiple counselor and 
administrator visits to our two feeder middle schools. Monthly opportunities for parental involvement also include the "Principal's Coffee Forum" that 
serves as a community resource for dialogue with school administration about Soquel High School's programs and services. 
 
Additionally, there are various ways for families to utilize technology resources to monitor their student’s academic achievement. Parents and students 
can use the Student Information System (Illuminate) to monitor grades and attendance. All teachers use Google Classroom to communicate with students 
and their families. The school website also lists teacher’s websites, email, and school phone numbers so families can easily communicate with faculty. 
Parents can offer additional feedback to our school via electronic surveys. 
 
 
 
State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
The Comprehensive Safety Plan (CSP) for 2020-2021 was reviewed by our School Site Council on January 20, 2021  The safety plan will also be reviewed 
and updated during our School Site Council meeting on February 17, 2021 
 
Basic overview of the CSP is reviewed with the staff at the beginning of the school year and teachers can access an electronic copy of this complete plan 
in one of two locations. One is through their own Google Sites page where all information, such as the faculty handbook, CSP, and emergency related 
materials are stored and updated as necessary. Additionally, the Santa Cruz City Schools Webpage can provide each teacher can compare all CSP’s from 
each site within the District. Main conclusions for the CSP are taken from attendance, recent WASC three year review, California Healthy Kids Survey, 
and the Social Emotional Health Survey.  Our primary goal is to provide students and staff with a safe and supportive school environment.  Additionally, 
we strive to develop, build, and maintain caring relationships with faculty, staff, families, and students. 
 
 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 3.6 6.5 3.2 4.1 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 

174/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 12 of 14

 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 3.1 1.8 N/A 

Expulsions 0.1 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 
 
D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 291.4 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 3.7 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian) 0.3 

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 0.2 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 0.9 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other------- 1 
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) 

Subject 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

English 26 9 31 5 25 13 26 8 25 10 26 8 

Mathematics 29 7 16 14 29 8 17 14 27 7 23 7 

Science 31  16 8 29 3 20 4 24 10 15 2 

Social Science 26 7 14 6 28 1 25 4 29 5 12 12 

*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is 
reported by subject area rather than grade level. 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement   3 

 
Outlined in the 2020-2021 Professional Development Plan are numerous opportunities to support staff in areas of professional development directly 
related with school goals identified through our accreditation process.  These opportunities include specific funds allocated for teacher collaboration 
time during the school day.  Departmental teams utilize this time to develop and enhance curriculum, and to develop effective assessments that are 
aligned with chosen learning outcomes.  Attendance at local and state conferences, seminars, and symposiums remain a viable option for professional 
development, and are typically attended by teams of teachers. The January 5, 2021 Professional Development Day will be dedicated to both preparation 
activities for the upcoming Mid-Cycle WASC Accreditation, and LGBTQ Support training in conjunction with Santa Cruz Safe Schools Project.  Additionally, 

175/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 13 of 14

throughout the year staff will participate in various required annual trainings such as Harassment, Threat Assessment, FERPA, Title IX.  Later in 2021 
(March 5, 2021) a final day of preparation to address upcoming WASC Mid-Cycle visitation (3.21.21-3.22.21) will be offered to all staff. 
 
Additionally, teacher leaders facilitate weekly professional learning during department Professional Learning Communities (PLC)+5.  PLC work includes: 
Revising and developing pacing guides, identifying priority standards, creating and implementing common assessments to inform instruction and using 
data cycles (cycles of inquiry) to examine instructional strategies in order to improve outcomes for all students.  The Soquel High School Staff has adopted 
ten (10) School-wide Expectations (Tier I) : 1. Updating Illuminate (our student information system) every two weeks; 2.  Enter 'M' for Missing in Infinite 
Campus for all missing assignments, tests, and quizzes; 3. Posting daily class agendas; 4. Posting daily Learning and Language Goals; 5. Utilization of "Bell 
to Bell" Instruction; 6. Peer Assessments; two observations per year. 7. Supporting struggling students by making contact with parents/guardians for all 
'F' grades; 8. Restroom Protocol - only one student out at a time;  9. Caring Relationships - Team-building/Ice-breaker activities at beginning of school 
year; Attending IEPs, SST's, and 504 meetings, Speaking with student AND notifying counselor if notice that a student is withdrawn or there is a change 
in behavior. 10. Attendance and full participation in weekly Professional Learning Communities to Identify what students should be able to do 
 
Teachers leaders (SCIL) participate in 3-4 professional development days facilitated by district administration.  They are also supported via monthly 
teacher leader/administrative meetings where teachers are provided trainings and can receive support from colleagues and administration. Teachers are 
always encouraged to attend conferences and trainings; funding is paid for by our school site budgets and for the past two years, from our College 
Readiness Block Grant. 
 
 
 
 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

7,749 851 $6,898 $86,341 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750 N/A 
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District -7.5 2.1 

School Site/ State -11.6 -23.7 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

Types of Services Funded 
Expenditures of state and federal funds are defined by the Single Plan for Student Achievement, approved each year by our School Site Council. These 
funds pay partial salaries of our School Community Coordinator, a Pupil Personnel Services (PPS) credentialed school counselor and also provide funding 
for teachers to support struggling and under-served students during after school teaching/tutoring sessions. A full time Response to Intervention (RTI) 
Coordinator is also supported through specific Local Control Funding Formula funding. 
Outlined in the 2020-2021 Single School Plan for Student Achievement are numerous opportunities to support staff in areas of professional development 
directly related with school goals identified through our accreditation process.  These opportunities include specific funds allocated for teacher 
collaboration time during the school day.  Departmental teams utilize this time to develop and enhance curriculum, and to develop effective assessments 
that are aligned with chosen learning outcomes.  Attendance at local and state conferences, seminars, and symposiums remain a viable option for 
professional development, and are typically attended by teams of teachers. 
 
 

176/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Soquel High School   Page 14 of 14

State Priority: Pupil Engagement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Pupil Engagement (Priority 5): 
 

• High school dropout rates; and 
• High school graduation rates. 

 
Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate) 

Rate for Soquel High School 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 1.2 2.8 6.9 

Graduation Rate 98.4 96.3 91.6 
 
Rate for Santa Cruz City Schools 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 5.9 10 8.1 

Graduation Rate 89.1 89 89.4 
 
Rate for California 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Dropout Rate 9.1 9.6 9 

Graduation Rate 82.7 83 84.5 
 

Career Technical Education Participation 

Measure CTE Program 
Participation 

Number of pupils participating in CTE 531 

% of pupils completing a CTE program and earning 
a high school diploma 21.5 

% of CTE courses sequenced or articulated between 
the school and institutions of postsecondary 
education 

80.8 

 

Courses for University of California (UC) and/or California State 
University (CSU) Admission 

UC/CSU Course Measure Percent 
2018-19 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for 
UC/CSU Admission 99.72 

2017-18 Graduates Who Completed All Courses 
Required for UC/CSU Admission 64.43 

 
2019-20 Advanced Placement Courses 

Subject 
Number of  
AP Courses  

Offered* 

Percent of  
Students In  
AP Courses 

Computer Science  N/A 

English------- 5 N/A 

Fine and Performing Arts  N/A 

Foreign Language  2 N/A 

Mathematics 5 N/A 

Science------- 5 N/A 

Social Science 6 N/A 

All courses 23 30.8 
*Where there are student course enrollments of at least one student. 
 

Career Technical Education Programs 
Soquel High offers students preparation for the world of work via Career Technical Education (CTE) courses and a career-focused academy.  These courses 
and programs prepare students in career pathways in the areas of "Sustainable Agriculture and Natural Resources", "Public Safety",  "Digital Media", 
"Construction, Manufacturing and Engineering", "Welding Technology", and "Horticulture/Floral Design". In addition to learning hands-on skills, students 
are required to complete a resume, cover letter and portfolio of their class work.  These assignments are supported by our part time CTE school counselor. 
The CTE Counselor also assists in community outreach and the fostering of local business relationships corresponding to our CTE Career paths. 
 
In addition, our elective teachers integrate preparation for college and careers into our painting, ceramics, drama, vocal music, and instrumental music 
classes.  Academic teachers integrate college and career preparation into their classes, while coaches and physical education teachers assist  students in 
exploring careers in sports and fitness. Additionally, our Counseling Department offers career interest inventories and assessments that are based on 
current data on local and national career trends. All CTE courses and programs are overseen and supported by our school district's Director of Secondary 
Curriculum. 
 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

177/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Westlake Elementary School   Page 1 of 11

Westlake Elementary School 
1000 High St. • Santa Cruz, CA 95060-2596 • (831) 429-3878 • Grades K-5 

Clyde Curley, Principal 
ccurley@sccs.net 

https://westlake.sccs.net/ 
 

2019-20 School Accountability Report Card 

Published During the 2020-21 School Year 

---- ---- 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission St., Suite 100 

Santa Cruz, CA, 95060 
(831) 429-3410 
www.sccs.net 

 

District Governing Board 
Sheila Coonerty 

 
John Owen 

 
Cynthia Ranii 

 
Jeremy Shonick 

 
Patricia Threet 

 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 

 
Claudia Vestal 

 
 

District Administration 
Kris Munro 

Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito 

Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 

 
Jim Monreal 

Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 

 
Molly Parks 

Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 

 

---- ---- 

School Description 
Welcome to Westlake Elementary School, home of the Wildcats. Westlake is dedicated to 
educating the whole child through a comprehensive visual and performing arts program, including 
visual arts, music, dance, and theater for students in kindergarten through fifth grade.  Programs 
are made possible by local parcel taxes and PTA donations.  Westlake Elementary School is known 
throughout the Santa Cruz area for its ongoing commitment to excellence.  This rich tradition and 
reputation is possible due to the hard work of a dedicated and talented staff, the full participation 
of parents, and community involvement. 
 
Westlake Elementary School is located on the northwest side of Santa Cruz, California, near the 
campus of the University of California at Santa Cruz (UCSC).  In the academic year 2020-21, 
approximately 475 students were registered for transitional kindergarten through fifth grades. 
 
In order to improve our student achievement, we have provided staff with assessment information 
of their current students.  The most informative achievement data for classroom teachers are the 
local literacy and math assessments that are administered three times a year.  With this 
information, teachers are able to identify areas for improvement and set targets for academic 
achievement. Teachers work together in grade level teams and as a whole staff on continuous 
school improvement. 
 
A positive school climate is a constant focus for Westlake. The Positive Behavior Instruction Systems 
(PBIS) program includes the four Wildcat Ways school expectations: Be Safe, Be Respectful, Be 
Responsible, and Do Your Personal Best.  There are also specific procedures, routines and rules for 
all areas of the school.  Positive behavior is reinforced through Cool Cat tickets.  They can be 
redeemed for items from the student store and popcorn on Fridays.  The social emotional learning 
curriculum Second Step is taught TK-5 and the units of study are: skills for learning, problem solving, 
emotion management and empathy.  Together these programs help create a safe, orderly and 
positive learning environment. 
 
Westlake is dedicated to providing an enriched learning experience.  Students participate in the 
science fair, county spelling bee, county math league and county author's fair.   Other enrichment 
activities include skate dogs, Spanish, Chinese, math club, sports, young scientist program, and 
lunchtime chess. 
 

178/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Westlake Elementary School   Page 2 of 11

About the SARC 
By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state 
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC 
contains information about the condition and performance of each 
California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control 
and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet 
annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address 
state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be 
consistent with data reported in the SARC. 

• For more information about SARC requirements and access to 
prior year reports, see the California Department of Education 
(CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

• For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE 
LCFF webpage at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• For additional information about the school, parents/guardians 
and community members should contact the school principal or 
the district office. 

 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Kindergarten 103        

Grade 1 78        

Grade 2 98        

Grade 3 85        

Grade 4 87        

Grade 5 97        

Total Enrollment 548        
 
2019-20 Student Enrollment by Group 

Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Black or African American 1.3        

Asian 6.9        

Hispanic or Latino 22.1        

White 61.1        

Two or More Races 8.6        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 20.8        

English Learners 8.9        

Students with Disabilities 13.9        

Homeless 0.7        
 

A. Conditions of Learning 
 
State Priority: Basic 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State 
priority: Basic (Priority 1): 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are 
teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; 
and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
Teacher Credentials for Westlake Elementary 
School 

18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential 32 30 29 

Without Full Credential 0 0 0 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 0 0 0 
 

Teacher Credentials for Santa Cruz City Schools 18-19 19-20 20-21 

With Full Credential ♦ ♦ 309 

Without Full Credential ♦ ♦ 6 

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ♦ ♦ 2 
 
Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions at Westlake 
Elementary School 

Indicator 18-19 19-20 20-21 

Teachers of English Learners 0 0 0 

Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 0 0 

Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0 
Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who 
lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. 
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of 
Teachers of English Learners. 

179/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Westlake Elementary School   Page 3 of 11

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2020-21) 
In all subject areas, our textbooks are the most recently approved by the State Board of Education and our Local Governing Agency. 
 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
Year and month in which data were collected: December 2020 

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption 
Reading/Language Arts Benchmark Workshop - Benchmark Education Company 

Adopted 2019 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Mathematics Eureka - Great Minds 
Adopted 2016 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Science FOSS - Delta Education 
Adopted 2017 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

History-Social Science History & Social Science - Pearson 
Adopted 2006 
        
The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes        
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0%        

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year) 
Westlake opened in 1960, sits on a 10 acre lot in Santa Cruz's upper west side neighborhood and shares a property line with the University of California 
at Santa Cruz. Westlake’s day and night custodians keep the facilities clean. Each classroom is vacuumed every other day and restrooms are cleaned 
daily. Landscaping and grounds staff maintain the fields and landscaping.  A facilities bond was passed by the local community in 2016.  The bond supports 
modernizations and improvements.  Some of the recent projects include a digital marquee, restroom repairs, sewer line repairs and a perimeter fence.  
A new classroom wing and modernization of the existing classrooms are in the planning stages. 
 
School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year) 
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following: 

• Determination of repair status for systems listed 
• Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair 
• The year and month in which the data were collected 
• The rate for each system inspected 
• The overall rating 

 
Year and month in which data were collected: 10/05/2020 

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Systems:  
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

XGood         

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

XGood         

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation 

XGood         

Electrical: 
Electrical 

XFair        MPR: PHONES HAVE SOME PROBLEMS 
KINDER 19: PHONE HAS NO DIAL TONE 
KINDER 20: CLOCK NOT WORKING KINDER 
20: PHONE HAS NO DIAL TONE 
RM 22: PHONE HAS NO DIAL TONE 
RM 24: PHONE HAS NO DIAL TONE 
 

180/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Westlake Elementary School   Page 4 of 11

System Inspected Repair Status Repair Needed and 
Action Taken or Planned 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

XGood        RM 2: NO HOT WATER IN SINK 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

XGood         
 
 
 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

XGood        BOYS LOWER RESTROOM: MISSING 
FLOOR TILE 
RM 22: SMALL LEAK IN THE ROOF 
 

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences 

XGood         

Overall Rating 
---------- 

XGood         

 

181/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Westlake Elementary School   Page 5 of 11

B. Pupil Outcomes 
 
State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: 
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4): 

• Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the 
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the 
general education population and the California Alternate 
Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and 
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade 
eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the 
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with 
alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the 
Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most 
significant cognitive disabilities); and 

• The percentage of students who have successfully completed 
courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the 
University of California and the California State University, or 
career technical education sequences or programs of study. 

 
CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

182/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Westlake Elementary School   Page 6 of 11

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

ELA 76 N/A 53 N/A 50 N/A 

Math 69 N/A 46 N/A 39 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or 
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for 
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the 
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter 
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the 
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number 
of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 
Grades Five, Eight, and High School 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard 

183/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Westlake Elementary School   Page 7 of 11

Subject School  
18-19 

School  
19-20 

District  
18-19 

District  
19-20 

State  
18-19 

State  
19-20 

Science 59 N/A 44 N/A 30 N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide 
testing for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in 
the 2018-2019 school year. 
 

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other 
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): 

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education. 
 
2019-20 Percent of Students Meeting Fitness Standards 

Grade 
Level 4 of 6 5 of 6 6 of 6 

---5--- N/A N/A N/A 

---7--- N/A N/A N/A 

---9--- N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019–2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the requirement to administer 
the physical fitness performance test for the 2019–2020 school year. 

CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 

184/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Westlake Elementary School   Page 8 of 11

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group 
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020) 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent  
Met or Exceeded 

All Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Black or African American  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

American Indian or Alaska Native N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Asian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Filipino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

White N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Two or More Races N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

English Learners N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students with Disabilities  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Foster Youth N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the requirement for statewide testing for 
the 2019-2020 school year. 

185/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Westlake Elementary School   Page 9 of 11

 
C. Engagement 
 
State Priority: Parental Involvement 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3): 

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site 
 
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-21) 
There are many opportunities for parental involvement at Westlake.  Parents are encouraged to volunteer in their child's classroom and at PTA events.  
There are numerous events throughout the school year that are run by parent volunteers with the support of the Westlake PTA.  There are also a few 
school committees that parents can participate on including Site Council, Arts Committee, and the PTA Executive Board.  Parents are also encouraged to 
bring their creative ideas to the Principal and PTA.  All parents are encouraged to get and stay involved in their child's education.  Parents can contact 
the school office for more information on ways to get involved. 
 
State Priority: School Climate 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety. 

 
School Safety Plan (School Year 2020-2021) 
Westlake provides a safe, supportive, and caring school environment.  The School Safety Plan is revised annually at the beginning of the school year and 
monitored by the School Site Council. Staff participate in monthly safety meetings and online training. We hold fire, earthquake, and lockdown drills 
regularly. Each room is equipped with a disaster and first aid kit. Yard duty and teachers supervise school grounds before school, during recess, and at 
lunch periods. We send a copy of school rules home in the student folders at the beginning of the school year, review them twice a school year at 
expectation rotations, and reinforce them regularly in the classroom. We use programs that develop students’ sense of safety in class and on the 
playground, including Positive Behavior Instruction Systems (PBIS) and social emotional learning curriculum Second Step  for social skills and academic 
success. Visitors to Westlake are required to sign in at the office and receive an identification badge. 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions 
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively) 

Rate School 
2017-18 

School 
2018-19 

District 
2017-18 

District 
2018-19 

State 
2017-18 

State 
2018-19 

Suspensions 0.2 0.7 0.8 1.2 3.5 3.5 

Expulsions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 
 
Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019-2020 Only 
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic) 

Rate School 
2019-20 

District 
2019-20 

State 
2019-20 

Suspensions 0.0 1.8 N/A 

Expulsions 0.0 0.06 N/A 
Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years. 
 
D. Other SARC Information 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF. 
 
Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Ratio 

Academic Counselor*------- 548 
*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 

186/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Westlake Elementary School   Page 10 of 11

Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020) 

Title Number of Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) 

Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 1 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian) 1 

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist------- 0.8 

Social Worker-------  

Nurse-------  

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 0.8 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)-------  

Other------- 1.3 
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 
 
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) 

Grade 
Level 

2017-18 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2017-18 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2018-19 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2018-19 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

2019-20 
Average 

Class  
Size 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
1-20 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 

21-32 

2019-20 
# of 

Classes* 
Size 
33+ 

   K    
 

20 1 5  22  4 3 27  6  

   1    
 

22  3  22  4  30  2 1 

   2    
 

22  4  20 4   34 2 2  

   3    
 

23  4  21  4  31  2 1 

   4    
 

28  3  31  3  27  3  

   5    
 

26  4  22 1 3  32  3  

  Other** 
 

6 1   7 1   21 2 1 1 
*Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). 
** “Other” category is for multi-grade level classes. 
 
 
Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years) 

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 4-6 4-6 4-6 

 
The ongoing focus of professional development for 2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21 is the Common Core Standards and Professional Learning 
Communities.  Specific focus area in 2019-20 and 2020-21 is our new English Language Arts Adoption.  An ongoing focus is Integrated ELD and the use of 
accountable talk strategies during instruction.  There is one annual professional development day held districtwide each school year.  There are monthly 
follow up sessions facilitated by leadership team members to identify best practices of instruction and to provide professional learning community 
meeting time.   In 2019-20 up to March 13, Teacher teams were provided four release days during the year for planning.  Individual teachers are also 
provided one day per year for peer observations.  In 2020-21, due to COVID-19 and distance learning, teachers are provided with one day per week for 
planning and collaboration. 

187/425



2019-20 School Accountability Report Card for Westlake Elementary School   Page 11 of 11

 
FY 2018-19 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary   

Mid-Range Teacher Salary   

Highest Teacher Salary   

Average Principal Salary (ES)   

Average Principal Salary (MS)   

Average Principal Salary (HS)   

Superintendent Salary   
 

Percent of District Budget District 
Amount 

State Average for 
Districts In Same 

Category 

Teacher Salaries   

Administrative Salaries   
* For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & 

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 
 

FY 2018-19 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Level Total Restricted Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site-
------ 

9,299 1,954 $7,344 $86,205 

District------
- 

N/A N/A $7,434 $84,534 

State------- N/A N/A $7,750 N/A 
 

Percent Differences Unrestricted 
Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site/District -1.2 2.0 

School Site/ State -5.4 -19.0 
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data. 
 

Types of Services Funded 
In the 2019-20 school year, supplemental funds were provided to the school through the Local Control Accountability Plan via Local Control Funding 
Formula.  Funds were used to: hire paraprofessionals to work with English learners, in the reading intervention program, provide classroom supplies, and 
substitutes for professional development. 
 
 
DataQuest 
DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about 
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for 
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners). 
 
California School Dashboard 
The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement 
system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains 
reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, 
and areas in need of improvement. 

188/425



AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.1. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Purchase Orders, Bids and Quotes  
 
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase orders, quotes, bids and proposals from 12/05/2020 through 
01/04/2021. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors or ratification within 60 days as allowed by Education 
Code 17605. Also included for pre-approval are 2020-21 purchase orders which will be entered 
before the next regular Board meeting for Facility Services, Transportation, Food Services, and 
Central Purchasing for routine supplies and services. 
 
The following definitions are provided to clarify the differences between purchase orders, 
quotes and bids: 
 
Purchase Orders: 
All purchases shall be made by formal contract or purchase order or shall be accompanied by a 
receipt. The Superintendent or designee may create a "blanket" or "open" purchase order 
system for the purchase of minor items as needed from a vendor.  
 
Quotes: 
For the purchase of materials and supplies between $15,000 and $60,000 more than one quote 
is required and may be verbal or written. When purchases will be $15,000 to $95,200 for 
contracted work other than Public Works Projects and $60,000 to $95,200 for materials and 
supplies, several vendors are contacted for written quotes/proposals. This process, though not 
as rigorous as a bid, ensures that the District has involved more than one vendor and will 
secure a competitive price.  
   
Bids/RFP: 
A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, distribution of written 
specification regarding the work or materials, and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, 
must be followed for contracted work other than CUPCCAA Public Works Projects projected to 
cost $96,700 and over, or for materials and supplies in the sum of $95,200 or over unless a 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is being utilized under PCC 20118. Under CUPCCAA 
contracts may be awarded up to $60,000 without additional quotes. Informal bidding 

189/425



AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.1. 

procedures are followed for Public Works projects from $60,000 to $200,000 and a formal bid 
process occurs for Public Works projects over $200,000 (PCC 20117(B), 20651(B). Bids are 
solicited from a wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is made 
to the lowest responsible bidder and that the District receives the best price available. 
   
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 

190/425



Board Report with Fund and Resource 

Description

ReqPay11g

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/05/2020 - 01/04/2021

PO
Number

Req Fund
Order Amt

Ordr
Loc

Req
FundRequisition Information

Resource
DescriptionVendor Name

BPO21-00021 4,185.00 TRNHMiddle School WA Supplies 01 SE:PROJECT WORKAMAZON.COM

PO21-00463 167,228.59 FINSOLAR UTILITIES 01 NO REPORTING RESOLAR ENERGY OF AME

PO21-01095 1,764.95 DOCOVID THERMOMETERS/BATTERIES 01 SB 117 PPEAMAZON.COM

PO21-01173 392.36 SQHSLINE TRIMMER FOR AG 01 OTHER RESTRICTEB & B SMALL ENGINE 

PO21-01174 500.00 SQHSAG SCIENCE SUPPLIES 01 Measure TGENERAL FEED & SEED

PO21-01175 721.92 WLELJunior Library Oder- Kathy Groffith 01 DONATIONSJUNIOR LIBRARY GUIL

PO21-01176 1,000.00 SQHSAG SCIENCE SUPPLIES 01 Measure TSAN LORENZO LUMBER 

PO21-01177 4,500.00 BUSNGASB 75 REPORTS 01 NO REPORTING REDFA-ACTUARIES LLC

PO21-01178 175.00 SUPTCFP - APPOINTMENT OF 

CANDIDATES

01 NO REPORTING RESANTA CRUZ COUNTY C

PO21-01179 989.75 M&OWL ADA LIFT SIGNAGE 21 BOND, MEASURE BMONTEREY SIGNS INC 

PO21-01180 4,341.71 HHSTextbooks 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCMCGRAW HILL EDUCATI

PO21-01181 137.00 SCHSREGISTRATION MATH COMPETION 01 DONATIONSAMERICAN MATH COMPE

PO21-01182 225.00 SCHSPREPAY  REGISTRATION MATH 

MADNESS

01 DONATIONSARETELABS

PO21-01183 3,000.00 SQHSAg Supplies 01 C. PERKINS CTE:SAN LORENZO LUMBER 

PO21-01184 3,000.00 SQHSAG SCIENCE TOOLS 01 C. PERKINS CTE:B & B SMALL ENGINE 

PO21-01185 1,000.00 SQHSAG SCIENCE SUPPLIES/TOOLS 01 C. PERKINS CTE:C & N TRACTORS

PO21-01186 2,000.00 SQHSAG SCIENCE SUPPLIES 01 C. PERKINS CTE:CENTRAL HOME SUPPLY

PO21-01187 1,000.00 SQHSAG SCIENCE SUPPLIES 01 C. PERKINS CTE:EWING IRRIGATION PR

PO21-01188 417.32 WLELSchool Datebook 20-21 01 NO REPORTING RESCHOOL DATEBOOKS IN

PO21-01189 400.00 FSAnnual Software Hosting FS 13 CHLD NUTR:SCHOOE-CONTROL SYSTEMS I

PO21-01190 682,718.75 M&OWL NETWORK CABLING 21 BOND, MEASURE BDEVELOPMENT GROUP I

PO21-01191 6,934.21 HHSCameras 01 C. PERKINS CTE:B & H PHOTO

PO21-01192 5,000.00 M&OOPEN PO FOR CO2 AT SCCS 

SWIMMING POOLS

01 OTHER RESTRICTECARBONIC SERVICE IN

PO21-01193 3,820.91 MHMSRefugee Books per Dyer for 6th grade 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCPERMA BOUND DIVISIO

PO21-01194 26,761.00 M&OSCHS VENTILATION SURVEY JOB 

60510045

21 BUILDING FUND -ACCO-WILSON INC DBA

PO21-01195 12,755.00 M&OSQHS VENTILATION SURVEY JOB 

60510054

21 BUILDING FUND -ACCO-WILSON INC DBA

PO21-01196 1,435.00 M&OBV VENTILATION SURVEY JOB 

60510047

21 2012 SERIES A GACCO-WILSON INC DBA

PO21-01197 3,255.52 GAELMacBook Pro to replace stolen ones 01 DONATIONSAPPLE COMPUTER INC

PO21-01198 2,904.96 GAELSound System to replace stolen one 01 DONATIONSSWEETWATER SOUND IN

PO21-01199 800.00 BSSOpen PO Amazon AFE LLM teachers 01 LEARN LOSS MITIAMAZON.COM

PO21-01200 800.00 BSSOPEN PO Palace LLM teacher funds 01 LEARN LOSS MITIPALACE BUSINESS SOL

PO21-01201 500.00 BSSOpen PO Phoenix ceramics glazes/clay 01 NO REPORTING REPHOENIX CERAMICS SU

PO21-01202 429.94 BSSQuote 12072020JT Educational 

games

01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCCOMICOPOLIS

PO21-01203 700.00 SCHSCSA- PLANNED PARENTHOOD 01 DONATIONSPLANNED PARENTHOOD 

PO21-01204 2,970.00 HHSKami Software 01 ESSERKAMI

PO21-01205 200.00 BUSNOFFICE SUPPLIES - COVID 01 ESSERAMAZON.COM

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Jan  5 2021  2:25PM

Page 1 of 4

191/425



Board Report with Fund and Resource 

Description

ReqPay11g

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/05/2020 - 01/04/2021

PO
Number

Req Fund
Order Amt

Ordr
Loc

Req
FundRequisition Information

Resource
DescriptionVendor Name

PO21-01206 100.00 DOOPEN ORDER NAME PLATES ETC 01 NO REPORTING REBRINKS AWARDS & SIG

PO21-01207 120,687.15 M&ODW DOOR HARDWARE ROUTER 

INSTALL

21 BOND, MEASURE ANETXPERTS INC

PO21-01208 27,523.00 M&OHHS VENTILATION SURVEY JOB 

60510053

21 BUILDING FUND -ACCO-WILSON INC DBA

PO21-01209 20,855.00 M&OB40MS VENTILATION SURVEY JOB 

60510051

21 BUILDING FUND -ACCO-WILSON INC DBA

PO21-01210 415.16 BVELClassroom Books 01 GEERSCHOLASTIC STORE ON

PO21-01211 1,500.00 BVELSupplies & Materials LLMF 01 GEERAMAZON.COM

PO21-01212 3,665.00 DOXMEDIUS CLOUD FAX SOFTWARE 01 NO REPORTING RERAY MORGAN CO.

PO21-01213 73.94 CURRFrieze Cards (Grade K) 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCBENCHMARK EDUCATION

PO21-01214 75.00 SUPTOnline Governance Training 01 NO REPORTING RELOZANO SMITH LLP

PO21-01215 85.99 HHSExtension Cord 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON.COM

PO21-01216 462.90 BSSGraduation tassels 01 NO REPORTING REGRADUATION OUTLET

PO21-01217 470.01 BSSDiploma covers 01 NO REPORTING REJOSTENS INC

PO21-01218 923.81 HHSFrames 01 OTHER RESTRICTEDISPLAYS2GO

PO21-01219 1,075.00 CURRCFP: Smith, Justin - CTE Credential 

Service

01 Measure TVENTURA COUNTY OFFI

PO21-01220 1,300.00 CURRHoly Cross PD funds 01 ESEA:TEACHER QURENAISSANCE LEARNIN

PO21-01221 345.12 BVELArt Supplies - BV 01 LEARN LOSS MITISTAPLES ADVANTAGE

PO21-01222 135.00 BVELMusic Supplies & Materials 01 LEARN LOSS MITIAMAZON.COM

PO21-01223 193.14 BVELTeachers Resource Supplies - Golder 01 GEERPIONEER VALLEY EDUC

PO21-01224 500.00 BVELSupplies & Materials LLMF 01 GEERPALACE BUSINESS SOL

PO21-01225 198.63 BVELClassroom Books 01 GEERBOOKSHOP SANTA CRUZ

PO21-01226 226.84 BVELClassroom Books 01 GEERBOOKSHOP SANTA CRUZ

PO21-01227 207.50 BVELClassroom Supplies - LLMF 01 GEERLAKESHORE LEARNING 

PO21-01228 402.87 BVELClassroom Supplies - LLMF 01 DONATIONSREALLY GOOD STUFF I

PO21-01229 713.41 MHMSREAD 180 workbooks 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCHOUGHTON MIFFLIN CO

PO21-01230 300.00 SQHSLibrary trac software 01 ESSERLIBRARY TRAC LLC

PO21-01231 300.00 SQHSCFP - INVOICE FD-20-3500 01 Measure TFARM DISCOVERY AT L

PO21-01232 49.75 SPEDITEM # TP3854-100: J P - BEH. SPEC. 

- MATERIALS

01 SE:STATE LOCALAMAZON.COM

PO21-01233 2,500.00 BSSZearn for AFE 01 CRF COVIDZEARN INC

PO21-01234 1,151.00 BSSQuote PLCQ1750 Textbooks--Marine 

Science

01 ESSERPERFECTION LEARNING

PO21-01235 750.00 DLELPD FOR MELISSA MORALES 01 ESSERHEGGERTY PHONEMIC A

PO21-01236 3,063.07 GAELiMac Computers for Library to replace 

stolen ones

01 DONATIONSAPPLE COMPUTER INC

PO21-01237 780.00 HRLayOff Planning for Reductions in 

Force SSC

01 NO REPORTING RESCHOOL SERVICES OF 

PO21-01238 500.00 HRSafety Items 01 OTHER RESTRICTEOFFICE DEPOT

PO21-01239 238.08 WLELDempco PO Library Items 01 GEERDEMCO INC

PO21-01240 630.00 WLELAmazon - Music Request LLMF funds 01 LEARN LOSS MITIAMAZON.COM

PO21-01241 50,250.00 FINCOPIER LEASE YEAR 1 OF 5 01 NO REPORTING RECANON FINANCIAL SER

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Jan  5 2021  2:25PM

Page 2 of 4

192/425



Board Report with Fund and Resource 

Description

ReqPay11g

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/05/2020 - 01/04/2021

PO
Number

Req Fund
Order Amt

Ordr
Loc

Req
FundRequisition Information

Resource
DescriptionVendor Name

PO21-01242 49,000.00 M&OANNUAL COPIER MAINTENANCE 01 NO REPORTING RERAY MORGAN CO.

PO21-01243 17,883.18 HHSPhotography Equipment 01 Measure TB & H PHOTO

PO21-01244 2,258.31 HHSTextbooks 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCFOLLETT SCHOOL SOLU

PO21-01245 1,500.00 HHSCFP - Sports Fees 01 Measure TPENINSULA SPORTS IN

PO21-01246 347.38 GAELROLLING WHITEBOARDS COHORTS 01 ESSEROFFICE DEPOT

PO21-01247 2,000.00 M&O20/21 OPEN PO FOR FLOORING 

SUPPLIES

01 ONGOING & MAJORWESTERN DESIGN FLOO

PO21-01248 411.04 SPEDDHOH - ASSESS. MATERIALS PRE-K - 

9

01 SE:STATE LOCALCURRICULUM ASSOCIAT

PO21-01249 329.25 BVELPosters for BV 01 ESSERA SIGN ASAP

PO21-01250 636.00 SUPTComplaint Investigation 01 NO REPORTING RELAW OFFICE OF AMY O

PO21-01251 305.00 M&OFRANK STOCKTON (BPAT) 

CERTIFICATION 2/6/20

01 ONGOING & MAJORCA-NV SECTION AMERI

PO21-01252 1,500.00 M&OBACKFLOW TESTER COURSE FRANK 

STOCKTON

01 ONGOING & MAJORWATER INDUSTRY TRAI

PO21-01253 3,000.00 MHMSBlanket PO for teacher supplies 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON.COM

PO21-01254 3,000.00 MHMSBlanket PO for teacher supplies 01 NO REPORTING REPALACE BUSINESS SOL

PO21-01255 56,450.00 M&O*MHMS MPR CEILING 21 BOND, MEASURE ACRW INDUSTRIES INC

PO21-01256 160,000.00 M&OBV NETWORK CABLING PH 2 21 BOND, MEASURE BDEVELOPMENT GROUP I

PO21-01257 200,000.00 M&ODLV NETWORK CABLING PH 2 21 BOND, MEASURE BDEVELOPMENT GROUP I

PO21-01258 17,760.00 M&ODW NETWORK COORDINATION 21 BOND, MEASURE ADEVELOPMENT GROUP I

PO21-01259 6,368.18 M&ODLV WORKROOM STORAGE 21 BOND, MEASURE BPALACE BUSINESS SOL

PO21-01260 12,550.00 M&ODLV TEMP GENERATOR 21 BOND, MEASURE BPSR ELECTRIC

PO21-01261 18,570.00 M&OMHMS GATE ELECTRICAL 21 BOND, MEASURE APSR ELECTRIC

PO21-01262 86,090.00 M&OHVAC CONTROLS UPGRADE 133 

MISSION

01 OTHER RESTRICTEALL BAY MECHANICAL 

PO21-01263 6,439.09 HHSTextbooks 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCTEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE

PO21-01264 16,841.48 M&OGAS LEAK REPAIR AT SQHS 01 ONGOING & MAJORMBS ENGINEERING INC

PO21-01265 45,197.00 M&OMHMS VENTILATION SURVEY JOB 

60510052 EWP 499.01

21 BUILDING FUND -ACCO-WILSON INC DBA

PO21-01266 2,700.00 HHSIB Workshops 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCUWC - USA

PO21-01267 397.00 BSSOpen Ark LLM teacher funds 01 LEARN LOSS MITIAMAZON.COM

PO21-01268 3,455.71 BSSQuote # 2206840697 AFE teacher 

computers

01 LEARN LOSS MITIAPPLE COMPUTER INC

PO21-01269 135.05 BSSDiploma printing 2021 graduation 01 NO REPORTING REALPHAGRAPHICS SANTA

PO21-01270 553.00 M&OMHMS FIELD STORM WATER FEES 21 BOND, MEASURE AVERDE DESIGN INC

PO21-01271 500.00 M&OOPEN PO FOR TRUCK SEAT 

REPAIRS

01 ONGOING & MAJORJOE'S UPHOLSTERY

PO21-01272 2,380.56 STUSSafe Space Bumper Sticker and 

Window Decal

01 NO REPORTING REALPHAGRAPHICS SANTA

PO21-01273 17,653.00 M&OWESTLAKE VENTILATION SURVEY 

JOB 60510050

21 2012 SERIES A GACCO-WILSON INC DBA

PO21-01274 15,352.00 M&OGAULT VENTILATION SURVEY JOB 

60510049

21 2012 SERIES A GACCO-WILSON INC DBA

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Jan  5 2021  2:25PM

Page 3 of 4

193/425



Board Report with Fund and Resource 

Description

ReqPay11g

Includes Purchase Orders dated 12/05/2020 - 01/04/2021

PO
Number

Req Fund
Order Amt

Ordr
Loc

Req
FundRequisition Information

Resource
DescriptionVendor Name

PO21-01275 865.26 HHSTextbooks 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCTEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE

PO21-01276 1,115.71 M&OAIR PURIFIER 01 NO REPORTING REDELOS LIVING LLC

PO21-01277 943.38 M&OAIR PURIFIER 01 NO REPORTING REUSA SEALING INC

PO21-01278 11,800.00 EDSVMobileware Unlimited Data Plan 01 CRF COVIDSTAPLES TECHNOLOGY 

PO21-01279 2,400.00 M&OBACKFLOW REPAIRS AS NEEDED AT 

VARIOUS SITES

01 ONGOING & MAJORRIBBS PLUMBING INC

PO21-01280 1,204.00 BSSOpen PO Amazon Art supplies--to 

replace go-kits

01 LEARN LOSS MITIAMAZON.COM

PO21-01281 401.17 BSSQuote Reference # QN85200 Math 

workbooks

01 LEARN LOSS MITICARSON-DELLOSA PUBL

PO21-01282 2,100.00 M&O20/21 OPEN PO FOR LIGHT BULB 

RECYCLING

01 ONGOING & MAJORREVOLT RECYCLING, L

PO21-01283 35,560.88 EDSVHybrid Learning - STARTECH USB-C 

Mini Docks

01 CRF COVIDCDW GOVERNMENT INC.

PO21-01284 7,000.00 BUSNFINANCIAL ADVISORY/CONT. 

DISCLOSURE

01 NO REPORTING REDS&C DALE SCOTT & C

Total 2,006,562.89 

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Jan  5 2021  2:25PM

Page 4 of 4

194/425



AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.2. 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report. The report covers vendor warrants issued 
from 12/08/2020 through 01/05/2021.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

195/425



Board ReportReqPay12b

Checks Dated 12/08/2020 through 01/05/2021

Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount

811787 12/10/2020 Mace V. Anderson 272.98 *

Cancelled on 12/16/2020

958659 12/14/2020 SOLAR ENERGY OF AMERICA 1 LLC 3,057.52 

958660 12/14/2020 Elliott Perkins, Pamela R 220.44 

958661 12/14/2020 Ezroj, David M 418.04 

958662 12/14/2020 Berdan, Jory V 70.25 

958663 12/14/2020 Hernandez, Amariah A 444.19 

958664 12/14/2020 De Smidt, Lauren M 27.03 

958665 12/14/2020 Holbrook, Jamie 165.00 

958666 12/14/2020 CINTAS CORPORATIONS 199.57 

958667 12/14/2020 STATE OF CA. CASHIER TRUST 871 31.00 

958668 12/14/2020 ERIKA AMBRIZ 10.00 

958669 12/14/2020 JAMES CERVELLI 20.00 

958670 12/14/2020 LAURA HOLGUIN 10.00 

958671 12/14/2020 LAURA HOLGUIN 10.00 

958672 12/14/2020 MAIDA JACOBO 20.00 

958673 12/14/2020 MARIA CAMPOS 10.00 

958674 12/14/2020 NANCY ORTIZ 10.00 

958675 12/14/2020 ROSARIO HERNANDEZ MERCADO 10.00 

958676 12/14/2020 SANDRA SANCHEZ 10.00 

958677 12/14/2020 AMERICAN SUPPLY CORP 8,809.92 

958678 12/14/2020 AT&T MOBILITY 3,252.90 

958679 12/14/2020 AVID CENTER 300.00 

958680 12/14/2020 B & H PHOTO 470.70 

958681 12/14/2020 BIOMETRICS4ALL INC 170.43 

958682 12/14/2020 BOOKSHOP SANTA CRUZ INC 19.49 

958683 12/14/2020 CDW GOVERNMENT INC. 52,167.97 

958684 12/14/2020 CENGAGE LEARNING 1,635.90 

958685 12/14/2020 COLIBRI SYSTEM 1,030.65 

958686 12/14/2020 COMPLETE MAILING SERVICE INC 668.72 

958687 12/14/2020 CURTIS DALE POLLOCK 978.75 

958688 12/14/2020 DEMCO INC 494.33 

958689 12/14/2020 FAGEN FRIEDMAN & FULFROST LLP 1,235.00 

958690 12/14/2020 FLYERS ENERGY LLC 286.59 

958691 12/14/2020 FRESHWORKS INC 1,080.00 

958692 12/14/2020 GENERAL BINDING CORP 382.53 

958693 12/14/2020 JIVE COMMUNICATIONS INC 1,288.16 

958694 12/14/2020 JW PEPPER & SON INC 316.83 

958695 12/14/2020 KARINA RUIZ DBA KARINA TEXTILES 978.00 

958696 12/14/2020 MCGRAW HILL EDUC - ORDER DEPT 531.54 

958697 12/14/2020 NAPA AUTO PARTS 101.29 

958698 12/14/2020 NORTH BAY FORD 740.27 

958699 12/14/2020 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 878.50 

958700 12/14/2020 QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC 3,000.00 

958701 12/14/2020 RAY MORGAN CO. 49.12 

958702 12/14/2020 SAFEWAY STORES INC 81.55 

958703 12/14/2020 SAVVAS LEARNING COMPANY LLC 413.18 

958704 12/14/2020 SCHOOL HEALTH SUPPLY CO 339.33 

958705 12/14/2020 SISC 1,190,040.20 

Page 1 of 8

Generated for Michaela Cirerol (MCIREROL), Jan  5 2021  2:12PM014 - Santa Cruz City Schools

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

196/425



Board ReportReqPay12b

Checks Dated 12/08/2020 through 01/05/2021

Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount

958706 12/14/2020 SOLAR ENERGY OF AMERICA 1 LLC 6,383.67 

958707 12/14/2020 SOLAR ENERGY OF AMERICA 1 LLC 5,319.35 

958708 12/14/2020 SOQUEL CREEK WATER DISTRICT 119.82 

958709 12/14/2020 SPCA/NC SCCOE 95.00 

958710 12/14/2020 SPHERO INC 288.56 

958711 12/14/2020 STAPLES TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS 7,299.43 

958712 12/14/2020 TEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE 862.80 

958713 12/14/2020 THERAPRO INC 42.48 

958714 12/14/2020 WOODWIND AND BRASSWIND 915.60 

958715 12/14/2020 WPS 474.00 

958716 12/14/2020 ABACHERLI FENCE CO 1,549.25 

958717 12/14/2020 ACCO-WILSON INC DBA GEO H WILSON 95,280.51 

958718 12/14/2020 BARTOS ARCHITECTURE INC 19,300.00 

958719 12/14/2020 CRW INDUSTRIES INC 31,825.00 

958720 12/14/2020 DEVELOPMENT GROUP INC 75,908.90 

958721 12/14/2020 DIVISION OF STATE ARCHITECT 645.00 

958722 12/14/2020 DIVISION OF STATE ARCHITECT 48,250.00 

958723 12/14/2020 ENVIROPLEX INC 20,204.92 

958724 12/14/2020 FINE STEEL PRODUCTS INC 16,250.00 

958725 12/14/2020 HANKIN SPECIALTY ELEVATORS 3,793.45 

958726 12/14/2020 LOCATELLI MOVING & STORAGE INC 600.00 

958727 12/14/2020 MADI 19SIX ARCHITECTS 5,203.75 

958728 12/14/2020 SWINERTON BUILDERS 514,947.85 

958729 12/14/2020 DEPT OF HOUSING AND COMM DEVEL OPMENT 36.00 

958730 12/14/2020 SOLAR ENERGY OF AMERICA 1 LLC 4,857.38 

958731 12/14/2020 ANDREINA L RODONI 500.00 

958732 12/14/2020 FLOR DANIELA URBINA MARTINEZ 200.00 

958733 12/14/2020 ISAMELY DANIELA DIAZ-CANSECO 200.00 

958734 12/14/2020 JOHANNE TENGLER ORDONEZ 1,000.00 

958735 12/14/2020 SAGE LIEM 500.00 

958736 12/14/2020 SAGE LIEM 1,000.00 

958737 12/14/2020 AA SAFE & LOCK COMPANY 77.30 

958738 12/14/2020 ACE PORTABLE SERVICES 1,149.25 

958739 12/14/2020 ANIMAL DAMAGE MGMT 2,500.00 

958740 12/14/2020 BOBBYS PIT STOP INC 40.75 

958741 12/14/2020 C & N TRACTORS 783.74 

958742 12/14/2020 CINTAS CORPORATIONS 239.84 

958743 12/14/2020 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 1,226.57 

958744 12/14/2020 COMCAST 230.98 

958745 12/14/2020 DILBECK & SONS INC 5,787.63 

958746 12/14/2020 ELITE INTERACTIVE SOLUTIONS LLC 8,105.09 

958747 12/14/2020 FIRST ALARM 795.45 

958748 12/14/2020 GRAINGER INC 193.20 

958749 12/14/2020 HINES PEST & WEED CONTROL DBA R AURIA INC 110.00 

958750 12/14/2020 HOME DEPOT INC 648.33 

958751 12/14/2020 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 204.68 

958752 12/14/2020 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 139.29 

958753 12/14/2020 KONE INC 11,300.62 

958754 12/14/2020 LINCOLN AQUATICS 300.84 

Page 2 of 8

Generated for Michaela Cirerol (MCIREROL), Jan  5 2021  2:12PM014 - Santa Cruz City Schools

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

197/425



Board ReportReqPay12b

Checks Dated 12/08/2020 through 01/05/2021

Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount

958755 12/14/2020 RIVERSIDE LIGHTING 108.36 

958756 12/14/2020 SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME CENTER 209.83 

958757 12/14/2020 SANTA CRUZ AUTO PARTS INC 118.84 

958758 12/14/2020 SANTA CRUZ RECORDS MANAGEMENT 190.00 

958759 12/14/2020 TRI DIM FILTER 2,970.09 

958760 12/14/2020 BALANCE4KIDS 41,670.86 

958761 12/14/2020 HARTFORD LIFE 3,300.80 

958762 12/14/2020 JOSTENS INC 340.86 

958763 12/14/2020 THE HARTFORD LTD ATTN: GROUP BENEFITS 3,657.51 

958764 12/14/2020 DIESELWORKS 3,631.75 

958765 12/14/2020 AMAZON.COM 5,546.84 

Unpaid Tax

5,549.62 Expensed Amount

2.78 

958766 12/14/2020 ABRITE ORGANIZATION, THE 112,945.85 

958767 12/14/2020 Garcia, Yvette C 65.85 

958768 12/14/2020 Laszlo Rath, Michelle A 117.43 

958769 12/14/2020 Valles, Gerardo 15.25 

958770 12/14/2020 Reber, Michelle M 217.79 

958771 12/14/2020 Hernandez, Amariah A 123.70 

958772 12/14/2020 Wall, Lacie M 67.37 

958773 12/14/2020 Castro, Andrew 20.00 

958774 12/14/2020 Escarcega, Adriana G 122.86 

958775 12/14/2020 Gilbert, Lars J 120.00 

958776 12/14/2020 Trumbull, Jesse J 50.13 

958777 12/14/2020 O'Meara, Gregory 227.94 

958778 12/14/2020 Curley IV, Clyde J 30.57 

958779 12/14/2020 Jaffe, Jennifer A 165.15 

958780 12/14/2020 Jonas, Eleanor R 211.83 

958781 12/14/2020 Langley, Deborah J 129.35 

958782 12/14/2020 North, Kristine A 30.58 

959261 12/21/2020 OFFICE DEPOT 655.56 

959262 12/21/2020 Sapunor, Nancy J 496.36 

959263 12/21/2020 JERENE LACEY 7,593.57 

959264 12/21/2020 AMAZON.COM 853.41 

959265 12/21/2020 APPLE COMPUTER INC 8,504.71 

959266 12/21/2020 ARETELABS 225.00 

959267 12/21/2020 B & H PHOTO 127.71 

959268 12/21/2020 BAY CENTRAL PRINTING INC 726.82 

959269 12/21/2020 BRIGHAM YOUNG UNIVERSITY BYU CONTINUING 

EDUCATION

30.00 

959270 12/21/2020 CDW GOVERNMENT INC. 1,864.48 

959271 12/21/2020 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 1,759.94 

959272 12/21/2020 COMPLETE MAILING SERVICE INC 616.42 

959273 12/21/2020 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES INC 77.52 

959274 12/21/2020 DANIELSEN CO. 1,250.11 

959275 12/21/2020 DFA-ACTUARIES LLC 4,500.00 

959276 12/21/2020 DICK BLICK CO. 3,630.14 

959277 12/21/2020 E-CONTROL SYSTEMS INC 400.00 

959278 12/21/2020 EAST BAY RESTAURANT SUPPLY INC 16,596.91 

Page 3 of 8

Generated for Michaela Cirerol (MCIREROL), Jan  5 2021  2:12PM014 - Santa Cruz City Schools

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

198/425



Board ReportReqPay12b

Checks Dated 12/08/2020 through 01/05/2021

Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount

959279 12/21/2020 FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC 451.05 

959280 12/21/2020 GOLD STAR FOODS 1,600.24 

959281 12/21/2020 GREENWASTE RECOVERY INC 6,607.56 

959282 12/21/2020 JENNIFER RUSSO 2,250.00 

959283 12/21/2020 JERENE LACEY 5,034.12 

959284 12/21/2020 JW PEPPER & SON INC 492.66 

959285 12/21/2020 KAJEET INC 10,671.79 

959286 12/21/2020 LEARNING A-Z 115.45 

959287 12/21/2020 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 2,844.29 

959288 12/21/2020 PRODUCERS DAIRY FOODS INC 1,359.54 

959289 12/21/2020 RAY MORGAN CO. 1,975.00 

959290 12/21/2020 RENAISSANCE LEARNING INC 1,300.00 

959291 12/21/2020 RIO GRANDE ALBUQUERQUE INC. 496.33 

959292 12/21/2020 SANTA CRUZ, CITY OF 1,200.53 

959293 12/21/2020 SAVVAS LEARNING COMPANY LLC 45.91 

959294 12/21/2020 SCI CONSULTING GROUP 5,853.88 

959295 12/21/2020 SOQUEL CREEK WATER DISTRICT 15,808.82 

959296 12/21/2020 SPURR 9,793.25 

959297 12/21/2020 T-MOBILE USA INC 601.88 

959298 12/21/2020 VENTURA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 1,075.00 

959299 12/21/2020 WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 1,083.25 

959300 12/21/2020 MACY CRAFT 250.00 

959301 12/21/2020 BELLI ARCHITECTURAL GROUP INC 127,849.61 

959302 12/21/2020 CRW INDUSTRIES INC 200,222.00 

959303 12/21/2020 KIER & WRIGHT CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVERYORS INC 7,200.00 

959304 12/21/2020 LEACH GROUP INC 5,478.00 

959305 12/21/2020 LOCATELLI MOVING & STORAGE INC 2,850.00 

959306 12/21/2020 ONEIDA AIR SYSTEMS INC 19,951.43 

959307 12/21/2020 PSR ELECTRIC 1,800.00 

959308 12/21/2020 SIERRA SCHOOL EQUIPMENT 20,839.00 

959309 12/21/2020 VERDE DESIGN INC 4,890.00 

959310 12/21/2020 CA-NV SECTION AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOC 305.00 

959311 12/21/2020 WATER INDUSTRY TRAINING SPECIALISTS INC 1,500.00 

959312 12/21/2020 Kemos, Jolene C 48.95 

959313 12/21/2020 Saady, Stacey A 106.53 

959314 12/21/2020 LaMotte, Margaret E 74.11 

959315 12/21/2020 Laszlo Rath, Michelle A 158.52 

959316 12/21/2020 Moore, Laura A 187.38 

959317 12/21/2020 Santos Meany, Gabriela M 265.21 

959318 12/21/2020 Letona, Alice M 109.24 

959319 12/21/2020 Sapunor, Nancy J 105.35 

959320 12/21/2020 Martinez, Alyssa M 125.50 

959321 12/21/2020 Tripp, Lisa A 54.60 

959322 12/21/2020 Hedrick-Farr, Amy R 1,949.78 

959323 12/21/2020 Bettar, Brian K 125.04 

959324 12/21/2020 Owechko, Larisa 96.00 

959325 12/21/2020 Uncapher, Erin 10.22 

959326 12/21/2020 Bentley, Thomas K 339.64 

959327 12/21/2020 Hilderbrand, Laurie A 53.17 

Page 4 of 8

Generated for Michaela Cirerol (MCIREROL), Jan  5 2021  2:12PM014 - Santa Cruz City Schools

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

199/425



Board ReportReqPay12b

Checks Dated 12/08/2020 through 01/05/2021

Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount

959328 12/21/2020 O'Meara, Gregory 201.29 

959329 12/21/2020 Rovick, Leif L 91.51 

959330 12/21/2020 Bates, Kristen T 164.32 

959331 12/21/2020 Carmichael, Kendra R 214.54 

959332 12/21/2020 Cramer, Adrienne C 78.52 

959333 12/21/2020 Daniels, Cerise E 61.21 

959334 12/21/2020 Fox, Haylee A 260.24 

959335 12/21/2020 Franks, Dorothy J 32.74 

959336 12/21/2020 Griffith, Kathy L 21.74 

959337 12/21/2020 Hagood, Linda G 249.62 

959338 12/21/2020 Holt, Krista C 154.81 

959339 12/21/2020 Lenz, Kristen F 166.50 

959340 12/21/2020 McCarthy, Maryanne 9.72 

959341 12/21/2020 Semeniuk, Ellen 52.79 

959342 12/21/2020 Vallance, Elizabeth 250.09 

959343 12/21/2020 ACCO-WILSON INC DBA GEO H WILSON 220.00 

959344 12/21/2020 APED 14.12 

959345 12/21/2020 APPI 131.08 

959346 12/21/2020 B & B SMALL ENGINE REPAIR 47.39 

959347 12/21/2020 BELLI ARCHITECTURAL GROUP INC 23,537.11 

959348 12/21/2020 CARBONIC SERVICE INC 2,067.88 

959349 12/21/2020 CINTAS CORPORATIONS 239.84 

959350 12/21/2020 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 4,401.81 

959351 12/21/2020 FASTENAL CO 28.94 

959352 12/21/2020 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 143.23 

959353 12/21/2020 GRANITE ROCK COMPANY 418.42 

959354 12/21/2020 HINES PEST & WEED CONTROL DBA R AURIA INC 95.00 

959355 12/21/2020 HOME DEPOT INC 476.41 

959356 12/21/2020 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 121.90 

959357 12/21/2020 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 70.77 

959358 12/21/2020 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 162.23 

959359 12/21/2020 KONE INC 1,865.25 

959360 12/21/2020 LINCOLN AQUATICS 4,854.85 

959361 12/21/2020 MONTEREY BAY TELECOM SERVICES INC 1,720.10 

959362 12/21/2020 PAPE MATERIAL HANDLING INC 2,315.37 

959363 12/21/2020 SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME CENTER 143.75 

959364 12/21/2020 SCOTTS VALLEY ROCKERY AND LANDSCAPE SUPPLY 2.83 

959740 01/04/2021 BARTOS ARCHITECTURE INC 120,269.50 

959741 01/04/2021 CEN-CON INC 1,237.69 

959742 01/04/2021 CROWE LLP 7,000.00 

959743 01/04/2021 CRW INDUSTRIES INC 170,861.69 

959744 01/04/2021 DEVELOPMENT GROUP INC 2,762.50 

959745 01/04/2021 LOCATELLI MOVING & STORAGE INC 200.00 

959746 01/04/2021 LOZANO SMITH LLP 30,886.60 

959747 01/04/2021 MADI 19SIX ARCHITECTS 46,450.25 

959748 01/04/2021 NOR-CAL CATERING TRUCK REPAIR 23,244.00 

959749 01/04/2021 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 1,652.46 

959750 01/04/2021 TROXELL COMMUNICATIONS INC 23,504.95 

959751 01/04/2021 AMAZON.COM 3,653.19 

Page 5 of 8

Generated for Michaela Cirerol (MCIREROL), Jan  5 2021  2:12PM014 - Santa Cruz City Schools

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

200/425



Board ReportReqPay12b

Checks Dated 12/08/2020 through 01/05/2021

Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount

Unpaid Tax

3,659.44 Expensed Amount

6.25 

959752 01/04/2021 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 4,889.47 

959753 01/04/2021 A SIGN ASAP 329.25 

959754 01/04/2021 ADOBE INC 7,380.00 

959755 01/04/2021 APPLE COMPUTER INC 3,750.39 

959756 01/04/2021 AT&T 59.35 

959757 01/04/2021 AT&T 7,459.09 

959758 01/04/2021 B & H PHOTO 5,683.17 

959759 01/04/2021 BRINKS AWARDS & SIGNS 27.31 

959760 01/04/2021 CALIF DOJ ACCTNG CUST #140415, ORI AB476 461.00 

959761 01/04/2021 CARD SERVICE CENTER 761.22 

959762 01/04/2021 CENTRAL VALLEY COMMUNITY BANK 110.00 

959763 01/04/2021 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 497.63 

959764 01/04/2021 COMICOPOLIS 429.94 

959765 01/04/2021 CROWE LLP 26,050.00 

959766 01/04/2021 CRUZIO 110.40 

959767 01/04/2021 DANIELSEN CO. 1,161.63 

959768 01/04/2021 FARM DISCOVERY AT LIVE EARTH 300.00 

959769 01/04/2021 FLYERS ENERGY LLC 205.31 

959770 01/04/2021 FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC 3,496.00 

959771 01/04/2021 GOLD STAR FOODS 1,452.83 

959772 01/04/2021 HANDWRITING WITHOUT TEARS INC 2,169.60 

959773 01/04/2021 HOME DEPOT INC 537.94 

959774 01/04/2021 JW PEPPER & SON INC 1,768.97 

959775 01/04/2021 KAMI 2,970.00 

959776 01/04/2021 LAW OFFICE OF AMY OPPENHEIMER 636.00 

959777 01/04/2021 MAGNOLIA SUN LLC 2,366.09 

959778 01/04/2021 NAPA AUTO PARTS 28.38 

959779 01/04/2021 NORTHWEST EVALUATION ASSOC DBA NWEA 9,344.70 

959780 01/04/2021 OLIVER PACKAGING & EQUIPMENT 660.96 

959781 01/04/2021 PARLAY IDEAS INC 1,440.00 

959782 01/04/2021 PENINSULA SPORTS INC 1,500.00 

959783 01/04/2021 PRO-ED INC 243.95 

959784 01/04/2021 PRODUCERS DAIRY FOODS INC 1,030.42 

959785 01/04/2021 PROFESSIONAL PLASTICS INC 3,277.50 

959786 01/04/2021 RAY MORGAN CO. 170.00 

959787 01/04/2021 RIVERSIDE INSIGHTS 215.84 

959788 01/04/2021 SCHOOL HEALTH SUPPLY CO 1,811.61 

959789 01/04/2021 SCHOOL SERVICES OF CALIF 275.00 

959790 01/04/2021 STEVE WEISS MUSIC INC 3,092.92 

959791 01/04/2021 WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 550.00 

959792 01/04/2021 WEVIDEO INC 1,750.00 

959793 01/04/2021 WOODWIND AND BRASSWIND 1,493.30 

959794 01/04/2021 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 81.23 

959795 01/04/2021 Sammet, Caroline L 598.09 

959796 01/04/2021 Valles, Gerardo 12.63 

959797 01/04/2021 Finn, Meghann K 99.00 

959798 01/04/2021 Scowcroft, Katy M 32.53 

Page 6 of 8

Generated for Michaela Cirerol (MCIREROL), Jan  5 2021  2:12PM014 - Santa Cruz City Schools

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

201/425



Board ReportReqPay12b

Checks Dated 12/08/2020 through 01/05/2021

Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount

959799 01/04/2021 Daniel, Alison S 450.00 

959800 01/04/2021 Allabach, Angela R 182.42 

959801 01/04/2021 Attema, Karen J 44.70 

959802 01/04/2021 Blanton, Beau J 230.00 

959803 01/04/2021 Cramer, Adrienne C 140.02 

959804 01/04/2021 De Smidt, Lauren M 356.09 

959805 01/04/2021 Diebert, Alyson C 146.11 

959806 01/04/2021 Gradiska, Laura K 40.95 

959807 01/04/2021 Holbrook, Jamie 199.00 

959808 01/04/2021 Tsuchiguchi, Megan Y 262.56 

959809 01/04/2021 4 LESS TERMITE INC 8,895.00 

959810 01/04/2021 APPI 87.38 

959811 01/04/2021 BIG CREEK LUMBER 434.23 

959812 01/04/2021 BOBBYS PIT STOP INC 358.62 

959813 01/04/2021 CARBONIC SERVICE INC 185.68 

959814 01/04/2021 CINTAS CORPORATIONS 196.38 

959815 01/04/2021 COMCAST 230.98 

959816 01/04/2021 CRW INDUSTRIES INC 11,800.00 

959817 01/04/2021 DIRECT LINE TELE RESPONSE 113.00 

959818 01/04/2021 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 973.37 

959819 01/04/2021 HOME DEPOT INC 429.54 

959820 01/04/2021 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 258.92 

959821 01/04/2021 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 60.93 

959822 01/04/2021 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 82.59 

959823 01/04/2021 LINCOLN AQUATICS 27,217.57 

959824 01/04/2021 MBS ENGINEERING INC 16,841.48 

959825 01/04/2021 MONTEREY BAY TELECOM SERVICES INC 1,285.03 

959826 01/04/2021 NORTH GLASS 472.88 

959827 01/04/2021 PACIFIC COAST TRANE - A/R 5,191.00 

959828 01/04/2021 SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME CENTER 596.70 

959829 01/04/2021 SANTA CRUZ AUTO PARTS INC 37.15 

959830 01/04/2021 SUPERIOR ALARM CO 667.00 

3,526,413.71  320Total Number of Checks

Cancel 

AmountCount
1 272.98 

Net Issue 3,526,140.73 

Fund Recap

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

01 GENERAL/COUNTY SCHOOL 1,846,955.10 265 

11 ADULT EDUCATION 252.06 2 

13 CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE 28,755.03 16 

14 DEFERRED MAINTENANCE 23,537.11 1 

21 BUILDING 1,622,021.71 32 

25 CAPITAL FACILITIES 978.75 1 

73 FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRU 3,650.00 7 

Page 7 of 8

Generated for Michaela Cirerol (MCIREROL), Jan  5 2021  2:12PM014 - Santa Cruz City Schools

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

202/425



Board ReportReqPay12b

Checks Dated 12/08/2020 through 01/05/2021

Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 3,526,149.76 319 

9.03 

3,526,140.73 

Page 8 of 8

Generated for Michaela Cirerol (MCIREROL), Jan  5 2021  2:12PM014 - Santa Cruz City Schools

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

203/425



                      

                                                                                                                      AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.3. 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Budget Transfers  
 
MEETING DATE:   January 13, 2021 
  
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent Business Services  
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve 20-21 budget transfers dated from 12/01/20 through 12/31/20.  The report follows.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ed Code 42600 requires that the Board approve budget transfers that are made between major 
expense object codes, or from reserves. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
  

204/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01  

JE # BR21-00574 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment PS-KILN REPAIR
314.00 ( 001972)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5600- 033- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,INSTRUCTION

314.00 ( 001934)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

314.00 314.00 

JE # BR21-00576 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment 1ST INTERIM-BL
6,911.00 ( 014554)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 027- 0052 CRDONATIONS,CLASS:INSTRUCTI,INSTRUCTION

1,195.00 ( 011809)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 027- 0052 CRDONATIONS,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION

280.00 ( 011810)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 027- 0052 CRDONATIONS,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION

10.00 ( 011737)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 027- 0052 CRDONATIONS,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

378.00 ( 011840)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 027- 0052 CRDONATIONS,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

8,774.00 ( 011163)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 027- 0052 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

8,774.00 8,774.00 

JE # BR21-00577 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment 1ST INTERIM-BL
146.00 ( 001673)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 027- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

14.00 ( 001760)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 027- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

18.00 ( 001867)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 027- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

178.00 ( 001930)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 027- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

178.00 178.00 

JE # BR21-00579 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment BD-1ST INTERIM
65,312.00 ( 001058)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7110- 3402- 853- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,HEALTH & WELFAR,BOARD

552.00 ( 002999)  01- 0501- 0- 0000- 6000- 1900- 854- 0000 DRUNION-CERTIFICT,CERT:OTHER-SALA,ENTERPRISE

101.00 ( 003001)  01- 0501- 0- 0000- 6000- 3101- 854- 0000 DRUNION-CERTIFICT,STRS:CERT,ENTERPRISE

75.00 ( 003002)  01- 0501- 0- 0000- 6000- 3331- 854- 0000 DRUNION-CERTIFICT,MEDICARE:CERT,ENTERPRISE

634.00 ( 003003)  01- 0501- 0- 0000- 6000- 3401- 854- 0000 DRUNION-CERTIFICT,HEALTH & WELFAR,ENTERPRISE

2.00 ( 003004)  01- 0501- 0- 0000- 6000- 3501- 854- 0000 DRUNION-CERTIFICT,STATE UNEMPLOYM,ENTERPRISE

155.00 ( 003005)  01- 0501- 0- 0000- 6000- 3601- 854- 0000 DRUNION-CERTIFICT,WORKERS' COMP:C,ENTERPRISE

33,598.00 ( 001599)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 835- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,CERT:TEACHERS S,INSTRUCTION

5,414.00 ( 001697)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 835- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

474.00 ( 001785)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 835- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

4,001.00 ( 001817)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3401- 835- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTRUCTION

17.00 ( 001844)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 835- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

627.00 ( 001892)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 835- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

14,092.00 ( 003960)  01- 0723- 0- 0000- 3600- 3202- 848- 0000 DRTRANSPORT:HOME,PERS:CLASSIFIED,PUPIL TRANSPORT

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 1 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

205/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00579 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment BD-1ST INTERIM(continued)
4,220.00 ( 003962)  01- 0723- 0- 0000- 3600- 3312- 848- 0000 DRTRANSPORT:HOME,FICA:CLASS,PUPIL TRANSPORT

987.00 ( 003964)  01- 0723- 0- 0000- 3600- 3332- 848- 0000 DRTRANSPORT:HOME,MEDICARE:CLASS,PUPIL TRANSPORT

34.00 ( 003966)  01- 0723- 0- 0000- 3600- 3502- 848- 0000 DRTRANSPORT:HOME,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PUPIL TRANSPORT

1,294.00 ( 003968)  01- 0723- 0- 0000- 3600- 3602- 848- 0000 DRTRANSPORT:HOME,WORKERS' COMP:C,PUPIL TRANSPORT

18,920.00 ( 016248)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 3701- 899- 54RT CRNO REPORTING RE,OPEB-ALLOCATED:,SCHOOL ADMINIST

10,104.00 ( 016250)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 3702- 899- 54RT CRNO REPORTING RE,OPEB-ALLOCATED:,SCHOOL ADMINIST

795.00 ( 001115)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3101- 899- 54RT DRNO REPORTING RE,STRS:CERT,OTHER GENERAL A

71.00 ( 021323)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3312- 899- 54RT CRNO REPORTING RE,FICA:CLASS,OTHER GENERAL A

17.00 ( 021322)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3332- 899- 54RT CRNO REPORTING RE,MEDICARE:CLASS,OTHER GENERAL A

245.00 ( 001120)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3401- 899- 54RT DRNO REPORTING RE,HEALTH & WELFAR,OTHER GENERAL A

197.00 ( 001122)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3402- 899- 54RT CRNO REPORTING RE,HEALTH & WELFAR,OTHER GENERAL A

94,621.00 67,317.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00582 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment PS-CUSTOM DECALS
3,196.00 ( 022833)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 533- 0000 CRESSER,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST

3,196.00 ( 021876)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

3,196.00 3,196.00 

JE # BR21-00584 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment GM-EWR FOR STAFF PD
930.00 ( 004594)  01- 3010- 0- 3200- 1000- 1130- 436- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

930.00 ( 004614)  01- 3010- 0- 3200- 1000- 4300- 436- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

930.00 930.00 

JE # BR21-00585 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment GM-EWR STAFF PD
800.00 ( 022835)  01- 3210- 0- 3100- 1000- 1130- 525- 0000 CRESSER,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

800.00 ( 021873)  01- 3210- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 525- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

800.00 800.00 

JE # BR21-00586 JE Trans Date 12/02/2020 JE Posted 12/02/2020 Comment JB-ADMIN CONF
279.00 ( 022861)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 2700- 5200- 534- 0000 CRESSER,TRAVEL & CONFER,SCHOOL ADMINIST

279.00 ( 021877)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 534- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

279.00 279.00 

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 2 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

206/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00587 JE Trans Date 12/02/2020 JE Posted 12/02/2020 Comment BD-1ST INTERIM
30,002.00 ( 019212)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 2490- 1900- 930- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,CERT:OTHER-SALA,OTHER INSTRUCTI

4,803.00 ( 019213)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 2490- 3101- 930- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,STRS:CERT,OTHER INSTRUCTI

401.00 ( 019218)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 2490- 3331- 930- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,MEDICARE:CERT,OTHER INSTRUCTI

3,204.00 ( 019219)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 2490- 3401- 930- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,HEALTH & WELFAR,OTHER INSTRUCTI

14.00 ( 019220)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 2490- 3501- 930- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,STATE UNEMPLOYM,OTHER INSTRUCTI

542.00 ( 019221)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 2490- 3601- 930- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,WORKERS' COMP:C,OTHER INSTRUCTI

32.00 ( 019183)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 530- EMER CRESEA:TEACHER QU,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTRUCTION

19.00 ( 021036)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 530- EMER CRESEA:TEACHER QU,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION

5.00 ( 021037)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 530- EMER CRESEA:TEACHER QU,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION

1.00 ( 021039)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 530- EMER CRESEA:TEACHER QU,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

6.00 ( 021040)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 530- EMER CRESEA:TEACHER QU,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

38,649.00 ( 005582)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 930- 0000 CRESEA:TEACHER QU,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

72.00 ( 020380)  01- 4035- 0- 1160- 1000- 1130- 530- EMER CRESEA:TEACHER QU,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

151.00 ( 020381)  01- 4035- 0- 1160- 1000- 3101- 530- EMER CRESEA:TEACHER QU,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

13.00 ( 020386)  01- 4035- 0- 1160- 1000- 3331- 530- EMER CRESEA:TEACHER QU,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

18.00 ( 020389)  01- 4035- 0- 1160- 1000- 3601- 530- EMER CRESEA:TEACHER QU,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

75,006.00 ( 022851)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2490- 1900- 854- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,CERT:OTHER-SALA,OTHER INSTRUCTI

12,071.00 ( 022852)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2490- 3101- 854- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,STRS:CERT,OTHER INSTRUCTI

981.00 ( 022857)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2490- 3331- 854- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MEDICARE:CERT,OTHER INSTRUCTI

9,329.00 ( 022858)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2490- 3401- 854- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,HEALTH & WELFAR,OTHER INSTRUCTI

35.00 ( 022859)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2490- 3501- 854- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,OTHER INSTRUCTI

1,336.00 ( 022860)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2490- 3601- 854- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,WORKERS' COMP:C,OTHER INSTRUCTI

137,724.00 38,966.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00588 JE Trans Date 12/02/2020 JE Posted 12/02/2020 Comment 1st Interim- JL
14,072.00 ( 019212)  01- 4035- 0- 0000- 2490- 1900- 930- 0000 CRESEA:TEACHER QU,CERT:OTHER-SALA,OTHER INSTRUCTI

14,072.00 ( 005582)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 930- 0000 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

14,072.00 14,072.00 

JE # BR21-00591 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment BLAMBERT-LIBRARY TRAC
300.00 ( 022095)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 535- 0000 CRESSER,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

300.00 ( 021878)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 535- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

300.00 300.00 

JE # BR21-00592 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment PS-SOFTWARE

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 3 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

207/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00592 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment PS-SOFTWARE(continued)
1,440.00 ( 022104)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 533- 0000 CRESSER,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

1,440.00 ( 021876)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

1,440.00 1,440.00 

JE # BR21-00593 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment JB-MATH COMP
362.00 ( 008940)  01- 9016- 0- 1160- 1000- 5800- 034- 3471 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

362.00 ( 008938)  01- 9016- 0- 1160- 1000- 4300- 034- 3471 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

362.00 362.00 

JE # BR21-00594 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment BL-DU74910
340.00 ( 008748)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 023- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

340.00 ( 008459)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 023- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL

300.00 ( 008755)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 027- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

300.00 ( 008474)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 027- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL

28.00 ( 008880)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 032- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

28.00 ( 008486)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 032- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL

75.00 ( 008217)  01- 9010- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 032- 0089 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,

75.00 ( 007562)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8689- 032- 0089 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER FEES

2,500.00 ( 008827)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4200- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,

2,565.00 ( 008772)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

275.00 ( 008881)  01- 9016- 0- 1120- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

50.00 ( 008772)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

5,390.00 ( 008490)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL

150.00 ( 015935)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 3317 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

150.00 ( 016442)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 3317 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL

380.00 ( 008348)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 5800- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PUPIL TESTING S

380.00 ( 007582)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL

250.00 ( 008343)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 4300- 033- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,PUPIL TESTING S

250.00 ( 007582)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 033- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL

230.00 ( 008779)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 3457 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

230.00 ( 008504)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 3457 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL

500.00 ( 008344)  01- 9010- 0- 1294- 3160- 4300- 034- 0088 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,PUPIL TESTING S

500.00 ( 007585)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 034- 0088 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL

81.00 ( 008782)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

81.00 ( 008516)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 4 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

208/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00594 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment BL-DU74910(continued)
300.00 ( 008782)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

300.00 ( 008516)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL

16,048.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00597 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/04/2020 Comment JL-For New Truck
35,000.00 ( 007542)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 6400- 049- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,EQUIPMENT,MAINTENANCE

35,000.00 ( 007535)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE

35,000.00 35,000.00 

JE # BR21-00599 JE Trans Date 12/04/2020 JE Posted 12/04/2020 Comment RB-SCHOOL DATEBOOKS 20/21
420.00 ( 001984)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 027- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

420.00 ( 001930)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 027- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

420.00 420.00 

JE # BR21-00603 JE Trans Date 12/07/2020 JE Posted 12/07/2020 Comment JB-PLANNED PARENTHOOD/CHANGE GOAL
700.00 ( 022915)  01- 9016- 0- 1141- 1000- 5800- 034- 3450 CRDONATIONS,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

1,845.00 ( 008778)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 3450 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

2,545.00 ( 016595)  01- 9016- 0- 1160- 1000- 4200- 034- 3450 DRDONATIONS,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION

2,545.00 2,545.00 

JE # BR21-00604 JE Trans Date 12/07/2020 JE Posted 12/07/2020 Comment BL-SC FTB R.GOULARTE COVID REFUND USE FEE
600.00 ( 007924)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- FACU DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE

600.00 ( 007599)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 049- FACU CROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL

.00 1,200.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00605 JE Trans Date 12/08/2020 JE Posted 12/08/2020 Comment JL-For FAX, Lease PO & Maint PO
15,427.00 ( 001277)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7600- 5600- 899- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,ALL OTHER GENER

32,910.00 ( 001974)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5600- 899- 0020 CRNO REPORTING RE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,INSTRUCTION

54,508.00 ( 001975)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5600- 899- 0030 CRNO REPORTING RE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,INSTRUCTION

102,845.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00606 JE Trans Date 12/08/2020 JE Posted 12/08/2020 Comment BD-COVER NEGATIVES

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 5 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

209/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00606 JE Trans Date 12/08/2020 JE Posted 12/08/2020 Comment BD-COVER NEGATIVES(continued)
9,828.00 ( 004504)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 1000- 1130- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

2,662.00 ( 004505)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 1000- 2130- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION

1,631.00 ( 004506)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 1000- 3101- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

538.00 ( 004508)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 1000- 3202- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTRUCTION

165.00 ( 004510)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 1000- 3312- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION

143.00 ( 004511)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 1000- 3331- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

39.00 ( 004512)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 1000- 3332- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION

5.00 ( 004513)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 1000- 3501- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

2.00 ( 004514)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 1000- 3502- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

193.00 ( 004515)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 1000- 3601- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

53.00 ( 004516)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 1000- 3602- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

3,220.00 ( 004527)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 2700- 1330- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SUPRVSR AD,SCHOOL ADMINIST

3,131.00 ( 004528)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 2700- 2430- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CLASS CLERICAL,SCHOOL ADMINIST

103.00 ( 004529)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 2700- 2490- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CLASS CLERICAL,SCHOOL ADMINIST

540.00 ( 004530)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 2700- 3101- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STRS:CERT,SCHOOL ADMINIST

632.00 ( 004531)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 2700- 3202- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,PERS:CLASSIFIED,SCHOOL ADMINIST

201.00 ( 004532)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 2700- 3312- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,FICA:CLASS,SCHOOL ADMINIST

47.00 ( 004533)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 2700- 3331- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,SCHOOL ADMINIST

47.00 ( 004534)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 2700- 3332- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CLASS,SCHOOL ADMINIST

2.00 ( 004535)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 2700- 3501- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL ADMINIST

2.00 ( 004536)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 2700- 3502- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL ADMINIST

64.00 ( 004537)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 2700- 3601- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL ADMINIST

64.00 ( 004538)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 2700- 3602- 450- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL ADMINIST

23,312.00 ( 004518)  01- 3010- 0- 1115- 1000- 4300- 450- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

23,312.00 23,312.00 

JE # BR21-00607 JE Trans Date 12/08/2020 JE Posted 12/08/2020 Comment ED-MYSTERY SCIENCE MEMBERSHIP
99.00 ( 022919)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5300- 024- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,DUES & MEMBERSH,INSTRUCTION

99.00 ( 001929)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

99.00 99.00 

JE # BR21-00609 JE Trans Date 12/09/2020 JE Posted 12/09/2020 Comment BD-20.21 DSC CREDENTIAL PROGRAM J.SMITH
75.00 ( 015729)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 6500- 830- 0809 DRMeasure T,EQUIPMENT REPLA,INSTRUCTION

75.00 ( 016929)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 5800- 830- 0809 CRMeasure T,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 6 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

210/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

75.00 75.00 

JE # BR21-00610 JE Trans Date 12/09/2020 JE Posted 12/09/2020 Comment JL-Air Ventilation Repairs for District Office
90,000.00 ( 022922)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8500- 5600- 049- 0556 CROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,FACILITIES ACQ

90,000.00 ( 021818)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7600- 4300- 058- 0556 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,ALL OTHER GENER

90,000.00 90,000.00 

JE # BR21-00611 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment JL-For DO Air Projects
90,000.00 ( 022898)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 049- 0556 CROTHER RESTRICTE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE

90,000.00 ( 021818)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 7600- 4300- 058- 0556 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,ALL OTHER GENER

90,000.00 90,000.00 

JE # BR21-00612 JE Trans Date 12/09/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment BD-RENAISSANCE
455.00 ( 018892)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 510- 0020 CRESEA:TEACHER QU,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

845.00 ( 018893)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 510- 0030 CRESEA:TEACHER QU,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

455.00 ( 018888)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 510- 0020 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION

845.00 ( 018889)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 510- 0030 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION

1,300.00 1,300.00 

JE # BR21-00613 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment PS-PHOTOGRAPHY
4,551.00 ( 015719)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 833- 0809 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

4,551.00 ( 015730)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 6500- 833- 0809 DRMeasure T,EQUIPMENT REPLA,INSTRUCTION

4,551.00 4,551.00 

JE # BR21-00614 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment FL-POSTERS W/COVID19 GUIDELINES
400.00 ( 021869)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 521- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

400.00 ( 022950)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 521- 0000 CRESSER,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

400.00 400.00 

JE # BR21-00615 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment BD-PHONEMIC AWARENESS PD
750.00 ( 022917)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 523- 0000 CRESSER,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION

750.00 ( 021870)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 523- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 7 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

211/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

750.00 750.00 

JE # BR21-00616 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment JL-Correct Small Group Tutoring for Monarch
5,400.00 ( 022793)  01- 3215- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 525- 0000 DRGEER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

5,400.00 ( 022800)  01- 3215- 0- 3100- 1000- 1130- 825- 0000 CRGEER,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

5,400.00 5,400.00 

JE # BR21-00617 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment BL-DU75096 SHS UCSC CK1749885 A.MANAGO DON.DAT
500.00 ( 008782)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0051 CRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

500.00 ( 008516)  01- 9016- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 035- 0051 DRDONATIONS,ALL OTHER LOCAL

1,000.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00618 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment RB-SUBSCRIPTION ONLINE SVCS
430.00 ( 022951)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 527- 0000 CRGEER,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

430.00 ( 021903)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 527- 0000 DRGEER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

430.00 430.00 

JE # BR21-00619 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment ST-Adj from stipend account
8,088.00 ( 015616)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 1160- 833- 0809 DRMeasure T,CERT SALARY:STI,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

590.00 ( 015577)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 3101- 833- 0809 DRMeasure T,STRS:CERT,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

79.00 ( 015582)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 3331- 833- 0809 DRMeasure T,MEDICARE:CERT,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

171.00 ( 015585)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 3601- 833- 0809 DRMeasure T,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

6,072.00 ( 015616)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 1160- 833- 0809 CRMeasure T,CERT SALARY:STI,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

6,072.00 ( 015635)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 2160- 833- 0809 DRMeasure T,CLASS INSTR AID,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

8,928.00 ( 016973)  01- 0809- 0- 0000- 7300- 4399- 058- 0809 CRMeasure T,HOLDING ACCOUNT,FISCAL SERVICES

15,000.00 15,000.00 

JE # BR21-00620 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment ST-Adj Budget to Actuals
18,412.00 ( 015693)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 1100- 835- 0809 DRMeasure T,CERT:TEACHERS S,INSTRUCTION

3,861.00 ( 015694)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 3101- 835- 0809 DRMeasure T,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

807.00 ( 015699)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 3331- 835- 0809 DRMeasure T,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

14.00 ( 015698)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 3311- 835- 0809 CRMeasure T,FICA:CERT,INSTRUCTION

3,930.00 ( 015700)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 3401- 835- 0809 DRMeasure T,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTRUCTION

28.00 ( 015701)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 3501- 835- 0809 DRMeasure T,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 8 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

212/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00620 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment ST-Adj Budget to Actuals(continued)
1,264.00 ( 015702)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 3601- 835- 0809 DRMeasure T,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

28,289.00 ( 016973)  01- 0809- 0- 0000- 7300- 4399- 058- 0809 CRMeasure T,HOLDING ACCOUNT,FISCAL SERVICES

28,303.00 28,302.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00621 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment ST-Adj Budgets to Actuals
6,078.00 ( 015684)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 3101- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

577.00 ( 015689)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 3331- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

1,027.00 ( 015692)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 3601- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

186.00 ( 015712)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 3601- 836- 0809 DRMeasure T,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

7,868.00 ( 016973)  01- 0809- 0- 0000- 7300- 4399- 058- 0809 CRMeasure T,HOLDING ACCOUNT,FISCAL SERVICES

7,868.00 7,868.00 

JE # BR21-00622 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment ST-Adj to Actuals
1,088.00 ( 015589)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 3201- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,PERS:CERT,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

704.00 ( 015591)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 3311- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,FICA:CERT,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

126.00 ( 015592)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 3331- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,MEDICARE:CERT,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

215.00 ( 015595)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 3601- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

3,445.00 ( 015641)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 2160- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,CLASS INSTR AID,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

5,578.00 ( 016973)  01- 0809- 0- 0000- 7300- 4399- 058- 0809 CRMeasure T,HOLDING ACCOUNT,FISCAL SERVICES

5,578.00 5,578.00 

JE # BR21-00623 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment JL-Move to PPE Set Asides
3,566.00 ( 021117)  01- 7420- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRLEARN LOSS MITI,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

3,566.00 ( 022175)  01- 7420- 0- 5770- 1190- 5800- 230- 0000 DRLEARN LOSS MITI,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:OTHER SPEC I

3,566.00 3,566.00 

JE # BR21-00624 JE Trans Date 12/11/2020 JE Posted 12/11/2020 Comment JL-Balance Rev/Exp for Res 7420
601.00 ( 021116)  01- 7420- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRLEARN LOSS MITI,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

601.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00625 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment ST-Adj Cert Stipends from 2160
6,087.00 ( 016973)  01- 0809- 0- 0000- 7300- 4399- 058- 0809 CRMeasure T,HOLDING ACCOUNT,FISCAL SERVICES

6,078.00 ( 015647)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 2160- 835- 0809 DRMeasure T,CLASS INSTR AID,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 9 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

213/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00625 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment ST-Adj Cert Stipends from 2160(continued)
9.00 ( 015618)  01- 0809- 0- 1400- 4200- 1160- 835- 0809 DRMeasure T,CERT SALARY:STI,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

6,087.00 6,087.00 

JE # BR21-00626 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment GM-SMALL COHORT SUPPORT
2,400.00 ( 004585)  01- 3010- 0- 3100- 1000- 4300- 425- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

2,400.00 ( 022953)  01- 3010- 0- 3100- 1000- 1130- 425- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

2,400.00 2,400.00 

JE # BR21-00627 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment GM-SMALL COHORT SUPPORT
2,400.00 ( 003641)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 025- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

2,400.00 ( 016974)  01- 0700- 0- 3100- 1000- 1130- 025- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

2,400.00 2,400.00 

JE # BR21-00628 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment JL-Cover negatives
182.00 ( 021144)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 820- 0000 CRSB 117 PPE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

182.00 ( 018879)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 020- 0000 DRSB 117 PPE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

2,040.00 ( 021145)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 830- 0000 CRSB 117 PPE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

2,039.00 ( 018880)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 030- 0000 DRSB 117 PPE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

1.00 ( 022821)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 3700- 5800- 830- 0000 DRSB 117 PPE,PROF/CONSULT SE,FOOD SERVICES

2,222.00 2,222.00 

JE # BR21-00629 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment BD-LLMF EWRS
120.00 ( 022835)  01- 3210- 0- 3100- 1000- 1130- 525- 0000 DRESSER,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

100.00 ( 022836)  01- 3210- 0- 3100- 1000- 3101- 525- 0000 CRESSER,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

8.00 ( 022841)  01- 3210- 0- 3100- 1000- 3331- 525- 0000 CRESSER,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

1.00 ( 022843)  01- 3210- 0- 3100- 1000- 3501- 525- 0000 CRESSER,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

11.00 ( 022844)  01- 3210- 0- 3100- 1000- 3601- 525- 0000 CRESSER,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

120.00 120.00 

JE # BR21-00630 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment JL-Move budgets for EMER and SCCOE-PPE invoice
15,801.00 ( 018848)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 899- EMER DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

3,848.00 ( 021261)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 820- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

7,146.00 ( 021262)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 830- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 10 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

214/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00630 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment JL-Move budgets for EMER and SCCOE-PPE invoice(continued)
830.00 ( 021261)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 820- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

1,541.00 ( 021262)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 830- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

7,953.00 ( 020509)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 020- 0000 DRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

10,859.00 ( 020510)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 030- 0000 DRESSER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

13,365.00 34,613.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00631 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment JL-Cover Negatives
3,275.00 ( 021261)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 820- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

2,172.00 ( 021262)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 830- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

5,447.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00632 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment JL-Cover Negative Salaries 820 &  855
1,596.00 ( 022772)  01- 3215- 0- 0000- 2110- 2430- 855- 0000 CRGEER,CLASS CLERICAL,INSTRUCTIONAL S

46.00 ( 022777)  01- 3215- 0- 0000- 2110- 3312- 855- 0000 CRGEER,FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTIONAL S

11.00 ( 022778)  01- 3215- 0- 0000- 2110- 3332- 855- 0000 CRGEER,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTIONAL S

15.00 ( 022781)  01- 3215- 0- 0000- 2110- 3602- 855- 0000 CRGEER,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTIONAL S

584.00 ( 020661)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRGEER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

1,084.00 ( 020662)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 DRGEER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

62.00 ( 022762)  01- 3215- 0- 0000- 2495- 2930- 820- 0000 CRGEER,OTHER CLASS SAL,PARENT PARTICIP

13.00 ( 022766)  01- 3215- 0- 0000- 2495- 3202- 820- 0000 CRGEER,PERS:CLASSIFIED,PARENT PARTICIP

4.00 ( 022767)  01- 3215- 0- 0000- 2495- 3312- 820- 0000 CRGEER,FICA:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP

1.00 ( 022768)  01- 3215- 0- 0000- 2495- 3332- 820- 0000 CRGEER,MEDICARE:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP

1.00 ( 022771)  01- 3215- 0- 0000- 2495- 3602- 820- 0000 CRGEER,WORKERS' COMP:C,PARENT PARTICIP

81.00 ( 020661)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRGEER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

1,749.00 1,749.00 

JE # BR21-00633 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment JL-To Repair Gas Leak-MBS Engineering
16,842.00 ( 007539)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 049- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE

16,842.00 ( 007535)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE

16,842.00 16,842.00 

JE # BR21-00634 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment GM-DIPLOMA PRINTING
140.00 ( 000579)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 838- 0014 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST

140.00 ( 000616)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5800- 838- 0014 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 11 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

215/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

140.00 140.00 

JE # BR21-00635 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment BD- TITLE I PD EWRS
144.00 ( 004594)  01- 3010- 0- 3200- 1000- 1130- 436- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

120.00 ( 004599)  01- 3010- 0- 3200- 1000- 3101- 436- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

10.00 ( 004603)  01- 3010- 0- 3200- 1000- 3331- 436- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

1.00 ( 004607)  01- 3010- 0- 3200- 1000- 3501- 436- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

13.00 ( 004610)  01- 3010- 0- 3200- 1000- 3601- 436- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

144.00 144.00 

JE # BR21-00636 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment BD-EWR 23224 KING
1,800.00 ( 022754)  01- 3182- 0- 3200- 1000- 2130- 436- 0000 CRESSA (CSI),CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION

112.00 ( 022755)  01- 3182- 0- 3200- 1000- 3312- 436- 0000 CRESSA (CSI),FICA:CLASS,INSTRUCTION

26.00 ( 022756)  01- 3182- 0- 3200- 1000- 3332- 436- 0000 CRESSA (CSI),MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTRUCTION

1.00 ( 022758)  01- 3182- 0- 3200- 1000- 3502- 436- 0000 CRESSA (CSI),STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

36.00 ( 022759)  01- 3182- 0- 3200- 1000- 3602- 436- 0000 CRESSA (CSI),WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

1,975.00 ( 022374)  01- 3182- 0- 3200- 1000- 4300- 436- 0000 DRESSA (CSI),MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

1,975.00 1,975.00 

JE # BR21-00637 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment BD-LLMF EWRS
4,260.00 ( 022000)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 535- 0000 DRESSER,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

3,577.00 ( 022001)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 535- 0000 CRESSER,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

282.00 ( 022006)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 535- 0000 CRESSER,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

10.00 ( 022008)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 535- 0000 CRESSER,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

391.00 ( 022009)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 535- 0000 CRESSER,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

4,260.00 4,260.00 

JE # BR21-00638 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment ST-Adj to PC
1,270.00 ( 018209)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 1100- 521- 0808 DRMeasure U,CERT:TEACHERS S,INSTRUCTION

233.00 ( 018210)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3101- 521- 0808 DRMeasure U,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

2,288.00 ( 018216)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3401- 521- 0808 DRMeasure U,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTRUCTION

470.00 ( 018008)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 1100- 521- 0808 DRMeasure U,CERT:TEACHERS S,INSTRUCTION

87.00 ( 018009)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3101- 521- 0808 DRMeasure U,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

37.00 ( 018014)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3331- 521- 0808 DRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

295.00 ( 018015)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3401- 521- 0808 DRMeasure U,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTRUCTION

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 12 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

216/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00638 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment ST-Adj to PC(continued)
73.00 ( 018017)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3601- 521- 0808 DRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

487.00 ( 021868)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 3110- 1240- 821- 0808 CRMeasure U,CERT PUPIL SUPP,GUIDANCE & COUN

79.00 ( 019297)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 3110- 3101- 821- 0808 CRMeasure U,STRS:CERT,GUIDANCE & COUN

268.00 ( 019301)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 3110- 3311- 821- 0808 CRMeasure U,FICA:CERT,GUIDANCE & COUN

69.00 ( 019302)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 3110- 3331- 821- 0808 CRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CERT,GUIDANCE & COUN

3.00 ( 019304)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 3110- 3501- 821- 0808 CRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,GUIDANCE & COUN

94.00 ( 019305)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 3110- 3601- 821- 0808 CRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,GUIDANCE & COUN

82,162.00 ( 017574)  01- 0808- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 058- 0808 CRMeasure U,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

386.00 ( 018219)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 1100- 523- 0808 DRMeasure U,CERT:TEACHERS S,INSTRUCTION

553.00 ( 018220)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3101- 523- 0808 DRMeasure U,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

1,028.00 ( 018226)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3401- 523- 0808 DRMeasure U,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTRUCTION

268.00 ( 018228)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3601- 523- 0808 DRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

754.00 ( 018028)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 1100- 523- 0808 DRMeasure U,CERT:TEACHERS S,INSTRUCTION

139.00 ( 018029)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3101- 523- 0808 DRMeasure U,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

11.00 ( 018034)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3331- 523- 0808 DRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

15.00 ( 018037)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3601- 523- 0808 DRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

447.00 ( 018239)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 1100- 524- 0808 DRMeasure U,CERT:TEACHERS S,INSTRUCTION

97.00 ( 018240)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3101- 524- 0808 DRMeasure U,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

95.00 ( 018245)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3331- 524- 0808 DRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

3,870.00 ( 018246)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3401- 524- 0808 DRMeasure U,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTRUCTION

3.00 ( 018247)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3501- 524- 0808 DRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

161.00 ( 018248)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3601- 524- 0808 DRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

5,848.00 ( 018038)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 1100- 524- 0808 DRMeasure U,CERT:TEACHERS S,INSTRUCTION

955.00 ( 018039)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3101- 524- 0808 DRMeasure U,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

84.00 ( 018044)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3331- 524- 0808 DRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

7,756.00 ( 018045)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3401- 524- 0808 DRMeasure U,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTRUCTION

2.00 ( 018046)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3501- 524- 0808 DRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

121.00 ( 018047)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3601- 524- 0808 DRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

457.00 ( 018058)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 1100- 527- 0808 DRMeasure U,CERT:TEACHERS S,INSTRUCTION

117.00 ( 018398)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3101- 527- 0808 DRMeasure U,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

62.00 ( 018403)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3331- 527- 0808 DRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

448.00 ( 018404)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3401- 527- 0808 DRMeasure U,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTRUCTION

2.00 ( 018405)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3501- 527- 0808 DRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

120.00 ( 018406)  01- 0808- 0- 1120- 1000- 3601- 527- 0808 DRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

470.00 ( 018018)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 1100- 527- 0808 DRMeasure U,CERT:TEACHERS S,INSTRUCTION

87.00 ( 018019)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3101- 527- 0808 DRMeasure U,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

37.00 ( 018024)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3331- 527- 0808 DRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 13 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

217/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00638 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment ST-Adj to PC(continued)
295.00 ( 018025)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3401- 527- 0808 DRMeasure U,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTRUCTION

1.00 ( 018026)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3501- 527- 0808 DRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

73.00 ( 018027)  01- 0808- 0- 1250- 1000- 3601- 527- 0808 DRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

1,800.00 ( 022939)  01- 0808- 0- 1260- 1000- 2130- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION

11,817.00 ( 020425)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 2495- 4300- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,MATERIALS & SUP,PARENT PARTICIP

2,700.00 ( 022933)  01- 0808- 0- 1110- 1000- 2130- 831- 0808 CRMeasure U,CLASS INSTR AID,INSTRUCTION

12,517.00 ( 019223)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 2495- 2200- 831- 0808 DRMeasure U,CLASS:SUPPORT S,PARENT PARTICIP

2,591.00 ( 019227)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 2495- 3202- 831- 0808 DRMeasure U,PERS:CLASSIFIED,PARENT PARTICIP

776.00 ( 019228)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 2495- 3312- 831- 0808 DRMeasure U,FICA:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP

182.00 ( 019229)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 2495- 3332- 831- 0808 DRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CLASS,PARENT PARTICIP

6.00 ( 019231)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 2495- 3502- 831- 0808 DRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PARENT PARTICIP

245.00 ( 019232)  01- 0808- 0- 0000- 2495- 3602- 831- 0808 DRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,PARENT PARTICIP

23,051.00 ( 015153)  01- 0808- 0- 3100- 2420- 1200- 838- 0808 DRMeasure U,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,INSTR LIBRARY,

3,723.00 ( 015154)  01- 0808- 0- 3100- 2420- 3101- 838- 0808 DRMeasure U,STRS:CERT,INSTR LIBRARY,

334.00 ( 015159)  01- 0808- 0- 3100- 2420- 3331- 838- 0808 DRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTR LIBRARY,

7,168.00 ( 015160)  01- 0808- 0- 3100- 2420- 3401- 838- 0808 DRMeasure U,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTR LIBRARY,

12.00 ( 015161)  01- 0808- 0- 3100- 2420- 3501- 838- 0808 DRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTR LIBRARY,

463.00 ( 015162)  01- 0808- 0- 3100- 2420- 3601- 838- 0808 DRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTR LIBRARY,

15,355.00 ( 015511)  01- 0808- 0- 3300- 2420- 2200- 839- 0808 DRMeasure U,CLASS:SUPPORT S,INSTR LIBRARY,

25.00 ( 015515)  01- 0808- 0- 3300- 2420- 3202- 839- 0808 CRMeasure U,PERS:CLASSIFIED,INSTR LIBRARY,

990.00 ( 015516)  01- 0808- 0- 3300- 2420- 3312- 839- 0808 DRMeasure U,FICA:CLASS,INSTR LIBRARY,

231.00 ( 015517)  01- 0808- 0- 3300- 2420- 3332- 839- 0808 DRMeasure U,MEDICARE:CLASS,INSTR LIBRARY,

2,008.00 ( 015518)  01- 0808- 0- 3300- 2420- 3402- 839- 0808 DRMeasure U,HEALTH & WELFAR,INSTR LIBRARY,

7.00 ( 015519)  01- 0808- 0- 3300- 2420- 3502- 839- 0808 DRMeasure U,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTR LIBRARY,

330.00 ( 015520)  01- 0808- 0- 3300- 2420- 3602- 839- 0808 DRMeasure U,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTR LIBRARY,

99,504.00 99,504.00 

JE # BR21-00639 JE Trans Date 12/15/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment PS-KAMI
99.00 ( 022104)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 533- 0000 CRESSER,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

99.00 ( 021876)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

99.00 99.00 

JE # BR21-00640 JE Trans Date 12/15/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment PS-IB WORKSHOPS
2,700.00 ( 004465)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 433- 0044 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION

2,700.00 ( 004442)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 433- 0044 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 14 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

218/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

2,700.00 2,700.00 

JE # BR21-00641 JE Trans Date 12/15/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment FL-PADLET
100.00 ( 022950)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 521- 0000 CRESSER,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

100.00 ( 021869)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 521- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

100.00 100.00 

JE # BR21-00642 JE Trans Date 12/15/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment BLAMBERT-SOLID PROFESSOR
750.00 ( 005490)  01- 3550- 0- 6000- 1000- 5800- 435- 0000 CRC. PERKINS CTE:,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

750.00 ( 005482)  01- 3550- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 435- 0000 DRC. PERKINS CTE:,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

750.00 750.00 

JE # BR21-00643 JE Trans Date 12/15/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment BD-ADJUSTING PRIVATE SCHOOL PD
118.00 ( 018888)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 510- 0020 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION

199.00 ( 018890)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5200- 511- 0020 DRESEA:TEACHER QU,TRAVEL & CONFER,INSTRUCTION

317.00 ( 005581)  01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 920- 0000 CRESEA:TEACHER QU,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

317.00 317.00 

JE # BR21-00644 JE Trans Date 12/15/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment JL-Cover Negatives
8,096.00 ( 022245)  01- 3220- 0- 0000- 2700- 2430- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,CLASS CLERICAL,SCHOOL ADMINIST

1,133.00 ( 022831)  01- 3220- 0- 0000- 2700- 2440- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,CLASS CLERICAL,SCHOOL ADMINIST

70.00 ( 022250)  01- 3220- 0- 0000- 2700- 3312- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,FICA:CLASS,SCHOOL ADMINIST

16.00 ( 022251)  01- 3220- 0- 0000- 2700- 3332- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,MEDICARE:CLASS,SCHOOL ADMINIST

1.00 ( 022253)  01- 3220- 0- 0000- 2700- 3502- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SCHOOL ADMINIST

22.00 ( 022254)  01- 3220- 0- 0000- 2700- 3602- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,WORKERS' COMP:C,SCHOOL ADMINIST

9,504.00 ( 021189)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

1,466.00 ( 021074)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

26.00 ( 021078)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,FICA:CERT,INSTRUCTION

1.00 ( 021330)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 530- 0000 CRCRF COVID,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

135.00 ( 021079)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

6.00 ( 021081)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

187.00 ( 021082)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

20,663.00 ( 020664)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 DRCRF COVID,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

5,184.00 ( 021188)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 820- 0000 CRCRF COVID,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

814.00 ( 021064)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 820- 0000 CRCRF COVID,STRS:CERT,INSTRUCTION

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 15 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

219/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00644 JE Trans Date 12/15/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment JL-Cover Negatives(continued)
9.00 ( 021068)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 820- 0000 CRCRF COVID,FICA:CERT,INSTRUCTION

74.00 ( 021069)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 820- 0000 CRCRF COVID,MEDICARE:CERT,INSTRUCTION

3.00 ( 021071)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 820- 0000 CRCRF COVID,STATE UNEMPLOYM,INSTRUCTION

102.00 ( 021072)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 820- 0000 CRCRF COVID,WORKERS' COMP:C,INSTRUCTION

6,186.00 ( 020663)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRCRF COVID,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

26,849.00 26,849.00 

JE # BR21-00645 JE Trans Date 12/15/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment JL-Move to Cover Hotspots for Jan-June
62,400.00 ( 022961)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 5900- 830- 0000 CRGEER,COMMUNICATIONS,INSTRUCTION

62,400.00 ( 020662)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 DRGEER,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

62,400.00 62,400.00 

JE # BR21-00647 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment JL-For Chief of Communications (PIO) .50 Unit/.50 Bond Spl
25,036.00 ( 022963)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7180- 2300- 853- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,CLASS:SUPER & A,PUBLIC INFORMAT

5,182.00 ( 022967)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7180- 3202- 853- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PERS:CLASSIFIED,PUBLIC INFORMAT

1,552.00 ( 022968)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7180- 3312- 853- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,FICA:CLASS,PUBLIC INFORMAT

363.00 ( 022969)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7180- 3332- 853- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MEDICARE:CLASS,PUBLIC INFORMAT

13.00 ( 022971)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7180- 3502- 853- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PUBLIC INFORMAT

490.00 ( 022972)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7180- 3602- 853- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,WORKERS' COMP:C,PUBLIC INFORMAT

32,636.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00648 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment JL-Add H&W to PIO Position
5,050.00 ( 022970)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7180- 3402- 853- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,HEALTH & WELFAR,PUBLIC INFORMAT

5,050.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00651 JE Trans Date 12/17/2020 JE Posted 12/17/2020 Comment BLAMBERT-SC SAW & TOOL
500.00 ( 005490)  01- 3550- 0- 6000- 1000- 5800- 435- 0000 CRC. PERKINS CTE:,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

500.00 ( 005482)  01- 3550- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 435- 0000 DRC. PERKINS CTE:,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

500.00 500.00 

JE # BR21-00652 JE Trans Date 12/17/2020 JE Posted 12/17/2020 Comment JL-Move Res 3220 Budgets
56.00 ( 022372)  01- 3220- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 220- 0000 DRCRF COVID,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

104.00 ( 022373)  01- 3220- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 230- 0000 DRCRF COVID,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 16 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

220/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00652 JE Trans Date 12/17/2020 JE Posted 12/17/2020 Comment JL-Move Res 3220 Budgets(continued)
32.00 ( 021741)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 820- 0000 DRCRF COVID,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

5,228.00 ( 022363)  01- 3220- 0- 1250- 1000- 4300- 530- 0000 DRCRF COVID,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

3.00 ( 022794)  01- 3220- 0- 0000- 7110- 4400- 820- 0000 DRCRF COVID,NON-CAPITALIZED,BOARD

6.00 ( 022795)  01- 3220- 0- 0000- 7110- 4400- 830- 0000 DRCRF COVID,NON-CAPITALIZED,BOARD

56.00 ( 020799)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 520- 0000 DRCRF COVID,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

184.00 ( 020812)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 5800- 530- 0000 DRCRF COVID,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

152.00 ( 021041)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 5900- 857- 0000 DRCRF COVID,COMMUNICATIONS,INSTRUCTION

1.00 ( 020811)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 5900- 899- 0000 DRCRF COVID,COMMUNICATIONS,INSTRUCTION

201.00 ( 020663)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 CRCRF COVID,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

5,621.00 ( 020664)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

5,822.00 5,822.00 

JE # BR21-00653 JE Trans Date 12/17/2020 JE Posted 12/17/2020 Comment BL-DU75275 ETR CS FOR ALL
42,505.00 ( 008288)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 500- 4050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

42,505.00 ( 007608)  01- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 500- 4050 DROTHER RESTRICTE,ALL OTHER LOCAL

85,010.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00654 JE Trans Date 12/17/2020 JE Posted 12/17/2020 Comment BD- COVER NEGATIVES
87,012.00 ( 021020)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 2490- 1900- 500- 4050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,CERT:OTHER-SALA,OTHER INSTRUCTI

12,994.00 ( 018661)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 2490- 3101- 500- 4050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,STRS:CERT,OTHER INSTRUCTI

1,199.00 ( 018666)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 2490- 3331- 500- 4050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MEDICARE:CERT,OTHER INSTRUCTI

6,613.00 ( 018667)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 2490- 3401- 500- 4050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,HEALTH & WELFAR,OTHER INSTRUCTI

42.00 ( 018668)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 2490- 3501- 500- 4050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,STATE UNEMPLOYM,OTHER INSTRUCTI

1,619.00 ( 018669)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 2490- 3601- 500- 4050 CROTHER RESTRICTE,WORKERS' COMP:C,OTHER INSTRUCTI

800.00 ( 023119)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 520- 0000 CROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

110,279.00 ( 008288)  01- 9010- 0- 1150- 1000- 4300- 500- 4050 DROTHER RESTRICTE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

110,279.00 110,279.00 

JE # BR21-00655 JE Trans Date 12/17/2020 JE Posted 12/17/2020 Comment DMG-ADVERTISING OF JOBS
175.00 ( 001206)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7400- 4300- 047- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,PERSONNEL/HUMAN

175.00 ( 001218)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7400- 5300- 047- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,DUES & MEMBERSH,PERSONNEL/HUMAN

175.00 175.00 

JE # BR21-00656 JE Trans Date 12/17/2020 JE Posted 12/17/2020 Comment ED-POSTAGE

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 17 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

221/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BR21-00656 JE Trans Date 12/17/2020 JE Posted 12/17/2020 Comment ED-POSTAGE(continued)
13.00 ( 023121)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 5900- 024- 0051 CRDONATIONS,COMMUNICATIONS,INSTRUCTION

13.00 ( 008752)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

13.00 13.00 

JE # BR21-00657 JE Trans Date 12/17/2020 JE Posted 12/18/2020 Comment BW-REPAIRS
5,000.00 ( 007535)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4300- 049- 0000 DRONGOING & MAJOR,MATERIALS & SUP,MAINTENANCE

5,000.00 ( 007539)  01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5600- 049- 0000 CRONGOING & MAJOR,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,MAINTENANCE

5,000.00 5,000.00 

JE # BR21-00658 JE Trans Date 12/18/2020 JE Posted 12/18/2020 Comment ST-Cover Naviance Negative
1,175.00 ( 014613)  01- 6388- 0- 6000- 1000- 5800- 430- 0000 CRStrong Workforc,PROF/CONSULT SE,INSTRUCTION

1,175.00 ( 021827)  01- 6388- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 430- 0000 DRStrong Workforc,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

1,175.00 1,175.00 

JE # BR21-00659 JE Trans Date 12/15/2020 JE Posted 12/18/2020 Comment ST-Measure U Holding to 9790
395,758.00 ( 017574)  01- 0808- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 058- 0808 CRMeasure U,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

395,758.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00660 JE Trans Date 12/18/2020 JE Posted 12/18/2020 Comment ST-Adj Negative Budget
9,142.00 ( 016973)  01- 0809- 0- 0000- 7300- 4399- 058- 0809 CRMeasure T,HOLDING ACCOUNT,FISCAL SERVICES

10,650.00 ( 022093)  01- 0809- 0- 0000- 7300- 4399- 058- 0807 DRMeasure T,HOLDING ACCOUNT,FISCAL SERVICES

9,142.00 10,650.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00661 JE Trans Date 12/18/2020 JE Posted 12/18/2020 Comment ST-Air Purifiers per JM
2,100.00 ( 018848)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 899- EMER CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

2,100.00 ( 001627)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1140- 834- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,CERT SALARY:SUB,INSTRUCTION

2,100.00 2,100.00 

JE # BT21-00269 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment BLAMBERT-B&H PHOTO
850.00 ( 005486)  01- 3550- 0- 6000- 1000- 4400- 435- 0000 CRC. PERKINS CTE:,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION

850.00 ( 005482)  01- 3550- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 435- 0000 DRC. PERKINS CTE:,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 18 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

222/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

850.00 850.00 

JE # BT21-00270 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment AMB-REVERSE-ABRITE/BAY SCH/BRITE H. ADJ
72,475.00 ( 006875)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5100- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

72,475.00 ( 006877)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

88,336.00 ( 006876)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5100- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

88,336.00 ( 006878)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

597,665.00 ( 006671)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5100- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

597,665.00 ( 006674)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

91,450.00 ( 006670)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5100- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

91,450.00 ( 006672)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

321,645.00 ( 006671)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5100- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

321,645.00 ( 006674)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

1,171,571.00 1,171,571.00 

JE # BT21-00271 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment AMB-5770 GOAL,ADJ PO CORRECT ELEM OBJ
72,745.00 ( 006875)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5100- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

72,745.00 ( 006877)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

28,290.00 ( 006875)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5100- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

28,290.00 ( 006877)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

24,530.00 ( 006875)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5100- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

24,530.00 ( 006877)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

125,565.00 125,565.00 

JE # BT21-00272 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment AMB-BRITE H. PO ADJ CHG CORRECT ELEM OBJ
91,450.00 ( 006670)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5100- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

91,450.00 ( 006672)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

91,450.00 91,450.00 

JE # BT21-00273 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment BLAMBERT-SUPPLIES
1,000.00 ( 000569)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 035- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST

1,000.00 ( 001936)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 035- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

1,000.00 1,000.00 

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 19 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

223/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BT21-00274 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment AMB-REVERSE-ABRITE/BAY SCH/BRITE H. ADJ
72,475.00 ( 006875)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5100- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

72,475.00 ( 006877)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

88,336.00 ( 006876)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5100- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

88,336.00 ( 006878)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

597,665.00 ( 006671)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5100- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

597,665.00 ( 006674)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

91,450.00 ( 006670)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5100- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

91,450.00 ( 006672)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

321,645.00 ( 006671)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5100- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

321,645.00 ( 006674)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

1,171,571.00 1,171,571.00 

JE # BT21-00275 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment PS-SUPPLIES, DECALS
3,593.00 ( 022834)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 533- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST

3,593.00 ( 021876)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

3,593.00 3,593.00 

JE # BT21-00276 JE Trans Date 12/01/2020 JE Posted 12/01/2020 Comment PS-CORRECTION
1.00 ( 022834)  01- 3210- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 533- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST

1.00 ( 021876)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

1.00 1.00 

JE # BT21-00277 JE Trans Date 12/02/2020 JE Posted 12/02/2020 Comment PS-CRIMINAL JUSTICE BOOKS
4,354.00 ( 004418)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 433- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION

4,354.00 ( 004441)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 433- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

4,354.00 4,354.00 

JE # BT21-00280 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment AMB-FINAL CRCTN 6512TRIUMPH/6500 STEPS PO
20,294.00 ( 007160)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3110- 5800- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,PROF/CONSULT SE,GUIDANCE & COUN

20,294.00 ( 007157)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3110- 5100- 230- 0000 CRSE:MENTAL HEALT,SUBAGREEMENTS F,GUIDANCE & COUN

20,000.00 ( 006672)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 220- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

20,000.00 ( 022863)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 2700- 5100- 220- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SCHOOL ADMINIST

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 20 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

224/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

40,294.00 40,294.00 

JE # BT21-00281 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment AMB-FINAL CORRECTN BAL4KIDS/TRIUMPH/NFA POS
98,123.00 ( 006674)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

98,123.00 ( 006671)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5100- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

114,616.00 ( 006674)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

114,616.00 ( 006671)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5100- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

120,000.00 ( 002879)  01- 0000- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

120,000.00 ( 002877)  01- 0000- 0- 5750- 1180- 5100- 230- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

332,739.00 332,739.00 

JE # BT21-00282 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment PS-SUPPLIES
500.00 ( 000567)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 4300- 033- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL ADMINIST

500.00 ( 001934)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 033- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

500.00 500.00 

JE # BT21-00285 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment BD-COVER NEGATIVES
519.00 ( 022681)  01- 3210- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

519.00 ( 021876)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 533- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

519.00 519.00 

JE # BT21-00287 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment AMB-EASTER SEALS PO CORRECTION
14,962.00 ( 006674)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

14,962.00 ( 006671)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5100- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,SUBAGREEMENTS F,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

731.00 ( 006668)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1110- 5800- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:SEPARATE CLA

731.00 ( 006674)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

15,693.00 15,693.00 

JE # BT21-00289 JE Trans Date 12/04/2020 JE Posted 12/04/2020 Comment PS-CAMERAS
6,950.00 ( 005484)  01- 3550- 0- 6000- 1000- 4400- 433- 0000 CRC. PERKINS CTE:,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION

6,950.00 ( 005480)  01- 3550- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 433- 0000 DRC. PERKINS CTE:,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

6,950.00 6,950.00 

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 21 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

225/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BT21-00290 JE Trans Date 12/04/2020 JE Posted 12/04/2020 Comment AMB-COV 3 PARENTS OOS/TVL REIMB
7,200.00 ( 006663)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1110- 5200- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,TRAVEL & CONFER,SE:SEPARATE CLA

3,509.00 ( 006999)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 2700- 5800- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SCHOOL ADMINIST

10,709.00 ( 006674)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

10,709.00 10,709.00 

JE # BT21-00291 JE Trans Date 12/04/2020 JE Posted 12/04/2020 Comment ED-SOUND SYSTEM/APPLE MACBOOK PRO
2,905.00 ( 022913)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4400- 024- 0051 CRDONATIONS,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION

2,905.00 ( 008752)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

3,256.00 ( 022913)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4400- 024- 0051 CRDONATIONS,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION

3,256.00 ( 008752)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

6,161.00 6,161.00 

JE # BT21-00294 JE Trans Date 12/07/2020 JE Posted 12/07/2020 Comment AN-DYER-PERMA BOUND
3,821.00 ( 006161)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 532- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

3,821.00 ( 016204)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 2420- 4200- 532- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTR LIBRARY,

3,821.00 3,821.00 

JE # BT21-00295 JE Trans Date 12/07/2020 JE Posted 12/07/2020 Comment FL-CLASSROOM BOOKS
416.00 ( 022791)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 521- 0000 DRGEER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

416.00 ( 022916)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 521- 0000 CRGEER,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION

416.00 416.00 

JE # BT21-00296 JE Trans Date 12/07/2020 JE Posted 12/07/2020 Comment FL-CLASSROOM BOOKS
165.00 ( 022791)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 521- 0000 DRGEER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

165.00 ( 022916)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 521- 0000 CRGEER,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION

165.00 165.00 

JE # BT21-00297 JE Trans Date 12/08/2020 JE Posted 12/08/2020 Comment FL-CLASSROOM BOOKS
425.00 ( 022791)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 521- 0000 DRGEER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

425.00 ( 022916)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 521- 0000 CRGEER,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION

425.00 425.00 

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 22 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

226/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BT21-00298 JE Trans Date 12/08/2020 JE Posted 12/08/2020 Comment AN-HMH READ 180
714.00 ( 006161)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 532- 0000 DRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

714.00 ( 006149)  01- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 532- 0000 CRLOTTERY:INSTRUC,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION

714.00 714.00 

JE # BT21-00299 JE Trans Date 12/08/2020 JE Posted 12/08/2020 Comment PS-PHOTOGRAPHY
5,113.00 ( 005484)  01- 3550- 0- 6000- 1000- 4400- 433- 0000 CRC. PERKINS CTE:,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION

5,113.00 ( 005480)  01- 3550- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 433- 0000 DRC. PERKINS CTE:,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

5,113.00 5,113.00 

JE # BT21-00300 JE Trans Date 12/08/2020 JE Posted 12/08/2020 Comment RB- DEMCO SUPPLIES
239.00 ( 022918)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 527- 0000 CRGEER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,

239.00 ( 021903)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 527- 0000 DRGEER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

239.00 239.00 

JE # BT21-00303 JE Trans Date 12/09/2020 JE Posted 12/09/2020 Comment FL-TEACHERS RESOURCE BOOKS
200.00 ( 022791)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 521- 0000 DRGEER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

200.00 ( 022916)  01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4200- 521- 0000 CRGEER,BOOKS & OTHER R,INSTRUCTION

200.00 200.00 

JE # BT21-00304 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment JL-For RMC Fax PO
23.00 ( 001974)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5600- 899- 0020 CRNO REPORTING RE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,INSTRUCTION

37.00 ( 001975)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5600- 899- 0030 CRNO REPORTING RE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,INSTRUCTION

60.00 ( 001277)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7600- 5600- 899- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,ALL OTHER GENER

60.00 60.00 

JE # BT21-00305 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment GM-TEXTBOOKS
1,200.00 ( 021879)  01- 3210- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 537- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

1,200.00 ( 022949)  01- 3210- 0- 3300- 1000- 4100- 537- 0000 CRESSER,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION

1,200.00 1,200.00 

JE # BT21-00306 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment PS-TEXTBOOKS
8,700.00 ( 004418)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 433- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 23 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

227/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BT21-00306 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment PS-TEXTBOOKS(continued)
8,700.00 ( 004441)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 433- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

8,700.00 8,700.00 

JE # BT21-00307 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment ST-Cover Gould & EWR from Site C/O
10,650.00 ( 022073)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 033- 0807 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

10,650.00 ( 022093)  01- 0809- 0- 0000- 7300- 4399- 058- 0807 CRMeasure T,HOLDING ACCOUNT,FISCAL SERVICES

10,650.00 10,650.00 

JE # BT21-00308 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment ED-iMAC
3,064.00 ( 022913)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4400- 024- 0051 CRDONATIONS,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION

3,064.00 ( 008752)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

3,064.00 3,064.00 

JE # BT21-00309 JE Trans Date 12/10/2020 JE Posted 12/10/2020 Comment ST-Adj Supply Budget to FTE
3,000.00 ( 015722)  01- 0809- 0- 6000- 1000- 4300- 835- 0809 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

3,000.00 ( 016973)  01- 0809- 0- 0000- 7300- 4399- 058- 0809 DRMeasure T,HOLDING ACCOUNT,FISCAL SERVICES

3,000.00 3,000.00 

JE # BT21-00310 JE Trans Date 12/11/2020 JE Posted 12/11/2020 Comment JL-Correct Budgets for Res 7388
275.00 ( 021145)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 830- 0000 CRSB 117 PPE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

1,541.00 ( 021145)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 830- 0000 CRSB 117 PPE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

251.00 ( 022178)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 3700- 4300- 830- 0000 DRSB 117 PPE,MATERIALS & SUP,FOOD SERVICES

112.00 ( 021231)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 8200- 4300- 820- 0000 DRSB 117 PPE,MATERIALS & SUP,OPERATIONS

207.00 ( 021232)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 8200- 4300- 830- 0000 DRSB 117 PPE,MATERIALS & SUP,OPERATIONS

70.00 ( 022760)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 8200- 4400- 820- 0000 DRSB 117 PPE,NON-CAPITALIZED,OPERATIONS

130.00 ( 022761)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 8200- 4400- 830- 0000 DRSB 117 PPE,NON-CAPITALIZED,OPERATIONS

182.00 ( 018879)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 020- 0000 CRSB 117 PPE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

1,228.00 ( 018880)  01- 7388- 0- 0000- 3140- 4300- 030- 0000 DRSB 117 PPE,MATERIALS & SUP,HEALTH SERVICES

1,998.00 1,998.00 

JE # BT21-00311 JE Trans Date 12/11/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment GM- TEACHER COMPUTERS
3,500.00 ( 022952)  01- 7420- 0- 3300- 1000- 4400- 539- 0000 CRLEARN LOSS MITI,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION

3,500.00 ( 022044)  01- 7420- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 539- 0000 DRLEARN LOSS MITI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 24 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

228/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

3,500.00 3,500.00 

JE # BT21-00312 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment GM-TEACHER COMPUTER
3,500.00 ( 022952)  01- 7420- 0- 3300- 1000- 4400- 539- 0000 CRLEARN LOSS MITI,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION

3,500.00 ( 022044)  01- 7420- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 539- 0000 DRLEARN LOSS MITI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

3,500.00 3,500.00 

JE # BT21-00313 JE Trans Date 12/14/2020 JE Posted 12/14/2020 Comment GM-TEACHER COMPUTER
3,500.00 ( 022952)  01- 7420- 0- 3300- 1000- 4400- 539- 0000 DRLEARN LOSS MITI,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTRUCTION

3,500.00 ( 022044)  01- 7420- 0- 3300- 1000- 4300- 539- 0000 CRLEARN LOSS MITI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

3,500.00 3,500.00 

JE # BT21-00314 JE Trans Date 12/15/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment JB-JEWELRY/AUTO UNIT
2,000.00 ( 022318)  01- 0809- 0- 1120- 4100- 4300- 834- 0809 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

2,000.00 ( 020422)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 834- 0809 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

188.00 ( 002627)  01- 0000- 0- 1531- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

188.00 ( 001935)  01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 034- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

2,188.00 2,188.00 

JE # BT21-00315 JE Trans Date 12/15/2020 JE Posted 12/15/2020 Comment JL-For Docking Stations
9,464.00 ( 021741)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 820- 0000 CRCRF COVID,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

28,392.00 ( 021742)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 830- 0000 CRCRF COVID,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

9,464.00 ( 020663)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 820- 0000 DRCRF COVID,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

28,392.00 ( 020664)  01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4399- 830- 0000 DRCRF COVID,HOLDING ACCOUNT,INSTRUCTION

37,856.00 37,856.00 

JE # BT21-00317 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment PS-TEXTBOOKS
870.00 ( 004418)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4100- 433- 0000 CRBAS GNT LOW-INC,APPR TEXTBOOK &,INSTRUCTION

870.00 ( 004441)  01- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 433- 0000 DRBAS GNT LOW-INC,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

870.00 870.00 

JE # BT21-00319 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment 20-21 Res 6512 move to Res 6546
81,154.00 ( 023097)  01- 6546- 0- 5001- 0000- 8590- 230- 0080 DRMNTL HLTH 20-21,ALL OTHER STATE

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 25 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

229/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BT21-00319 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment 20-21 Res 6512 move to Res 6546(continued)
20,119.00 ( 023098)  01- 6546- 0- 5001- 0000- 8980- 220- 0000 DRMNTL HLTH 20-21,CONTRI FR:UNRES

84,325.00 ( 023099)  01- 6546- 0- 5001- 0000- 8980- 230- 0000 DRMNTL HLTH 20-21,CONTRI FR:UNRES

111,568.00 ( 023100)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 0000- 8590- 220- 0000 DRMNTL HLTH 20-21,ALL OTHER STATE

193,143.00 ( 023101)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 0000- 8590- 230- 0000 DRMNTL HLTH 20-21,ALL OTHER STATE

81,154.00 ( 007133)  01- 6512- 0- 5001- 0000- 8590- 230- 0080 CRSE:MENTAL HEALT,ALL OTHER STATE

20,119.00 ( 007134)  01- 6512- 0- 5001- 0000- 8980- 220- 0000 CRSE:MENTAL HEALT,CONTRI FR:UNRES

84,325.00 ( 007135)  01- 6512- 0- 5001- 0000- 8980- 230- 0000 CRSE:MENTAL HEALT,CONTRI FR:UNRES

111,568.00 ( 007140)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 0000- 8590- 220- 0000 CRSE:MENTAL HEALT,ALL OTHER STATE

193,143.00 ( 007141)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 0000- 8590- 230- 0000 CRSE:MENTAL HEALT,ALL OTHER STATE

81,154.00 ( 023086)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 230- 0080 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

4,718.00 ( 023087)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3110- 2230- 200- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,CLASS PUPIL SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN

203.00 ( 023089)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3110- 3102- 200- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STRS:CLASSIFIED,GUIDANCE & COUN

66.00 ( 023093)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3110- 3332- 200- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,MEDICARE:CLASS,GUIDANCE & COUN

3.00 ( 023095)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3110- 3502- 200- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STATE UNEMPLOYM,GUIDANCE & COUN

89.00 ( 023096)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3110- 3602- 200- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,WORKERS' COMP:C,GUIDANCE & COUN

2,562.00 ( 023102)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3110- 4300- 220- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN

20,294.00 ( 023103)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3110- 5100- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,SUBAGREEMENTS F,GUIDANCE & COUN

1,758.00 ( 023104)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3110- 5200- 220- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,TRAVEL & CONFER,GUIDANCE & COUN

2,190.00 ( 023105)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3110- 5200- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,TRAVEL & CONFER,GUIDANCE & COUN

29,605.00 ( 023106)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3110- 5800- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,PROF/CONSULT SE,GUIDANCE & COUN

10,937.00 ( 022995)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 221- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

3,636.00 ( 023006)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 221- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

27,806.00 ( 023016)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 224- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

52,679.00 ( 023026)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 227- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

16,500.00 ( 023036)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

4,177.00 ( 023046)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 231- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

12,533.00 ( 023056)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 233- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

27,806.00 ( 023066)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 238- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

1,755.00 ( 022997)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 221- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

574.00 ( 023007)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 221- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

5,398.00 ( 023017)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 224- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

8,500.00 ( 023027)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 227- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

2,649.00 ( 023037)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

674.00 ( 023047)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 231- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

2,023.00 ( 023057)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 233- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

5,398.00 ( 023067)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 238- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

159.00 ( 023002)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 221- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 26 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

230/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BT21-00319 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment 20-21 Res 6512 move to Res 6546(continued)
45.00 ( 023012)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 221- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

342.00 ( 023022)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 224- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

764.00 ( 023032)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 227- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

219.00 ( 023042)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

53.00 ( 023052)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 231- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

160.00 ( 023062)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 233- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

342.00 ( 023072)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 238- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

660.00 ( 023013)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3401- 221- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,HEALTH & WELFAR,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

4,952.00 ( 023023)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3401- 224- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,HEALTH & WELFAR,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

1,170.00 ( 023043)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3401- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,HEALTH & WELFAR,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

660.00 ( 023053)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3401- 231- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,HEALTH & WELFAR,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

1,981.00 ( 023063)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3401- 233- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,HEALTH & WELFAR,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

4,952.00 ( 023073)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3401- 238- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,HEALTH & WELFAR,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

6.00 ( 023004)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 221- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

2.00 ( 023014)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 221- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

12.00 ( 023024)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 224- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

27.00 ( 023034)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 227- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

8.00 ( 023044)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

2.00 ( 023054)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 231- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

6.00 ( 023064)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 233- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

12.00 ( 023074)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 238- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

214.00 ( 023005)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 221- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

61.00 ( 023015)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 221- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

462.00 ( 023025)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 224- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

1,032.00 ( 023035)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 227- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

308.00 ( 023045)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

72.00 ( 023055)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 231- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

216.00 ( 023065)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 233- SAI L CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

462.00 ( 023075)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 238- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

5,638.00 ( 023107)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 7210- 7310- 220- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,XFER:INDIRECT C,GE ADMIN COST T

14,473.00 ( 023108)  01- 6546- 0- 5750- 7210- 7310- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,XFER:INDIRECT C,GE ADMIN COST T

91,218.00 ( 023076)  01- 6546- 0- 5770- 1190- 1100- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,CERT:TEACHERS S,SE:OTHER SPEC I

14,714.00 ( 023077)  01- 6546- 0- 5770- 1190- 3101- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STRS:CERT,SE:OTHER SPEC I

1,137.00 ( 023082)  01- 6546- 0- 5770- 1190- 3331- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,MEDICARE:CERT,SE:OTHER SPEC I

16,506.00 ( 023083)  01- 6546- 0- 5770- 1190- 3401- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,HEALTH & WELFAR,SE:OTHER SPEC I

39.00 ( 023084)  01- 6546- 0- 5770- 1190- 3501- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SE:OTHER SPEC I

1,536.00 ( 023085)  01- 6546- 0- 5770- 1190- 3601- 230- 0000 CRMNTL HLTH 20-21,WORKERS' COMP:C,SE:OTHER SPEC I

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 27 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

231/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BT21-00319 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment 20-21 Res 6512 move to Res 6546(continued)
81,154.00 ( 007143)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 1180- 5800- 230- 0080 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

4,718.00 ( 007144)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3110- 2230- 200- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,CLASS PUPIL SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN

203.00 ( 007146)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3110- 3102- 200- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STRS:CLASSIFIED,GUIDANCE & COUN

66.00 ( 007151)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3110- 3332- 200- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,MEDICARE:CLASS,GUIDANCE & COUN

3.00 ( 007153)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3110- 3502- 200- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STATE UNEMPLOYM,GUIDANCE & COUN

89.00 ( 007155)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3110- 3602- 200- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,WORKERS' COMP:C,GUIDANCE & COUN

2,562.00 ( 011872)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3110- 4300- 220- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,MATERIALS & SUP,GUIDANCE & COUN

20,294.00 ( 007157)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3110- 5100- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,SUBAGREEMENTS F,GUIDANCE & COUN

1,758.00 ( 007158)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3110- 5200- 220- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,TRAVEL & CONFER,GUIDANCE & COUN

2,190.00 ( 014718)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3110- 5200- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,TRAVEL & CONFER,GUIDANCE & COUN

29,605.00 ( 007160)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3110- 5800- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,PROF/CONSULT SE,GUIDANCE & COUN

10,937.00 ( 007162)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 221- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

3,636.00 ( 007163)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 221- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

27,806.00 ( 007164)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 224- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

52,679.00 ( 007165)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 227- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

16,500.00 ( 007166)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

4,177.00 ( 007167)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 231- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

12,533.00 ( 007169)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 233- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

27,806.00 ( 007170)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 1200- 238- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,CERT:PUPIL SUPP,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

1,755.00 ( 007176)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 221- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

574.00 ( 007177)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 221- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

5,398.00 ( 007178)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 224- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

8,500.00 ( 007179)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 227- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

2,649.00 ( 007180)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

674.00 ( 007181)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 231- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

2,023.00 ( 007183)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 233- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

5,398.00 ( 007184)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3101- 238- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STRS:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

159.00 ( 007186)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 221- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

45.00 ( 007187)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 221- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

342.00 ( 007188)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 224- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

764.00 ( 007189)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 227- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

219.00 ( 007190)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

53.00 ( 007191)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 231- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

160.00 ( 007193)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 233- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

342.00 ( 007194)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3331- 238- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,MEDICARE:CERT,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

660.00 ( 007196)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3401- 221- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,HEALTH & WELFAR,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

4,952.00 ( 007197)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3401- 224- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,HEALTH & WELFAR,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 28 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

232/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

JE # BT21-00319 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment 20-21 Res 6512 move to Res 6546(continued)
1,170.00 ( 007199)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3401- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,HEALTH & WELFAR,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

660.00 ( 007200)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3401- 231- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,HEALTH & WELFAR,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

1,981.00 ( 007202)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3401- 233- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,HEALTH & WELFAR,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

4,952.00 ( 007203)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3401- 238- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,HEALTH & WELFAR,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

6.00 ( 007205)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 221- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

2.00 ( 007206)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 221- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

12.00 ( 007207)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 224- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

27.00 ( 007208)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 227- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

8.00 ( 007209)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

2.00 ( 007210)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 231- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

6.00 ( 007212)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 233- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

12.00 ( 007213)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3501- 238- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STATE UNEMPLOYM,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

214.00 ( 007215)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 221- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

61.00 ( 007216)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 221- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

462.00 ( 007217)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 224- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

1,032.00 ( 007218)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 227- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

308.00 ( 007219)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

72.00 ( 007220)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 231- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

216.00 ( 007222)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 233- SAI L DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

462.00 ( 007223)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 3120- 3601- 238- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,WORKERS' COMP:C,PSYCHOLOGICAL S

5,638.00 ( 007224)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 7210- 7310- 220- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,XFER:INDIRECT C,GE ADMIN COST T

14,473.00 ( 007225)  01- 6512- 0- 5750- 7210- 7310- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,XFER:INDIRECT C,GE ADMIN COST T

91,218.00 ( 007232)  01- 6512- 0- 5770- 1190- 1100- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,CERT:TEACHERS S,SE:OTHER SPEC I

14,714.00 ( 007235)  01- 6512- 0- 5770- 1190- 3101- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STRS:CERT,SE:OTHER SPEC I

1,137.00 ( 007236)  01- 6512- 0- 5770- 1190- 3331- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,MEDICARE:CERT,SE:OTHER SPEC I

16,506.00 ( 007237)  01- 6512- 0- 5770- 1190- 3401- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,HEALTH & WELFAR,SE:OTHER SPEC I

39.00 ( 007238)  01- 6512- 0- 5770- 1190- 3501- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,STATE UNEMPLOYM,SE:OTHER SPEC I

1,536.00 ( 007239)  01- 6512- 0- 5770- 1190- 3601- 230- 0000 DRSE:MENTAL HEALT,WORKERS' COMP:C,SE:OTHER SPEC I

980,618.00 980,618.00 

JE # BT21-00320 JE Trans Date 12/17/2020 JE Posted 12/17/2020 Comment ST-Move Group Tutoring to 538
5,400.00 ( 022682)  01- 7420- 0- 3200- 1000- 1130- 536- 0000 DRLEARN LOSS MITI,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

5,400.00 ( 022692)  01- 7420- 0- 3300- 1000- 1130- 537- 0000 DRLEARN LOSS MITI,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

5,400.00 ( 022702)  01- 7420- 0- 3300- 1000- 1130- 539- 0000 DRLEARN LOSS MITI,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

16,200.00 ( 023109)  01- 7420- 0- 3100- 1000- 1130- 538- 0000 CRLEARN LOSS MITI,CERT SALARY:EWA,INSTRUCTION

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 29 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

233/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

16,200.00 16,200.00 

JE # BT21-00321 JE Trans Date 12/17/2020 JE Posted 12/17/2020 Comment ED-FOOD FOR COHORT STUDENTS
206.00 ( 023120)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4395- 524- 0000 CRESSER,FOOD FOR WORKSH,INSTRUCTION

206.00 ( 021871)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 DRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

206.00 206.00 

JE # BT21-00322 JE Trans Date 12/17/2020 JE Posted 12/17/2020 Comment ML-SAFE SPACE BUMPER STKR/WINDOW DECAL
2,363.00 ( 001043)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3600- 5800- 600- 0000 DRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,PUPIL TRANSPORT

2,363.00 ( 000996)  01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3140- 5800- 600- 0000 CRNO REPORTING RE,PROF/CONSULT SE,HEALTH SERVICES

2,363.00 2,363.00 

JE # BT21-00323 JE Trans Date 12/18/2020 JE Posted 12/18/2020 Comment ST-Adj for Gould & C/O
7,559.00 ( 020423)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 833- 0809 DRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

10,650.00 ( 022073)  01- 0809- 0- 1270- 4100- 4300- 033- 0807 CRMeasure T,MATERIALS & SUP,SCHOOL-SPONSORE

3,091.00 ( 016973)  01- 0809- 0- 0000- 7300- 4399- 058- 0809 DRMeasure T,HOLDING ACCOUNT,FISCAL SERVICES

10,650.00 10,650.00 

JE # BT21-00324 JE Trans Date 12/18/2020 JE Posted 12/18/2020 Comment LO-COVER PO
18.00 ( 008832)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4300- 031- 0051 DRDONATIONS,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTR LIBRARY,

18.00 ( 022097)  01- 9016- 0- 1110- 2420- 4400- 031- 0051 CRDONATIONS,NON-CAPITALIZED,INSTR LIBRARY,

18.00 18.00 

JE # BT21-00325 JE Trans Date 12/18/2020 JE Posted 12/18/2020 Comment ED-FOOD FOR COHORT CLASSES
206.00 ( 023122)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4395- 024- 0000 CRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,FOOD FOR WORKSH,INSTRUCTION

206.00 ( 003640)  01- 0700- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 024- 0000 DRLCFF SUPP FUNDI,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

206.00 206.00 

JE # BT21-00326 JE Trans Date 12/18/2020 JE Posted 12/18/2020 Comment ED-CANCELLING BT 102688
206.00 ( 021871)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4300- 524- 0000 CRESSER,MATERIALS & SUP,INSTRUCTION

206.00 ( 023120)  01- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4395- 524- 0000 DRESSER,FOOD FOR WORKSH,INSTRUCTION

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 30 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

234/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 01   (continued)

206.00 206.00 

JE # BT21-00329 JE Trans Date 12/30/2020 JE Posted 12/30/2020 Comment AMB-PO for Trumpet ST
5,000.00 ( 006878)  01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5800- 230- 0000 CRSE:STATE LOCAL ,PROF/CONSULT SE,SE:NONPUBLIC AG

5,000.00 ( 006663)  01- 6500- 0- 5750- 1110- 5200- 230- 0000 DRSE:STATE LOCAL ,TRAVEL & CONFER,SE:SEPARATE CLA

5,000.00 5,000.00 

Fund 01 Net <Decrease> in Estimated Fund Balance 645,644.00-

Fund 21  

JE # BR21-00596 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/04/2020 Comment JL-Air/Ventilation Repairs
1,689.00 ( 022892)  21- 9730- 0- 0000- 8500- 5600- 035- 0000 CRBUILDING FUND -,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,FACILITIES ACQ

18,105.00 ( 022895)  21- 9730- 0- 0000- 8500- 6203- 031- 0000 CRBUILDING FUND -,BUILDING IMPROV,FACILITIES ACQ

17,805.00 ( 009792)  21- 9730- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 033- 0000 CRBUILDING FUND -,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

4,949.00 ( 022896)  21- 9730- 0- 0000- 8500- 5600- 034- 0000 CRBUILDING FUND -,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,FACILITIES ACQ

1,435.00 ( 022897)  21- 9720- 0- 0000- 8500- 5600- 021- 0000 CR2012 SERIES A G,RENTAL/LEASE/RE,FACILITIES ACQ

43,983.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00598 JE Trans Date 12/04/2020 JE Posted 12/04/2020 Comment JL-Air Ventilation
16,000.00 ( 022899)  21- 9720- 0- 0000- 8500- 6203- 024- 0000 CR2012 SERIES A G,BUILDING IMPROV,FACILITIES ACQ

18,000.00 ( 022900)  21- 9720- 0- 0000- 8500- 6203- 027- 0000 CR2012 SERIES A G,BUILDING IMPROV,FACILITIES ACQ

116,000.00 ( 022901)  21- 9730- 0- 0000- 8500- 6203- 034- 0000 CRBUILDING FUND -,BUILDING IMPROV,FACILITIES ACQ

54,000.00 ( 022902)  21- 9730- 0- 0000- 8500- 6203- 032- 0000 CRBUILDING FUND -,BUILDING IMPROV,FACILITIES ACQ

204,000.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00646 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment JL-Air/Ventilation
9,718.00 ( 009792)  21- 9730- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 033- 0000 CRBUILDING FUND -,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

2,750.00 ( 022895)  21- 9730- 0- 0000- 8500- 6203- 031- 0000 CRBUILDING FUND -,BUILDING IMPROV,FACILITIES ACQ

11,066.00 ( 022962)  21- 9730- 0- 0000- 8500- 6203- 035- 0000 CRBUILDING FUND -,BUILDING IMPROV,FACILITIES ACQ

23,534.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00647 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment JL-For Chief of Communications (PIO) .50 Unit/.50 Bond Spl
16,273.00 ( 009853)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 2300- 830- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE A,CLASS:SUPER & A,FACILITIES ACQ

8,763.00 ( 010400)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 2300- 820- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE B,CLASS:SUPER & A,FACILITIES ACQ

3,369.00 ( 009856)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 3202- 830- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE A,PERS:CLASSIFIED,FACILITIES ACQ

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 31 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

235/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 21   (continued)

JE # BR21-00647 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment JL-For Chief of Communications (PIO) .50 Unit/.50 Bond Spl(continued)
1,009.00 ( 009858)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 3312- 830- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE A,FICA:CLASS,FACILITIES ACQ

236.00 ( 009860)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 3332- 830- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE A,MEDICARE:CLASS,FACILITIES ACQ

8.00 ( 009864)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 3502- 830- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE A,STATE UNEMPLOYM,FACILITIES ACQ

319.00 ( 009866)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 3602- 830- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE A,WORKERS' COMP:C,FACILITIES ACQ

1,814.00 ( 010403)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 3202- 820- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE B,PERS:CLASSIFIED,FACILITIES ACQ

543.00 ( 010405)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 3312- 820- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE B,FICA:CLASS,FACILITIES ACQ

127.00 ( 010407)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 3332- 820- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MEDICARE:CLASS,FACILITIES ACQ

4.00 ( 010411)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 3502- 820- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE B,STATE UNEMPLOYM,FACILITIES ACQ

172.00 ( 010413)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 3602- 820- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE B,WORKERS' COMP:C,FACILITIES ACQ

21,214.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

11,423.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

32,637.00 32,637.00 

JE # BR21-00648 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment JL-Add H&W to PIO Position
3,283.00 ( 009862)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 3402- 830- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE A,HEALTH & WELFAR,FACILITIES ACQ

1,767.00 ( 010409)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 3402- 820- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE B,HEALTH & WELFAR,FACILITIES ACQ

3,283.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

1,767.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

5,050.00 5,050.00 

JE # BR21-00649 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment JL-Balance Bond Funds to Show C/O
8,336,284.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 CRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

18,470,490.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

8,336,284.00 18,470,490.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00650 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment JL-Correct Bond Funds to balance to C/O
140,073.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

69,230.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

.00 209,303.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BT21-00283 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment TH-9733 R21-01235/02136
553.00 ( 022864)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6250- 032- B171 CRBOND, MEASURE A,OTHER COST:PLAN,FACILITIES ACQ

16,215.00 ( 022865)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 035- B041 CRBOND, MEASURE A,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

10,928.00 ( 022866)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 031- B427 CRBOND, MEASURE A,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 32 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

236/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 21   (continued)

JE # BT21-00283 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment TH-9733 R21-01235/02136(continued)
22,380.00 ( 022867)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 033- B424 CRBOND, MEASURE A,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

22,076.00 ( 022868)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 034- B153 CRBOND, MEASURE A,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

7,144.00 ( 022869)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 033- B155 CRBOND, MEASURE A,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

2,073.00 ( 011993)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 030- B300 CRBOND, MEASURE A,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

81,369.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

81,369.00 81,369.00 

JE # BT21-00284 JE Trans Date 12/03/2020 JE Posted 12/03/2020 Comment TH-9734 R21-01236
8,578.00 ( 022870)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 021- B033 CRBOND, MEASURE B,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

8,842.00 ( 022871)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 023- B035 CRBOND, MEASURE B,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

6,078.00 ( 022872)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 038- B039 CRBOND, MEASURE B,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

6,814.00 ( 022873)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 024- B157 CRBOND, MEASURE B,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

8,544.00 ( 022874)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 027- B159 CRBOND, MEASURE B,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

1,021.00 ( 012029)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 020- B200 CRBOND, MEASURE B,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

39,877.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

39,877.00 39,877.00 

JE # BT21-00288 JE Trans Date 12/04/2020 JE Posted 12/04/2020 Comment TH-R21-01208
495.00 ( 018587)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 027- B148 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ

495.00 ( 014886)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 027- B147 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ

990.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

990.00 990.00 

JE # BT21-00293 JE Trans Date 12/07/2020 JE Posted 12/07/2020 Comment TH-R21-01236
7,144.00 ( 022914)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 032- B155 CRBOND, MEASURE A,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

7,144.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

7,144.00 7,144.00 

JE # BT21-00301 JE Trans Date 12/09/2020 JE Posted 12/09/2020 Comment TH-9733 R21-01289,92,95
56,459.00 ( 012621)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 032- B119 CRBOND, MEASURE A,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ

11,900.00 ( 011993)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 030- B300 CRBOND, MEASURE A,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

18,570.00 ( 020521)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 032- B124 CRBOND, MEASURE A,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ

86,929.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 33 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

237/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 21   (continued)

86,929.00 86,929.00 

JE # BT21-00302 JE Trans Date 12/09/2020 JE Posted 12/09/2020 Comment TH-PO21-00384, R21-01290-91,92,94
93,872.00 ( 011467)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 023- B010 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ

160,000.00 ( 011976)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 021- B034 CRBOND, MEASURE B,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

200,000.00 ( 011968)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 023- B036 CRBOND, MEASURE B,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

5,861.00 ( 012029)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6411- 020- B200 CRBOND, MEASURE B,Tech Equip,FACILITIES ACQ

6,369.00 ( 022921)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6400- 023- B101 CRBOND, MEASURE B,EQUIPMENT,FACILITIES ACQ

12,550.00 ( 022920)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 023- B207 CRBOND, MEASURE B,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ

478,652.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

478,652.00 478,652.00 

JE # BT21-00316 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment TH-R21-01293
6,369.00 ( 020605)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6400- 023- B010 CRBOND, MEASURE B,EQUIPMENT,FACILITIES ACQ

6,369.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

6,369.00 6,369.00 

JE # BT21-00318 JE Trans Date 12/16/2020 JE Posted 12/16/2020 Comment TH-R21-01340
553.00 ( 022864)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6250- 032- B171 CRBOND, MEASURE A,OTHER COST:PLAN,FACILITIES ACQ

553.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

553.00 553.00 

JE # BT21-00327 JE Trans Date 12/28/2020 JE Posted 12/28/2020 Comment TH-PO21-00365
9,600.00 ( 014890)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6261- 021- B004 CRBOND, MEASURE B,RELOCATION EXPE,FACILITIES ACQ

9,600.00 ( 010424)  21- 9734- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE B,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

9,600.00 9,600.00 

JE # BT21-00328 JE Trans Date 12/28/2020 JE Posted 12/28/2020 Comment TH-R21-01359, PO21-00273
20,461.00 ( 023123)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 033- B406 CRBOND, MEASURE A,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ

1,700.00 ( 017352)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6202- 034- B168 CRBOND, MEASURE A,MODERNIZATION,FACILITIES ACQ

22,161.00 ( 009895)  21- 9733- 0- 0000- 8500- 6200- 000- 0000 DRBOND, MEASURE A,BUILDINGS & IMP,FACILITIES ACQ

22,161.00 22,161.00 

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 34 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

238/425



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 12/01/2020 through 12/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount

Fund 21 Net Increase in Estimated Fund Balance 10,071,992.00 

Fund 73  

JE # BR21-00608 JE Trans Date 12/09/2020 JE Posted 12/09/2020 Comment BD-SCHOLARSHIPS
400.00 ( 011085)  73- 0996- 0- 8100- 5900- 5800- 000- 0000 CRHARBOR HS AVID,PROF/CONSULT SE,OTHER COMMUNITY

1,250.00 ( 011066)  73- 0992- 0- 8100- 5900- 5800- 000- 0000 CRBURT LOWE SCHOL,PROF/CONSULT SE,OTHER COMMUNITY

1,000.00 ( 011029)  73- 0987- 0- 8100- 5900- 5800- 000- 0000 CRTENGLER SCHOLAR,PROF/CONSULT SE,OTHER COMMUNITY

1,000.00 ( 010983)  73- 0979- 0- 8100- 5900- 5800- 000- 0000 CRHASTINGS HUTCHI,PROF/CONSULT SE,OTHER COMMUNITY

3,650.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

Fund 73 Net <Decrease> in Estimated Fund Balance 3,650.00-

24,395,399.00 15,073,559.00 Total for Org 014 

Net decrease to AppropriationsOrg 014 Net Increase in Estimated Fund Balance 9,422,698.00 

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 14, JE Type = B, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2020, Ending Transaction Date = 

12/31/2020, Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 35 of 35

Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Jan  5 2021  

1:31PM

014 - Santa Cruz City Schools
 437165

239/425



AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Certificated Personnel Actions 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 

California Education Code and the negotiated contract. 

  

This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 

 

Goal #1:  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 

career opportunities. 

Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 

development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 

Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 

groups within the SCCS student community. 

Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 

effective teaching. 

 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

240/425



AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 

2020-2021 APPOINTMENTS: 

  

Certificated: 

 

Joseph Castillo, 1.0 1st Grade Teacher at Gault Elementary.  Joseph’s educational background 

includes a BA in Liberal Studies from CSU Monterey Bay.  Joseph holds a Preliminary Multiple Subject 

Teaching Credential and an English Learners Authorization.  Joseph completed his student teaching at 

Westlake Elementary and his status is Temporary. 

 

 

 

2020-2021 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS: 

 

Certificated: 

 

Amber Al-Khatib Sears, ELD Task Force, Mission Hill Middle, 11/16/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 10 

hours. 

 

Branna Banks, After School Tutoring, Soquel High, 10/29/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 150 hours. 

 

Caitlin Biggs, After School Tutoring, Soquel High, 10/29/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 150 hours. 

 

Shannon Blake, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 12/1/20 

- 1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

Madeline Britton, After School Tutoring, Soquel High, 10/29/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 150 hours. 

 

Aron Carlton, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 12/1/20 - 

1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

Katherine Chaput, After School Tutoring, Bay View Elementary, 10/26/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 50 

hours. 

 

Aaron Cruz, After School Tutoring, Soquel High, 10/29/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 80 hours. 

 

Joseph Culver, Cooking Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Middle School, 11/10/20 - 5/28/21, not to 

exceed 63 hours. 

 

241/425



AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 

Maria Diaz Perez, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 

12/1/20 - 1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

Julie Egdahl, After School Tutoring, Westlake Elementary, 12/10/20 - 2/9/21, not to exceed 95 hours. 

 

Adriana Escarcega, After School Tutoring, Bay View Elementary, 10/23/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 50 

hours. 

 

Adriana Escarcega, Student Assessments, Bay View Elementary, 10/26/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 12 

hours. 

 

Zachary Garban, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 

12/1/20 - 1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

Mischa Gasch, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 12/1/20 - 

1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

Susan Heady, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 12/1/20 - 

1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

Stacy Hernandez-Kaempf, After School Tutoring, Westlake Elementary, 12/10/20 - 2/10/21, not to 

exceed 36 hours. 

 

Jolene Kemos, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 12/1/20 - 

1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

Brian King, Outdoor Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Small Schools, 10/21/20 - 5/26/21, not to 

exceed 50 hours. 

 

Margaret LaMotte, After School Tutoring, Bay View Elementary, 10/23/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 50 

hours. 

 

Rosario Lionudakis, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 

12/1/20 - 1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

Laura McFarland, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 

12/1/20 - 1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

242/425



AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 

Lizbeth Olazo Hernandez, Baile Folklorico Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Middle School, 11/10/20 - 

5/28/21, not to exceed 50 hours. 

 

Jana Peale, Yearbook Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Middle School, 11/10/20 - 5/28/21, not to 

exceed 75 hours. 

 

Caroline Sammet, After School Tutoring, Bay View Elementary, 10/26/20 - 5/27/21, not to exceed 50 

hours. 

 

Pedro Sierra, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 12/1/20 - 

1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

Richard Sutera, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 12/1/20 

- 1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

Kimberly Woodland, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 

12/1/20 - 1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

Dominic Yarbrough, Project Based Learning Professional Development, Branciforte Small Schools, 

12/1/20 - 1/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

243/425



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           

 

AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 
  
MEETING DATE:   January 13, 2021 
 

FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 
  
THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   
  

RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 
           
BACKGROUND: 
The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 
SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 
  
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

244/425



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS  

 

Reviewed by Classified Personnel Director: Keneé Houser 1/5/21  

 

•Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 

Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular):   

Chinello, Heather, Attendance Technician - BMS, 3 hrs/9 mos, effective 12/9/20 

Chinello, Heather, Health Office Assistant - BMS, 3 hrs/9 mos, effective 12/9/20 

Gembe, Emmanuel, Night Custodian - HHS, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 12/14/20 

Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 

Geffken, Donna, Program Coordinator After School - resigned position at GA effective 1/4/21, 

increased position at BV from 3.05 hrs/9 mos to 5 hrs/9 mos effective 1/4/21. Net impact to 

employee was a decrease from 6.5 hrs/9 mos to 5 hrs/9 mos 

Transfer:  

Ortiz Flores, Miguel, Night Custodian - from SHS, 8 hrs/12 mos to DL, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 

12/8/20. 

Barreto, Gaona (Jesus), Night Custodian - from DL, 8 hrs/12 mos to SHS, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 

12/8/20. 

Transfer/Increase FTE: 

Ancic, Meri, Library Media Assistant - from GA, 4 hrs/9 mos to MHMS 7 hrs/9 mos, effective  

Retirement: 

Lucerobrown, Jo-Ann, Paraeducator-Sped, 5hrs/9mos effective 12/30/20 

Separation from Service:  

Castillo, Joseph, Paraeducator - WL, 3 hrs/9 mos, effective 1/1/21 

Chinello, Heather, Attendance Technician - BMS, 3 hrs/9 mos, effective 12/10/20 

Chinello, Heather, Health Office Assistant - BMS, 3 hrs/9 mos, effective 12/10/20 

 

•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 

New Temporary Employees:  

Valdez Martinez, Aidee - Inactive to Active, Substitute, Various hours, effective 12/5/20 

Ripley Phipps, Gabriella - Paraeducator Academic Intervention, Various hours, effective 12/8/20 

Pavisic Bogren, Senka - Paraeducator Academic Intervention, Various hours, effective 12/4/20 

 

245/425



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  

Existing Temporary Employees/EWR:  

Castillo, Joseph, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - WL, not to exceed 35 hrs, 11/1 - 

12/18/20 

Existing Regular Employees/EWR: 

Bennett, Jacqueline, Health Office Assistant - DL, not to exceed 40 hrs, 1/4 - 2/26/21 

Fernandez, Maia, Program Coordinator-After School - GA, not to exceed 210 hrs, 1/4 - 5/27/21 

Gonzales, Laura, Interpreter/Translator - BV, not to exceed 15 hrs, 11/16/20 - 5/27/21 

Hernandez, Maria, Interpreter/Translator - GA, not to exceed 5.75 hrs, 11/16 - 11/24/20 

Markova, Nadia, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - WL, not to exceed 40 hrs, 11/12 - 

12/18/20 

Marquez, Belinda, Interpreter/Translator - BV, not to exceed 15 hrs, 11/16/20 - 5/27/21 

Pachon-Velasquez, Nancy, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - DL, not to exceed 120 hrs, 

12/14/20 - 5/27/21 

 

•Eligibility Lists Established• 

Attendance Technician Delivery Driver  

Health Office Assistant  

Library Media Assistant  

Program Coordinator - Afterschool Programs  

 

 

246/425



 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3.3. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Job Description: Assistant Director of Maintenance & Operations 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the new job description for Assistant Director of Maintenance & Operations. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the December 2, 2020 Board Meeting, the Board discussed reorganizing the Maintenance, 
Operations and Transportation department for a more efficient use of human and fiscal 
resources to meet district needs. Per direction given by the Board, staff have revised the 
attached job description for Assistant Director of Maintenance and Operations. The Assistant 
Director will support bond projects, oversee day to day maintenance projects, and oversee 
custodial and grounds maintenance.  
 
This position is in compliance with Education Code 45276: 
 

The governing board shall fix the duties of all positions a part of the classified service as 
required by Section 45109. The board may recommend the minimum educational and 
work experience requirements for classified positions to the personnel commission. 
Minimum qualification requirements shall be subject to approval of the commission. 
 
In approving minimum educational and work experience requirements for classified 
positions, the commission shall ensure that such requirements reasonably relate to the 
duties of the position, as established by the governing board, and that they will admit an 
adequate field of competition. No requirements may be approved which unduly or 
unreasonably restrict the field of competition. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

Estimated Cost Description Funding Source 

247/425



 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3.3. 

$ 20,700.00 Difference between cost of 
Custodial Supervisor & 
Assistant Director of 
Maintenance and Operations 

.4 Measures A & B ($69,000 
including benefits) 
.6 LCFF Base Unrestricted 
($102,000 including benefits) 

 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
  

248/425



Assistant Director-Maintenance and Operations   Page 1 of 3 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 

JOB DESCRIPTION 

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR-MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS 

 

DEFINITION: 

Under the direction of the Director of Maintenance, Operations & Transportation,  the Assistant 
Director of  Maintenance and Operations is responsible to plan, organize, direct, coordinate, manage 
and supervise the building maintenance, custodial, grounds keeping, safety/security services, pupil 
transportation and logistics planning services, and to perform related duties as required. 
 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:   
● Manage all aspects of maintenance and operations services in support of the missions, tasks, 

functions, and goals of the district. 
● Plan, organize, schedule, and coordinate all maintenance services, operations support activities, and 

activities with school site administrators and/or program directors. 
● Provide regular inspection and evaluation of district facilities, prepare long- and short-range 

plans and help prepare budgets for maintenance, deferred maintenance, repair, and site 
improvement projects. 

● Recommend priorities for maintenance and facility improvement (new, modernization, or minor) 
related projects. 

● Develop work methods, analyze procedures, and refine schedules. 
● Assist with architects, technical consultants, contractors, and appropriate local and state agencies 

to help develop projects, work plans, and cost estimates in support of bond projects. 
● Prepare and supervise the preparation of plans, cost estimates, specifications, bid forms, and 

contracts for labor, material, and services including all activities related with doing public bids. 
● Assist in the maintenance of project records, incorporate applicable information into site files, 

record cost data, and provide such reports as may be required relating to facilities, construction 
and/or the State School Building Program and bond projects 

● Assist with aspects of providing the planning, construction, and completion of phases of new 
construction, modernization, and/or facilities improvement projects. 

● Assist with preparation and administration of public works and field service contracts for 
maintenance and repair of district facilities. 

● Ensure compliance with applicable federal, state, and local mandates governing environmental 
protection, hazards to buildings, and building occupants, transportation, public safety, and 
access compliance. 

● Assist with preparation of budget proposals, applications for state building funds, deferred 
maintenance funds, or other specialized funding, including bond funds related to facilities, 
facilities support activities, and transportation. 

● Prepare periodical financial, operational, and statistical reports as required or directed. 
● Manage departmental expenditures and ensure prudent fiscal management in the 

application of assigned funds. 
● Respond to emergency situations and assist with the emergency management program. 
● Manage the use of facilities for non-school use and the contracts, leasing and fees associated 

including communicating with local park and recreation departments, city office personnel, and 
various civic groups regarding the use of facilities and fees. 

● Assist with oversight of surplus property and sales. 
● Manage the assignment and distribution of personnel, provide ongoing reviews of 

organization structure, staffing, and departmental policies and procedures. 
● Select, oversee and participate in selection of staff, and oversee the performance evaluation 

process of all assigned personnel including custodial, maintenance and grounds staff. Evaluate 
subordinate administrative and assigned personnel. 

● Provide for employee growth through in-service and outside training opportunities. 
● Perform such other related duties as may be required or directed. 
 
 

249/425



Assistant Director-Maintenance and Operations   Page 2 of 3 
 

OTHER DUTIES: 

● Perform related duties as assigned. 

REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  

 

Education and Experience: 

● Three years of increasing responsible management/supervisory experience in a closely related 

area of maintenance, operation, and facilities. 

 

Licenses and other Requirements:  

● A valid Class C California Driver's License with evidence of appropriate insurance. 

 

Knowledge of:  

● Construction process, building trades, and maintenance of structural and mechanical 
building systems 

● Decorative landscape and athletic field maintenance 
● Custodial maintenance practices and procedures 
● Building security systems, anti-intrusion, and theft prevention methods 
● Energy management and utilities conservation measures 
● Laws and regulations pertaining to school bus safety and operation 
● Organization and operation of a school district transportation system 
● Principles of pupil management and disciplines 
● Methods, procedures, and terminology of data management 
● Current technology, software applications, office methods and practices 
● California Administrative Code, California Education Code, Building Codes, Health and Safety 

Codes, Public Contracts Codes, CFSs relating to health, safety, hazardous materials, and 
handicapped access, and related codes of regulations as may be required in application to 
construction, maintenance, modification of school buildings, or transportation of students. 

● Budget process and fiscal management 
● Labor agreements, FLSA (Fair Labor Standards Act), and personnel management 

 

Ability to: 

● Communicate effectively orally and in writing, as well as provide in-service to teachers, 
employees, or other groups. 

● Effectively communicate with tact, discretion, and courtesy in dealings with superiors, 
subordinates, and the general public in order to establish and maintain effective 
relationships with district staff, parents, contractors, and the general public. 

● Manage multiple efforts simultaneously. 
● Estimate time, materials, and costs needed on a wide variety of projects. 
● Determine priorities and schedule work effectively and efficiently. 
● Analyze complex issues, formulate reports, organize and present data and provide 

summaries, conclusions and solution options. 
● Plan, organize, and administer the activities of a transportation department. 
● Manage and supervise a large and diverse workforce, effectively implementing 

recognition, evaluation systems, and discipline to maintain employee confidence and 
morale. 

 

WORKING CONDITIONS: 

Work Environment:  

● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 

 

Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by 

an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may 

be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

250/425



Assistant Director-Maintenance and Operations   Page 3 of 3 
 

 

● Visual ability to read handwritten, printed or typed documents and the display screen of various 

equipment; ability to conduct verbal conversation. 

● Hear normal range verbal conversation (approximately 60 decibels).  

● Sit, stand, stoop, kneel, bend, and walk.  

● Sit for sustained periods of time; climb slopes, stairs, steps, ladders and ramps.  

● Lift up to 20 pounds; carry up to 20 pounds.  

● Conduct frequent repetitive arm, hand and body motion; demonstrate manual dexterity necessary 

to operate pianos and/or keyboards. 

● Exhibit full range of motion for shoulder external rotation and internal rotation, shoulder abduction 

and adduction, elbow flexion and extension, shoulder extension and flexion, back lateral flexion, 

hip flexion and extension and knee flexion. 

● Work in an indoor work environment. 

The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 

(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.   

Approved by Personnel Commission: tbd 

Approved by Governing Board: tbd 

Salary Range: G 

 

251/425



 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3.4. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Job Description: Lead Custodian 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the new job description for Lead Custodian. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the December 2, 2020 Board Meeting, the Board discussed reorganizing the Maintenance, 
Operations and Transportation department for a more efficient use of human and fiscal 
resources to meet district needs. Per direction given by the Board, staff have developed the 
attached job description for Lead Custodian. The Lead Custodian will support both the Director 
and Assistant Director of Maintenance, Operations & Transportation, and will help ensure daily 
needs are met at each site.  
 
This position is in compliance with Education Code 45276: 
 

The governing board shall fix the duties of all positions a part of the classified service as 
required by Section 45109. The board may recommend the minimum educational and 
work experience requirements for classified positions to the personnel commission. 
Minimum qualification requirements shall be subject to approval of the commission. 
 
In approving minimum educational and work experience requirements for classified 
positions, the commission shall ensure that such requirements reasonably relate to the 
duties of the position, as established by the governing board, and that they will admit an 
adequate field of competition. No requirements may be approved which unduly or 
unreasonably restrict the field of competition. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

Estimated Cost Description Funding Source 

252/425



 AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3.4. 

$20,000 Difference between cost of 
Head Custodian a Lead 
Custodian 

LCFF Base Unrestricted 

 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
  

253/425



 

       Lead Custodian-Maintenance and Operations      Page 1 of 3  

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 

JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
LEAD CUSTODIAN 

 
 

 

DEFINITION: Under the direction of the Assistant Director of Maintenance, Operations and 

Transportation, support the activities and operations of the custodial staff  throughout the District; 

inspect and assure campus buildings and adjacent grounds areas are maintained in a clean, orderly 

and secure condition; train custodial staff; arrange for substitutes as needed, oversee equipment 

maintenance and the ordering of supplies. 

 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

● Support the activities of the custodial staff throughout the District; confer with site administrators, other 

departments and outside agencies regarding the care, cleaning, scheduling and maintenance of 

school buildings and grounds. 
● Train custodial personnel; assist in the preparation of cleaning and maintenance schedules; adjust 

work schedules to fit the needs of assigned sites; coordinate assignments for substitute personnel. 
● Assure campus buildings and adjacent grounds areas are maintained in a clean, orderly and 

secure condition; confer with site administrators to assess site needs. 
● Receive, screen, prioritize and respond to staff custodial needs. 
● Communicate with administrators to coordinate activities, resolve issues and conflicts and exchange 

information. 
● Follow District safety procedures when operating, maintaining and repairing equipment; operate a 

variety of large and small power equipment such as power washers, vacuum cleaners, polishers, 

blowers; operate other custodial or grounds equipment as assigned. 
● Support work order system requests; submit work orders for needed facility repairs and supplies; 

monitor inventory levels of custodial ; order, receive, store and distribute supplies and materials as 

directed. 
● Assist in minor maintenance repair work and other projects as assigned; perform periodic 

visual inspections of building systems. 

● Review school sites and work completed by custodial staff for accuracy and compliance 

with instructions and established standards; report safety, sanitation and fire hazards to 

appropriate authorities; drive a vehicle to conduct work. 
● Respond to or coordinate a response to emergency calls after hours as 

assigned. 
● Operate a computer, assigned software and a two-way radio.. 
● Attend and lead staff meetings and trainings as directed. 

 
OTHER DUTIES: 
● Perform related duties as assigned. 
 

REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS: 

Education and Experience: 

● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and three years of increasingly 

responsible experience in custodial, grounds or maintenance work.  

254/425



 

       Lead Custodian-Maintenance and Operations      Page 2 of 3  

Licenses and other Requirements: 

● Valid Class C California Driver's License. 
 

Knowledge of: 

● Principles of training. 
● Proper methods, techniques, materials, tools and equipment used in modern custodial, grounds 

and maintenance work. 
● Requirements of maintaining buildings in a safe, clean and orderly condition. 
● Appropriate safety precautions and procedures. 
● Proper methods of storing equipment, materials and supplies. 
● Record-keeping and report preparation techniques. 
● Inventory methods and practices. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Applicable laws, codes, regulations, policies and procedures. 
● Automated work order programs and processes. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Operation of a variety of office equipment including a computer. 
● Proper lifting techniques. 
● Care and maintenance of custodial, grounds and building equipment and tools. 
 

Ability to: 
● Train assigned personnel. 
● Confer with site administrators regarding custodial, grounds, maintenance needs, schedules 

and concerns. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Observe and enforce health and safety regulations. 
● Interpret, apply and explain rules, regulations, policies and procedures. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others. 
● Operate a computer and assigned software. 
● Analyze situations accurately and adopt an effective course of action. 
● Assure compliance with established rules, guidelines, timelines, regulations and schedules. 
● Estimate quantity and types of supplies needed. 
● Maintain buildings and adjacent grounds areas in a clean, orderly and secure condition. 
● Operate and maintain a variety of custodial, grounds and maintenance equipment and tools. 
● Observe and report safety hazards and need for maintenance and repair. 
● Prepare and maintain a variety of records and reports. 
● Work independently. 
● Plan and organize work. 

 
WORKING CONDITIONS: 

 
Work Environment: 

● Indoor/Outdoor work environment. 

● Subject to noise, fumes, dust and odors. 
● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 
● Work evening, weekends or variable hours. 
● Emergency call-out. 

255/425



 

       Lead Custodian-Maintenance and Operations      Page 3 of 3  

● Fast-paced environment with changing needs. 
 

Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met 

by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations 

may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

 

● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a variety of custodial equipment. 

● Walking or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Seeing to perform custodial duties. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling heavy objects. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching. 
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally. 
● Climbing ladders and working from heights to conduct work. Hazards: 
● Exposure to cleaning agents and chemicals. 
● Working on ladders. 
● Potential contact with dissatisfied individuals. 

 

The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 

Act (A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed. 

 
Approved by Personnel Commission:  

Approved by Governing Board:  

Salary Range: 35 

 

256/425



AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.3.5 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Updated Stipend Schedule 
 
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Updated Stipend Salary Schedule for 2020-2021. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As part of negotiations of 2019-2020, a stipend subcommittee was formed to evaluate the 
current Extra Pay Stipend Schedule. As the first step the committee recommended to change 
the athletic stipends at the middle schools and Small Schools. The rational for the changes are 
based on length of each seasons—in middle school, every sport has the same length of season, 
and now they will all have the same stipend. Few stipends were reduced, and others were 
increased depending on the former salary schedule. The realignment of the stipend schedule 
resulted in a savings of $4,430 which has been added to the Middle School Athletic Director, for 
a total stipend of $14,946. The committee all agreed that the amount of work demanded by the 
middle school Athletic Directors was not fairly compensated at the former amount of $10,516. 
 
Small Schools coaches were paid the same stipend as the coaches at the comprehensive high 
schools, but the seasons were much shorter with fewer practices and games.  The amount of 
time for their seasons were equivalent to the middle school seasons.  Hence, the stipends for 
the middle school and Small Schools will now be equivalent.    
 
As some existing coaches may be experiencing a loss with this new salary schedule, we have 
allocated funds to keep them at their existing stipend until they leave the coaching position. 
New hires as of 2020-20201 and forward will follow the updated stipend amount.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
The money saved ($4,430) from what is currently budgeted for middle schools will be added to 
the stipend for the Athletic Director, so there is not increase of overall cost. 
 
The money saved from what is currently budgeted for Small Schools ($3,918) will be spent on 
ensuring that current coaches will not experience a decrease in their stipends until they leave 
the coaching position. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 

257/425



AGENDA ITEM:  VII. 3.7 

 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 

 

258/425



259/425



260/425



  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1.1  
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Nonpublic School: Chartwell School 
 
MEETING DATE: January 13, 2021 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic School contract for new services through the 2020-2021 year.  
Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity of disabled pupils, the student’s 
name has been omitted.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for: Basic Educational Programs and Specialized Support Services for a 
student in Special Education who requires these services that could not be provided in District 
programs. Services will be rendered through Chartwell School and are mandated in the 
student’s Individualized Education Program. Service Period: December 3, 2020 through July 16, 
2021. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $29,000.00.  Special Education (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 

 
 
                                                                                                                       

261/425



262/425



263/425



264/425



265/425



  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1.2 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Agreement for Professional Services: Private School Placements  
 
MEETING DATE: January 13, 2021 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Agreements for Professional Services through the 2020-2021 school year.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools receives federal funding each year to serve students who reside within 
District boundaries and have been found eligible for special education, and whose parents have 
chosen not to enroll in public school.  Each year Santa Cruz City Schools is required to consult 
with private schools to determine how to spend the funds. This year private schools have 
requested a different set of services based on the changing needs of their students. 
 
The Board is requested to approve the following three Agreements for Professional Services:   

1) SpeechRighter Inc:  Speech Language Pathalogist services to five students + 
Occupational Theraphy services to three students at $8,220.00 

2) Steps To Success:   Academic or Counseling support services to ten students at $11,375 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not To Exceed:  $19,595.00  -- Special Education– Private School Individual Service Plans 
(Restricted)  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 

 

 

Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 
 

266/425



267/425



268/425



269/425



270/425



271/425



272/425



273/425



274/425



275/425



276/425



277/425



278/425



279/425



280/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.1. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Modification: Branciforte Middle School 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Geo H. Wilson ventilation modifications at Branciforte Middle School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is to address the necessary modifications found at Branciforte Middle School 
during the recent ventilation survey that was approved at the November 4th Board meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$18,105.00  Secondary Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

281/425



December 1, 2020 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 

Attn: Trevor Miller trevormiller@sccs.net 

RE: SCCS Ventilation Survey – Branciforte Middle School 
Job 60510051 – EWP 499.01 –  Found During Ventilation Survey 

Dear Trevor: 

We have developed this Extra Work Proposal to address the necessary repairs found 
during our recent ventilation survey at Branciforte Middle School.  

Please consider the following scope of work, schedule and quotation. 

Scope of Work: 

1. Update Bard Economizer serving Room 6.
2. Replace 25 amp, 240/277v contactor on Bard unit serving Room 8A.
3. Provide and install new manual outside air damper and filter rack on Carrier

packaged heat pump serving Music Room.
4. Work with Trane Controls to work through challenge with system setup on UV-3,

Room 11.
5. Work with Trane Controls to make UV-5 serving Room 13 operate outside air

damper.  Currently, damper is unhooked and set at 100% outside air.
6. Modify or replace heating valves that are serving Rooms 19 and 21; once 

resolved, the controls need to be checked by Trane for UV-11 and UV-12.
7. Replace old heating valve serving UV-13 in Room 23.

Schedule: 

We anticipate that resolving the controls with Trane will take at least 30 days. 
Coupled with procurement of parts and scheduling, we anticipate that the work will 
take up to 45 days to complete. 

282/425



SCCS Vent. Survey – B40 MS Vent. Survey Repairs Job 60510051, 499.01 
December 1, 2020 
 
 

2 

 

Quotation: 
 

We propose to install this work, as outlined above, for the following: $18,105. 
   

 Payments will be due upon receipt of Invoice. 
 
 This quotation will be valid for 30 days from the date of this letter. 
 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to be of continued service.   If you have any 
questions please call. 
  
Sincerely,    

 
Thomas E. Wilson 
Assistant Branch Manager 
Geo. H. Wilson Mechanical Contractors 
A subsidiary of ACCO Engineered Systems 

      
 
Cc: Chris Garcia  cgarcia@sccs.net 
 Trica Hayes  thayes@sccs.net 
        
TEW/amb 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED 
 
 
_____________________________________     _____________________________ 
Signature              Date 
 
_____________________________________ 
Printed Name 

283/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.2. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Modification: Bay View Elementary  
School 

      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Geo H. Wilson ventilation modifications at Bay View Elementary School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is to address the necessary modifications found at Bay View Elementary School 
during the recent ventilation survey that was approved at the November 4th Board meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,435.00  Elementary Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

284/425



December 1, 2020 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 

Attn: Trevor Miller trevormiller@sccs.net 

RE: SCCS Ventilation Survey – Bayview Elementary School 
Job 60510047 – EWP 499.01 – Issues Found During Ventilation Survey 

Dear Trevor: 

We have completed as much of the Mechanical Survey as possible in light of the current 
construction schedule on the Bayview ES campus.  It is our understanding that permanent 
power will not be provided until after 12/21/20.  We have created this Extra Work Proposal 
for the known repairs.  Please forward the Balance Report for the new constructions as 
soon as it is available.  Please consider the following scope of work, schedule and 
quotation. 

Scope of Work: 

1. Kindergarten:  Bard unit outside air damper remains closed during heating and
only opens when heating has been satisfied.  Outside air damper set to 100%.
Change controls or disconnect outside air damper actuator and set outside air
opening to a fixed setting.

2. Room 29:  Bard unit has lost its Freon charge; locate and repair leak, then restore
Freon levels.

3. Room 40:  Typical of (5) new portables, outside air is provided by outside air fan;
speed setting changed from creating 375cfm to 515cfm.  Balancing to verify.

4. 
Note:  We need to return to complete the surveys in Rooms 42, 43 and 44 where 
access was not granted by the respective teachers and when permanent power is 
restored. 

Schedule: 

Please allow a minimum of 2 weeks for scheduling.  Once mobilized, we should 
be able to complete to repairs within 2 days. 

285/425



SCCS Vent. Survey – Bayview Supplemental Repairs Job 60510047, 499.01 
December 1, 2020 
 
 

2 

 

Quotation: 
 

We propose to install this work, as outlined above, for the following:  $1,435. 
   

 Payments will be due upon receipt of Invoice. 
 
 This quotation will be valid for 30 days from the date of this letter. 
 
 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to be of continued service.  If you have any 
questions please call. 
  
Sincerely,    

 
Thomas E. Wilson 
Assistant Branch Manager 
Geo. H. Wilson Mechanical Contractors 
A subsidiary of ACCO Engineered Systems 

      
 
Cc: Chris Garcia  cgarcia@sccs.net 
 Tricia Hayes  thayes@sccs.net 
        
TEW/amb 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

286/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.3. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Modification: Soquel High School 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Geo H. Wilson ventilation modifications at Soquel High School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is to address the necessary modifications found at Soquel High School during the 
recent ventilation survey that was approved at the November 4th Board meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,689.00  Secondary Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

287/425



December 1, 2020 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 

Attn: Trevor Miller trevormiller@sccs.net 

RE: SCCS Ventilation Survey – Soquel High School 
Job 60510054 – EWP 499.01 – Issues Found During Ventilation Survey 

Dear Trevor: 

We have developed this Extra Work Proposal to address the necessary repairs found 
during our recent ventilation survey at Soquel High School.  Please consider the following 
scope of work, schedule and quotation. 

Scope of Work: 

1. Marathon motor needs to be replaced in Attic Room 304, Unit 12 (1.5HP, 440v, 3
phase, 2.4 amps)

2. Replace A60 belt in Attic Room 323/322, Unit T-10

Schedule: 

Please allow 2 weeks for procurement of motor and completion of the repairs. 

Quotation: 

We propose to install this work, as outlined above, for the following: $1,689. 

Payments will be due upon receipt of Invoice. 

This quotation will be valid for 30 days from the date of this letter. 

288/425



SCCS Vent. Survey – Soquel HS Supplemental Repairs Job 60510054, 499.01 
December 1, 2020 

2 

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to be of continued service.  If you have any 
questions please call. 

Sincerely, 

Thomas E. Wilson 
Assistant Branch Manager 
Geo. H. Wilson Mechanical Contractors 
A subsidiary of ACCO Engineered Systems 

Cc: Chris Garcia cgarcia@sccs.net 
Tricia Hayes thayes@sccs.net 

TEW/amb 

289/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.4. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Modification: Santa Cruz High School 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Geo H. Wilson ventilation modifications at Santa Cruz High School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is to address the necessary modifications found at Santa Cruz High School during 
the recent ventilation survey that was approved at the November 4th Board meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$4,949.00  Secondary Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

290/425



December 1, 2020 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 

Attn: Trevor Miller trevormiller@sccs.net 

RE: SCCS Ventilation Survey – Santa Cruz High School 
Job 60510045 – EWP 499.03 – Auditorium Equipment Repairs 

Dear Trevor: 

While working in conjunction with a technician from Trane Controls on 11/18/20, we 
found challenges with the equipment located in the attic.  The exhaust fan motor is 
failing and needs to be replaced.  The original motor manufacturer is no longer in 
business and the surviving company no longer supports that line.   Consequently, on 
11/23/20 we disconnected the motor and took it to local vendor, John’s Electric.  
Therefore, we have created this Extra Work Proposal (EWP).  Please consider the 
following scope of work, schedule and quotation. 

Scope of Work: 

1. Remove existing motor and take to vendor for sourcing a replacement
2. Provide and install replacement motor for exhaust fan
3. Provide and install replacement contactor for supply fan motor fire alarm interlock

Schedule: 

Please allow 2 weeks for procurement of motor and contactor.  Once mobilized, 
we can complete the repairs in (1) day. 

Quotation: 

We propose to install this work, as outlined above, for the following: $4,949. 

Payments will be due upon receipt of Invoice. 

This quotation will be valid for 30 days from the date of this letter. 

291/425



SCCS Vent. Survey – SCHS Auditorium Equip. Repair Job 60510045, 499.03 
December 1, 2020 
 
 

2 

 

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to be of continued service.  If you have any 
questions please call. 
  
Sincerely,    

 
Thomas E. Wilson 
Assistant Branch Manager 
Geo. H. Wilson Mechanical Contractors 
A subsidiary of ACCO Engineered Systems 

      
 
Cc: Chris Garcia  cgarcia@sccs.net 
 Tricia Hayes  thayes@sccs.net 
        
TEW/amb 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

292/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.5. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Geo H. Wilson Ventilation Modification: Harbor High School 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Geo H. Wilson ventilation modifications at Harbor High School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is to address the necessary modifications found at Harbor High School during the 
recent ventilation survey that was approved at the November 4th Board meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$17,805.00 Secondary Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

293/425



December 1, 2020 

Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 

Attn: Trevor Miller trevormiller@sccs.net 

RE: SCCS Ventilation Survey – Harbor High School 
Job 60510053 – EWP 499.01 – Items Found During Ventilation Survey 

Dear Trevor: 

We have developed this Extra Work Proposal to address the necessary repairs found 
during our recent ventilation survey at Harbor High School.  Please consider the following 
scope of work, schedule and quotation. 

Scope of Work: 

1. Library Computer Lab: Investigate why fan is not running correctly in Carrier indoor unit.
2. Multipurpose Room:  Resolve issue with HV-1 and its frozen-in-place outside air

damper (45 3/4 x 18 1/2).
3. Locker Room: Replace faulty outside air damper in heating/ventilator and

troubleshoot why it is not heating.
4. Humanities: Determine why outside air and return air dampers were fully closed in

units HV-10 and HV-11.
5. Fine Arts: Seasons 4 unit needs new fan wheel, fan cone, fan shaft and (2) pillow

block bearings.

Schedule: 

Please allow 5-6 weeks for procurement of materials and installation. 

Quotation: 

We propose to install this work, as outlined above, for the following: $17,805. 

Payments will be due upon receipt of Invoice. 

This quotation will be valid for 30 days from the date of this letter. 

294/425



SCCS Vent. Survey – Harbor HS Supplemental Repairs Job 60510053, 499.01 
December 1, 2020 

2 

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to be of continued service.  If you have any 
questions please call. 

Sincerely, 

Thomas E. Wilson 
Assistant Branch Manager 
Geo. H. Wilson Mechanical Contractors 
A subsidiary of ACCO Engineered Systems 

Cc: Chris Garcia cgarcia@sccs.net 
Tricia Hayes thayes@sccs.net 

TEW/amb 

295/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.6. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Geo H. Wilson Soquel High School Ventilation Balancing  
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Geo H. Wilson ventilation balancing at Soquel High School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is to address the necessary ventilation balancing found at Soquel High School 
during the recent ventilation survey that was approved at the November 4th Board meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$11,066.00  Secondary Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

296/425



 

 
 
 
 
December 14, 2020 
 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 
 
Attn: Trevor Miller  trevormiller@sccs.net 
 
RE: SCCS Ventilation Survey – Soquel High School 
 Job 60510054 – EWP 499.02 – Adjustments Found During Balancing 
 
Dear Trevor: 
 
On 12/03/20 we received word from our balancing crew that they have encountered more 
challenges at Soquel High School.  Since that time we have been trying to quantify the 
adjustments. 
 
Please consider the following scope of work, schedule and quotation. 
 
Scope of Work:  
 

1. Boys Locker Room (SF-10) – change rotation of fan, clean outside air louver and 
service damper. 

2. Girls Locker Room (SF-13) – clean outside air louver and check operation. 
3. Cafeteria (AH-11) – Install fan sheave and restart unit. 
4. MPR/Music (AH-12) – Investigate how to address replacement of pneumatic 

controls; address why outside air damper will not fully close. 
Note:  Further work with Sunbelt Controls will be required. 

5. Boiler Room – Troubleshoot operation of unit (SQ-26 AH-1). 
6. Portable 508 – Resolve operation of condenser fan motor (SQ-34 HP-3). 
7. Portable 602 – Resolve operation of heat pump. 

 
Schedule: 
  

Please allow 2-3 weeks to complete these tasks.  It is very likely that Item 4 will 
require an additional EWP developed once the existing conditions can be clarified. 

 

297/425



SCCS Vent. Survey – Soquel HS Supplemental Repairs Job 60510054, 499.02 
December 14, 2020 
 
 

2 
 

Quotation: 
 

We propose to install this work, as outlined above, for the following: $11,066. 
   

 Payments will be due upon receipt of Invoice. 
 
 This quotation will be valid for 30 days from the date of this letter. 
 
 
 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to be of continued service.  If you have any 
questions please call. 
  
Sincerely,    

 
Thomas E. Wilson 
Assistant Branch Manager 
Geo. H. Wilson Mechanical Contractors 
A subsidiary of ACCO Engineered Systems 

      
 
Cc: Chris Garcia  cgarcia@sccs.net 
 Tricia Hayes  thayes@sccs.net 
        
TEW/amb 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

298/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.7. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Geo H. Wilson Harbor High School Ventilation Balancing 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Geo H. Wilson ventilation balancing at Harbor High School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is to address the necessary ventilation balancing found at Harbor High School 
during the recent ventilation survey that was approved at the November 4th Board meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$9,718.00 Secondary Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

299/425



 

 
December 14, 2020 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 
 
Attn: Trevor Miller  trevormiller@sccs.net 
 
RE: SCCS Ventilation Survey – Harbor High School 
 Job 60510053 – 
 EWP 499.02 – Additional Adjustments Found During Balancing Survey 
 
Dear Trevor: 
 
We have developed this Extra Work Proposal to address the necessary adjustments 
found during our recent ventilation survey at Harbor High School.  These adjustments 
were not previously identified in EWP 499.01 dated 12/01/20.  Please consider the 
following scope of work, schedule and quotation. 
 
Scope of Work:  
 

1. Replace 1/4 HP motor in exhaust fan serving Administration; rooftop unit HH-15-
EFA-4. 

2. Replace contactor in supply fan serving Practical Arts rooftop unit HH-73-HV-6. 
3. Investigate and resolve control issues with Science Building units HV-4 and HV-5. 
4. Provide and install new Belimo AF24-SR (HV-3) and Belimo NF24-SR (HV-2) on 

units serving the Library. 
5. Resolve issues with outside air damper at MPR (HH-16 HVMP-1). 
6. Investigate controls issues with unit serving Kitchen (HH-17 HVMP-2). 

 
Note:  Item 4 on EWP 499.01 submitted 12/01/20 should refer to Administration 
Building instead of Humanities 
 

Schedule: 
 

Please allow 30 days for procurement of materials and scheduling these 
adjustments.  

 
Quotation: 
 

We propose to install this work, as outlined above, for the following: $9,718. 

300/425



SCCS Vent. Survey – Harbor HS Supplemental Repairs Job 60510053, 499.02 
December 14, 2020 
 
 

2 
 

 Payments will be due upon receipt of Invoice. 
 
 This quotation will be valid for 30 days from the date of this letter. 
 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to be of continued service.  If you have any 
questions please call. 
  
Sincerely,    

 
Thomas E. Wilson 
Assistant Branch Manager 
Geo. H. Wilson Mechanical Contractors 
A subsidiary of ACCO Engineered Systems 

      
 
Cc: Chris Garcia  cgarcia@sccs.net 
 Tricia Hayes  thayes@sccs.net 
        
TEW/amb 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

301/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.8. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Geo H. Wilson Branciforte Middle School Ventilation Balancing 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Geo H. Wilson ventilation balancing at Branciforte Middle School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is to address the necessary ventilation balancing found at Branciforte Middle 
School during the recent ventilation survey that was approved at the November 4th Board 
meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$2,750.00  Secondary Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

302/425



 

 
 
 
 
December 14, 2020 
 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 
 
Attn: Trevor Miller  trevormiller@sccs.net 
 
RE: SCCS Ventilation Survey – Branciforte Middle School 
 Job 60510051 – EWP 499.02 – Adjustments Found During Balancing Survey 
 
Dear Trevor: 
 
We have developed this Extra Work Proposal to address the additional adjustments found 
during our recent balancing survey at Branciforte Middle School.  
 
Please consider the following scope of work, schedule and quotation. 
 
Scope of Work:  
 

1. Complete troubleshooting of equipment serving Boys Locker Room and restore 
operation. 

2. Establish game plan with replacing unit serving Girls Locker Room. 
Note:  A separate quote for replacement if very likely. 

3. Replace transformer for unit serving cafeteria and restore operation. 
 

Schedule: 
 

Please allow 2-3 weeks for completion of this work. 
 

Quotation: 
 

We propose to install this work, as outlined above, for the following: $2,750. 
   

 Payments will be due upon receipt of Invoice. 
 
 This quotation will be valid for 30 days from the date of this letter. 

303/425



SCCS Vent. Survey – B40 MS Vent. Survey Repairs Job 60510051, 499.02 
December 14, 2020 
 
 

2 
 

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to be of continued service.   If you have any 
questions please call. 
  
Sincerely,    

 
Thomas E. Wilson 
Assistant Branch Manager 
Geo. H. Wilson Mechanical Contractors 
A subsidiary of ACCO Engineered Systems 

      
 
Cc: Chris Garcia  cgarcia@sccs.net 
 Tricia Hayes  thayes@sccs.net 
        
TEW/amb 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

304/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.9. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Climatec Memorandum of Understanding 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Climatec Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On June 15, 2016, the Board approved Resolution 50-15-16 to enter into an Energy Service 
Contract with Climatec, LLC. Climatec was selected by the District through a competitive 
request for proposal process and worked with the District to develop, fund and implement 
multiple phases of LED lighting systems, at different sites.  These programs were funded 
primarily by the State funded program, Proposition 39: The California Clean Energy Jobs Act.  
 
The District would like to continue its relationship with Climatec LLC to address additional 
infrastructure needs as funding becomes available in 2021. These funding sources may include 
the recently signed AB 841, the School Energy Efficiency Stimulus Program or Federal Stimulus 
dollars earmarked for heating and cooling improvements. Climatec will also assess other 
funding sources that are available to the District to further modernize infrastructure, reduce 
operating costs, improve indoor air quality, and improve sustainability.  
 
Under this Memorandum of Understanding, Climatec will perform a District-wide assessment of 
District’s existing energy, ventilation needs as well as potential renewable energy/battery 
storage opportunities at no cost to the District. Climatec will then work with staff to develop a 
program that meets the needs of the District and present to the Board.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 

305/425



306/425



307/425



                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.3.1 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Consultant Services Agreement: Leadership Coaching 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 

 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve this Consultant Service Agreement for Mary Gaukel Forster and Martin Krovetz to 
provide educational leadership coaching services through June 2021.  
 
Background: 
Mary Gaukel Forster has 30 years of educational leadership experience in Pajaro Valley, Santa 
Cruz City Schools and at Delta Charter School.  Mr. Marty Krovetz has 32+ years of educational 
leadership experience in Santa Cruz City Schools, Carmel Unified, and at San Jose State.    
 
Ms. Forster and Mr. Krovetz will provide support, coaching, and feedback for four new 
administrators throughout the 2020-21 school year. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
$4,500 Title II Secondary (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 

308/425



Santa Cruz City Schools REQUISITION #:   
 

Santa Cruz, Ca 95060 
 

REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Submit to the responsible Assistant Superintendent at least two weeks before the Board meeting and prior to the 

Consultant beginning work. 

Site: Human Resources  Principal/Director: Desiree Dominguez 
 

 

Describe Work to be Performed and District and Site Goals Supported: 

Administrative Coaching for Michelle Poirier (SCHS Principal) and Rene Ohana (SCHS Assistant Principal) 

In support of District Goals #3 and #4 

Qualifications of Consultant: Educational Leadership Coach 

Name of Consultant: Martin L. Krovetz  Tax I.D.# or SSN:  261-82-0181  
(Vendor Data form to Purchasing) 

Address: 125 Prospect CT  Telephone #:  831-239-9612  

City/State/Zip: Santa Cruz, CA 95065  Email:  marty@krovetz.net  

Date(s) of Service: December 2020-June 2021  Time: Various 
 

 

Number of Hours: NA hours per day X NA days = NA total hours. 

Hourly/Daily Rate (specify): NA 

Lodging: NA 

Meals: NA 

Transportation: NA 

TOTAL FEE TO BE PAID: 3000 Account #: 01-4035-0-0000-2700-5800-930-0000 
 

 

Write out meaning of account number: Title II Professional Development Secondary 

 

Approval of Business Services verifying account:   Date:    
 

Authorized Signature of Consultant:  ML Krovetz  Date:  12/16/20  

(NOTE: Consultant must submit invoice for payment upon completion of work) 
 

 

Signature of Administrator Requesting Service Approval of Assistant Superintendent 

Date:   Date:    

AB 1610, 1612, and 2102 COMPLIANCE (consultants having more than limited contact with students require fingerprinting) 

☐ Consultants will be on campus on a regular basis (more than once) while students are present 

☐■       Consultant will not be on campus on a regular basis while students are present (fingerprints not required). 

Fingerprint Clearance date:  Approval of Human Resources:   

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION 

(Submit for payment after Consultant completes work) 

I hereby certify that the consultant has satisfactorily completed the services in accordance with the above Agreement and 

that payment is in order. 
 
 

Signature of Administrator Requesting Payment Date 
 

133 Mission Street, Ste. 100 

309/425



 

Approval of Assistant Superintendent Date 

Board of Education Approval:   
(Required if over $2500) 7/14/2016 

310/425



Must be Attached Page Two 

 

REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

Review guidelines of Board Policy - Consultant Services Agreements. 

 

1. Statement of specific need and the goal of the Consultant’s work (Refer to district/site goals and plans, 

unique needs of school, program or office which necessitates the services of a consultant). 

Mr. Krovetz will support our administrative team with educational leadership coaching. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. State efforts made to identify qualified staff available within the district to carry out the requested services. 

Staff have identified Mr. Krovetz as having the knowledge and expertise to support our new administrators; including 

educational leadership coaching with the New Teacher Center, consulting for the California Academic Partnership Program and 

school administrative experience 

 
 
 
 
 

3. If this agreement is for staff development or for one-time services, state the site's plan to reduce or eliminate 

the need for this consultant's services in the future. 

The District previously contracted with the New Teacher Center for principal inductions at a much greater cost. Contracting with 

Mr. Krovetz directly is a savings to the district. 

 
 
 
 
 

4. Statement of expected outcomes (Include specific student outcomes desired, benefits to district students 

and/or staff). 

Supporting new administrators in order lo improve instructional leadership, providing meaningful! development feedback 

to teachers, promoting a culture that serves the needs of all students and district participants alike to improve student achievement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5. Evaluation Process - How will you know the goal/outcomes have been met? 

At the beginning of the school year, administrators identify goals and metrics for the year relative to the California Professional 

Standards for the Educational Leader. We expect significant growth towards these goals to be reported on their 

end of year summative evaluation. 

311/425



Santa Cruz City Schools 

133 Mission Sh·eet. Ste.100 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

REQUISITION#: ___ _

REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Subm.it to the responsible Assistant Superintendent a t  least two weeks before the Board meeting and prior to the 
Consultant beginn.ing work. 
Site: Human Resources Principal/Director: Desiree Dominguez 
Describe Work to be Performed and District and Site Goals Supported: 
Administrative Coaching for Kristina Cabrera, Asst. Principal (MHMS) 

In support of District Goals #3 and #4 

Qualifications of Consultant:_E_du_c_at_io_na_l _Le_a _de_rs_h
..;..
ip_Co_ a_c_h ______________________ _ 

Name of Consultant: Mary Gaukel Forster 

City/State/Zip: Co..l ;tv IC\.\ C f\ - q SD I D
Date(s) of Service: December 2020-June 2021 

Tax I.D.#  or SSN: ___ _
(Vendor Data fonn to Purchasing) 

Telephone#: ______ _ 

Email: rx,'a,'f_J 
 

50-.µ,}(.e.\ @51na;/. C.OWl

Time: Vanous
Number of Hours:_N_A ____ �hours per day x_N_A _____ days =_N_A _____ total hours. 

Hourly/Daily Rate (specify):_N_A _______ _ 

Lodging:_N_A __________ _ 

Meals: NA ----------

Transportation: NA 

TOTAL FEE TO BE PAID: $1500 Account#: 01-4035-0-0000-2700-5800-930-0000 -------

Write out meaning of account number: Title II Professional Development Secondary 

Approval of Business Services verifying account: ____________ _ Date: _______ _ 

Authorized Signature of Consultant: Date: I :l -1/ -e(1) 
(NOTE: Consultant must su 

Signature of Administrator Requesting Service 

Date: ____________ _ 

Approval of Assistant Superintendent 

Date: 

AB 1610, 1612, and 2102 COMPLIANCE (consultants having more than limiled contact with students require fingerprinting)

□ Consultants will be on campus on a regular basis (more than once) while students are present
� Consultant will not be on campus on a regular basis while students are present (fingerprints not required).

Fingerprint Clearance date: ________ Approval of Human Resources: _________ ___ _ 
********************************************* 

PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION 
(Submit for payment after Consultant completes work) 

I hereby certify that the consultant has satisfactorily completed the services in accordance with the above Agreement and 
that payment is in order. 

Signature of Administrator Requesting Payment Date 

Approval of Assistant Superintendent Date 

Board of Education Approval: _________ _ 
(Required if over $2500) 7/14/2016 

312/425



313/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Geo H Wilson Change Order #1 Westlake Elementary School 
Sewer Repairs   

    
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Geo H Wilson change order #1 for Westlake Elementary School sewer repairs. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of an overall reduction in work due to the discovery of an additional 
drainage reducing the need for excavation. The previously approved contract amount was 
$58,432.00 and the new total contract, including this change order, will be $54,476.65. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     -$3,955.35, (6.77% decrease to the contract), Measure B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

314/425



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT CHANGE ORDER FORM 
 
 

CHANGE ORDER FORM 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 

 CHANGE ORDER NO.: 

1 
 

CHANGE ORDER 
 

Project: Westlake Elementary School Sewer Repairs   
 
The following parties agree to the terms of this Change Order: 
Owner:  

Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission St., Suite 100 
Santa Cruz, Ca 95060 
 
 

Contractor:  
Geo. H. Wilson 
250 Harvey West Blvd. 
Santa Cruz, Ca 95060 
 

 
Reference Description Cost Days Ext. 

PCO #499.01 
 

Add to extend Storm Drain POC +/- 50' to Catch Basin. 
Changed from POC below southwest corner of Media Center to 
existing Catch Basin north of lower wing of classrooms. 

$ 10,472.00 6.6 

PCO #449.02 Deduct the repair of lateral tie-in to Manhole #3. Work to be 
moved to next phase of project 

-$9,260.00  0 

PCO #449.03 
 

Deduct scope of work from 499.01 -$5,167.35  0 

 
 

 
Original Contract Amount: 
 
Amount of Previously Approved 
Change Order(s): 
 
Amount of this Change Order: 
 
Contract Amount:  

 
$58,432.00  
 
  
$ 0.00 
 
-$3,955.35  
 
$54,476.65 

 
The undersigned Contractor approves the foregoing as to the changes, if any, and the Cost, if any, specified for each item and as to 
the extension of time allowed, if any, for completion of the entire work as stated therein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials 
and services and perform all work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration stated therein. 
 
This change order is subject to approval by the governing board of this district and must be signed by the District.   
 
The compensation and time, if any, granted herein represent a full accord and satisfaction for any and all time and cost impacts of 
the items herein, and Contractor waives any and all further compensation or time extension based on the items herein.  The value of 
the extra work or changes expressly includes any and all of the Contractors costs and expenses, both direct and indirect, resulting 
from additional time required on the project or resulting from delay to the project.  Any costs, expenses, damages or time extensions 
not included are deemed waived.   
 
 
 
Signatures: 
 
District:      Contractor: 
 
 
       ________           ________ 

END OF DOCUMENT 

315/425

crolen
Snapshot

crolen
Typewritten Text
12/16/20



 

Extra Work Proposal 

Labor and Material Breakdown 

60510046 Date : 11/19/2020

Westlake - Section 2 Extra Work Proposal # : 499.01

Pricing Breakdown:

Plumbing-Field 6,874.58$           
Subcontracts 1,000.00$           
Rentals 390.00$              
Sales Tax 9.25% 104.04$              

 TOTAL COST 8,368.62$           
+ Overhead 15% 1,105.29$           
+ Fee 10% 847.39$              

15% 150.00$              

Total Extra Work Proposal Price 10,472.00$         

Time extension required because of labor added by this change is 6.6 workdays

This proposal includes 52                hours of straight time,  -                   hours of overtime,

-               hours of double time,  & -                   hours of shift work.

ACCO is:   

Proceeding with this work: Waiting for authorization: X

 

Date: 11/19/2020  

Date:

Description of work:

Add to extend Storm Drain POC +/- 50' to Catch Basin. Changed from POC below southwest corner of Media Center 
to existing Catch Basin north of lower wing of classrooms.

ACCO Job # :  

Job Name :

This price does not include any cutting or patching of drywall, electrical, painting, or other general construction.  The cost of this change includes only 

those direct costs which can be identified at this time.  There are no impact or ripple costs and no delay costs included in this proposal.  Should it be 

determined at a later date that we are experiencing impact cost because of multiple changes, delays, or causes beyond our control, we will submit those 

costs at that time.

+ Subcontracts Overhead/Fee

Signature

Submitted by: Tom Wilson
Project Manager

Approved by:

ACCO Engineered Systems 1 of 1 12/1/2020

316/425

crolen
Callout
Materials $874Labor $5,999



 

Extra Work Proposal 

Labor and Material Breakdown 

60510046 Date : 11/19/2020

Westlake - Section 2 Extra Work Proposal # : 499.02

Pricing Breakdown:

Plumbing-Field (5,087.50)$         
Rentals (2,000.00)$         
Sales Tax 9.25% (231.94)$            

 TOTAL COST (7,319.44)$         
+ Overhead 15% (1,097.92)$         
+ Fee 10% (841.74)$            

Total Extra Work Proposal Price (9,260.00)$         

Time extension required because of labor added by this change is 0.0 workdays

This proposal includes (40)               hours of straight time,  -                   hours of overtime,

-               hours of double time,  & -                   hours of shift work.

ACCO is:   

Proceeding with this work: Waiting for authorization: X

 

Date: 11/19/2020  

Date:

Description of work:

Deduct the repair of lateral tie-in to Manhole #3. Work to be moved to next phase of project. 

ACCO Job # :  

Job Name :

This price does not include any cutting or patching of drywall, electrical, painting, or other general construction.  The cost of this change includes only 

those direct costs which can be identified at this time.  There are no impact or ripple costs and no delay costs included in this proposal.  Should it be 

determined at a later date that we are experiencing impact cost because of multiple changes, delays, or causes beyond our control, we will submit those 

costs at that time.

Signature

Submitted by: Tom Wilson
Project Manager

Approved by:

ACCO Engineered Systems 1 of 1 12/1/2020

317/425

crolen
Callout
Materials $508Labor $4,580



 

Extra Work Proposal 

Labor and Material Breakdown 

60510046 Date : 12/14/2020

Westlake - Section 2 Extra Work Proposal # : 499.03

Pricing Breakdown:

Plumbing-Field (3,632.30)$          
Subcontracts .00$                    

Rentals (390.00)$             
Sales Tax 9.25% (62.56)$               

 TOTAL COST (4,084.86)$          
+ Overhead 15% (612.73)$             
+ Fee 10% (469.76)$             

15% .00$                    

Total Extra Work Proposal Price (5,167.35)$          

Time extension required because of labor added by this change is 0.0 workdays

This proposal includes (28)               hours of straight time,  -                   hours of overtime,

-               hours of double time,  & -                   hours of shift work.

ACCO is:   

Proceeding with this work: X Waiting for authorization: 

 

Date:
12/14/2020

 

Date:

Description of work:

Deduct scope of work from 499.01

ACCO Job # :  

Job Name :

This price does not include any cutting or patching of drywall, electrical, painting, or other general construction.  The cost of this change includes 

only those direct costs which can be identified at this time.  There are no impact or ripple costs and no delay costs included in this proposal.  

Should it be determined at a later date that we are experiencing impact cost because of multiple changes, delays, or causes beyond our control, 

we will submit those costs at that time.

+ Subcontracts Overhead/Fee

Signature

Submitted by: Tom Wilson

Project Manager

Approved by:

ACCO Engineered Systems 1 of 1 12/15/2020

318/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Locatelli Moving & Storage Inc. Change Order #1 for Bay View 
Elementary School Moves 

      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Locatelli Moving & Storage Inc. change order #1 for Bay View Elementary School 
moves. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of additional storage and book cart rental at Bay View Elementary 
School. Additional book cart rental and storage was required due to COVID related delays. The 
previously approved contract amount was $39,240.58 and the new total contract, including this 
change order, will be $48,840.58. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $9,600.00, (24.46% increase to the contract), Measure B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

319/425



320/425



321/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  PPD Multimedia Inc. Quote Harbor High School Logo 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the PPD Multimedia Inc. quote for the Harbor High School logo. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of installation of the Harbor High School logo on the gymnasium wall, as 
a replacement for an older logo that was removed. This was discussed and approved by the site 
bond committee on 11/18/2020. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$20,428.30, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.07% of the overall site budget 
$28,554,079.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Harbor High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 

 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

322/425



3700 Portola Drive
Santa Cruz, CA 95062

Quote

Invoice #: 00024617
Date: 9/25/20

Ship Via:
Page: 1

Bill To:

Harbor High School
300 La Fonda Avenue
Santa Cruz, CA 95062

Ship To:

Harbor High School
300 La Fonda Avenue
Santa Cruz, CA 95062

Description Amount Tx

We are proud to be CERTIFIED GREEN Business

Your Order #: EXTERIOR GYM
Shipping Date:

Terms: C.O.D.

Freight:
Sales Tax:

Total Amount:
Amount Applied:

Balance Due:

EXTERIOR GYM
CUSTOMER SUPPLIED ARTWORK
1 - 17'H x 48'W / HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL / CONTOUR CUT /
3MCONTROLTAC, FULL COLOR DIGITAL PRINT

$12,870.00 X

1 - 4 DAY / EQUIPMENT CHARGE / 26' SCISSOR LIFT (CUSTOMER SUPPLIED)
32 HR LABOR TO INSTALL 22 PIECES TO ONE LOCATION ( Prevailing wage) $6,400.00

NOTE: CUSTOMER TO REMOVE CONDUIT FROM NON-WORKING LIGHT 

$0.00
$1,158.30

$20,428.30
$0.00

$20,428.30

323/425



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: PSR Electric Change Order #1 for Santa Cruz High School Site 
Lighting 

      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the PSR Electric change order #1 for Santa Cruz High School site lighting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of additional repairs to broken conduits discovered while working on 
the new safety lighting and the installation of new pull boxes for new wiring. The previously 
approved contract amount was $47,900.00 and the new total contract, including this change 
order, will be $49,600.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $1,700.00, (3.54% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 

Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 

324/425



325/425



326/425



 

AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Update on Expanding In-Person Services & Academic  
Interventions and Support 

      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2020 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Staff continue to support a robust distance learning program as well as in-person and virtual 
supports, while planning for expansion of our in-person instructional services.   
 
This update will include information on: 
Review of County COVID Data 
Staff will provide an update on current Santa Cruz County COVID data.  
 
Update on Preparation for Hybrid Instruction 
Staff are finalizing facilities and logistical preparations for Hybrid Instruction.  The district 
ventilation report will be finalized soon, as will ventilation upgrades. 
 
Student Intervention & Support 
Staff are currently expanding existing in-person and virtual support systems and planning for 
summer programs.  In addition, staff are in the process of developing a long term plan for 
student support.   
 
Governor's Proposal 
Staff will review the Governor’s December 30th incentive proposal, logistical challenges and 
considerations for Santa Cruz City Schools.  Given our County’s current rate of COVID spread, 
we are not eligible at this time. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
To be determined as plans for interventions are finalized. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap that currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 

327/425



SCCS Expanding In 
Person Instruction & 
Academic Intervention 
& Support Update 

Tuesday, January 13, 2021

328/425



Tonight’s 
Update

• Review of County COVID Data

• Update on Preparation for Hybrid 
Instruction

• Update on Student Intervention 
& Support

• Governor’s Proposal 

329/425



State 
Monitoring 

System

• Rate of new cases and test positivity rate 
determine tiered placement 

• Santa Cruz County - 496 new cases per 
100,000 residents

• Santa Cruz County – 9.4% positivity rate

• Santa Cruz County placed on Tier 1 -
“Widespread” Risk

• Counties must remain in a tier for at least 3 
weeks before moving forward

• To move forward, county must meet next tier’s 
criteria for two consecutive weeks

• If county metrics worsen for two consecutive 
weeks, county moves to a more restrictive tier

330/425



331/425



332/425



Preparation 
for Hybrid 

Instruction

• Continued work to prepare facilities

• Continued work to upgrade ventilation
• Ventilation report will be posted on website when 

complete
• Over $700,000 spent to date on assessment and 

upgrades

• Preparation to distribute technology for Hybrid 
Instruction – 4 – pack of tech delivered to all sites

• Finalizing plan for Elementary Distance Learning 
during Hybrid Instruction

• Finalizing Hybrid Instructional Cohorts
• Working to ensure families have the same in-person 

days
• Balancing Classes

333/425



Student 
Intervention 
& Support

7

Expansion of small cohorts

Planning with RtI Coordinators

Recruitment for Credit Recovery Teachers for 
Spring Semester & Summer

Recruitment of additional Costanoa teachers

Drafting 2 -year Learning Loss Mitigation Plan

Seeking input on needs from students and 
parents

Board Ad Hoc Committee to address interventions and 
resources to support student success

334/425



Newsom’s Incentive Grant Proposal 12.30.20
• Proposal to provide $450 per ADA to bring back TK-2 students by 2/15 and 3rd – 5th grade students 

by 3/15

• New California Department of Public Health guidance for schools to be released on Jan 8th

• Grants allocated based on a District’s total ADA minus students enrolled in independent study. 

• To qualify districts must:

• Provide safety plan to County Office of Education (COE) by February 1st 

• Submit to their COE a ratified collective bargaining agreement or memorandum of 
understanding, if applicable, that implements the LEA’s COVID Safety Plan no later than 
February 1, 2021. 

• Offer in-person instruction by 2/16/21 to students in grades TK–2 and specialized cohorts 
across all grade spans

• Expand in-person instruction by 3/15/21 to all TK–5 grade students 

• Certify to the COE that students who remain in distance learning have the necessary tools 
(computing devices and  internet access) to participate 

8

335/425



Incentive 
Grant 
Options 

• Districts unable to meet the condition for 
funding under the initial round may apply for 
lower grant amounts on a monthly basis

• Districts unable to reopen for in-person 
instruction by February 16 due to local health 
conditions —where the average seven-day 
COVID-19 case rate exceeds 28 per 100,000 per 
day—still eligible to apply for and receive 
funding with base rates of $450 per ADA -- must  
meet all requirements the month immediately 
following the case-rate level dropping below 28 
per 100,000.

• Proposal covers all grade spans since cohorts of 
vulnerable students beyond sixth grade are 
included in the requirement. Therefore, all 
Districts are eligible to apply, including high 
school districts.336/425



Considerations 

• Can only be done if COVID-19 numbers 
are under 28 per 100,000 (Santa Cruz 
County is currently above that at 41.1 per 
100,000)

• Current Board decision is to open once 
the County enters the Red Tier

• With weekly testing required for students 
and staff – Countywide testing capacity 
would have to increase from 1,500 tests a 
week to 10,000, which is currently not 
possible

• Funding for the plan requires legislative 
approval

• Concern about availability of substitutes 
given the rate of COVID spread

337/425



AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.1 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Bond Budget Update 
 
MEETING DATE: January 13, 2021 
 
FROM: Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Mark Bartos of Bartos Architecture will present an update on the Bond Measures A and B 
budgets. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Approximately $3,000 Measure A & B (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 
 

338/425



SANTA CRUZ CITY  SCHOOLS |  BOARD MEETING – 13  JANUARY 2021

Program Budgets and Expenditure Summary

1 3  J a n u a r y  2 0 2 1 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

339/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Measure A | B Update      Expenditures

$140,000,000

Program Snapshot

Measure A: High Schools

$68,000,000Measure B: Elementary Schools

Resource

$79,189,751 

$208,000,000Measure A|B Summary $118,808,015 

The values indicated here are based upon the Bartos Architecture program management 

database and indicate total expenditures throughout the program. 

These values are periodically reconciled with District records.

Remaining

Resource

$60,810,249

$28,381,736

$89,191,985 

Measure A

56.6 %

Measure B

58.3%

Measure A|B

57.1%

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021

$39,618,264

Expenditures

To 11/30/20

340/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Measure A | B Update      Terminology

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021

Resource:   Funds available to site (including bond and state funds)

Allocation: Budgetary allocation based on latest cost estimate, and prioritizations with site teams

Expenditure to Date: Expenditures for a given project from November 2016 thru November 2020.

Projected FY 20|21: Expenditures anticipated (predicted) from 01 July through 30 June.

Percent Complete: Proportion of amount actually expended divided by the total site resource.

Multi Project Overhead: 5% of site resource for efforts not related to a specific project.

Utility Infrastructure: Site (outside of buildings) utilities. Drainage, Gas, Water, Electrical.

Multi Project Overhead

Project xyz

Project xyz

Utility Infrastructure

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

Allocation

$ TotalAllocated so far

Projected

FY 20|21

$

$

$

$

Expenditures

To Date

Current Resource     $xx,xxx,xxx

$ Total $ Total

A

B C DE % Complete

F

G

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

341/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures

$800,000

$259,330

$1,678,923

$1,850,000

$2,700,000

$1,800,000

$3,000,000

$400

$9,281

$250,000

$423,000

$112,352

$259,330 

$1,678,923

$919,495 

$2,197,390

$106,576

$432,052 

$400

$9,245

$171,183

$414,331

$6,301,277 

Allocation

$12,770,934Allocated so far

Projected

FY 20|21

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Branciforte MS  Current Resource     $17,093,431

35 % (Total Expenditures to 30 November 2020)

13 January 2021

Expenditures

To 11/30/20

Multi Project

Parking Lot Improvements

Re-Roof

Street Presence

Music/MPR

Library/Admin

Classroom Mod Phase 1

Relocatable Removal

Utility Infrastructure

Card Access Security System

Data Infrastructure Improvements

$46,500

-

-

$930,505

$502,610

$1,200,000

$2,250,000

-

-

$328,817

$8,669
$6,332,590

342/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8

Multi-Project Overhead

Front Lawn (Hardscape|Landscape)

Roof Replacement Phase 1

Roof Replacement Phase 2

Mod Phase 1 (Permanent walls)

Mod Phase 2 (Main Building)

Mod Phase 3 (Envelope)

New Classroom Building

Gym Locker Rooms Phase 1

Gym Phase 2 (Improve)

Site Improvements

Utility Infrastructure (incl. Power) 

Card Access Security System

Data Infrastructure Improvements

Exterior Site Security (Fencing)

Artificial Field Replacement

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures

Mission Hill Middle School   Current Site Resource   $17,648,740

$185,061 

$1,193,016 

$1,618,982

$103,181

$483,088

$25,453

$31,445

$6,766

$158,913

$18,901

$49,075

$207,592

$182,277

$395,441

$6,840

$149,631 
$4,815,662$17,275,603Allocated so far

Allocation

Projected

FY 20|21

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021
26 %(Total Expenditures to 30 November 2020) 

Expenditures

To 11/30/20

$132,866

-

-

-

-

$278,566

$2,169,431

$500,000

-

-

$220,201

$825,358

-

-

-

$1,500,000

$5,626,422

$952,206

$1,195,615

$1,618,982

$103,181

$483,088

$300,000

$2,200,000

$5,250,000

$158,913

$18,901

$269,276

$1,000,000

$230,000

$395,441

$100,000

$3,000,000

343/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures

Athletic Field Improvements

Pool

Re-roof

Student Locker Improvements

Tennis Court Remodel

New Electrical

Student Restroom Hand Dryers

Data Infrastructure Improvements

Seismic Mitigation Program

Upper Parking Lot/Drop Off

Site Infrastructure

External Security

Mod 2: Fine Arts

Card Access Security System

Multi Project

$11,901,515

$11,533,351 

$2,094,715

$257,554

$181,444

$110,971

$185,791

$807,298

$2,170

$21,806

$61,841

$110,868

$472,108

$318,448

$129,508

$28,189,386Allocated so far

Allocation

Projected

FY 20|21

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021

$28,552,382

99% (Total Expenditures to 30 November 2020)

Expenditures

To 11/30/20

$11,901,515

$11,533,351

$2,094,715

$257,554

$181,444

$110,971 

$185,791

$807,298

$2,170

$21,806

$61,878 

$110,868

$730,000

$423,513

$129,508

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$560,000

-

-

$194,185

Harbor High School       Current Resource  $28,554,079

344/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8

Multi Project Overhead

Mod Phase 1: (water line|leaks)

Mod Phase 2: (Cafeteria, restroom, classes)

Mod Phase 3: (Math, Sci, Library)

Mod Phase 4: (Main building)

CTE Mod Transportation 1 Art Class

Gym Mod Phase 1: (Finishes, Heat, Misc)

Gym Mod Phase 2: (entry, locker rooms)

New Pool House (restrooms)

Fields

Sports Complex Upgrades

Re-Roof Phase 1

Re-Roof Phase 2

Card Access Security System

Data Infrastructure Improvements

Exterior Site Security 

Campus Switchgear

Utility Infrastructure

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures

Santa Cruz HS      Current Resource          $32,072,783

$1,000,000

$695,270

$5,816,000

$1,750,000

$3,750,000

$229,206

$1,200,000

$5,000,000

$3,190,477

$1,437,464

$400,000

$2,220,641

$375,279

$500,000

$1,434,611

$124,282

$2,581,994

$300,000

$207,746 

$695,270 

$958,057 

$150,186 

$302,104 

$223,468 

$1,109,522 

$113,792 

$85,871 

$1,437,464

$361,857 

$2,220,641

$375,279 

$263,590

$1,434,611 

$124,282 

$126,344

$96,574 

$10,286,657Allocated so far $32,005,224

Allocation

Projected

FY 20|21 

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021

31 %(Total Expenditures to 30 November 2020)

Expenditures

To 11/30/20

$107,419

-

$3,000,000

$500,000

$500,000

-

$92,569

$500,000

$2,500,000

-

$38,256

-

-

$236,410

-

$30,651

$207,207

$223,414

$7,935,926

345/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures

Soquel High School       Current Resource   $34,830,967

Multi Project

Site Infrastructure (safety, elec, drainage)

New Snack Shack

Tennis Courts

Mod Phase1:Reverse Tenant Improvement

Mod Phase 2

Mod Phase 3: Wing 200

Pool 

Fields

Card Access Security System

Interim Housing

Data Infrastructure Improvements

External Site Security

Performing Arts Center

$175,754

$3,726,351

$1,872,382

$210,066

$1,786,196

$10,909,399

$338,490

$6,778,693

$1,527,272

$310,025

$69,579

$794,533

$63,130

$18,863 

$28,580,732$31,507,332 Allocated so far

Allocation

Projected

FY 20|21

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021

79 %(Total Expenditures to 30 November 2020)

Expenditures

To 11/30/20

$348,310

$3,793,795

$1,872,382

$210,066

$1,937,183

$12,551,174

$339,500

$7,422,771

$1,527,272

$350,000

$118,542

$794,553

$80,671

$161,113

$50,000

-

-

-

-

$2,307,933

$1,010

$644,078

-

-

-

$63,827

$17,541

-

$3,084,389

346/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures

Bayview ES              Current Resource       $12,384,192

Multi-Project

Re-Roof

New WPENS Portable & Sitework

New Kindergarten Bldg & Sitework

New Classroom Bldg & Sitework

Modernization Phase 1 

Modernization Phase 2

Portable Demolition & Site Work

Utility Infrastructure

Card Access Security System

Data Infrastructure Improvements

$69,396 

$925,529

$41,858

$70,585

$4,200,000

$6,005,920 

$225,518

$83,213

$54,325

$190,000

$493,299

$69,396

$925,529

$41,858

$70,585

$4,124,671

$5,472,560

$3,350

$83,213

$54,325

$155,837

$493,299

$10,751,143$12,359,643

Allocation

Projected

FY 20|21

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021

81 % (Total Expenditures to 30 November 2020)

Expenditures

To 11/30/20

-

-

-

-

$445,202

$1,192,385

$222,168

-

-

$34,163

$108,815

$2,002,733

347/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

DeLaveaga ES              Current Resource   $14,188,861

Multi-Project Overhead

New Parking Lot

New Classrooms

Re-Roofing Project

Mod Phase 1 (Classrooms)

Mod Phase 2 (Special spaces)

Portable Demolition & Site Work

Site Infrastructure

Card Access Security System

Data Infrastructure Improvements

$60,879

$1,537,310

$3,527,591

$26,395

$6,461,165

$346,290 

$62,475 

$44,965

$153,233

$623,852 

$12,844,156 

Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures

$13,584,163 Allocated so far

-

-

$99,409

$6,599

$2,057,360

-

$37,525

-

$11,327

-

Allocation

Projected

FY 20|21

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021

85 % (Total Expenditures to 30 November 2020)

Expenditures

To 11/30/20

$2,212,220

$60,879

$1,537,310

$3,627,000

$32,994

$7,017,663 

$339,500

$100,000

$44,965

$200,000

$623,852 

348/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Gault ES                         Current Resource   $9,226,851

Multi Project Overhead

Roofing 

Modular Building

Mod Phase 1 Main Building (Water Intrusion)

Mod Phase 2 Main Building (Carpet)

Mod Phase 3 : Envelope (paint)

Utility Infrastructure

Card Access Security System

Data Infrastructure Improvements

$137,073

$798,937

$49,151

$99,189

TBD

$279,243

$48,248

$100,001

$460,192

$1,972,035 

Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures

$9,223,248Allocated so far

$111,319

-

$3,000,000

-

TBD

-

-

-

-

Allocation

Projected

FY 20|21 

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021

20 % (Total Expenditures to 30 November 2020)

Expenditures

To 11/30/20

$3,111,319

$415,000

$798,937

$6,923,336

$99,189

$100,000

$279,243

$48,248

$110,000

$449,295

349/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Natural Bridges      Current Resource         $5,421,709

Multi-Project

Campus Re-Roofing

Gym Mod Ph 1 w/ Parking Lot

Gym Mod Ph 2 w/ Restroom

Modernization and Repairs

Utility Infrastructure

Artificial Field

$16,426

$1,537,051

$809,077

$1,706,033

$645,181

$9,336

$106,061

$16,426

$1,487,648

$717,548

$1,185,936

$645,181

$9,336

$97,035

$4,159,110 

Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures

Allocated so far $4,829,165

-

-

-

$524,160

-

-

-

Allocation

Projected

FY 20|21

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021

95 % (Total Expenditures to 30 November 2020)

Expenditures

To 11/30/20

$524,160

350/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Westlake ES                 Current Resource     $13,439,288

Multi-Project Overhead

Re-roof

New Upper Classroom

Mod Phase 1:  Upper Wing

Mod Phase 2: Lower Wing 

Site Improvements, Sign, Fence, Access

Utility Infrastructure (incl power)

Card Access Security System

Data Infrastructure Improvements

Lower Parking and Drive

$500,000

$2,304,839

$4,750,000

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$1,001,981

$1,000,000

$220,000

$335,000

$1,000,000

$143,565

$2,304,839

$38,020 

$119,871 

$99,912 

$347,399 

$126,398 

$212,363

$251,875 

$1,725
$3,656,500 

Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures

$13,079,132Allocated so far

$135,437

$1,349,117

TBD

$16,393

$12,022

$372,485

TBD

$19,358

$143,815

-

Allocation

Projected

FY 20|21

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021

26% (Total Expenditures to 30 November 2020)

Expenditures

To 11/30/20

$2,048,627

351/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Branciforte Small Schools   Current Resource     $8,579,099

Multi-Project

Relocate Playground and Lunch Shelter

PC Classroom

Alternative Family Ed Campus

Mod Phase 1 

Portable Demolition and Site Work

Site Infrastructure

Card Access Security System

Data Infrastructure Improvements

$57,024

$582,072

$3,750,000

$1,777,968 

$1,540,549 

$100,000

$10,649 

$150,000 

$300,000

$54,972 

$582,072

$3,220,949 

$191,616 

$473,970 

$53,309

$10,366 

$121,347

$264,354 

$4,972,954

Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures

$8,268,262

-

-

$529,051

$1,587,554

$250,000

$37,231

-

-

-

Allocation

Projected

FY 20|21

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021

54.0%(Total Expenditures to 30 November 2020)

Expenditures

To 11/30/20

$2,403,836

352/425



2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y

Measure A | B Update

END

c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 January 2021

353/425



 

  

  

                        

  AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.2 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: Bond Projects Update 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent Business Services  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ralph le Roux & Mariana Alvarez Parga of MADI Architectures will present an update on 
Measures A and B bond projects at Bay View Elementary, Delaveaga Elementary, Branciforte 
Small Schools, Natural Bridges and Soquel High. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 

 

354/425



Measure A & B
MADI 19six Architects Project Updates

JANUARY 2021

355/425



AGENDA
Bay View Elementary School

DeLaveaga Elementary School

Branciforte Small Schools

Soquel High School

Natural Bridges Campus

356/425



BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – MEASURE B

CAMPUS PROJECTS
RE-ROOFING

NEW CLASSROOM BUILDING

CLASSROOM MODERNIZATION

PORTABLE DEMOLITION

PLAYGROUND UPDATES

357/425



PROJECT START COMPLETE PROJECT BUDGET

Multi-Project Overhead ONGOING ONGOING $25,000

Re-Roofing COMPLETE COMPLETE $925,529

WPENS Relocation & Site Work CANCELLED CANCELLED $41,858

New Kindergarten Building & Site Work FUTURE BOND FUTURE BOND $92,477

New Classroom Building & Site Work COMPLETE COMPLETE $4,150,000

Classroom Modernization (PHASE 1) 04/01/2020 01/06/2021 $6,000,442

Classroom Modernization (PHASE 2) 04/01/2020 01/06/2021 $225,518

Portable Demolition & Site Work 06/15/2021 08/23/2021 $83,213

Site Infrastructure ongoing ongoing $10,984

Card Access Security System 06/10/2019 08/21/2021 $190,000

Data Infrastructure Improvements 06/10/2019 08/21/2021 $453,169

Site budget $12,384,192

BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – MEASURE B

358/425



ADMINISTRATION OFFICE – ONGOING CONSTRUCTION

BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL - ADMINISTRATION MODERNIZATION

OFFICE RENDERING OFFICE RENDERING
359/425



LIBRARY RENDERINGS

BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL - LIBRARY MODERNIZATION

360/425



BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL - CLASSROOM MODERNIZATION

361/425



DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – MEASURE B

CAMPUS PROJECTS
NEW CLASSROOM BUILDING

CLASSROOM MODERNIZATION

PORTABLE DEMOLITION

PLAYGROUND UPDATES

362/425



DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – MEASURE B

PROJECT START COMPLETE PROJECT BUDGET

Multi-Project Overhead ONGOING ONGOING $30,000

NEW SHADE STRUCTURE & Parking lot COMPLETE COMPLETE $1,372,745

New Classroom Building & site work complete complete $4,789,309

Modernization (PHASE 1) 08/01/2018 12/30/2020 $7,357,133

Modernization (PHASE 2) 08/01/2018 12/30/2020 $339,500

Portable Demolition & Site Work 06/15/2021 08/23/2021 $100,000

Site infrastructure ongoing ongoing $6,098

Card Access Security System 06/10/2019 08/21/2021 $164,560

Data Infrastructure Improvements 06/10/2019 08/21/2021 $334,542

Site budget $14,188,861

363/425



DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – ADMINISTRATION ENTRANCE

NEW FRONT ENTRANCE TO THE CAMPUS364/425



DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – ADMINISTRATION

NEW ADMINISTRATION ENTRANCE

365/425



DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – ADMINISTRATION

PRINICIPAL’S OFFICE (RENDER)

PRINICIPAL’S OFFICE

366/425



DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – LITTLE THEATRE

367/425



CAMPUS MODERNIZATION – CLASSROOM MODERNIZATION

368/425



BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS – MEASURE A & B

CAMPUS PROJECTS
NEW PLAYGROUND

NEW ADA RAMP

NEW CLASSROOM BUILDING

NEW AFE CAMPUS

MAIN BUILDING MODERNIZATION

369/425



PROJECT START COMPLETE PROJECT BUDGET

Multi-Project Overhead ONGOING ONGOING $37,182

NEW playground & SHADE STRUCTURE COMPLETE COMPLETE $570,685

New Classroom Building & site work complete complete $3,385,259

New Afe campus 12/15/2019 07/31/2021 $2,484,569

Modernization 03/01/2021 08/15/2022 $1,540,550

Portable Demolition & Site Work 06/15/2021 08/23/2021 $60,000

Site INFRASTRUCTURE ONGOING ONGOING $10,367

Card Access Security System 06/10/2019 08/21/2021 $150,000

Data Infrastructure Improvements 06/10/2019 08/21/2021 $250,000

Site budget $8,579,099

BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS – MEASURE A & B

370/425



BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS – NEW CLASSROOM BUILDING

371/425



BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS – NEW AFE CAMPUS

(2) CLASSROOMS

(1) KINDERGARTEN CLASSROOM

(4) OFFICES

(1) STORAGE ROOM

(1) CONFERENCE ROOM

(1) RESOURCE CENTER

372/425



NATURAL BRIDGES CAMPUS – MEASURE B

CAMPUS PROJECTS
RE-ROOFING

CAMPUS RE-PAINTING

GYM MODERNIZATION

NEW TOILET BUILDING

373/425



PROJECT START COMPLETE PROJECT BUDGET

Multi-Project Overhead COMPLETE COMPLETE $10,000

CAMPUS RE-ROOFING COMPLETE COMPLETE $1,537,051

GYMNASIUM Modernization phase 1 COMPLETE COMPLETE $809,077

GYMNASIUM Modernization phase 2 COMPLETE COMPLETE $1,196,092

Modernization and repairs COMPLETE COMPLETE $583,172

Artificial field COMPLETE to date COMPLETE to date $106,061

Expenditures $5,421,709

NATURAL BRIDGES CAMPUS – MEASURE B

374/425



SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – MEASURE A

CAMPUS PROJECTS
FIRE LANE & WATER LOOP REPLACEMENT

NEW POOL (NON MADI PROJECT)

NEW CONCESSIONS BUILDING

WING 300 REVERSE T&I

WING 100 & 200 MODERNIZATION
375/425



SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – MEASURE A BUDGETS

PROJECT START COMPLETE BUDGET

Multi-Project Overhead ONGOING ONGOING $348,309.67

Pool (by Belli) COMPLETE COMPLETE $7,422,771.00

Site Infrastructure COMPLETE COMPLETE $3,973,795.00

New Concessions Building & Ramp COMPLETE COMPLETE $1,865,810.00

Tennis Courts COMPLETE COMPLETE $209,524.00

Interim Housing (Soft Costs) - - $118,542.00

Modernization Phase 1: Wing 300 COMPLETE COMPLETE $1,937,183.00

Modernization Phase 2: Wing 100 & 200 10/1/2019 02/28/2021 $12,532,383.45

Modernization Phase 3: Site Work 03/01/2020 08/23/2020 $339,500.00

Card Access Security System 06/10/2019 08/23/2020 $308,646.00

Data Infrastructure Improvements 06/10/2019 08/21/2020 $523,041.00

Fields – COPS Loan - - $1,527,272.00

Performing Arts Center (programming only) - - $161,112.50

Site budget $34,830,967

376/425



SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – ADMINISTRATION MODERNIZATION

BEFORE AFTER

377/425



SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – LIBRARY MODERNIZATION

378/425



Thank You
379/425



AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.3. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

  
AGENDA ITEM:  Bond Set Aside Projects 
      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the projects to be funded by Bond Set Aside funds. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the Business Services Study Session on October 28, 2020, the Board of Education requested 
staff bring back a report on recommended projects to be funded by the Bond Set Aside dollars. 
The District Bond Set Aside is intended to provide funding to support projects for needs that are 
a districtwide resource.  
 
Staff recommend the following as projects to be funded by the District Bond Set Aside: 
 

 Transportation – Trailer office has reached end of life and is failing; space is inadequate 

for transportation team 

 Maintenance Facility – New data system needed to align with District and County 

systems; parking lot is failing and loading small delivery trucks has become dangerous 

 Food Service Main Facility – New walk-in refrigerator and freezers needed at Harbor and 

DeLaveaga central kitchen facilities that serve the entire district; current systems are old 

and failing 

 Central Office – Americans with Disabilities Act accessibility improvements – parking lot 

accessibility; entrance and bathroom doors accessibility 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Project Estimated Costs Funding Source 

Transportation Trailer $1,750,000 Bond Set Aside, Measures A & B 

(Restricted) 

380/425



AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.3. 

Palm Street Maintenance 

Facility Parking Lot & Safety 

Lighting 

$550,000 Bond Set Aside, Measures A & B 

(Restricted) 

Palm Street Maintenance 

Facility District Network & 

Key Cards 

$190,000 Bond Set Aside, Measures A & B 

(Restricted) 

Harbor Central Kitchen 

Freezer  

$1,900,000 Bond Set Aside, Measures A & B 

(Restricted) 

DeLaveaga Central Kitchen 

Cold Storage 

$150,000 Bond Set Aside, Measures A & B 

(Restricted) 

Americans with Disabilities 

Act Access at Central Office  

$125,000 Bond Set Aside, Measures A & B 

(Restricted) 

Total $4,665,000 Bond Set Aside, Measures A & B 

(Restricted) 

 

This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 

Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 

381/425



Bond District 
Set Aside 
Allocation

January 13, 2021

382/425



Bond Set 
Aside 
Resources

District Bond Set Aside: 

District set aside was intended to provide 
funding to support projects for needs that were 
a districtwide resource ie: Maintenance facility 
and Transportation.

383/425



Bond Set Aside

District Set Aside Elementary District Set Aside Secondary

$1,700,000 $3,500,000

384/425



Proposed District Set Aside Project Needs & Other 
Potential Funding Sources

Transportation - Trailer office has reached end of life and is failing; space inadequate for 

transportation team 

Maintenance Facility - Need new data system to align with District and County systems; 

parking lot is failing and loading small delivery trucks has become dangerous 

Food Service Main Facility - New walk in refrigerator and freezers at Harbor and 

DeLaveaga central kitchen facilities; current systems are old and failing 

Central Office - Americans with Disabilities Act accessibility improvements - parking lot 

accessibility; entrance and bathroom doors 

385/425



Proposed District Set 
Aside Project Needs

Transportation - Trailer 

office has reached end of 

life and is failing; leaks, 

and space inadequate for 

transportation team. 

This portable was moved 

over a decade ago from 

previous location.

386/425



Proposed District Set Aside Project Needs

Maintenance Facility - Need new data system to align with 

District and County systems; parking lot is failing and loading / 

unloading small delivery trucks has become dangerous

There has been no consistent maintenance to site due to 

previous limited budgets since the department moved over a 

decade ago 387/425



Proposed District Set Aside Project Needs

Food Service Main Facility

● New walk in refrigerator and freezers at Harbor 

and DeLaveaga central kitchen facilities; 

current systems are old, failing and undersized

● Unit at Harbor has been in use with the 

building completion in 2004, and unit at 

DeLaveaga has been in use since installation 

in 1990

388/425



Proposed District Set 
Aside Project Needs

Central Office - Americans 

with Disabilities Act 

accessibility improvement; 

update parking lot 

accessibility; entrance and 

bathroom door accessibility 

projects

389/425



Estimated Project Costs

Project Estimated Costs Potential Funding Sources

Transportation Trailer $1,750,000 Bond Set Aside, RDA, Developer 

Fees, LCFF Base

Palm Street Maintenance Facility 

Parking Lot & Safety Lighting

$550,000 Bond Set Aside, RDA, Developer 

Fees, LCFF Base

Palm Street Maintenance Facility District 

Network & Key Cards

$190,000 Bond Set Aside, RDA, Developer 

Fees, LCFF Base

Harbor Central Kitchen Freezer $1,900,000 Bond Set Aside, RDA, Developer 

Fees, LCFF Base

DeLaveaga Central Kitchen Cold 

Storage

$150,000 Bond Set Aside, RDA, Developer 

Fees,  LCFF Base

Americans with Disabilities Act Access 

at Central Office 

$125,000 Bond Set Aside, RDA, Developer 

Fees, LCFF Base

Total $4,665,000 Bond Set Aside, RDA, 

Developer Fees, LCFF Base390/425



Project Funding Sources

Funding Source Fund Balance Available Total Costs of Districtwide Projects

District Bond Set Aside 

(Restricted)

Elementary: $1,700,000

Secondary:  $3,500,000

Total:           $5,200,000

$4,665,000 - Recommended 

Remaining: $535,000

Redevelopment Agency 

Funds (Restricted)

Elementary: $ 4,300,000*

Secondary:  $ 1,500,000*

Not recommended we deplete all of 

our emergency repair funds (*as of 

ventilation projections 12/02/20)

Developer Fees Elementary $     115,500

Secondary  $     355,000

Not adequate funds 

LCFF Base (Unrestricted) Total Above 3% Reserve Not Recommended

391/425



Project Funding Sources (use of elementary RDA)

Funding Source Fund Balance Available Total Costs of Districtwide Projects

District Bond Set Aside 

(Restricted)

Elementary: $1,700,000

Secondary:  $3,500,000

Total:           $5,200,000

$4,665,000 - Recommended 

Remaining: $535,000

Redevelopment Agency 

Funds (Restricted)

Elementary: $ 4,300,000

District Wide

Projects     : $ 1,632,750

Remaining   $ 2,667,250

Alternative is to use Elementary RDA 

for projects

35% = $1,632,750

District Bond Set Aside Elementary $     1,700,000

Secondary  $        700,000

May be remaining in Set Aside if 

combination used

392/425



Board 
Questions 

393/425



    

                                                                                                                    AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.5.1.  

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Board Policies: First and/or Final Reading for CSBA Revisions & 
Updates and Revision of Board Bylaw 9220 

      
MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2021 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised/deleted/new policies as submitted for first and/or final reading and 
adoption.   

 
BACKGROUND: 
Policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating process, which 
uses CSBA recommendations for review and change approximately six times per year in 
participating districts.  These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code 
and/or case law.  The policies have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required 
customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been included.  The Policy Guidesheet provides a 
basic overview of the policy changes.   

In addition to the regular board policy updates, staff has included a proposed revision to BB 
9220 Governing Board Elections. This policy has been updated in reflect the District’s change 
from at-large elections to trustee area elections.  
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 

394/425



 

Board Policy Manual Santa Cruz City Schools 
 

Board Member Qualifications 

Any person is eligible to be a member of the Governing Board, without further qualifications, if 
he/she is 18 years of age or older, a citizen of California, a resident of the school district, a 
registered voter, and not legally disqualified from holding civil office. Any person who has been 
convicted of a felony involving the giving, accepting, or offering of a bribe, embezzlement or 
theft of public funds, extortion, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any such crime, under 
California law or the law of another state, the United States of America, or another country, is 
not eligible to be a candidate for office or elected as a Board member except when he/she has 
been granted a pardon in accordance with law. (Education Code 35107; Elections Code 20) 

A district employee elected to the Board shall resign his/her employment before being sworn in 
or shall have his/her employment automatically terminated upon being sworn into office. 
(Education Code 35107) 

(cf. 9224 - Oath of Affirmation)  

(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 

The Board encourages all candidates to become knowledgeable about the role of board 
members. The Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidates with information 
that will enable them to understand the responsibilities and expectations of being a 
Board member, including information regarding available workshops, seminars, and/or 
training. The Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidates with the county 
election official's contact information and general information about school programs, 
district operations, and Board responsibilities. 

(cf. 9230 - Orientation)  
(cf. 9240 - Board Training)  

Consolidation of Elections 

To reduce costs associated with conducting elections, the Board may consolidate Board 
elections with the local municipal or statewide primary or general election in accordance with 
Elections Code 1302. 

In addition, if a regularly scheduled Board election held other than on a statewide election date 
results in a decrease in local voter turnout of 25 percent or more compared to the average local 
turnout for the previous four statewide general elections, the Board shall take action to 
consolidate Board elections with statewide elections. The district shall move its election to the 
next state statewide election date, unless the Board has adopted a plan by January 1, 2018 to 
consolidate Board elections not later than the November 8, 2022 statewide general election. 
(Elections Code 14051, 14052) 

In order to consolidate elections based on either circumstance described above, the Board shall 
adopt a resolution and submit it to the County Board of Supervisors for approval not later than 
240 days prior to the date of the currently scheduled district election. (Elections Code 10404.5) 

Whenever a regularly scheduled Board election is changed due to consolidation of elections, 
the terms of office of incumbent Board members shall be extended to align with the next 
applicable election. (Elections Code 10404.5) 

395/425



 

(cf. 9110 - Terms of Office)  

Elections Process and Procedures 

The district is divided into trustee areas and each trustee area shall be represented by a 
Board member who resides in and is elected by voters residing within that trustee area.  
Trustee areas shall be balanced by population as required by state and federal law.  Prior to 
March 1 following the year in which the results of each decennial federal census are released, 
the Board shall adjust the boundaries of the district’s trustee areas, as contemplated in 
Education Code section 5019.5. 

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)  

Campaign Conduct 

All candidates, including current Board members running as incumbents, shall abide by local, 
county, state, and federal requirements regarding campaign donations, funding, and 
expenditures. 

A Board member shall not expend, and a candidate shall not accept, any public money for the 
purpose of seeking elective office. However, the district may establish a dedicated fund for 
those seeking election to the Board, provided that the funds are available to all candidates who 
are qualified pursuant to Education Code 35107 without regard to incumbency or political 
preference. (Government Code 85300) 

In order to help protect the public's trust in the electoral process as well as the public's 
confidence in the Board and district, the Board encourages all candidates to sign and adhere to 
the principles in the Code of Fair Campaign Practices pursuant to Elections Code 20440. 

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)  

(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 

Statement of Qualifications 

On the 125th day prior to the day fixed for the general district election, the Board secretary or 
his/her designee shall deliver a notice, bearing the secretary's signature and district seal, to the 
county elections official describing both of the following: (Elections Code 10509) 

1.   The elective offices of the district to be filled at the general election and which offices, if 
any, are for the balance of an unexpired term 

2.   Whether the district or the candidate is to pay for the publication of a statement of 
qualifications pursuant to Elections Code 13307 

(cf. 9223 - Filling Vacancies) 

Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for 

396/425



 

inclusion in the voter's pamphlet. Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 200 
words. (Elections Code 13307) 

When the elections official allows for the electronic distribution of candidate statements, a 
candidate for the Board may, in addition to or instead of submitting a candidate statement for 
inclusion in the mailed voter's pamphlet, prepare and submit a candidate statement for 
electronic distribution. 

The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, or 
electronically distributing candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307. As a 
condition of having candidate statements included in the hard copy and/or electronic voter's 
pamphlet, the district may require candidates to pay their estimated pro rata share of these 
costs to the district in advance pursuant to Elections Code 13307. 

Tie Votes in Board Member Elections 

Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been 
elected to the Board, the Board shall immediately notify the candidates who received the tie 
votes of the time and place where the candidates or their representatives should appear before 
the Board. The Board at that time shall determine the winner by lot. (Education Code 5016) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they 
indicate the basis or authority for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional 
resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy. 
  

State References Description 

CA Constitution Article 2, Section 2 Voters, qualifications 

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 7 Conflicting offices 

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 8 Disqualification from office 

Ed. Code 1006 Qualifications for holding office, county board of   
 education 

Ed. Code 35107 School district employees 

Ed. Code 35177 Campaign expenditures or contributions 

Ed. Code 35239 Compensation of governing board member of districts  
 with less than 70 

Ed. Code 5000-5033 Election of school district board members 

Ed. Code 5220-5231 Elections 

Ed. Code 5300-5304 General provisions (conduct of elections) 

Ed. Code 5320-5329 Order and call of elections 

Ed. Code 5340-5345 Consolidation of elections 

Ed. Code 5360-5363 Election notice 

397/425



 

Ed. Code 5380 Compensation (of election officer) 

Ed. Code 5390 Qualifications of voters 

Ed. Code 5420-5426 Cost of elections 

Ed. Code 5440-5442 Miscellaneous provisions 

Ed. Code 7054 Use of district property, campaign purposes 

Elec. Code 10010 District boundaries 

Elec. Code 10400-10418 Consolidation of elections 

Elec. Code 10509 Notice of election by secretary 

Elec. Code 10600-10604 School district elections 

Elec. Code 1302 Local elections, school district election 

Elec. Code 13307 Candidate's statement 

Elec. Code 13308 Candidate's statement contents 

Elec. Code 13309 Candidate's statement, indigence 

Elec. Code 14025-14032 California Voting Rights Act 

Elec. Code 14050-14057 California Voter Participation Rights Act 

Elec. Code 20 Public office eligibility 

Elec. Code 20440 Code of Fair Campaign Practices 

Elec. Code 2201 Grounds for cancellation 

Elec. Code 4000-4008 Elections conducted wholly by mail 

Gov. Code 1021 Conviction of crime 

Gov. Code 1097 Illegal participation in public contract 

Gov. Code 12940 Unlawful discriminatory employment practices 

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act of 1974 

Pen. Code 424 Embezzlement and falsification of accounts by public  
 officers 

Pen. Code 661 Removal for neglect or violation of official duty 

Pen. Code 68 Bribes 

Pen. Code 74 Acceptance of gratuity 

 

Federal References Description 

52 USC 10301-10508 Voting Rights Act 

 

Management Resources References Description 

Attorney General Opinion 83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2000) 

Attorney General Opinion 85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 49 (2002) 

Attorney General Opinion 81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 98 (1998) 

Attorney General Opinion 69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986) 

California School Boards Association Legal Alert on the Impact of Senate Bill No. 415 on  

398/425



 

Publication School Board Elections  Court Decision Rey v. Madera Unified School District,  
 (2012) 203 Cal. App. 4th 1223 

Court Decision Randall v. Sorrell, (2006) 126 S.Ct. 2479 

Court Decision Sanchez v. City of Modesto, (2006) 145 Cal. App. 4th  
 660 

Court Decision Dusch v. Davis, (1967) 387 U.S. 112 

Website Institute for Local Government 

Website California Secretary of State's Office 

Website Fair Political Practices Commission 

Website CSBA 

 

Cross References Description 

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities 

9005-B Governance Standards 

9110-B Terms Of Office 

9223-B Filling Vacancies 

9224-B Oath Or Affirmation 

9230-B Orientation 

9240-B Board Training 

9270-B Conflict Of Interest 

9320-B Meetings And Notices 

 

 

399/425



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 

October 2020 
 

Board Policy 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property  

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 820, 2020) which adds, until July 1, 2024, an exception to the 

requirement that boards appoint an advisory committee for the sale or lease of district-owned property if the 

property has not operated as an early childhood education facility or for elementary or secondary instruction, 

and NEW LAW (SB 98, 2020) which authorizes, until July 1, 2024, the proceeds from the sale or lease of 

property purchased entirely with local funds to be used for any one-time general fund purpose if certain 

conditions are met. Policy also adds material regarding the authorization for boards to meet in closed session 

with real property negotiators, the requirement to notify the Office of Public School Construction within 90 

days if the district sells property that utilized funds received from a state school facilities program within the 

previous 10 years and the proceeds were not used for specified purposes, and conditions under which the 

State Allocation Board may require a return of the funds. 

 

Board Policy 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance 

Policy updated to address the basis upon which insurance decisions should be made and the provision of 

safety-related training and protective equipment for staff. Policy also updated to delete material regarding 

the removal of an insurance agent as being implicit in a governing board's authority and explicit in insurance 

contracts.  Timeline for reporting to the board on risk management activities revised from twice a year to 

periodically to give boards flexibility based on district need. 

 

Board Policy 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment 

Policy updated to clarify that, in some instances, it may be necessary to concurrently review a sexual 

harassment complaint under both the Title IX sexual harassment complaint procedures and the district's 

procedure reflecting state law, as described in AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment, in order to meet 

the applicable timelines.  Policy also adds the requirement to provide supportive measures to the respondent 

as well as the complainant.   

 

Board Policy 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety 

Policy updated to reflect NEW STATE REGULATION (Register 2020, No. 10) which requires districts 

to provide employees with access to the district's injury and illness prevention program, and to add the 

prohibition against discharging or discriminating against an employee for exercising any right protected by 

the Occupational Safety and Health Act.  

 

Board Policy 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy 

Policy updated to designate the attendance supervisor as the person responsible for performing various 

assignments related to absence and truancy; reflect a tiered approach for reducing chronic absence which 

includes universal strategies and letters to parents/guardians; expand material regarding early intervention; 

add the provision of training and information to staff for the implementation of a trauma-informed approach 

to chronic absence; reflect chronic absence as a measure of district and school performance on the California 

School Dashboard; and add grade level to the list of specific data to be provided to the board regarding 

attendance, absence, and truancy. 

 

Board Policy 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment 

Policy updated to clarify that, in some instances, it may be necessary to concurrently review a sexual 

harassment complaint under both the Title IX sexual harassment complaint procedures and the district's 

uniform complaint procedures (UCP) in order to meet the applicable timelines.  Policy also adds the 

requirement to provide supportive measures to the respondent as well as the complainant.   

 

Board Policy 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 820, 2020) which revises the definition of "technology-based 

materials" to include the electronic equipment required to make use of those materials, making such 

equipment subject to the determination of sufficiency. Policy also deletes unnecessary legal citations related 

to the State Board of Education's (SBE) adoption of academic standards, deletes section on "Review Process" 

400/425



which was moved to the AR, deletes option in regard to public hearings on the sufficiency of textbooks and 

other instructional materials for schools that operate on a multitrack year-round calendar since such schools 

can use the same language as those that operate on a traditional calendar, and adds references to sample board 

policy and regulations for complaints concerning instructional materials.  

 

 

 

 

 

401/425



CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 
Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3280 
 
SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY 
 
The Governing Board believes that district facilities and resources should be utilized in an 
economical and practical manner. The Superintendent or designee shall periodically study the 
current and projected use of all district facilities to ensure the efficient utilization of space for 
the effective delivery of instruction. 
 
(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 
(cf. 7160 - Charter School Facilities) 
 
 
Prior to the sale or lease of any surplus real property, the Board shall appoint a district 
advisory committee to advise the Board regarding the use or disposition of schools or school 
building space which is not needed for school purposes.  The Board may elect not to appoint 
a district advisory committee for any of the following:  (Education Code 17388, 17391) 
 
1. A rental of property for a period of time not exceeding 30 days 
 
2. A lease or rental of surplus property to a private educational institution for the 

purpose of offering summer school  
 
3. A sale, lease, or rental of surplus property to be used for teacher or other employee 

housing 
 
4. Until July 1, 2024, a sale or lease of surplus property that has not previously 

operated, or was not constructed to be operated, as an early childhood education 
facility or a school for elementary or secondary instruction 

 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
 
In addition, to ensure that the proposed disposition of the property conforms with any 
general plan adopted by the local planning agency that affects or includes the area where 
the surplus property is located, the Board shall submit a report to the local planning agency 
describing the location of the surplus property and the purpose and extent of the proposed 
sale or lease.  (Government Code 65402) 
  
The Board shall determine whether the sale or lease of the surplus property is subject to 
review under the California Environmental Quality Act.  (Public Resources Code 21000-
21177; 14 CCR 15061-15062) 
 

402/425



The Board may meet in closed session with its real property negotiator prior to the sale 
or lease of real property by the district in order to grant its negotiator authority 
regarding the minimum price or rent and terms of the sale or lease.  (Government Code 
54956.8) 
 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session) 
 
 
When selling or leasing district real property, the Board shall comply with applicable 
procedures and give priority to specified public agencies as required by law.  (Education 
Code 17230, 17464, 17485-17499; Government Code 54222) 
 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
 
Resolution of Intention to Sell or Lease 
 
Before ordering the sale or lease of any real property, the Board shall adopt a resolution by a 
two-thirds vote of all of its members at a regularly scheduled open meeting. The resolution 
shall describe the property proposed to be sold or leased in such a manner as to identify it, 
specify the minimum price or rent, describe the terms upon which it will be sold or leased, 
and specify the commission or rate, if any, which the Board will pay to a licensed real estate 
broker out of the minimum price or rent. The resolution shall fix a time, not less than three 
weeks thereafter, for a public meeting, held at the Board's regular meeting place, at which 
sealed proposals to purchase or lease will be received and considered.  (Education Code 
17466) 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide notice of the adoption of the resolution and of 
the time and place of the meeting that will be held to consider bids by posting copies of the 
resolution, signed by the Board, in three public places not less than 15 days before the date of 
the meeting. In addition, the notice shall be published at least once a week for three 
successive weeks before the meeting, in a newspaper of general circulation published in the 
county in which the district is located, if such a newspaper exists.  (Education Code 17469) 
 
At least 60 days prior to the public meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall take 
reasonable steps to provide written notification of the public meeting, by certified mail, to 
the former owners from whom the district acquired the property.  (Education Code 
17470) 
 
Acceptance/Rejection of Bids 
 
At the public meeting specified in the resolution of intention to sell or lease property, the 
Board shall open, examine, and declare all sealed bids.  Before accepting a written proposal, 
the Board shall call for oral bids in accordance with law.  (Education Code 17472, 17473) 
 
  

403/425



 
The Board may reject any and all bids, either written or oral, and withdraw the properties 
from sale when the Board determines that rejection is in the best public interest. If no 
proposals are submitted or the submitted proposals do not conform to all the terms and 
conditions specified in the resolution of intention to lease, the Board may lease the property 
in accordance with Education Code 17477.  (Education Code 17476, 17477) 
 
Of the proposals submitted by responsible bidders which conform to all terms and conditions 
specified in the resolution of intention to sell or lease, the Board shall finally accept the 
highest bid after deducting the commission, if any, to be paid to a licensed real estate broker, 
unless the Board accepts a higher oral bid or rejects all bids.  (Education Code 17472) 
 
The final acceptance of the bid may be made either at the same meeting specified in the 
resolution or at any adjourned/continued meeting held within 10 days.  Upon acceptance of 
the bid, the Board may adopt a resolution of acceptance that directs the Board president, or 
any other Board member, to execute the deed or lease and to deliver the document upon 
performance and compliance by the successful bidder of all of the terms and conditions of 
the contract.  (Education Code 17475-17478) 
 
(cf. 1431 - Waivers) 
 
Use of Proceeds 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the proceeds from the sale or lease with an 
option to purchase of surplus district property are used for one-time expenditures and not for 
ongoing expenditures such as salaries and general operating expenses.  (Education Code 
17462; 2 CCR 1700) 
 
Proceeds from a sale of surplus district property shall generally be used for capital outlay or 
maintenance costs that the Board determines will not recur within a five-year period.  
Proceeds from a lease of district property with an option to purchase may be deposited into a 
restricted fund for the routine repair of district facilities, as defined by the SAB, for up to a 
five-year period.  (Education Code 17462) 
 
However, if the Board and SAB determine that the district has no anticipated need for 
additional sites or building construction for the next 10 years and no major deferred 
maintenance requirements, the proceeds from the sale or lease with an option to purchase 
may be deposited in a special reserve fund for the future maintenance and renovation of 
school sites or in the district's general fund. (Education Code 17462) 
 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
In addition, until July 1, 2024, if district surplus property was purchased entirely with 
local funds, the proceeds from the sale or lease of the property, together with any 
personal property located on the property, may be deposited into the general fund of 
the district and may be used for any one-time general fund purpose. Before exercising 
this authority, the Board shall: (Education Code 17463.7)  
 

404/425



1. Submit to SAB documents certifying that the sale of real property does not 
violate the provisions of a local bond act and the real property is not suitable to 
meet projected school construction needs for the next 10 years 

 
2. At a public meeting, adopt a plan for expending one-time resources from the sale 

or lease of the property which identifies the source and intended use of the 
surplus property proceeds and describes the reasons that the expenditure will 
not result in ongoing fiscal obligations for the district 

 
 
Whenever the district sells real property that was purchased, improved, or modernized 
with funds that were received from a state school facilities funding program within the 
previous 10 years, the district shall notify OPSC within 90 calendar days of the sale of 
the property if the proceeds from the sale are not used for capital outlay and the 
property is not sold to a charter school, another school district, a county office of 
education, or an agency that will use the property exclusively for the delivery of child 
care and development services. If SAB subsequently makes a finding that the sale is 
subject to Education Code 17462.3, the district shall return the funds to the SAB within 
90 calendar days of the finding.  (2 CCR 1702) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
17219-17224  Acquisition of property not utilized as school site; nonuse payments; exemptions 
17230-17234  Surplus property 
17385  Conveyances to and from school districts 
17387-17391  Advisory committees for use of excess school facilities 
17400-17429  Leasing property 
17430-17447  Leasing facilities 
17453  Lease of surplus district property 
17455-17484  Sale or lease of real property, especially: 
17462.3  State Allocation Board program to reclaim funds 
17485-17500  Surplus school playground (Naylor Act) 
17515-17526  Joint occupancy 
17527-17535  Joint use of district facilities 
33050  Request for waiver 
38130-38139  Civic Center Act 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
50001-50002  Definitions 
54220-54232  Surplus land, especially: 
54222  Offer to sell or lease property 
54950-54963  Brown Act, especially: 
54952  Legislative body, definition 
PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE 
21000-21177  California Environmental Quality Act 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
1700-1702 Surplus property; use of proceeds 

 
 

COURT DECISIONS 
San Lorenzo Valley Community Advocates for Responsible Education v. San Lorenzo Valley Unified 
School District, (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 1356 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

405/425



94 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 82 (2011) 
 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Closing a School Best Practices Guide 
OFFICE OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION PUBLICATIONS 
Unused Site Program Handbook, December 2015 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, School Facilities Planning Division:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa 
Coalition for Adequate School Housing:  http://www.cashnet.org 
Office of Public School Construction: http://www.dgs.ca.gov/opsc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 (4/14  10/17)  10/20 
 

406/425



Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 

CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 
All Personnel BP 4119.11 
 4219.11 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT 4319.11 
 
 
The following policy shall apply to all district employees, interns, volunteers, contractors, job 
applicants, and other persons with an employment relationship with the district.  
 
The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe work environment that is free of 
harassment and intimidation. The Board prohibits sexual harassment against district 
employees and retaliatory behavior or action against any person who complains, testifies, or 
otherwise participates in the complaint process established for the purpose of this policy. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
 
Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, harassment that is based on the sex, gender, 
gender identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation of the victim and harassment based 
on pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall take all actions necessary to ensure the prevention, 
investigation, and correction of sexual harassment, including but not limited to: 
 
1. Providing training to employees in accordance with law and administrative regulation 
 
2. Publicizing and disseminating the district's sexual harassment policy to employees 

and others to whom the policy may apply 
 
3. Ensuring prompt, thorough, fair, and equitable investigation of complaints 
 
4. Taking timely and appropriate corrective/remedial action(s), which may require 

interim separation of the complainant and the alleged harasser and subsequent 
monitoring of developments 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the district's 
strategies to prevent and address harassment. Such evaluation may involve conducting 
regular anonymous employee surveys to assess whether harassment is occurring or is 
perceived to be tolerated, partnering with researchers or other agencies with the needed 
expertise to evaluate the district's prevention strategies, and using any other effective tool for 
receiving feedback on systems and/or processes. As necessary, changes shall be made to the 
harassment policy, complaint procedures, or training. 
 
  

407/425



 
Sexual Harassment Reports and Complaints 
 
District employees who feel that they have been sexually harassed in the performance of their 
district responsibilities or who have knowledge of any incident of sexual harassment by or 
against another employee shall immediately report the incident to their direct supervisor, a 
district administrator, or the district's Title IX Coordinator. Employees may bypass their 
supervisor in filing a complaint if the supervisor is the subject of the complaint. A supervisor 
or administrator who receives a harassment complaint shall promptly notify the Title IX 
Coordinator. 
 
Once notified, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure the complaint or allegation is addressed 
through AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures 
or AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment, as applicable.  Because a complaint or 
allegation that is dismissed or denied under the Title IX complaint procedure may still 
be subject to consideration under state law, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure that 
any implementation of AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 concurrently meets the 
requirements of AR 4030. 
 
(cf. 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaints) 
 
The Title IX Coordinator shall offer supportive measures to the complainant and 
respondent, as deemed appropriate under the circumstances.   
 
 
Upon investigation of a sexual harassment complaint, any district employee found to have 
engaged or participated in sexual harassment or to have aided, abetted, incited, compelled, or 
coerced another to commit sexual harassment in violation of this policy shall be subject to 
disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with law and the applicable 
collective bargaining agreement. 
 
(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Reports) 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, especially: 
12940  Prohibited discrimination 
12950  Sexual harassment; distribution of information 
12950.1  Sexual harassment training 
LABOR CODE 
1101  Political activities of employees 
1102.1  Discrimination:  sexual orientation 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
11009  Employment discrimination 
11021  Retaliation 
11023  Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 

408/425



11024  Sexual harassment training and education 
11034  Terms, conditions, and privileges of employment 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs  
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
106.1-106.9  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or activities 
106.51-106.82  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education programs or 
activities 
COURT DECISIONS 
Department of Health Services v. Superior Court of California, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 1026 
Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2275 
Burlington Industries v. Ellreth, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2257 
Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 1989 
Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Serv. Inc., (1998) 118 S.Ct. 998 
Meritor Savings Bank, FSB v. Vinson et al., (1986) 447 U.S. 57 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 (3/18  7/20)  10/20 
 

409/425



Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 

CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 
All Personnel BP 4157 
 4257 
EMPLOYEE SAFETY 4357 
 
The Governing Board is committed to maximizing employee safety and believes that 
workplace safety is the responsibility of every employee. Working conditions and 
equipment shall comply with standards prescribed by federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations. 
 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
 
No employee shall be required or permitted to be in any place of employment which is 
unsafe or unhealthful.  (Labor Code 6402) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall promote safety and correct any unsafe work practices 
through education and enforcement. 
 
All employees are expected to use safe work practices and, to the extent possible, correct 
any unsafe conditions which may occur. If an employee is unable to correct an unsafe 
condition, the employee shall immediately report the problem to the Superintendent or 
designee. 
 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish and implement a written injury and illness 
prevention program, and provide employees with access to such program, in accordance 
with law.  (Labor Code 6401.7; 8 CCR 3203) 
 
(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 
(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances)  
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 
(cf. 4119.41/4219.41/4319.41 - Employees with Infectious Disease) 
(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 
(cf. 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 - Universal Precautions) 
(cf. 4157.2/4257.2/4357.2 - Ergonomics) 
(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall make first aid materials readily available at district 
workplaces and shall make effective provisions to prepare for prompt medical treatment in 
the event of an employee's serious injury or illness.  (8 CCR 3400) 
 
No employee shall be discharged or discriminated against for exercising any right 
regarding employee safety or health specified in Labor Code 6310, including:   

410/425



1. Making a report or complaint 
 
2. Instituting proceedings or causing proceedings to be instituted 
 
3. Testifying with regard to employee safety or health  
 
4. Participating in any occupational health and safety committee established pursuant to 

Labor Code 6401.7  
 
5. Requesting access to injury or illness reports and records 
 
6. Exercising any other right protected by the Occupational Safety and Health Act   
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
32030-32034  Eye safety 
32225-32226  Communications devices in classrooms 
32280-32289.5  School safety plans 
44984  Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave of absence 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3543.2  Scope of bargaining 
LABOR CODE 
132a  Workers' compensation; nondiscrimination 
3300  Definitions of employer 
6305  Occupational safety and health standards; special order 
6310  Retaliation for filing complaint prohibited 
6400-6413.5  Responsibilities and duties of employers and employees, especially: 
6401.7  Injury and illness prevention program 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 
3203  Injury and illness prevention program 
3204  Access to employee exposure and medical records 
3400  Medical services and first aid 
5095-5100  Control of noise exposure 
5193  Bloodborne pathogens 
14000-14316  Occupational injury or illness reports and records 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 
2508  Reporting of communicable diseases 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 
651-678  Occupational safety and health 
1910.95  Occupational  noise exposure  
1910.1030  Bloodborne pathogens 

 
Management Resources: 

DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS PUBLICATIONS 
Guide to Developing Your Workplace Injury and Illness Prevention Program, rev. August 2011 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Industrial Relations, Occupational Safety and Health: 
http://www.dir.ca.gov/occupational_safety.html 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov 
National Hearing Conservation Association: http://www.hearingconservation.org 
National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health: http://www.cdc.gov/niosh 
U.S. Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration: http://www.osha.gov 

 
 
 
 (7/99  3/10)  10/20 

411/425



 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service  
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 

CSBA Sample 

Board Policy 
 
Students BP 5113.1 
 
CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY 
 
The Governing Board believes that absenteeism, whatever the cause, may be an early 
warning sign of poor academic achievement and may put students at risk of dropping out of 
school. The Board desires to ensure that all students attend school in accordance with the 
state's compulsory education law and take full advantage of educational opportunities 
provided by the district. 
 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 
(cf. 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish a system to accurately track student 
attendance in order to identify individual students who are chronic absentees and truants, as 
defined in law and administrative regulation, and to identify patterns of absence throughout 
the district.  
 
The Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or designee shall consult with students, 
parents/guardians, school staff, and community agencies, as appropriate, to identify factors 
contributing to chronic absence and truancy. 
 
The Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or designee shall develop a tiered approach to 
reducing chronic absence. Such an approach shall include strategies for preventing 
attendance problems, which may include, but are not limited to, efforts to provide a safe and 
positive school environment, relevant and engaging learning experiences, school activities 
that help develop students' feelings of connectedness with the school, school-based health 
services, letters alerting parents/guardians to the value of regular school attendance, and 
incentives and rewards to recognize students who achieve excellent attendance or 
demonstrate significant improvement in attendance.  
 
The tiered approach shall also provide for early outreach to students as soon as they show 
signs of poor attendance or if they were chronically absent in the prior school year.  
Early intervention may include personalized outreach, individual attendance plans, 
and/or mentoring to students with moderate levels of chronic absence, with additional 
intensive, interagency wrap-around services for students with the highest level of 
absence. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement) 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

412/425



(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
 
Students with serious attendance problems shall be provided with interventions specific to 
their needs, which may include, but are not limited to, health care referrals, transportation 
assistance, counseling for mental or emotional difficulties, academic supports, efforts to 
address school or community safety concerns, discussions with the student and 
parent/guardian about their attitudes regarding schooling, or other strategies to remove 
identified barriers to school attendance. The Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or 
designee may collaborate with child welfare services, law enforcement, courts, public health 
care agencies, other government agencies, and/or medical, mental health, and oral health care 
providers to make alternative educational programs and support services available for 
students and families. 
 
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 
(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice) 
(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction) 
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that staff assigned to fulfill attendance-
related duties are trained in implementing a trauma-informed approach to chronic 
absence and receive information about the high correlation between chronic absence 
and exposure to adverse childhood experiences. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)  
 
Students who are identified as chronically absent or truant shall be subject to the 
interventions specified in law and administrative regulation. 
 
(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board) 
 
A student's truancy, tardiness, or other absence from school shall not be the basis for 
suspension or expulsion. Alternative strategies and positive reinforcement for attendance 
shall be used whenever possible. 
 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
 
 

413/425



The Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or designee shall periodically report to the 
Board regarding student attendance patterns in the district, including rates of chronic 
absence and truancy districtwide and for each school, grade level, and numerically 
significant student subgroup as defined in Education Code 52052. Such information shall 
be used to evaluate the effectiveness of strategies implemented to reduce chronic absence and 
truancy and to develop annual goals and specific actions for student attendance and 
engagement to be included in the district's local control and accountability plan and other 
applicable school and district plans. As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall 
engage school staff in program evaluation and improvement and in the determination of how 
to best allocate available community resources. 
  
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
1740-1742  Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent) 
37223  Weekend classes 
46000  Records (attendance) 
46010-46014  Absences 
46110-46119  Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools 
46140-46147  Attendance in junior high and high schools 
48200-48208  Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance) 
48225.5  Work permits, entertainment and allied industries 
48240-48246  Supervisors of attendance 
48260-48273  Truants 
48290-48297 Failure to comply; complaints against parents 
48320-48325  School attendance review boards 
48340-48341  Improvement of student attendance 
48400-48403  Compulsory continuation education 
48900  Suspension and expulsion 
49067  Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade 
52052  Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 
60901  Chronic absence 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act 
PENAL CODE 
270.1  Chronic truancy; parent/guardian misdemeanor 
272  Parent/guardian duty to supervise and control minor child; criminal liability for truancy 
830.1  Peace officers 
VEHICLE CODE 
13202.7  Driving privileges; minors; suspension or delay for habitual truancy 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
256-258  Juvenile hearing officer 
601-601.4  Habitually truant minors 
11253.5   Compulsory school attendance 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
306  Explanation of absence 
420-421  Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes 
COURT DECISIONS 
L.A. v. Superior Court of San Diego County, (2012) 209 Cal.App.4th 976 

414/425



Management Resources: 
ATTENDANCE WORKS PUBLICATIONS 
District Attendance Tracking Tool 
For School Board Members: Frequently Asked Questions About Chronic Absence 
School Attendance Tracking Tool 
Bringing Attendance Home:  Engaging Parents in Preventing Chronic Absence, 2015 
The Power of Positive Connections:  Reducing Chronic Absence Through PEOPLE:  Priority Early 
Outreach for Positive Linkages and Engagement, 2014 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
School Attendance Review Board:  A Road Map for Improved School Attendance and Behavior, rev. 
2018 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
Attendance Works:  http://www.attendanceworks.org 
California Association of Supervisors of Child Welfare and Attendance:  http://www.cascwa.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Healthy Kids Survey:  http://chks.wested.org 
California School Climate, Health, and Learning Survey System:  http://www.cal-schls.wested.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 (4/15  10/17)  10/20 
 

415/425



Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 

CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 
Students BP 5145.7 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
 
The Governing Board is committed to maintaining a safe school environment that is free 
from harassment and discrimination. The Board prohibits, at school or at school-sponsored or 
school-related activities, sexual harassment targeted at any student by anyone. The Board 
also prohibits retaliatory behavior or action against any person who reports, files a complaint 
or testifies about, or otherwise supports a complainant in alleging sexual harassment. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
 
The district strongly encourages students who feel that they are being or have been sexually 
harassed on school grounds or at a school-sponsored or school-related activity by another 
student or an adult, or who have experienced off-campus sexual harassment that has a 
continuing effect on campus, to immediately contact their teacher, the principal, the district's 
Title IX Coordinator, or any other available school employee. Any employee who receives a 
report or observes an incident of sexual harassment shall notify the Title IX Coordinator.  
 
Once notified, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure the complaint or allegation is addressed 
through AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures or BP/AR 
1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures, as applicable.  Because a complaint or 
allegation that is dismissed or denied under the Title IX complaint procedure may still 
be subject to consideration under state law, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure that 
any implementation of AR 5145.71 concurrently meets the requirements of BP/AR 
1312.3. 
 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
(cf. 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures) 
 
The Title IX Coordinator shall offer supportive measures to the complainant and 
respondent, as deemed appropriate under the circumstances.   
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall inform students and parents/guardians of the district's 
sexual harassment policy by disseminating it through parent/guardian notifications, 
publishing it on the district's web site, and including it in student and staff handbooks.  All 
district staff shall be trained regarding the policy. 

416/425



 
Instruction/Information 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all district students receive age-appropriate 
information on sexual harassment. Such instruction and information shall include: 
 
1. What acts and behavior constitute sexual harassment, including the fact that sexual 

harassment could occur between people of the same sex and could involve sexual 
violence 

 
2. A clear message that students do not have to endure sexual harassment under any 

circumstance 
 
3. Encouragement to report observed incidents of sexual harassment even when the 

alleged victim of the harassment has not complained 
 
 
4. A clear message that student safety is the district's primary concern, and that any 

separate rule violation involving an alleged victim or any other person reporting a 
sexual harassment incident will be addressed separately and will not affect the 
manner in which the sexual harassment complaint will be received, investigated, or 
resolved 

 
5. A clear message that, regardless of a complainant's noncompliance with the writing, 

timeline, or other formal filing requirements, every sexual harassment allegation that 
involves a student, whether as the complainant, respondent, or victim of the 
harassment, shall be investigated and action shall be taken to respond to harassment, 
prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effect on students 

 
6. Information about the district's procedures for investigating complaints and the 

person(s) to whom a report of sexual harassment should be made 
 
7. Information about the rights of students and parents/guardians to file a civil or 

criminal complaint, as applicable, including the right to file a civil or criminal 
complaint while the district investigation of a sexual harassment complaint continues 

 
8. A clear message that, when needed, the district will implement supportive measures 

to ensure a safe school environment for a student who is the complainant or victim of 
sexual harassment and/or other students during an investigation  

 
Disciplinary Actions 
 
Upon completion of an investigation of a sexual harassment complaint, any student found to 
have engaged in sexual harassment or sexual violence in violation of this policy shall be 
subject to disciplinary action. For students in grades 4-12, disciplinary action may include 
suspension and/or expulsion, provided that, in imposing such discipline, the entire 
circumstances of the incident(s) shall be taken into account. 
 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

417/425



(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
 
Upon investigation of a sexual harassment complaint, any employee found to have engaged 
in sexual harassment or sexual violence toward any student shall be subject to disciplinary 
action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with law and the applicable collective 
bargaining agreement. 
 
(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Report) 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
Record-Keeping 
 
In accordance with law and district policies and regulations, the Superintendent or 
designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of sexual harassment to enable the 
district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive harassing behavior in district schools. 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
 
Legal Reference:  

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 
48900  Grounds for suspension or expulsion 
48900.2  Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual harassment 
48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 
48980  Notice at beginning of term 
48985  Notices, report, statements and records in primary language 
CIVIL CODE 
51.9  Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and professional relationships 
1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12950.1  Sexual harassment training 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1092  Definition of sexual assault 
1221 Application of laws 
1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 34 
12291  Definition of dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1983  Civil action for deprivation of rights 
2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 
2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy 
106.1-106.82  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs 
COURT DECISIONS 
Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567 
Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003, 9th Cir.) 324 F.3d 1130 
Reese v. Jefferson School District, (2000, 9th Cir.) 208 F.3d 736 

418/425



Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education, (1999) 526 U.S. 629 
Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 524 U.S. 274 
Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey, (1998, 9th Cir.) 143 F.3d 473 
Doe v. Petaluma City School District, (1995, 9th Cir.) 54 F.3d 1447 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-
Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014 
Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Q&A on Campus Sexual Misconduct, September 2017 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS  (continued) 
Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 
Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 
Sexual Harassment:  It's Not Academic, September 2008 
Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, 
or Third Parties, January 2001 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 (9/16  7/20)  10/20 
 

419/425



Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 

CSBA Sample 

Board Policy 
 
Instruction BP 6161.1 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 
 
The Governing Board desires that district instructional materials, as a whole, present a broad 
spectrum of knowledge and viewpoints, reflect and value society's diversity, and enhance 
instructors' ability to educate all students through the use of multiple teaching strategies 
and technologies. The Board shall adopt instructional materials based on a determination that 
such materials are an effective learning resource to help students achieve grade-level 
competency and that the materials meet criteria specified in law. Textbooks, technology-
based materials, and other educational materials shall be aligned with academic content 
standards and the district's curriculum to ensure that they effectively support the district's 
adopted courses of study. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 0415 - Equity) 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 6000 - Concepts and Roles) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers) 
 
The Board shall select instructional materials for use in grades K-8 that have been approved 
by the State Board of Education (SBE) or that have, during the district's review process, 
been determined to be aligned with the state academic content standards adopted by SBE.  
(Education Code 60200, 60210)  
 
 
The Board shall adopt instructional materials for grades 9-12 upon determining that the 
materials meet the criteria specified in law and the accompanying administrative regulation.  
(Education Code 60400) 
 
In selecting or adopting instructional materials, the Board shall consider the 
recommendation of the Superintendent or designee and/or an advisory committee 
established to review the materials. 
 
 
 
 

420/425



Public Hearing on Sufficiency of Instructional Materials 
 
The Board shall annually conduct one or more public hearings on the sufficiency of the 
district's instructional materials, including textbooks, technology-based materials, other 
educational materials, and tests.  Technology-based materials include, but are not 
limited to, software programs, video disks, compact disks, optical disks, video and audio 
tapes, lesson plans, databases, and the electronic equipment required to make use of 
those materials by students and teachers as a learning resource.  (Education Code 60010, 
60119) 
 
The hearing shall be held on or before the end of the eighth week from the first day students 
attend school for that year.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
 
The Board encourages participation by parents/guardians, teachers, students, interested 
community members, and bargaining unit leaders at the hearing. Ten days prior to the 
hearing, the Superintendent or designee shall post a notice in three public places within the 
district containing the time, place, and purpose of the hearing. The hearing shall not take 
place during or immediately following school hours.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
 
 
At the hearing(s), the Board shall determine, through a resolution, whether each student in 
each school, including each English learner, has sufficient textbooks or other instructional 
materials that are aligned to the content standards adopted by SBE and consistent with 
the content and cycles of the curriculum framework adopted by SBE in each of the 
following subjects:  (Education Code 60119) 
 
1. Mathematics 
 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 
 
2. Science 
 
(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 
 
3. History-social science 
 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 
 
4. English language arts, including the English language development component of an 

adopted program 
 
(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
 
5. World language 
 
(cf. 6142.2 – World Language Instruction) 

421/425



 
6. Health 
 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 
 
The Board shall also determine the availability of science laboratory equipment, as 
applicable to science laboratory courses offered in grades 9-12.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
In making these determinations, the Board shall consider whether each student has sufficient 
textbooks or other instructional materials to use in class and to take home. This does not 
require that each student have two sets of materials.  
 
However, materials shall not be considered sufficient if they are photocopied sheets from 
only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials copied to address a shortage.  
(Education Code 60119) 
 
If materials are in a digital format, they shall be considered sufficient as long as each student, 
at a minimum, has and can access the same materials in the class and to take home as all 
other students in the same class or course in the district, and has the ability to use and access 
them at home.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
 
If the Board determines that there are insufficient textbooks or other instructional materials, 
the district shall provide information to classroom teachers and to the public setting forth, 
for each school in which an insufficiency exists, the percentage of students who lack 
sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials in each subject area and the 
reasons that each student does not have sufficient textbooks or instructional materials. The 
Board shall take any action to ensure that each student has sufficient materials within two 
months of the beginning of the school year in which the determination is made.  (Education 
Code 60119) 
 
The degree to which every student has sufficient access to standards-aligned instructional 
materials shall be included in the district's local control and accountability plan.  (Education 
Code 52060) 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
Complaints 
 
Complaints concerning instructional materials shall be handled in accordance with BP/AR 
1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials or AR 1312.4 - Williams 
Uniform Complaint Procedures, as applicable.   
  
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
220  Prohibition against discrimination 
1240  County superintendent, general duties 
33050-33053  General waiver authority 

422/425



33126  School accountability report card 
35272  Education and athletic materials 
44805  Enforcement of course of studies; use of textbooks, rules and regulations 
49415  Maximum textbook weight 
51501  Nondiscriminatory subject matter 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
60000-60005  Instructional materials, legislative intent 
60010  Definitions 
60040-60052  Instructional requirements and materials 
60060-60063.5  Requirements for publishers and manufacturers 
60070-60076  Prohibited acts (re instructional materials) 
60110-60115  Instructional materials on alcohol and drug education 
60119  Public hearing on sufficiency of materials 
60200-60210  Elementary school materials 
60226 Requirements for publishers and manufacturers 
60350-60352  Core reading program instructional materials 
60400-60411  High school textbooks 
60510-60511  Donation for sale of obsolete instructional materials 
60605  State content standards 
60605.8  Common Core State Standards 
60605.86-60605.88  Supplemental instructional materials aligned with Common Core State Standards 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
9505-9530  Instructional materials 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Instructional Materials FAQ 
01-05  Guidelines for Piloting Textbooks and Instructional Materials, rev. January 2015 
Standards for Evaluating Instructional Materials for Social Content, 2013 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
Association of American Publishers:  http://www.publishers.org 
California Academic Content Standards Commission, Common Core State Standards: 
http://www.scoe.net/castandards 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 (11/12  7/17)  10/20 

423/425



Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 
All rights reserved. 

CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 
Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3530 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT/INSURANCE 
 
The Governing Board desires to promote the safety of students, staff, and the public while 
protecting district resources.  The Superintendent or designee shall establish a risk 
management program that uses effective safety and loss control practices.   
 
The district shall strive to keep its liability at a minimum and its insurance premiums as low 
as possible while maintaining adequate protection against loss which may occur due to 
hazards facing the district.   
 
To determine the most economical means of insuring the district consistent with required 
services, the Superintendent or designee shall annually review the district's options for 
obtaining coverage, including qualified insurance agents, a joint powers agency, self-
insurance, or a combination of these means. Decisions regarding the means of insuring the 
district shall be based on a careful analysis of past claims records indicating the 
frequency and magnitude of losses and a prediction of future losses. 
 
 

To minimize the district's exposure to liability, the Board shall adopt clear policies related to 
discrimination, harassment, safety procedures, and the timely handling of claims.  The 
Superintendent or designee shall enforce these policies and related procedures fairly and 
consistently.  The Superintendent or designee shall provide safety-related training and 
protective equipment to staff as appropriate for their position. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11- Sexual Harassment) 
 (cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 
(cf. 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 - Work-Related Injuries)  
(cf. 5142 - Safety) 
 (cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 (cf. 9260 - Legal Protection) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall periodically report to the Board on the district's risk 
management activities, including, but not limited to, the district's property and liability 
risks and exposures and the effectiveness of the district's risk management and loss 
control practices. 
 
 

424/425



 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
17029.5  Contract funding; board liability 
17565-17592  Board duties re property maintenance and control 
32350  Liability on equipment loaned to district 
35162  Power to sue, be sued, hold and convey property 
35200-35214  Liabilities, especially: 
35208  Liability insurance 
35211  Driver training civil liability insurance 
35213  Reimbursement for loss, destruction, or damage of personal property 
35214  Liability self-insurance 
35331  Medical or hospital service for students on field trip 
39837  Transportation of  students to places of summer employment 
41021  Requirement for employees' indemnity bonds 
44873  Qualifications for physician (liability coverage) 
49470-49474  District medical services and insurance 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
820.9  Board members not vicariously liable for injuries caused by district 
831.7  Hazardous recreational activities 
989-991.2  Local public entity insurance 
LABOR CODE 
3200-4855 Workers' compensation 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
California Association of Joint Powers Authorities:  https://www.cajpa.org 
California Association of School Business Officials:  https://www.casbo.org 
California Department of Industrial Relations, Division of Occupational Safety and Health:  
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh 
Public Agency Risk Management Association: https://www.parma.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 (9/88  10/95)  10/20 
 

425/425


	Agenda 01.13.21
	Meeting December 2, 2020
	Minutes 12.15.20 - FINAL
	Minutes 12.15.20 Finance Authority - FINAL
	Williams Report Q2
	Williams Complaint Form Q2
	2019-2020 SARC Board Cover January 13, 2021 (1)
	SARC- AFE
	SARC-ARK
	SARC- BV
	SARC-BMS
	SARC- COSTANOA
	SARC- DL
	SARC- GAULT
	SARC- HH
	SARC- MH
	SARC- MONARCH
	SARC- SCHS
	SARC- SQHS
	SARC- WL
	8.1.2.1. POs Bids & Quotes cover
	8.1.2.1. PO BOARD REPORT 12-5 THRU 1-4 FOR 011321 MEETING
	8.1.2.2. Vendor Warrants Register Cover
	8.1.2.2. Dec 8 20-Jan 5 21 Warrant Register
	8.1.2.3. Budget Transfers Report cover
	8.1.2.3. Budget Transfers Dec 2020
	Personnel Actions -- Certificated
	Personnel Actions -- Classified
	8.1.3.3. - Cover- Assistant Director of Maintenance & Operations
	8.1.3.3. - Attachment - Assistant Director of Maintenance & Operations
	8.1.3.4. - Cover- Lead Custodian
	8.1.3.4. - Attachment - Lead Custodian Job Description
	8.1.3.5 - Cover- Updated Extra Pay
	8.1.3.5 - Attachment Extra Pay 2020-2021
	8.2.1.1 NPS-Chartwell 11321 Brd Agenda Cov-ready
	11321 NPS Chartwell School MC
	8.2.1.2 APS-Private School Pacements 11321 Joint Brd Agenda Cov
	APS - ISPs SPEECHRIGHTER 011321
	APS - ISPs STEPS TO SUCCESS 011321
	8.2.2.1. Geo H Wilson Proposal Branciforte Middle School Ventilation Modifications Cover
	8.2.2.1. Geo H Wilson Ventilation Modification B40MS
	8.2.2.2. Geo H Wilson Proposal Bay View Elementary School Ventilstion Modification Cover
	8.2.2.2. Geo H Wilson Ventilation Modification BV
	8.2.2.3. Geo H Wilson Proposal Soquel High School Ventilation Modification Cover
	8.2.2.3. Geo H Wilson Ventilation Modification SHS
	8.2.2.4. Geo H Wilson Proposal Santa Cruz High School Ventilation Modification Cover
	8.2.2.4. Geo H Wilson Ventilation Modification SCHS
	8.2.2.5. Geo H Wilson Proposal Harbor High School Ventilation Modification Cover
	8.2.2.5. Geo H Wilson Ventilation Modification HHS
	8.2.2.6. Geo H Wilson Proposal Soquel High School Ventilation Balancing Cover
	8.2.2.6. Geo H Wilson Proposal Soquel High School Ventilation Balancing
	8.2.2.7. Geo H Wilson Proposal Harbor High School Ventilation Balancing Cover
	8.2.2.7. Geo H Wilson Proposal Harbor High School Ventilation Balancing
	8.2.2.8. Geo H Wilson Proposal Branciforte Middle School Ventilation Balancing Cover
	8.2.2.8. Geo H Wilson Proposal Branciforte Middle School Ventilation Balancing
	8.2.2.9. Climatec Memoranum of Understanding Cover
	8.2.2.9. Climatec Memoranum of Understanding
	8.2.3.1. Cover- Educational Leadership Coach
	8.2.3.1 - Attachment - CSA - Martin Krovetz 2020-2021
	8.2.3.1.- Attachment - CSA - Mary Gaukel Forster 2020-2021
	8.3.1. Geo H Wilson Change Order 1 Westlake Elementary School Sewer Repairs Cover
	8.3.1. Geo H WIlson Change Order 1 Westlake Elementary School Sewer Repairs
	8.3.2. Locatelli Moving & Storage Inc. Change Order 1 Bay View Elementary School Moves Cover
	8.3.2. Locatelli Moving & Storage Inc. Change Order 1 Bay View Elementary School Moves
	8.3.3. PPD Multimedia Inc. Quote Harbor High School Logo Cover
	8.3.3. PPD Multimedia Inc. Quote Harbor High School Logo
	8.3.4. PSR Electric Change Order 1 Santa Cruz High School Site Lighting Cover
	8.3.4. PSR Electric Change Order 1 Santa Cruz High School Site Lighting
	8.5.1.1. Update on Expansion of In Person Services Cover 1.13.21
	8.5.1.1. Expanding In-Person Services & Academic Intervention & Support 1.13.21
	8.5.3.1 Bond Budget Update cover
	8.5.3.1. 2021-01-13-board-update-option-final
	8.5.3.2. Bond Projects Update cover
	8.5.3.2. Bond Projects Update MADI19six Board Presentation
	8.5.3.3. Bond Set Aside Project 1.13.21
	8.5.3.3. Bond District Set Aside Allocation 1.13.21
	8.5.5.1. Cvr Board Policy UpdatesFirst or Final Reading
	Bylaw  9220-B  Governing Board Elections
	Guide Sheet 10-20
	BP 3280 Sale or Lease of District Owned Real Property
	BP 4119.11 4219.11 4319.11 Sexual Harassment
	BP 4157 4257 4357 Employee Safety
	BP 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy
	BP 5145.7 Sexual Harassment
	BP 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials
	BP3530 Risk Management Insurance

